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NOTICE OF THE EIGHTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE MEMBERS OF SAMUNNATI 

FINANCIAL INTERMEDIATION & SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED 

 

NOTICE is hereby given that the Eighth Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of Samunnati Financial 

Intermediation & Services Private Limited (the “Company”) will be held on Monday, September 

5, 2022, at 11 A.M. IST through Video Conferencing (“VC”) / Other Audio-Visual Means (“OAVM”) 

in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made 

thereunder read with General Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, General Circular No. 

17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, General Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020, General 

Circular No. 02/2021 dated January 13, 2021, General Circular No. 21/2021 dated December 14, 

2021 and General Circular No. 02/2022 dated May 05, 2022 (hereinafter collectively referred to 

as “Circulars”) and other applicable circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs 

(“MCA”), to transact the businesses set out below. Members participating through the VC / 

OAVM facility shall be reckoned for the purpose of quorum under Section 103 of the Companies 

Act, 2013. The proceedings of the AGM will be recorded at the Registered Office of the Company 

situated at Baid Hi Tech Park, 8th Floor, No 129B, East Coast Road, Thiruvanmiyur, Chennai - 600 

041. 

 

In compliance with the Circulars issued by the MCA, the Notice of the AGM and the Audited 

Financial Statements for the Financial Year 2021-22 along with the Reports of the Board of 

Directors and Auditors thereon and other documents required to be attached thereon are being 

circulated to the Members of the Company through electronic mode. 

 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

 

ITEM NO. 1 – TO CONSIDER AND ADOPT THE AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE 

COMPANY FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 ALONG WITH THE REPORTS  OF 

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS THEREON  

 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following as an 

Ordinary Resolution: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT the Audited Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements of the 

Company along with the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon for the Financial 

Year ended March 31, 2022, as circulated to the Members and laid before the Meeting, be and 

are hereby approved and adopted.” 

 

SPECIAL BUSINESSES: 

 

ITEM NO. 2 – TO CONSIDER AND APPROVE RE-APPOINTMENT OF MR. GURUNATH NEELAMANI 

AS A WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY  

 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following as a Special 

Resolution: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Sections 196, 203, Schedule V and other applicable 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the Companies (Appointment and 

.g, Samunnati 
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Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modifications or re-

enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force) read with Articles of Association of the 

Company, the Amended and Restated Shareholders’ Agreement dated May 06, 2019, the 

Amendment to the Amended and Restated Shareholders’ Agreement dated April 12, 2021 and the 

Amendment to the Amended and Restated Shareholders’ Agreement dated March 30, 2022, the 

consent of the Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded for re-appointment of Mr. 

Gurunath Neelamani (DIN: 02799586) as a Whole time Director of the Company for a period of 

five years with effect from June 21, 2022 on such remuneration as may be fixed by the 

Nomination & Remuneration Committee / Board of Directors of the Company from time to time. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized 

to approve the terms and conditions of re-appointment including remuneration and to alter such 

terms and conditions from time to time as it may deem appropriate, on the recommendation of 

the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and in compliance with the applicable provisions 

of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable laws. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized 

to settle any question or clarifications that may arise in giving effect to this resolution and to do 

all such acts, deeds and things as may be necessary, expedient and desirable for the purpose of 

giving effect to this resolution. 

 

ITEM NO. 3 – TO CONSIDER AND APPROVE RE-APPOINTMENT OF MR. SUNIL SATYAPAL GULATI 

AS AN INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY  

 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following as a Special 

Resolution: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152 and other applicable 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the Rules made thereunder (including any 

statutory modifications or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), Articles of 

Association of the Company, approval and recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee and that of the Board of Directors, Mr. Sunil Satyapal Gulati (DIN:00016990), be and 

is hereby re-appointed as an Independent Director, not liable to retire by rotation, for a second 

term of five years with effect from September 25, 2022 up to September 24, 2027. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized 

to settle any question or clarifications that may arise in giving effect to this resolution and to do 

all such acts, deeds and things as may be necessary, expedient and desirable for the purpose of 

giving effect to this resolution. 

 

By Order of the Board of Directors 

Sd/- 

 

 

Place: Chennai  

Date: August 12, 2022 

                  S Arun Kumar 

         Company Secretary 

                             

.g, Samunnati 
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NOTE: 

 

1) A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING, IS ALSO ENTITLED TO 

APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE ON HIS/HER BEHALF AND SUCH A PROXY NEED 

NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY SUBJECT TO PROVISIONS OF THE ARTICLES OF 

ASSOCIATION. However, as per the Circulars issued by MCA, the entitlement for appointment 

of proxy has been dispensed with for the General Meetings conducted through VC / OAVM. 

Accordingly, the Attendance Slip, Proxy Form and Route Map have not been annexed to this 

Notice of AGM. 

 

2) Corporate Members intending to nominate their authorised representatives to attend the 

Meeting are requested to send a certified copy of the Board Resolution authorising their 

representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting. 

 

3) The explanatory statement as required under Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 is 

annexed hereto and forms an integral part of the Notice. 

 

4) Members may kindly note that since the Annual General Meeting of the Company is scheduled 

to be held through VC / OAVM, the login credentials shall be shared with the Members along 

with the instructions for logging in, to their registered mail ids. In case of any clarifications in 

this regard, Members can reach out to us at secretarial@samunnati.com or 044-66762400.  

 

5) The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding, maintained 

under Section 170 and Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which Directors are interested, 

maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules issued thereunder 

shall be available electronically for inspection. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

~ t Samunnati 
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ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE 

 

A. EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

 

The following statement contains all the material facts relating to the Special Businesses as set out 

in this Notice: 

 

ITEM NO. 2 – RE-APPOINTMENT OF MR. GURUNATH NEELAMANI AS WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR OF THE 

COMPANY  

 

Mr. Gurunath Neelamani (DIN: 02799586) was appointed as a Whole time Director of the Company 

for a period of 5 years on June 21, 2017. Considering his experience, skills, knowledge and 

performance evaluation, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee at its Meeting held on May 

24, 2022 had recommended re-appointment of Mr. Gurunath Neelamani as a Whole time Director for 

a term of five years effective June 21, 2022, after taking note of the requisite consents and 

disclosures/declarations received from him under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and 

rules made thereunder. 

 

The Board of Directors, based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee, re-appointed Mr. Gurunath Neelamani as Whole time Director for a further period of 5 

years w.e.f. June 21, 2022 subject to approval of the Members.  

 

The brief profile of Mr. Gurunath Neelamani and other information as required under the Secretarial 

Standards are disclosed under Para – B of this statement. 

 

The Board recommends passing of the resolution at Item No. 2 of the notice as a Special Resolution. 

 

Except Mr. Gurunath Neelamani, none of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company 

or their relatives are concerned or interested in the resolution as set out in Item No. 2. 

 

ITEM NO. 3 – RE-APPOINTMENT OF MR. SUNIL SATYAPAL GULATI AS AN INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR 

OF THE COMPANY  

 

Mr. Sunil Satyapal Gulati (DIN:00016990) was appointed as an Independent Director of the Company 

at the Meeting of Board of Directors held on September 25, 2017 for a period of five years effective 

September 25, 2017, which was approved by Members at the Extraordinary General Meeting of the 

Company held on February 8, 2018. Accordingly, Mr. Sunil Satyapal Gulati’s tenure as Independent 

Director of the Company comes to an end on September 24, 2022. 

 

As per the provisions of Section 149(10) and (11) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), an 

Independent Director shall hold office for a term up to five consecutive years on the Board of the 

Company but shall be re-appointed by the Company by passing a special resolution and disclosure of 

such re-appointment in the Boards’ Report. 

 

Considering his experience, skills, knowledge and performance evaluation, the Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee at its Meeting held on August 03, 2022 had recommended re-appointment 

of Mr. Sunil Gulati as an Independent Director for a second term of five consecutive years after taking 

~ t Samunnati 
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note of the consents and disclosures/declarations received from him. The Board of Directors, based 

on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, re-appointed Mr. Sunil 

Gulati as an Independent Director, not liable to retire by rotation, for a second term of five years 

with effect from September 25, 2022 up to September 24, 2027 subject to approval of the Members. 

 

In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Sunil Gulati fulfils the conditions specified in the Act and the Rules 

framed thereunder and he is independent of the Management. The brief profile of Mr. Sunil Gulati 

and other information as required under the Secretarial Standards are disclosed under Para – B of 

this statement. 

 

The Board recommends the re-appointment of Mr. Sunil Gulati for a further term of five years. In 

compliance with the provisions of Section 149 read with Schedule IV of the Act, the appointment of 

Mr. Sunil Gulati is being placed before the Members for their approval by means of a Special 

Resolution.  

 

Except Mr. Sunil Gulati, none of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their 

relatives are concerned or interested in the resolution as set out in Item no.3. 

 

B. DISCLOSURE UNDER SECRETARIAL STANDARDS 2 ON GENERAL MEETINGS 

 

Name of the Director Mr. Gurunath Neelamani Mr. Sunil Satyapal Gulati 

DIN 02799586 00016990 

Date of Birth 18/03/1964 28/07/1961 

Age 58 years 61 years 

Qualification(s) B Sc – Physics, PGDSM – NIIT B. Tech, PGDM 

Date of Appointment 

(Initial Appointment) 
June 21, 2017 September 25, 2017 

Nature of his expertise 

in specific functional 

areas 

Banker with over 32 years of experience 

in the Banking and Financial Services 

space. Started career with TMB and 

moved to ICICI and served in various roles 

for 15 years. Played key roles across 

Business and Operations in IFMR group of 

companies and also served as CEO of a 

NBFC (Pudhuaaru Financial Services 

Private Limited) 

Experienced Banker for over 3 decades across 

multinational and Domestic Private sector 

banks with global and Indian experience 

Number of Board 

Meeting attended 

during FY 2021-22 

Eleven Twelve 

Inter-se relationship 

with any other 

directors and KMPs of 

the Company 

None None 

Directorships in other 

Companies  

 

Samunnati Finance Private Limited  

 

- Varthana Finance Private Ltd 

- Tapstart Capital Private Ltd 

- PNB Metlife India Insurance Company Ltd 

- Fincare Small Finance Bank Ltd 

~ t Samunnati 
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- Empays Payment Systems India Private Ltd 

- Merisis Advisors Private Ltd 

- Visage Holdings and Finance Private Ltd 

- Arthan Finance Private Ltd 

- SBI Mutual Fund Trustee Company Private 

Ltd 

- Perfios Account Aggregation Services 

Private Ltd 

- White Wizard Capital Private Ltd 

 

Number of shares held 

in the Company  
1200 NIL 

Details of 

remuneration sought 

to be paid 

As may be fixed by the Board of Directors 

from time to time 
Not Applicable 

Details of 

remuneration last 

drawn 

INR 11.86 MN NIL (only sitting fee is paid) 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

~ t Samunnati 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 
Dear Members, 

 

Your Directors are pleased to present the eighth Annual Report together with the Audited Financial 

Statement of Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited (“the Company” or 

“Samunnati”) for the year ended March 31, 2022.  

 

A. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE  

 

The summarised Standalone results of your Company are given in the table below: 

                                                                                                                                       (INR MN)                                                                

Particulars 
Year ended                     

31st March,2022 

Year ended  

31st March,2021* 

Revenue from Operations (A) 1,692.46 1,603.86 

Other Income (B) 82.46 72.97 

Total Income (A+B) 1,774.92 1,676.83 

Expenditure   

Total Expenses (Including Interest & Depreciation) 2,590.92 1,674.06 

Profit / (Loss) before Tax (816.00) 2.77 

Less: Tax expenses:   

1. Current tax - 0.00 

2. Deferred tax (149.81) (0.96) 

Profit/ (Loss) after tax (666.19) 3.73 

Other Comprehensive Income  2.07 4.11 

Total Comprehensive Income  (664.12) 7.84 

*previous year figures have been regrouped/rearranged wherever necessary 

 

The summarised consolidated results of your Company are given in the table below:                                                                              

                                                                                                                                     (INR MN) 

Particulars 
Year ended                       

31st March, 2022 

Year ended                       

31st March, 2021* 

Revenue from Operations (A) 22,755.36 9,141.68 

Other Income (B) 165.65 124.15 

Total Income (A+B) 22,921.01 9,265.83 

Expenditure   

Total Expenses (Including Interest & Depreciation) 24,248.11 9,352.22 

Profit/(Loss) before Tax (1,327.10) (86.39) 

Less: Tax expenses:   

1. Current tax - - 

2. Deferred tax (260.71) (20.10) 

Profit/ (Loss) after tax (1,066.39) (66.29) 

Other Comprehensive Income  (1.94) 4.75 

Total Comprehensive Income  (1,064.45) (61.54) 

   *previous year figures have been regrouped/rearranged wherever necessary 
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B. SUMMARY OF OPERATIONS  

 

Standalone 

 

The Company achieved 21.8% growth in Asset under Management (AUM) which grew by INR 

2,040 MN to INR 11,414 MN during FY 2021-22 from INR 9,374 MN during FY 2020-21. Revenue 

from operations grew by INR 88.6 MN (growth of 5.5%) to INR 1,692.46 MN from INR 1,603.86 

MN. Other Income grew by INR 9.49 MN ( growth of 13%) to INR 82.46 MN from INR 72.97 MN. 

Total comprehensive income after tax has gone down from INR 7.84 MN to a loss of INR 664.12 

MN primarily on account of higher impairment / ECL provision. 

 

During the year, the Company raised debt funding of INR 8,554 MN from Banks, NBFCs and 

foreign institutions, despite adverse financial market conditions. 

 

Performance of Subsidiaries 

 

• Samunnati Agro Solutions Private Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company 

which trades in agro commodities. The Gross Transaction Value / Sales of the subsidiary 

during FY 2021-22 increased to INR 21,102.3 MN from INR 7,567.5 MN during FY 2020-21 

registering a growth of ~ 179%. The Gross Margin earned during FY 2021-22 was INR 409.2 

MN compared to INR 212.7 MN during FY 2020-21. The EBITDA was INR 108.4 MN during FY 

2021-22 as against INR 84.3 MN during FY 2020-21.  

 

• Samunnati Finance Private Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company 

incorporated during the financial year. The Company has filed application with Reserve 

Bank of India for issuance of Non-Banking Finance Company license and the Company is 

yet to commence its business operations. 

 

• Kamatan Farm Tech Private Limited (“Kamatan”), which deals in trading of agro 

commodities, was acquired as a wholly owned subsidiary on April 16, 2021. Post 

acquisition, all transactions have been undertaken in Samunnati Agro Solutions Private 

Limited for strategic reasons executed by the erstwhile employees of Kamatan. As a result, 

sales was lower by more than 85% during FY 2021-22 at INR 53.5 MN compared to INR 359.7 

MN during FY 2020-21. Net Income was INR 2.7 MN during FY 2021-22 compared to INR 8.1 

MN during FY 2020-21. EBITDA was negative at INR 37.1 MN 

 

• Samunnati Foundation, a wholly owned subsidiary, is a not-for-profit company 

incorporated under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013. It was established to enable 

inclusive growth and create opportunities for the unserved/ underserved communities in 

the agricultural ecosystem in order to make a tangible difference to livelihood of small 

holder farmers. Samunnati Foundation has been excluded from consolidation as its 

inclusion is not material to the Group and being not for profit organisation, impairs its 

ability to transfer any benefit to the Company. 

 

C. COMPANY OVERVIEW 

 

Your Company is a Non-Banking Finance Company (NBFC) registered with Reserve Bank of India 

and is a specialised Agri Value Chain enabler that provides innovative and customised financial 

and non-financial solutions. The Company was founded by Mr. Anil Kumar S G who began his 

career as a banker, with an experience of over 30 years in the rural & retail financial services, 

microfinance and financial inclusion sectors. 
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Samunnati leverages on the ‘social capital’ and ‘trade capital’ in buyer-seller relationships via 

Samunnati Aggregators, through non-traditional sourcing, risk assessment and mitigation, 

aided by cutting edge technology and an experienced management team with deep domain 

expertise. All these contribute to building a quality business that is sustainable and inclusive 

growth. These values are embedded in the genetic code of Samunnati and demonstrated in 

the way the Company’s processes operate. 

 

With an aim to offer holistic, suitable solutions to the Agri-value chain players, Samunnati 

Agro Solutions Private Limited (“Samunnati Agro”) was incorporated on October 14, 2016 as a 

wholly owned subsidiary of Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited. 

Samunnati Agro offers trade facilities and market linkages to Agri-value chain players.  

 

The Company has acquired Kamatan Farm Tech Private Limited (“Kamatan”), as a wholly 

owned subsidiary with effect from April 16, 2021, by way of acquisition of 3,44,848 equity 

shares constituting the entire paid-up share capital of Kamatan’s then existing shareholders, 

by way of swap of shares. As part of the share swap arrangement, the then existing 

shareholders of Kamatan have been allotted Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares 

(CCPS) of the Company as consideration. With this acquisition, the Company hopes to enhance 

the combined market linkage outreach of Samunnati and Kamatan to Farmer Producer 

Organisations (FPOs), small traders, farmer aggregators, and Agri SMEs - helping them connect 

to corporate buyers and drive higher farmer income. Recognising the impact a technology-led 

approach to agriculture can create, Samunnati has joined hands with Kamatan to bring the 

last-mile benefits of digitalisation to FPOs and Agri enterprises. Further, Kamatan’s expertise 

in agricultural institution building, farming best practices, farmer collectives, distribution, 

logistics, and technology coupled with Samunnati’s holistic solutions approach through 

Aggregation, Market Linkages, and Advisory services (AMLA) is expected to help Agri value 

chains operate at a higher equilibrium. 

 

The Company has also incorporated Samunnati Finance Private Limited as a wholly owned 

Subsidiary on September 22, 2021. Samunnati Finance Private Limited will engage in the 

business of providing Financial Assistance and improving access to finance to underserved 

geographies and customer segments by providing or arranging loans and advances. Samunnati 

Finance Private Limited is in the process of obtaining Registration/License from the Reserve 

Bank of India (RBI), to operate as a Non-Banking Finance company (NBFC). The NBFC business 

of the Company would be transferred to Samunnati Finance Private Limited by way of a slump 

sale, as part of the Scheme of Arrangement. 

 

Samunnati Agro Solutions Private Limited has incorporated Samunnati Investment Management 

Services Private Limited on March 08, 2022 as a wholly owned subsidiary, which will manage 

an Alternative Investment Fund (“AIF”) (Category 2 – Debt fund) with emphasis on 

Sustainability, Scalability and Impact.  

 

D. COMPOSITE SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT 

 

The Board of Directors of the Company had, at the Meeting held on October 28, 2021, approved 

the Composite Scheme of Arrangement (“Scheme”) for: 

 

(a) the slump sale (i.e., transfer and vesting) of the Business Undertaking of Samunnati 

Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited as a going concern into Samunnati 

Finance Private Limited, pursuant to the provisions of Section 230 to Section 232 of the 

Companies Act, 2013, and 
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(b) Post giving effect to (a) above, the amalgamation of Samunnati Agro Solutions Private 

Limited into Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited, pursuant 

to the provisions of Section 230 to Section 232 of the Companies Act, 2013.  

Further to this, the abovesaid Companies had filed a joint application before the National 

Company Law Tribunal, Chennai (“NCLT”) on December 04, 2021, seeking its directions for 

convening of the Meetings of the Equity Shareholders, Preference Shareholders, Debenture 

holders and Creditors and for dispensation of Meetings wherever approvals of the particular 

class of stakeholders had already been filed with the NCLT. 

 

In this connection, NCLT had passed an order dated March 29, 2022 [CA/(CAA)/118(CHE)2021] 

(“NCLT Order”) directing the Company to convene the Meetings of the concerned stakeholders 

seeking their approval for implementation of the Scheme. Accordingly, the Meetings of all 

stakeholders i.e. Equity Shareholders, Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares, Debenture 

Holders and other creditors of the Company were convened on May 4, 2022 and approvals with 

requisite majority were obtained. Subsequently, the Company and its subsidiaries had filed 

joint petition before the NCLT on May 13, 2022. The matter is now pending hearing before 

NCLT. 

 

E. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF 

THE COMPANY BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR AND DATE OF THE REPORT 

 

No material changes and commitment that affect the financial position of the Company have 

occurred between the end of the financial year to which the financial statements relate and 

the date of this report. 

 

F. DIVIDEND 

 

Your Directors do not recommend any dividend for the year under review. 

 

G. TRANSFER TO RESERVES 

 

As the Company has not made profits during the financial year 2021-22, your Company has not 

transferred any amount to statutory reserve under Section 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of India 

Act, 1934. 

 

H. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY 

 

There was no change in the nature of business of the Company during the financial year 2021-

22. 

 

I. NON-ACCEPTANCE OF DEPOSITS 

 

During the year under review, your Company has neither invited nor accepted any deposits 

from public in terms of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 and consequently, no amount 

on account of principal or interest on deposits from public was outstanding as on March 31, 

2022. 
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J. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING  

 

The internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements are commensurate 

with the size and nature of business of the Company. Further, the internal financial control 

system of the Company is supplemented with internal audit, regular reviews by the 

management and checks by the Statutory Auditors. It provides reasonable assurance in respect 

of providing financial and operational information, complying with applicable statutes, 

safeguarding of assets of the Company, prevention and detection of frauds, accuracy and 

completeness of accounting records and ensuring compliance with the Company’s policies. The 

Audit Committee monitors this system and ensures adequacy of the same. The Statutory 

Auditors of the Company also provide their opinion on the internal financial control framework 

of the Company. 

 

During the year, no material or serious omissions and commissions have been observed by the 

Auditors, reflecting the efficiency and adequacy of internal financial controls.  

 

K. CHANGES TO SHARE CAPITAL 

 

During the year under review, 67,624 compulsorily convertible preference shares (CCPS) of face 

value of Rs.10/- each were issued for consideration other than cash as consideration for 

acquisition of Kamatan Farm Tech Private Limited. The details of the same are given below: 

 

S.No 
Date of 

Allotment 

Name of the 

Shareholder 
Type of Shares 

Mode of 

allotment 

No of 

Shares 

1. 16.04.2021 Elevar M-III 

Series D1 Compulsorily 

Convertible Preference 

Shares 

Private 

Placement 
43,448 

2. 16.04.2021 

Elevar I-IV AIF 

represented by its 

trustee Vistra ITCL 

(India) Ltd 

Series D1 Compulsorily 

Convertible Preference 

Shares 

Private 

Placement 
19,617 

3. 16.04.2021 Mr. Pravesh Sharma 

Series D1 Compulsorily 

Convertible Preference 

Shares 

Private 

Placement 
1,912  

4. 16.04.2021 Mr. Amol Patil 

Series D1 Compulsorily 

Convertible Preference 

Shares 

Private 

Placement 
2,647 

Total 67,624 

 

Consequent to the same, the paid-up capital as on March 31, 2022 was INR 2,25,76,800/- 

(Rupees Two Crore Twenty Five Lakhs Seventy Six Thousand Eight Hundred Only) divided into 

5,73,861 (Five Lakhs Seventy Three Thousand Eight Hundred and Sixty One only) Equity Shares 

of Rs.10/- each and 16,83,819 (Sixteen Lakhs Eighty Three Thousand Eight Hundred and 

Nineteen only) Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares of Rs. 10/- each. 

 

The details of the opening and closing Authorized and Paid-up capital of the Company is 

mentioned below: 

Particulars Opening 

(April 01, 2021) 

Closing 

(March 31, 2022) 

Authorized Capital (INR) INR 2,50,00,000/- INR 2,50,00,000/- 

Paid Up Capital (INR) INR 2,19,00,560/- INR 2,25,76,800/- 
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L. DISCLOSURE UNDER SECTION 67(3)(C) OF COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

 

The disclosure with regard to voting rights not exercised directly by the employees of the 

Company as required under proviso to Section 67(3)(c) of Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 

16(4) of Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 is not applicable to the 

Company.   

 

M. DISCLOSURE REGARDING ISSUE OF EQUITY SHARES WITH DIFFERENTIAL RIGHTS 

 

The Company has not issued any Equity Shares with differential rights during the financial year 

2021-22.  

 

N. DISCLOSURE REGARDING ISSUE OF EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTIONS / SWEAT EQUITY SHARES 

 

The Company currently administers an Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP) which was initially 

constituted during 2015. The Board had approved the amended Employee Stock Option Plan 

2019, at its Meeting held on May 22, 2019 and the same was also approved by the Members at 

the Extraordinary General Meeting held on May 24, 2019. Further with a view to broaden the 

terms and conditions, including those on vesting, exercise, lapse and surrender the Board has 

approved the Employee Stock Option Plan 2022 (“ESOP Scheme 2022”), at its Meeting held on 

February 10, 2022 and the same was approved by the Members in the Extraordinary General 

(EGM) Meeting held on March 07, 2022. 

 

The ESOP was introduced with an intention to motivate employees to contribute to the growth 

and profitability of the Company, as well as to create a sense of ownership and participation 

amongst the employees. 

 

In addition to the above, the Company administers Management Stock Option Plans (MSOP) 

constituted in the years 2017 and 2019 to provide wealth creation opportunities to the Promoter 

of the Company. It is to be noted that the Company is a registered startup and has been issued 

a certificate of recognition as a ‘startup’ by the Government of India, with registration number 

DIPP6002. Further, as per applicable law (Rule 12(1), Companies (Share Capital and 

Debentures) Rules, 2014), a startup is permitted to issue employee stock options to its 

Promoter.  

 

O. DISCLOSURES UNDER RULE 12(9)(A) TO (I) OF THE COMPANIES (SHARE CAPITAL AND 

DEBENTURES) RULES, 2014 

 

Particulars Value 

Outstanding Options at the beginning of the year – 

April 01, 2021 
1,02,565 

Options Granted during FY 2021-22 43,380 

Options Vested during FY 2021-22 10,500 

Options Exercised during FY 2021-22 - 

Total No. of Shares arising as a result of exercise of 

option during FY 2021-22 
- 

Options Lapsed 15,232 

Exercise Price (Weighted) 
No options exercised during FY 2021-

22 
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Particulars Value 

Variation of terms of options 

The existing Employee Stock Option 

Plan 2019 amended to broaden the 

terms and conditions including those 

on vesting, exercise, lapse, 

surrender, etc. 

Money realised by exercise of options 
No options exercised during FY 2021-

22 

Total No. of Options in force as on March 31, 2022 1,30,713 

Employee wise details of options granted to:  

(1) key managerial personnel; Disclosed in MGT-7 

(2) any other employee who has been granted options 

in any one year amounting to five percent or more 

of options granted during that year 

 Name of the 

Employee 

No of 

Options 

Granted 

Mr. Lalit Malik 5960 

Mr. Raghavan HKN 4350 

Mr. Suresh Venkatesan 4400 

Mr. Pravesh Sharma 8000 

Mr. Amol Patil 2500 

(3) identified employees who were granted option, 

during any one year, equal to or exceeding one 

percent of the issued capital (excluding 

outstanding warrants and conversions) of the 

company at the time of grant 

Nil 

 

P. CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIO 

 

The Company’s Capital Adequacy ratio stood at 20.43% as on March 31, 2022 which is well 

within the regulatory limits applicable for NBFC- ND-SI as stipulated by the Reserve Bank of 

India. 

 

Q. EXTRACT OF THE ANNUAL RETURN 

 

In accordance with Section 134(3)(a) and Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’), 

the annual return in Form MGT-7 is placed on the website of the Company and is available on 

https://site.samunnati.com/annual-returns/ 

 

R. CHANGES IN DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL DURING THE YEAR 

 

S No. Name of the Director DIN/PAN Category Changes during the 

year, if any 

1. Mr. Narasimhan Srinivasan 01501266 Independent Director Nil 

2. Mr. Sunil Gulati 00016990 Independent Director Nil 

3. Dr. Venkatesh Tagat 02728441 Independent Director Nil 

4. Mr. Mahendran Balachandran 00121640 Nominee Director Nil 

5. Ms. Jyotsna Krishnan 06572288 Nominee Director Nil 

6. Mr. Akshay Dua 03144843 Nominee Director Nil 

7. Ms. Rekha Unnithan 08354141 Nominee Director Nil 

8. Mr. Anil Kumar S G 01189011 Director & CEO Nil 
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S No. Name of the Director DIN/PAN Category Changes during the 

year, if any 

9. Mr. Gurunath Neelamani 02799586 Whole-time Director Nil 

10. Mr. Ashok Dhamankar AECPD4476R CFO (KMP) Cessation w.e.f. 

April 22, 2022 * 

11. Mr. Lalit Malik AKDPM0939K CFO (KMP)  Appointed w.e.f.  

April 22, 2022 * 

12. Ms. Ashwini Venkataraman ASBPA2554Q Company Secretary Cessation w.e.f 

September 15, 2021 

13. Mr. S Arun Kumar AIPPA8757R Company Secretary  Appointed w.e.f. 

March 11, 2022 

* Change post end of the financial year 

 

Mr. Gurunath Neelamani (DIN: 02799586) was appointed as a Whole-time Director of the 

Company for a period of 5 years on June 21, 2017 and his tenure as Whole-time Director was 

until June 20, 2022. The Board of Directors, based on the recommendation of the Nomination 

and Remuneration Committee, re-appointed Mr. Gurunath Neelamani as Whole-time Director 

for a further period of 5 years w.e.f. June 21, 2022 subject to approval of the shareholders.  

 

Mr. Sunil Satyapal Gulati (DIN:00016990) was appointed as an Independent Director for the first 

term of five years effective September 25, 2017. His office of directorship is due for retirement 

on September 24, 2022. Based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee and after taking into account the performance evaluation of his first term of five 

years and considering the knowledge, acumen, expertise, experience and the substantial 

contribution he brings to the Board, the Committee has recommended the appointment of Mr. 

Sunil Satyapal Gulati to the Board for a second term of five years. The Board, at its Meeting 

held on August 05, 2022, approved the reappointment of Mr. Sunil Satyapal Gulati as an 

Independent Director of the Company for a second term of 5 years with effect from September 

24, 2022, whose office shall not be liable to retire by rotation. 

 

The Board recommends the above reappointments to the shareholders. The notice convening 

the Annual General Meeting, sets out the details. 

 

S. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY 

 

The Nomination and Remuneration Policy, inter-alia, provides for criteria and qualifications for 

appointment of Director, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management, Board diversity, 

remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, etc. The policy can be accessed at the 

following link: https://site.samunnati.com/samunnati-financial-intermediation-and-services-

private-limited/  

 

T. DETAILS OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD 

 

The Directors of the Company met 12 (Twelve) times during the financial year 2021-22. The 

details of Board Meetings held during the year and the attendance of Directors at the said 

Meetings are given below: 
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BOARD MEETINGS 

Sl. No Date of Meeting 
No. of Directors who 

attended the meeting 

1.  April 09, 2021 7/9 

2.  April 16, 2021 7/9 

3.  June 24, 2021 8/9 

4.  June 29, 2021 9/9 

5.  July 29, 2021 8/9 

6.  September 07, 2021 6/9 

7.  October 28, 2021 7/9 

8.  November 11, 2021 8/9 

9.  January 18, 2022 9/9 

10.  February 02, 2022 7/9 

11.  February 10, 2022 7/9 

12.  March 11, 2022 7/9 

 

U. LIST OF COMMITTEES 

 

The Constitution of the Board Committees as of March 31, 2022 are as below:  

 

1. Audit Committee 

 

The composition of the Audit Committee is as follows: 

a) Mr. Sunil Gulati           -          Chairman 

b) Mr. N. Srinivasan           –          Member  

c) Mr. Akshay Dua               –          Member 

 

2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

 

The composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee is as follows: 

a) Mr. N. Srinivasan    –  Chairman 

b) Mr. Sunil Gulati    –  Member 

c) Dr. Venkatesh Tagat      -  Member 

d) Ms. Jyotsna Krishnan     –  Member     

e) Ms. Rekha Unnithan     –  Member     

f) Mr. Anil Kumar S G        –  Member 

 

3. Risk Management Committee 

 

               The composition of the Risk Management Committee is as follows: 

a) Mr. Sunil Gulati   -  Chairman 

b) Mr. N. Srinivasan   -  Member 

c) Mr. Akshay Dua   -  Member 

d) Mr. Anil Kumar S G   -  Member 

e) Mr. N. Gurunath   -  Member 

f) Mr. Madhu Varma Raja   –  Member  
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4. Stakeholders Relationship Committee 

 

                The composition of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee is as follows: 

a) Dr. Venkatesh Tagat  -  Chairman 

b) Mr. Anil Kumar S G   -  Member 

c) Mr. N. Gurunath   -  Member 

 

5. IT Strategy Committee 

 

               The composition of the IT Strategy Committee is as follows: 

a) Mr. Sunil Gulati   -       Chairman 

b) Mr. Anil Kumar S G   -      Member 

c) Mr. N. Gurunath   -       Member 

d) Mr. Suresh Venkatesan  -       Member 

e) Mr. Chandra Sekhar Nallagonda -       Member 

 

6. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 

 

               The composition of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee is as follows: 

a) Dr. Venkatesh Tagat  -      Chairman 

b) Ms. Jyotsna Krishnan   -      Member 

c) Mr. Anil Kumar S G   -      Member 

d) Mr. N. Gurunath    -      Member  

 

7. Finance Committee 

 

               The composition of the Finance Committee is as follows: 

a) Mr. Anil Kumar S G   -     Member 

b) Mr. Gurunath N    -    Member  

 

V. DETAILS OF COMMITTEE MEETINGS 

 

The details of Committee Meetings held during the year and the attendance at the said Meetings 

are given below: 

 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 

S. No. Date of Meeting 
No. of Members who 

attended the Meeting 

1.  June 15, 2021 3/3 

2.  June 29, 2021 3/3 

3.  July 29, 2021 3/3 

4.  October 28, 2021 3/3 

5.  November 09, 2021 3/3 

6.  January 18, 2022 3/3 

7.  February 02, 2022 3/3 

8.  February 10, 2022 3/3 
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NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 

S. No. Date of Meeting 
No. of Members who 

attended the Meeting 

1. June 22, 2021 6/6 

2. August 19, 2021 6/6 

3. February 09, 2022 6/6 

 

 

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

S. No. Date of Meeting 
No. of Members who 

attended the Meeting 

1.  June 15, 2021 6/6 

2.  November 11, 2021 6/6 

3.  February 09, 2022 4/6 

 

 

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE 

S. No. Date of Meeting 
No. of Members who 

attended the Meeting 

1. February 09, 2022 3/3 

 

 

IT STRATEGY COMMITTEE 

S. No. Date of Meeting 
No. of Members who 

attended the Meeting 

1. September 07, 2021 3/4  

2. February 09, 2022 5/5 

 

 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE 

S. No. Date of Meeting 
No. of Members who 

attended the Meeting 

1. June 15, 2021 4/4 

2.  February 07, 2022 4/4 

 

 

FINANCE COMMITTEE 

S. No. Date of Meeting 
No. of Members who 

attended the Meeting 

1.  April 26, 2021 2/2 

2.  May 26, 2021 2/2 

3.  June 17, 2021 2/2 

4.  June 30, 2021 2/2 

5.  July 20, 2021 2/2 

6.  August 20, 2021 2/2 

7.  September 09, 2021 2/2 

8.  September 17, 2021 2/2 

9.  September 24, 2021 2/2 

10.  October 11, 2021 2/2 

11.  November 23, 2021 2/2 
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FINANCE COMMITTEE 

S. No. Date of Meeting 
No. of Members who 

attended the Meeting 

12.  December 16, 2021 2/2 

13.  December 28, 2021 2/2 

14.  December 31, 2021 2/2 

15.  January 20, 2022 2/2 

16.  February 18, 2022 2/2 

17.  March 02, 2022 2/2 

18.  March 17, 2022 2/2 

19.  March 28, 2022 2/2 

 

W. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS  

 

The particulars of loans, investments and guarantees for FY 2021-22 have been provided in the 

notes to the Financial Statements of the Company. 

 

X. REGULATORY COMPLIANCE 

 

The Company has complied with all the mandatory regulatory requirements of the Reserve Bank 

of India guidelines, the Companies Act, 2013, Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, and other applicable statutes and 

regulations except for a delay in submission of the financial results for the year ended March 

31, 2021 under Regulation 52(1) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015, as a result of delay in audit closure on account of the COVID-19 pandemic.  

 

Y. DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY/JOINT VENTURES/ASSOCIATE COMPANIES AS OF MARCH 31, 2022 

 

As of March 31, 2022, the Company has five wholly owned subsidiaries as given below: 

 

(a) Samunnati Agro Solutions Private Limited, which offers trading facilities and market 

linkages to Agri value chain players. 

 

(b) Samunnati Foundation - It was established to enable inclusive growth and create 

opportunities for the unserved/ underserved communities in the agricultural 

ecosystem in order to make a tangible difference to livelihood of small holder farmers. 

 

(c) Kamatan Farm Tech Private Limited, which deals in Agri related technology offering 

software, technical and engineering solutions and undertakes all other technology-

based interventions. The Company emphasizes on development of value chains in 

agriculture, organize, catalyse institutions to integrate producers in Agri value chains, 

promote, invest in, organise and support organization of marketing chains. 

 

(d) Samunnati Finance Private Limited, will engage in the Business of providing Financial 

Assistance and improving access to finance to underserved geographies and customer 

segments by providing or arranging loans and advances. It is in the process of obtaining 

NBFC license from the Reserve Bank of India. The NBFC business of the Company would 

be transferred to Samunnati Finance Private Limited as part of the Scheme of 

Arrangement. 

 

(e) Samunnati Investment Management Services Private Limited - which will manage 

an Alternative Investment Fund (“AIF”) (Category 2 – Debt fund) with emphasis on 
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Sustainability, Scalability and Impact. Samunnati Investment Management Services 

Private Limited is a subsidiary of Samunnati Agro Solutions Private Limited and is a 

step down subsidiary of the Company.  

  

The information as required under the first proviso to sub Section (3) of Section 129 is given 

in Form AOC- 1 in Annexure I. 

 

Z. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

 

There were no contracts, arrangements or transactions entered into during the financial year 

2021-22 that fall under the scope of Section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. As required 

under the Companies Act, 2013, the prescribed Form AOC-2 for the financial year 2021-22 is 

appended as Annexure II to this Board’s report. 

 

Also, the Related Party Disclosures under Regulation 53(f) read with Part A of Schedule V of 

the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 have been 

provided in the notes to the Financial Statements of the Company. 

 

AA. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS 

OR TRIBUNALS 

 

The Board of Directors of the Company had at the Meeting held on October 28, 2021, approved 

the Composite Scheme of Arrangement (“Scheme”). Further the Company along with its 

subsidiaries Samunnati Finance Private Limited and Samunnati Agro Solutions Private Limited 

had filed a joint application before the National Company Law Tribunal, Chennai (“NCLT”) on 

December 04, 2021, seeking its directions for convening of the Meetings of the Equity 

Shareholders, Preference Shareholders, Debenture holders and Creditors and for dispensation 

of Meetings wherever approvals of the particular class of stakeholders had already been filed 

with the NCLT. 

 

In connection with this, the NCLT had passed an order dated March 29, 2022 

[CA/(CAA)/118(CHE)2021] (“NCLT Order”) directing the Company to convene the Meetings of 

concerned stakeholders on May 4, 2022. 

 

Pursuant to the NCLT Order, the Company has obtained the approval of the Equity 

Shareholders, Preference Shareholders, Debenture holders and Creditors and has along with its 

subsidiaries filed a joint petition before the National Company Law Tribunal, Chennai (“NCLT”) 

seeking its approval for the Scheme. 

 

BB. DETAILS OF CREDIT RATINGS OF THE COMPANY DURING FY 2021-22  

 

During the year under review, the Rating Agencies have reaffirmed/issued ratings to the 

Company, as given below: 

 

Rating agency 
Ratings as on April 01, 

2021 

Changes/revisions of rating 

during the year, if any 

Ratings as on March 

31, 2022 

ICRA ICRA BBB/ Stable 
ICRA BBB/ Stable; Rating 

Withdrawn 
- 

CARE CARE BBB/ Stable  - 
CARE BBB/ Stable 

(Reaffirmed) 
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Rating agency 
Ratings as on April 01, 

2021 

Changes/revisions of rating 

during the year, if any 

Ratings as on March 

31, 2022 

CRISIL - Long 

term 
CRISIL BBB+/ Stable - 

CRISIL BBB+/ Stable 

(Reaffirmed) 

CRISIL - Short 

term 
CRISIL A2+ - CRISIL A2+ 

Infomerics IVR A-/ Stable Outlook 

Revised from IVR A-/ Stable 

Outlook to IVR BBB+ / Stable 

Outlook 

IVR BBB+/ Stable 

Outlook 

 

CC. DETAILS OF DEBENTURE TRUSTEE OF LISTED DEBENTURES 

 

Name of the Debenture Trustee Complete Postal Address Email ID and Contact Number 

Catalyst Trusteeship Limited Windsor, 6th floor, Office 

no.604, CST Road, Kalina, 

Santacruz, Mumbai – 

400098 

E mail ID: 

deesha.trivedi@ctltrustee.com 

Contact No: 9833630277 

 

 

DD. DECLARATION FROM INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

 

The Independent Directors of the Company have submitted declarations as required under 

Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) stating that they meet the criteria of 

independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Act. In the opinion of the Board, the 

Independent Directors fulfil the conditions specified in the Act and the rules made thereunder 

for appointment as Independent Directors including their integrity, expertise and experience 

and confirm that they are independent of the Management.  

 

EE. RECEIPT OF ANY COMMISSION BY MD/WTD FROM A COMPANY OR RECEIPT OF 

COMMISSION/REMUNERATION FROM ITS HOLDING OR SUBSIDIARY 

 

The Company’s Directors have not received any commission/ remuneration from the Subsidiary 

Companies. 

 

FF. DISCLOSURE UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, 

PROHIBITION & REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 

 

The Company has complied with the provisions relating to the constitution of Internal 

Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 

Redressal) Act, 2013. Your Company believes in providing a safe and harassment free workplace 

for every individual and endeavors to create and provide an environment that is free from 

discrimination and harassment including sexual harassment. The policy on Sexual Harassment 

of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013, can be accessed at 

the following link: https://site.samunnati.com/samunnati-financial-intermediation-and-

services-private-limited/  

 

During the financial year 2021-22, your Company has not received any complaints pertaining to 

sexual harassment.  
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GG. STATUTORY AUDITORS, THEIR REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

 

The report of the Statutory Auditors along with the Financial Statements together with the 

Notes to the Financial Statements are enclosed to this report. The observations made in the 

Auditors’ Report are self-explanatory, contain no qualification, reservations, adverse remarks 

and disclaimers and therefore do not call for any further comments. 

 

The Members may note that pursuant to the applicability of Guidelines for Appointment of 

Statutory Auditors of NBFCs issued by Reserve Bank of India (RBI) vide ref. no. RBI/2021-22/25  

DoS.CO.ARG/SEC.01/08.91.001/2021-22 dated April 27, 2021, as M/s Walker Chandiok & Co. 

LLP had already completed a term of 6 (Six) years as Statutory Auditors of the Company as of 

March 31, 2021, they were required to step down and consequently had resigned as the 

Statutory Auditors of the Company with effect from August 31, 2021. 

  

The Board of Directors at its Meeting held on July 29, 2021, recommended the appointment of 

M/s PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP, Chartered Accountants (Registration No. 003990S/S200018) 

as Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of 3 (three) consecutive years. Subsequently, 

the Members, at the 7th Annual General Meeting held on August 31, 2021, had approved the 

appointment of M/s PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP, Chartered Accountants as the Statutory 

Auditors from the conclusion of the 7th Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of 10th Annual 

General Meeting (i.e. FY 2021-22 to FY 2023-24). 

 

HH. DETAILS OF FRAUDS REPORTED BY THE STATUTORY AUDITORS 

 

During the year under review, the Statutory Auditors of the Company have examined the books 

as required under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 and have not identified any 

employee related frauds. 

 

II. DETAILS OF PENALTIES/ FINES/ LATE FEES PAID BY THE COMPANY 

 

During the year under review, the Company was levied a penalty of INR 1,77,000/- (Indian 

Rupees One Lakh Seventy Seven Thousand Only) by BSE Limited for delay in submission of the 

financial results under Regulation 52(1) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015. Details of the penalty levied and the payment made were 

tabled to the Board of Directors for information at the Meeting held on September 7, 2021. 

 

JJ. COST AUDITOR AND COST AUDIT REPORT 

 

Maintenance of cost records and requirement of cost audit as prescribed under the provisions 

of Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable for the business activities 

carried out by the Company. 

 

KK. SECRETARIAL AUDIT AND SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

 

Pursuant to Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder, the Board 

of Directors had appointed Ms. Jayashree S Iyer, Practicing Company Secretary (Membership 

No.10394/Certificate of Practice No.21403), to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company 

for the financial year 2021-22. The Secretarial Audit Report in the prescribed Form MR-3 is 

annexed as Annexure III. There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks or 

adverse disclaimers made by the Secretarial Auditor in her Report dated May 30, 2022. 
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LL. COMPLIANCE WITH THE SECRETARIAL STANDARDS 

 

The Company has complied with all the applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute 

of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI). 

 

MM. INTERNAL AUDIT 

 

The Company has an Internal Audit department and the Head of the department reports to the 

Audit Committee of the Company.  

 

In line with the requirement of Section 138 of Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 13 of 

Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014, the Board of Directors, based on the recommendation of the 

Audit Committee, had re-appointed M/s. T.R. Chadha & Co LLP, Chartered Accountants (Reg. 

No. 06711N/N500028) as the external Internal Auditors of the Company for FY 2021-22.  

 

The Internal Auditors (both external and in-house) of the Company carried out the Audit and 

have confirmed that the checks and control systems prevalent are commensurate with the size 

and turnover of the Company. The significant observations from the Internal Audit were tabled 

to the Audit Committee on a quarterly basis. 

 

NN. INFORMATION SYSTEM AUDIT 

 

In line with the requirements of RBI’s Master Direction on Information Technology Framework 

for the NBFC Sector, 2017, the Company is required to appoint Information Systems (IS) Auditors 

to examine and confirm the effectiveness of controls that are in place to ensure confidentiality, 

integrity and availability of the Company’s IT infrastructure. 

 

Accordingly, the Board had re-appointed M/s RGN Price & Co (Firm Registration No. 002785S) 

as Information Systems Auditors of the Company for FY 2021-22. The Information Systems 

Auditors conducted the Information System audit and confirmed that the Company is in 

compliance with all applicable regulations as prescribed by the RBI. The observations from the 

IS Audit are tabled to the Audit Committee on an annual basis. 

 

OO. DISCLOSURE ON ESTABLISHMENT OF VIGIL MECHANISM/WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY 

 

The Company believes in the conduct of the affairs in a fair and transparent manner by adopting 

highest standards of professionalism, honesty, integrity and ethical behavior. The Company has 

implemented a vigil mechanism to provide a framework for the Company’s employees and 

Directors to promote responsible and secure whistle blowing.  

 

The Company has established a Board approved policy on whistle blowing and separate email 

addresses are designated wherein the employees or the stakeholders can report the matters 

falling under the purview of Vigil Mechanism. There was no complaint received under this 

category during the financial year ended March 31, 2022.  

 

PP. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) 

 

In compliance with the requirements of Section 135 and Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 

2013 read with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, as amended, 

the Board of Directors has adopted a policy on CSR as recommended by the CSR committee and 

the said policy is available on the Company’s website, at: 
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https://site.samunnati.com/samunnati-financial-intermediation-and-services-private-

limited/ 

 

The annual report on CSR activities is provided in Annexure-IV to this report. 

 

QQ. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT  

 

a) Industry Structure and Key Trends 

 

Agriculture, with its allied sectors, is the largest source of livelihoods in India, where 70 percent 

of the rural households still depend primarily on agriculture for their livelihood, with 82 percent 

of farmers being small and marginal. 

 

The economic implications of the Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic have brought the 

agricultural sector into sharp focus and heightened its responsibility to feed and employ 

thousands who might have lost livelihoods. The agriculture sector in India also faced some 

challenges during COVID-19 in terms of production, marketing and consumption. Though the 

agriculture industry did not face the challenge of labour scarcity, since many people went back 

to their hometowns, disruptions in supply chain was a major challenge. The restrictions on 

movement disrupted the supply chains, hampering the uninterrupted flow of inputs for and 

outputs of agricultural activities. Supply of perishable commodities were affected more, 

challenging the food and nutritional security of the vulnerable sections of the society.  

 

However, India’s agricultural sector has shown resilience amid the adversities of COVID-19 

induced lockdowns. As per 1st advance estimates of National Income FY 2022, the percentage 

share of Gross Value Added (GVA) of Agriculture and Allied Sectors (at current prices) is 18.8% 

of the total GVA. Agriculture and allied activities recorded a growth of ~ 3.6% at constant prices 

in FY 2022 and is expected to surpass the same by growing at ~ 3.9% during FY 2023. 

 

The sector has also recorded a sharp increase in investments with cumulative FDI inflow of US$ 

10.94 billion between April 2000-December 2021. From 2017 to 2020, India received ~US$ 1 

billion in agritech funding. With significant interest from the investors, India ranks third in 

terms of agritech funding and number of agritech start-ups. By 2025, Indian agritech companies 

are likely to witness investments worth US$ 30-35 billion. 

 

b) Opportunities and Threats 

 

In India, though the rural credit scenario has undergone a significant change, money-lenders 

are still the largest contributor of agricultural credit. Further, due to the absence of good and 

sustainable agricultural marketing, farmers are usually exploited by local traders and 

middlemen. Though the government has set up regulated markets, farmers also need to be 

introduced and exposed to online platforms to sell their produce. 

 

The agricultural sector in India is expected to gain better momentum in the coming years due 

to increased investment in agricultural infrastructure such as irrigation facilities, warehousing 

and cold storage.  

 

The government’s priority continues to be on doubling the farmers income. In this regard, the 

government has announced the following measures for the Agricultural sector as part of the 

budget for FY 2023: 
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• The Government shall ensure wheat and paddy farmers get assured income by making 

direct payments of INR 2.37 lakh crore for minimum support price (MSP) from April 2022 to 

March 2023. 

• Oilseed cultivation shall be expanded to reduce dependency on imports and production of 

millet will be encouraged. 

• Kisan drones shall be employed for crop assessments, digitalisation of land records, 

spraying of pesticides and nutrients. 

• Chemical-free natural farming shall be promoted all over India which will help farmers 

improve their income as well as sustainable agricultural productivity. 

• About 9 lakh farmers will benefit from the Ken-Betwa River linking project. A total of INR 

44,000 crore has been earmarked for this project. 

 

The forecast for the current year is for normal rains during the southwest monsoon which would 

be good as farmers would respond to record high prices of many agri field crops like oilseeds, 

paddy, cotton, sugar, maize, spices.  

 

The COVID-19 crisis has also exposed the vulnerability of India’s agriculture and food markets. 

Both demand and supply shocks emphasise the need for reforms to connect farmers to markets, 

ensure adequate labour supplies, and create safety nets to make them more resilient. 

 

As challenges come with an opportunity, the pandemic helped the Indian agriculture sector make 

significant progress in adjusting to changing circumstances and capitalizing on opportunities. At a 

time when most sectors of the economy are reported to be under stress, the agricultural sector 

continues to be promising and cushioning the economy. 

 

The disruption caused by the Pandemic also underlines the need for robust, secure crop / fresh 

produce storage facilities, ready availability of Market linkages for the produce to reduce 

wastages. All these augur well for the Company as they present great opportunity for growing 

the business. 

 

c) Vertical wise or sector wise performance of the Company 

 

Agri Finance 

 

The Farmer Network vertical had an overall strong growth in FY 2021-22, with the 

disbursements increasing by 46.4% from INR 17,438.75 MN during FY 2020-21 to INR 25,523.07 

MN during FY 2021-22 with an outreach of 735 FPOs in FY 2021-22 compared to 151 FPOs in FY 

2020-21.  

 

Numbers at a glance: 

 

Particulars FY 2020-21 FY 2021-22 

No of FPOs onboarded 151 735 

No of FPOs in Financial relationship 566 1301 

AUM (INR MN) 9,374 11,414 

 

Strengthening the delivery structure: 

 

• First half of FY 2022 was severely impacted due to COVID. The Business was impacted 

in terms of onboarding and disbursements.  
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• The Second half marked the reopening of business avenues with people accepting to 

the new normal and thus, notable traction was observed across the business spectrum.  

• Exemplar changes in the Vertical’s Organization structure pertaining to the addition of 

field staff was undertaken to strengthen the execution team. This could help the 

efficient deployment of multiple products and services rolled-out during the period. 

 

Products: 

 

New Financial Solution were deployed to the FPOs and their farmer members, such as – 

 

Samunnati Instant Pre-approved Loan (IPL):  

 

• Sam IPL (Samunnati Instant Pre-approved Loan) is a complete digitally enabled process 

of on-boarding and lending to the FPO up to INR 5 lakhs. The Company was able to 

onboard 550 plus new FPO’s during the financial year 2021-22.  

• IPL will act as the catalyst to engage with nascent FPOs struggling for working capital 

which subsequently shall provide a promising avenue for offering other products and 

solutions. 

 

Samunnati Farmer Loans (SAFAL): 

 

• One of its kind, Samunnati Farmer Loans that aim to fund the individual farmers for 

their Working capital requirements was piloted during FY 2022. 

• 231 farmer members across 6 FPOs were offered a total disbursement of INR 10 MN.  

• This holds a promising future to deepen the engagement with the FPOs. 

 

Capacity Building of FPOs: 

 

Samunnati having a strong history of performance and a unique business model in the FPO 

lending space, envisions to create FPOs that are well-governed through digital tools, access 

services for improved productivity, access to markets to buy and sell inputs & output in markets 

at fair prices and access formal finance at transparent terms. Capacity building fosters 

stakeholders of the FPO to modify their goals and strategies, cultures, ways of functioning and 

management styles to achieve their business plans. 

 

FPO Trainings: 

 

Standardised Inhouse Assessment, Grading & Engagement tool is deployed during FPO 

onboarding process for parametric need gap analysis. The scoring pattern assists the 

Relationship manager plan the interventions specific to the FPO and align activities as per 

aspirations and capabilities of the FPO. Detailed Diagnostic Assessment report is generated for 

specific model project for In-depth analysis and engagement as per Institutional Development 

Framework.  

 

Samunnati has conducted a total of 150+ Capacity building workshops for the FPO during FY 

2021-22. Need-based trainings were organized with internal expertise and partnership with 

external resources.  
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Following are the focus domains and modules of trainings: 

 

• FPO Governance & Management – Aims to strengthen the governance of the FPO coupled 

with advisory on business operations through business planning exercise for efficient 

management of FPO activities through - Standard Operating Procedures setup.  

 

• Member Management - Training regarding activation of the existing members and FIG 

creation for better monitoring and business expansion of the FPOs through Samunnati’s 

various digital initiatives.  

 

• Enhanced FPO Business Efficiency - Building connects between FPOs and other 

stakeholders in Agri-ecosystem. Refresher Trainings on Legal Compliance and timely filing 

are conducted besides relationship manager on renewal of required business license and 

application for various government schemes and grants like SFAC equity/MSP 

procurement scheme/POCRA/Business Development Assistance – NABARD. 

 

• Samunnati associates with KVKs and RI to provide Good Agriculture Practices Training. 

20+ Model FPOs have been facilitated through partner agencies like Automatic Weather 

Stations – WRMS, Krishitantra – Soil testing facility, Drones – Pesticide Spraying as custom 

hire equipment for FPOs.  

 

• Gender Inclusion Trainings - Motivated FPOs are selected for the pilot program on 

inclusion of women in FPO business through various gender specific programs. Thematic 

modules have been designed and trainings have been imparted through active core group 

formation and designing specific revenue streams for women members like processing 

units, value add services, etc., of their interest. 

 

Digitization: 

 

• Digitization forms an integral tool for improving efficiency and productivity of resources 

by acting as a catalyst for realization of planned solution deployment through means of 

efficient communication and transaction recording.  

 

• Multiple branches were identified at the state-levels to deploy digital solutions to the 

partnered FPOs and engaged members.  

 

• Various solutions were introduced and made available to the FPOs post handholding 

training sessions and workshops. Few of them include thus –  

 

i. FPO Gateway – One stop solution for FPOs to interact with Agri-ecosystem. FPOs 

were onboarded and all the necessary details regarding Members engaged, 

Business Activities, Financial performance and other key details were recorded 

which can increase efficiency of business operations of an FPO. 

 

ii. BMS (Business Management Software) a.k.a Agrikhata - A custom built ERP 

software to manage and digitize day to day business transactions and activities 

of an FPO. 

 

iii. Communication tools – Communication tools like robocalling and bulk SMS were 

deployed by Samunnati through FPO Gateway for FPOs to communicate with 

member farmers and develop realistic market plans for successful businesses. 
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Model FPO project: 

 

Samunnati through its experience of FPO-engagements, realises that there is a substantial gap 

in the overall business and governance structure of the FPO.  Thus, the visioning of creating 

Ideal FPO models. Model FPO projects aims to create asset class which is profitable and 

sustainable. 

 

Partnerships for Business Growth and Ecosystem building: 

 

i. MAVIM (Mahila Arthik Vikas Mahamandal) is the State Women’s Development 

Corporation of Government of Maharashtra, making women economically and socially 

empowered and enabling them to access sustainable livelihoods. Samunnati has 

planned to offer financial assistance to women SHGs and cluster level SHG 

federations for asset creation leveraging MAVIM's existing network. 

 

ii. BMGF (Bill and Melinda Gates Foundation) funding for Agri-development projects. 

Samunnati has partnered with BMGF for strengthening the FPO ecosystem and create 

a pool of 50 asset class FPOs by providing training for capacity building, market 

linkages, access to finance and other solutions required by the FPOs.  

 

iii. Samunnati has signed an MOU with SBI for knowledge sharing and improving the 

institutional strength of the FPOs by implementing digital strategies to transform 

FPOs into asset class organizations. More than 100 FPOs have been identified for the 

project.  

 

iv. Samunnati has collaborated with AEGF (Agri Entrepreneur Growth Foundation) to 

provide a digitized lending program aimed at providing loans to Village level 

Entrepreneur (VLE) as an anchor. Due to digitized nature, disbursement can be 

processed within 3 days of application. The program plans to create 700 new 

entrepreneurs in rural parts of Maharashtra and Madhya Pradesh in FY 2023.  

 

v. Consortiums: Samunnati is partnering with various FPO federations and consortiums 

to deliver its products and services to a larger pool of FPOs in a nonlinear growth 

model.  

 

Agri Enterprise (AE) 

 

The entire spectrum of business of the Agri Enterprise was also impacted due to the second 

wave of COVID during H1FY 2022. Keeping in view the safety and health of the employees, the 

Company advised the field force to avoid / restrict travel and field visits.  

 

As a result, the sales and New Customer Acquisitions were majorly impacted during H1FY 2022. 

Although business was impacted during H1FY 2022 due to second wave of COVID, the Company 

was able to expand the business during the latter part of the year. Agri Enterprises business 

onboarded 129 new customers during FY 2022 as against 91 new customers during FY 2021. 

Also, some highly rated customers were onboarded. 

 

Numbers at a glance: 

 

The Agri Enterprises business also expanded its operations to 157 districts in the country during 

FY 2022 from 132 districts during FY 2021. Also, the number of districts with total GTV of more 

than INR 1000 MN has increased to 30 districts during FY 2022 from 17 districts during FY 2021. 
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The number of active relationships with Agri Enterprises (including buyers & suppliers) has 

increased to 1429 entities during FY 2022 from 896 entities during FY 2021. 

 

There has also been significant increase in the number of customers and transactions during FY 

2022 across the entire spectrum as summarized below:  

 

Number of customers: 

 

Type of Customers FY 2021 FY 2022 

Buyers 192 268 

Suppliers 557 1011 

 

Number of transactions: 

 

Transaction with FY 2021 FY 2022 

Buyers 11,169 29,132 

Suppliers 10,557 27,144 

 

The average ticket size also improved across the board with the B2B ticket size increasing by 

5% to INR 6.26 MN from INR 5.95 MN although the number of cycles only increased marginally 

to 17 cycles during FY 2022 as against 14 cycles during FY 2021. 

 

The number of commodities in which SamAgro deals has also improved from 168 commodities 

to 293 commodities as summarized below: 

 

Nature of Commodity FY 2021 FY 2022 

Agri Input 20 32 

Agri Processing 9 11 

Commodities 36 55 

Food processing 33 54 

Fresh produce 46 103 

Livestock 7 11 

Services & Others 17 27 

Total number of commodities 168 293 

 

Performance at a glance: 

 

The Gross Transaction Value / Sales of the Agri Enterprises during FY 2021-22 increased to INR 

21,102.3 MN from INR 7,567.5 MN during FY 2021 registering a growth of ~ 179%. The Gross 

Margin earned during FY 2021-22 was INR 409.2 MN compared to INR 212.7 MN during FY 2020-

21. The EBITDA was INR 108.4 MN during FY 2021-22 as against INR 84.3 MN during FY 2020-21.  

 

The Assets under Management (AUM) as on March 31, 2022 stood at INR 4,310 MN comprising 

both receivables and inventory as against INR 2,677 MN as on March 31, 2021. The delinquencies 

had also come down due to the shorter tenure of the trades and continuous engagement with 

the customers. 

 

Products: 

 

• Market linkage was a major challenge faced by the FPO ecosystem. To overcome this, 

Samunnati shouldered the market risks to facilitate linkage with the market.   
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• New products in Agri Commerce like Structured Trade Facility, EXIM and Market Linkage 

were introduced during the year. 

 

• Samunnati procured 1.72L MT of Soyabean, Maize and Groundnut from 31 FPOs in the 

pilot phase, majorly from MP, Gujarat, Maharashtra, and Rajasthan, with cooperation 

of KVH team.  

 

• The Company shall be increasing the said FPO engagement with 200 FPOs in the current 

financial year. 

 

Samunnati Foundation 

 

During the year, the following major Initiatives have been undertaken by Samunnati 

Foundation: 

 

• Northeast Outreach Program: Engaged with Agri ecosystem in North-eastern states to 

provide sustainable means of livelihood 

• Community Kitchen: For serving the underserved communities by providing nutritious food 

and create jobs for women 

• Fellowship: For nurturing change agents to transform Agri ecosystem by empowering rural 

youth 

• FPO Academy: Online repository of capacity building material for the development of 

Farmer collectives 

• Centre of Excellence: Demonstrate initiatives to farmer beneficiaries so that they can be 

replicated by trained farmer collectives 

 

These initiatives will improve the standard of living of farmers, improve efficiency, 

effectiveness, and capabilities of farmer collectives, promote women empowerment, reduce 

inequalities, and increase the creation of women-led enterprises/ farmer collectives. It will 

also facilitate the creation of sustainable and efficient rural enterprises which will help improve 

ecology through climate-smart agriculture. 

 

RR. AWARDS AND RECOGNITION 

 

i. Best Digitization Kaizen 

 

Samunnati was ranked as a position holder in various categories by one of India’s biggest 

industry bodies – the Confederation of Indian Industry (CII) in the 5th CII National Kaizen 

Circle Competition 2021 and won the award under the Best Digitization Kaizen category. 

 

ii. Great Place to Work Award 

 

Samunnati was recognised by the Great Place to Work Institute on July 7, 2021. Further, 

Samunnati has also been recognized by the Great Place to Work Institute on September 

25, 2021 among the Top 50 - India’s Best Workplaces™ for Women 2021. 

 

Samunnati was awarded the 25th rank in the Top 50 of India’s Great Mid-size Workplaces – 

2022 by the Great Place to Work India on June 23, 2022. 
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iii. Best Tech Startup – Ambition Box 

 

Samunnati was recognised as a Best Tech Startup by Employee Choice Awards of Ambition 

Box on July 9, 2021. 

 

iv. Distinguished NBFC Awards 

 

Samunnati was awarded under the categories of the Best Corporate Communication 

Initiative, Best Design Thinking Initiative and Best Group Synergy Initiative on August 20, 

2021 by Banking Frontiers, a focused magazine for the Financial Services. 

 

v. ABSA award 

 

Samunnati won the ABSA 2021 award under the category - Best NBFC in Agri Financing on 

September 8, 2021. This award is given to recognise the efforts of the Agri Input industry 

in enhancing crop productivity by offering innovative and superior Agri inputs and services. 

 

vi. The Economic Times Promising Brand 2021 

 

Samunnati won the 'Most Promising Brand 2021' from the Economic Times from amongst 

200 organisations selected on parameters of innovation, brand value, brand recall, 

consumer satisfaction, customer service and quality. 

 

vii. Aegis Graham Bell Award 

 

Samunnati was awarded the ‘Aegis Graham Bell Award’ on February 28, 2022 under the 

category "Innovative Business Model". This award is one of Asia’s largest innovation 

awards, intended to promote innovations in the IT, Telecom, Social, Mobility, Analytics & 

Cloud domain and the Exponential Technologies to provide recognition for outstanding 

contributions by the innovators, which is supported by the Ministry of Electronics and 

Information Technology - Government of India, NITI Aayog, Skill India and National 

Informatics Centre Services Incorporated. 

 

viii. Naanayam Vikatan Business Star 

 

Samunnati won the Naanayam Vikatan Business Startup Champion Award under the 

category “Start-up Champion” for the year 2021. The award was conferred on March 18, 

2022. 

 

ix. Finnoviti Award 

 

Samunnati was awarded with Finnoviti award under the Category ‘Digital Agri Suit’ on May 

5, 2022 by Banking Frontiers. 

 

SS. SAMUNNATI’S ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL POLICY 

 

Your Company maintains a rigorous Enterprise Risk management (ERM) that identifies and 

assesses the likelihood and impacts of risks and mitigation required to minimize the impact 

across the business. The Company has risk management and internal controls in place to 

identify, assess, monitor, and manage the credit, operational, environmental, and social risks 

associated with the business. The key objectives of the ERM of Samunnati are: 
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• to establish methodologies and lay down a multi-tier governance structure; 

• to build a profitable and sustainable business with conservative risk management approach; 

• to have risk management as an integral part of the organization’s business strategy; and 

• to undertake business activities that are well understood and within acceptable risk 

appetite.   

 

The ERM embeds an Environmental and Social Management System (ESMS), which hedges the 

organization’s socio-environmental risks. 

 

To achieve long-term value through sustainability, Samunnati has rolled out its Environmental 

and Social Management System (ESMS) to implement the E&S Policy and Operational Principles. 

Samunnati’s Environmental & Social Policy reinforces its commitment towards sustainable 

development and integrates environmental and social considerations into decision-making and 

operations. This is done to effectively manage environmental and social risks and enhance 

positive impacts, thus improving outcomes. 

 
Accordingly, Samunnati will thus:  

 

• not extend loans to any activity that features in Samunnati’s ‘Exclusion List’ or is 

prohibited by local, national or international laws, as applicable;  

• influence borrowers to comply with national environmental and social legal requirements;  

• encourage borrowers to adopt international good practices and safeguards, as relevant;  

• promote prevention and control of pollution to protect the environment;  

• promote resource use efficiency and sustainable production of living and 

natural resources;   

• promote safe and healthy work environment and treating all workers fairly;  

• proactively engage with the stakeholders towards timely redressal of grievances; and  

• protect its borrower through robust processes and effective communication. 
 

TT. HUMAN RESOURCES 

 

The Company had 344 employees on payroll as on March 31, 2022. The management team of 

the Company comprises of passionate professionals committed to achieve the organizational 

goals. 

 

Initial part of FY 2021-22 entailed work from home across all locations on account of the 

pandemic and related lockdown. During this period, as part of its employee well-being program, 

Samunnati had rolled out several initiatives like HR Samvad, Sam-Milan, Special Projects, 

special sessions focused on Employee Wellness and exclusive connect sessions with every 

region. All these initiatives were launched and implemented virtually and physically, with an 

idea to encourage collaboration between the team members during trying times and also act 

as a constant source of support/ strength for the team members and their families. The 

Company also ran several employee engagement sessions to ensure that the employees felt 

more connected to each other. Monthly learning challenges were run to encourage better 

learning in the organization and increased participation levels were observed across the 

organization.  

 

HR Samvaad - our Employee connect program started during COVID helped us check on the 

well-being of all our employees. The senior management group also connected on a personal 

level with several employees to check on their well-being. This made employees feel more 

connected with the organization. We had reiterated the need for mental wellbeing and over 
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15 employees have benefitted from the mental wellness interactions with our mental health 

partner. 

 

Samunnati took special initiatives during the pandemic and ensured oxygen concentrators were 

made available in each region for the employees and their family members. The annual 

foundation day – Shrishti was celebrated virtually over three days with several cultural 

performances from team members across the regions. This further brought the team closer and 

encouraged collaboration and creativity. Annual performance awards were issued to top 

performers in several categories and over 100 employees were recognized under 12 categories.  

 

The middle and senior management was part of a program called LIME (Lead, Inspire, Mentor 

and Empower) to hone their leadership skills. A DEI workshop exclusively for the leadership was 

held to sensitize the employees and make them aware and understand the criticality of 

Diversity and Inclusion, and how we can leverage as a group on our cultural dynamics. 

 

Samunnati was certified by Great Place to Work again and has been recognized by Great Place 

to Work India among the Top 50 - India’s Best Workplaces™ for Women 2021 in the Mid-size 

Companies Category. Samunnati also won Ambition Box Best Places to Work in India 2021 award. 

  

The HR Team also facilitated various training programs on Induction, Refresher sessions on 

policies and systems, and addressed the changing business needs of the organization through 

product/ process training. Around 12 batches of Samunnati Swaagat (Induction program) 

were conducted covering all the onboarded employees. A focused training program on Agri 

value chain and finance (AVCF) was conducted across three batches and covered over 80 

participants.  

 

Samunnati conducted regular companywide meetings / townhalls and had smaller focused 

group discussions with regional teams. Over 300 employees have been recognized for their 

performance and contributions in their respective functions.  

 

As on March 31, 2022, Samunnati Group (the Company and its subsidiaries) had a total of 609 

employees on its payroll.  

 

UU. TECHNOLOGY RELATED UPDATES 

 

a. Technology roadmap 

 

Technology is a key enabler in the growth agenda for Samunnati. Keeping in view our 

growth agenda and developments in the information technology space, Samunnati has done 

a comprehensive review of all technology and infrastructure platforms and developed the 

Technology roadmap. All the business and functional leads and senior members were 

actively involved in shaping the roadmap and aligning the business strategy with the IT 

strategy.  

 

Samunnati took the help of EY to bring in outside perspective and also took into account 

the emerging trends within FinTech, AgriTech and Data & Analytics. A detailed presentation 

was made to the IT strategy committee and their inputs were also taken. 

 

b. Technology initiatives 

 

Samunnati has taken up the following initiatives towards energy conservation and 

technology adoption: 

32



 
 

• Learnings from work from home during the pandemic, we have enhanced the IT 

infrastructure for remote and agile working 

• Digital scanning and workflow solutions to minimize paper-based approvals 

• Enabling API’s for data mining and extraction to increase efficiency   

 

c. Core systems updates 

 

Samunnati has enhanced its core systems to comply with regulatory requirements and 

further support new product launches, as given below: 

 

SAM IPL: 

 

Developed an end to end digital solution to enable pre-approved loans for FPOs at record 

time of about 3 months and deployed in production. The entire journey from client 

identification, underwriting, onboarding and disbursement has been developed through 

integrating workflows, KYC & e-documentation. 

 

Digital client on-boarding (VKYC): 

 

To enable seamless client onboarding, video KYC from IDFY has been implemented. Through 

this solution the Company can onboard clients virtually. This solution is as per RBI 

regulations for digital client onboarding and a number for NBFCs are already using this 

approach.  

 

SAM Custopedia (Loan Origination system): 

 

Loan origination system has been further enhanced with digital CAM and approval process. 

With this, the proposal log-in, reviews, approvals and sanction letter process has been fully 

integrated. Keeping the strategic nature of this solution, the Company has taken up the IP 

ownership.  

 

Loan Management System: 

 

Oracle Loans: While doing the parallel run, Oracle Loans had issues in processing value 

dated transactions and revised repayment schedule generation. Business team has 

requested for additional functionalities which was not available off-the shelf. In the 

meantime, Oracle has asked all the clients to upgrade their database which requires 

additional efforts.  

 

In the meantime, Encore has released a latest version that could meet most of the above 

requirements and considering the business continuity, a decision was taken to upgrade 

Encore and continue using it as the core LMS. 

 

As a result of the above decision, Oracle Loan solution has not moved into production and 

all IT infrastructure is being released.  

 

Sun-Infor: 

 

Sun-Infor is fully operational in production. Implemented audit trails for better monitoring 

and controls. To facilitate historical data availability in SunInfor, Tally data preparation as 

per Infor requirements has been completed. Independent verification by auditors is in 

progress. Once completed it will be migrated into production. 
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d. Risk Management 

 

Crime check solution has been enabled to check BODs before underwriting client proposals. 

HighMark data scrub is being put in place to proactively monitor customer behaviour across 

financial institutions. A pilot program for Client rating movements by Ratings Agencies has 

been completed. This will be put in production upon final sign-off.  

 

e. Information Security 

 

The Company has further strengthened the information and cyber security infrastructure 

through the following initiatives. 

 

• Inbound/Outbound Email Security - Barracuda Email Gateway Security (Spam / Anti-

virus / Denial of Service & Encryption 

• Network Protection - Sonicwall (Firewall) (Anti-Spyware and Malware, Intrusion 

prevention and Content filtering) 

• End Point Protection - Kaspersky Endpoint Security – (Antivirus, Spyware, Malware, 

Network Threat protection, Web controls and Removable storage device control) 

• Vulnerability and Penetration Test (VAPT) for Infra/Network 

• O365 activity monitoring and security incidents alerts 

• Multi-factor authentication for CRIAS, O365 and Sam Custopedia  

 

VV. RISK MANAGEMENT 

 

The ever-changing complexities of financial markets has made the Risk Department a very 

integral part of the organisation. Samunnati has over a period of time, evolved its customer 

onboarding process, improved underwriting norms, enhanced the Credit Risk management by 

closely monitoring the performance of individual relationships through identification of early 

warning signals and initiate appropriate action.  In fact, the Company developed an inhouse 

internal risk rating scoring model for all business verticals, which provide the real time 

portfolio performance and classification of portfolio exposure into High, Medium, and Low risk 

category.  

  

The risk management approaches followed are:   

 

a) Account Acquisition - This involves careful selection of customers based on its defined 

credit policy. Clear definition of prudential norms in terms of client wise exposures, sector 

wise exposures are defined and monitored through a strong governance mechanism. 

 

b) Account Management - Considering the nature of customers who are repeat borrowers 

under revolving credit facility, the account management is done through periodic visits to 

ensure completion of post sanction covenants, ascertaining end use of funds and assessing 

early warning signals. 

 

c) Portfolio Management – A strong follow-up and collections team and Risk Monitoring 

department, supported by daily MIS on the portfolio performance aid the Company’s 

efforts to have a satisfactory loan book, in tune with the risk appetite. 
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d) Risk Architecture – The framework is guided by the tenets which are elicited below: 

 

a. Governance and Culture: Governance sets the organisation’s tone, reinforcing 

the importance of, and establishing oversight responsibilities for enterprise risk 

management. Culture pertains to ethical values, desired behaviours, and 

understanding of risk across the organisation. 

 

b. Strategy and Objective-Setting: Enterprise risk management, strategy, and 

objective-setting work together in the strategic-planning process. A risk appetite 

is established and aligned with strategy; business objectives put strategy into 

practice while serving as a basis for identifying, assessing, and responding to risk.   

 

c. Performance: Risks that may impact the achievement of strategy and business 

objectives are identified and assessed. Risks are prioritised by severity in the 

context of risk appetite. The organisation then selects risk responses and takes a 

portfolio view of the amount of risk it has assumed. The results of this process are 

reported to key risk stakeholders. 

 

d. Review and Revision: By reviewing entity performance, an organisation can 

consider how well the enterprise risk management components are functioning 

over time, and what revisions are needed, when required. 

 

e. Information, Communication, and Reporting: Enterprise risk management 

requires a continual process of obtaining and sharing necessary information, from 

both internal and external sources, which flows up, down, and across the 

organisation. 

 

WW. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

 

Pursuant to Section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors, based on the 

representations received from the operating management after due enquiry, confirm that: 

a) In the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2022, the 

applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating 

to material departures; 

b) They have, in the selection of the accounting policies, consulted the Statutory Auditors and 

have applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 

prudent to give a true and fair view of the Company as at March 31, 2022 and of the profit 

and loss of the Company for that period; 

c) The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care to the best of their knowledge and 

ability for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 

provisions of the Act, for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and 

detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

d) The Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; 

e) The Board of Directors have laid down Internal Financial Controls to be followed by the 

Company and that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating 

effectively; 

f) The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 

applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 
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XX. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE 

EARNINGS AND OUTGO 

 

The disclosure of particulars regarding conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption & 

Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo in terms of Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 

read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014, are given below:  

 

Conservation of Energy 

 

S. No. Particulars 

1 The steps taken or impact on 

conservation of energy  

The Company is taking adequate steps to 

conserve the energy at all the levels and 

also implementing various measures for 

reduction in consumption of energy 

2 The steps taken by the company for 

utilising alternate sources of energy  

Not Applicable  

3 The capital investment on energy 

conservation equipment’s  

During the year under review, there are 

no capital investment made on energy 

consumption equipment  

 

Technology Absorption 

 

The Company has no Technology Absorption during the period under review as given below: 

 

i. the efforts made towards technology absorption; NA 

ii. the benefits derived like product improvement, cost 

reduction, product development or import substitution; 

NA 

iii. in case of imported technology (imported during the last 

three years reckoned from the beginning of the financial 

year) -  

NA 

a) the details of technology imported;  NA 

b) the year of import;  NA 

c) whether the technology been fully absorbed; NA 

d) if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken 

place, and the reasons thereof; and 

NA 

iv. the expenditure incurred on Research and Development. NA 

 

Foreign exchange earnings and outgo: 

 

Particulars Inflow Outflow 

Current Year (FY 2021-22) NIL INR 5.07 MN 

Previous Year (FY 2020-21) NIL INR 17.46 MN 
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of  

Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited 

 

 

                                                               

 

Sd/-            Sd/- 
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DIN: 02799586                                            DIN: 01189011 
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ANNEXURE - I 

Form AOC-1 

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with  

Rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate 

companies/joint ventures 

 

Part A: Subsidiaries 

                              

S.No. Particulars Details 

1.  

Name of the subsidiary 

Samunnati 

Agro 

Solutions 

Private 

Limited 

(INR MN) 

Samunnati 

Finance 

Private 

Limited 

 

(INR MN) 

Kamatan Farm 

Tech Private 

Limited 

 

 

(INR MN) 

Samunnati 

Foundation 

 

 

 

(INR MN) 

2.  Date since when subsidiary 

was 

incorporated/acquired 

October 14, 

2016 

September 

22, 2021 
April 16, 2021 March 9, 2020 

3.  Reporting period for the 

subsidiary concerned, if 

different from the holding 

company’s reporting 

period 

NA NA NA NA 

4.  Reporting currency and 

Exchange rate as on the 

last date of the relevant 

Financial year in the case 

of foreign subsidiaries 

NA NA NA NA 

5.  Share capital 6.32 25.00 34.48 8.50 

6.  Reserves & surplus 304.60 0.03 (105.45) (1.00) 

7.  Total assets 5334.89 25.03 262.10 8.77 

8.  Total Liabilities 5334.89 25.03 262.10 8.77 

9.  Investments NIL NIL NIL NIL 

10.  Turnover 21,209.90 NIL 534.58 NIL 

11.  Profit / (Loss) before 

taxation 
(467.29) 

0.03 (447.44) (2.13) 

12.  Provision for taxation (110.90) NIL NIL NIL 

13.  Profit / (Loss) after 

taxation 
(356.39) 

0.03 (447.44) (2.13) 

14.  Proposed Dividend NIL NIL NIL NIL 

15.  % of shareholding 100% 100% 100% 100% 

 

Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations 

• Samunnati Finance Private Limited 

• Samunnati Investment Management Service Private Limited * 

 

Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year – Not Applicable 
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* Samunnati Investment Management Service Private Limited was Incorporated on March 08, 2022 – 

As per Section 2(41) of Companies Act, 2013, the first financial year of the company is from March 

08, 2022 to March 31, 2023. Hence the Books of Account of Samunnati Investment Management 

Service Private Limited are not closed as of March 31, 2022. The capital contribution was made on 

April 20, 2022. 

 

Part B : Associates and Joint Ventures 

 

Statement pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies 

and Joint Ventures 

 

Name of Associates/Joint Ventures 

Not applicable 

1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date 

2. Date on which the Associate or Joint Venture was 

associated or acquired 

3. Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by the 

company on the year end 

No. of shares 

Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint 

Venture 

Extent of Holding% 

4. Description of how there is significant influence 

5. Reason why the associate/joint venture is not 

consolidated 

6. Net worth attributable to shareholding as per 

latest audited Balance Sheet 

7. Profit/Loss for the year 

i. Considered in Consolidation 

ii. Not Considered in Consolidation 

 

1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations – Not applicable 

2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year – Not 

applicable 

 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of  

Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited 

 

 

                                                               

 

Sd/-            Sd/- 

Gurunath Neelamani                                   Anil Kumar S G 

Wholetime Director                                    Director & CEO  

DIN: 02799586                                            DIN: 01189011 

  

Place: Chennai 

Date:  August 12, 2022 
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Annexure II 

Form No. AOC -2 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and 

Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

 

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with 

related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including 

certain Arm’s Length Transactions under third provision thereto. 

 

a) Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis:  

Name(s) of 

the related 

party and 

nature of 

relationship 

Nature of 

contracts/ 

arrangemen

ts/ 

transaction 

Duration of the 

contracts/arran

gements/transa

ctions 

Justification for 

entering into such 

contracts or 

arrangements or 

transactions 

Date of 

Approval by 

the Board 

Amount 

paid as 

advances

, if any 

Date on which 

the special 

resolution was 

passed in 

General 

Meeting as 

required under 

first proviso to 

Section 188 

NIL 

 

b) Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:  

 

Name(s) of the 

related party and 

nature of 

relationship 

Nature of contracts/ 

arrangements/ 

transactions 

Duration of the 

Contracts/Arrang

ements/Transacti

on 

Salient terms of the 

contracts or 

arrangements or 

transactions 

including the value, 

if any 

(Amount in INR) 

Date of 

Approval by 

the Board 

Amount 

paid as 

advance

s, if any 

Samunnati Agro 

Solutions Private 

Limited, wholly 

owned subsidiary 

 

Deputation of the 

Employees of 

Samunnati Financial 

Intermediation & 

Services Private 

Limited, to its wholly 

owned subsidiary, 

Samunnati Agro 

Solutions Private 

Limited 

Annual basis 

 

Deputation of the 

Employees of the 

Holding Company. 

An amount of 

Rs.35.41 MN 

(exclusive of Taxes), 

has been charged to 

the Company’s wholly 

owned Subsidiary, 

Samunnati Agro 

Solutions Private 

Limited, as 

deputation charges 

 

 

 

 

November 11, 

2021 & 

February 10, 

2022 

 

 

 

 

 

Nil 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Samunnati Agro 

Solutions Private 

Limited, wholly 

owned subsidiary 

Deputation of the 

Employees of 

Samunnati Agro 

Solutions Private 

Limited, to the 

Holding company, 

Samunnati Financial 

Intermediation & 

Annual basis Deputation of the 

Employees of the 

subsidiary Company. 

An amount of Rs 2.01 

MN (exclusive of 

Taxes), has been 

charged to the 

Holding Company, 

Samunnati Financial 

February 12, 

2021 

Nil 
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Name(s) of the 

related party and 

nature of 

relationship 

Nature of contracts/ 

arrangements/ 

transactions 

Duration of the 

Contracts/Arrang

ements/Transacti

on 

Salient terms of the 

contracts or 

arrangements or 

transactions 

including the value, 

if any 

(Amount in INR) 

Date of 

Approval by 

the Board 

Amount 

paid as 

advance

s, if any 

Services Private 

Limited 

Intermediation & 

Services Private 

Limited. 

Samunnati Agro 

Solutions Private 

Limited, wholly 

owned subsidiary 

Fees charged by 

Samunnati Financial 

Intermediation & 

Services Private 

Limited for the 

Corporate Guarantee 

to its wholly owned 

subsidiary, Samunnati 

Agro Solutions Private 

Limited 

- An amount of INR 

6.35 MN (exclusive of 

Taxes), has been 

charged to the 

Company’s wholly 

owned Subsidiary, 

Samunnati Agro 

Solutions Private 

Limited. 

February 

12, 2021 

Nil 

Riviera Investors 

Private Limited 

(Indifi Technologies 

Pvt Limited, Holding 

Company of Riviera 

Investors Pvt Ltd), 

Company in which 

Director is 

interested 

Loan Agreement 

dated 22nd November 

2021 

24 Months Long-term working 

capital loan granted 

to INR 100 MN 

February 

12, 2021 

Nil 

Wheelsemi Private 

Limited, Company 

in which Director is 

interested 

Loan Agreement 

dated 13th Dec 2021 

12 months Short term working 

capital loan granted 

to INR 200 MN 

February 

12, 2021 

Nil 

Arthan Finance 

Private Limited, 

Company in which 

Director is 

interested 

Loan Agreement 

dated 24th May 2021 

24 months Long term working 

capital loan granted 

to INR 30 MN 

June 24, 

2021 

Nil 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of  

Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited 

Sd/-        Sd/- 

Gurunath Neelamani           Anil Kumar S G 

Wholetime Director    Director & CEO 

DIN: 02799586     DIN: 01189011 

Place: Chennai 

Date:  August 12, 2022 
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JAYASHREE S IYER 
COMPANY SECRETARY & INSOLVENCY PROFESSIONAL 

C.P.No.21403/ IBBIIIPA-002/IP-N00741/2018-19/12211 

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible 

Securities) Regulations, 2021; 

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 to the extent applicable to the Company; 

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and 

Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999; 

vi) Other laws, as an1ended from time to time, specificaJly applicable to the Company viz., 

(a) Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Circulars, Master 

Directions, Notifications made thereunder to the extent applicable to Systemically 

Important Non-Deposit taking NBFC ; 

(b) Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically lmportant Non-Deposit taking 

Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016; 

(c) Non-Banking Financial Companies Auditor' s Report (Reserve Bank) Directions, 
2016; 

(d) Non-Banking Financial Companies - Corporate Governance (Reserve Bank) 
Directions, 2015; 

(e) NBFC Auditors Report Reserve Bank Directions, 1998; 

(f) lnformation Technology Framework for the NBFC Sector; 

I report that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and on examination of 

the relevant documents and records in pursuance thereof, the Company has complied with the 
applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

(i) Secretarial Standards issued and amended by The lnstitute of Company Secretaries of India; 
(ii) The Debt Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with BSE Limited. 

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Acts, Rules, 

Regulations, Guidelines, Standards mentioned above. BSE Limited has levied a penalty of 

Rs 1,77,000/- (lndian Rupees One Lakh Seventy Seven Thousand Only) for non-submission of the 

financial results for the half-year ended 31st March 2021 within the period prescribed under for 

Regulation 52(1 ) of SEBl(LODR) Regulations, 2015 and the Company has paid the prescribed fine of 

INR I, 77,000/- (lndian Rupees One Lakh Seventy Seven Thousand Only) via electronic transfer on 

July 31 202 1. The Board of Directors of the Company has taken note of the same at the meeting held 
on September 07, 202 1. 

~ 
";,'&'i -< •~-

' .. cs 10394 .1r 

CP'.:.l-103 , .. 
23 L"ke Area, 3"1 Cross Street, Nung"mbakkam, Chenn"i 600034 ~ 

Mobile: 9840908393 E-mail: jayashree2505@gnwil.com ·," 1"~ 43



JAYASHREE S JYER 
COMPANY SECRETARY & INSOLVENCY PROFESSIONAL 

C.P.No.2/403/ IBBJ/IPA-002/IP-N00i41/2018-19/12211 

I rcl)ort that there were no events or acLions in pursuance of: 

(i) Thi,: ecurit ies und Exchange Board of India (Substanlial Acquisition of Shares and 
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 ; 

(ii) The Securities and Exchange Board of lndin {Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 
20 15: 

(iii) The:! Securities and Exchange Board or Indiu (l:;:;1.1c of apital W'!d Disclosure Requiremc.:nts) 
Regulations, 2009; 

(iv) The S\:curilies and Exchange Boord of India (Registrars to an rssue and Share Transfer 
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the 'omparues Act and dealing with client; 

(v) The SccuritJes and Exchange Boatd or India {Deli ·ting or ·quity Shures) Re~ulations, 2009; 
(vi) The Securitic;s und Exchange Board of [ndia (Buyback of Securities) RcguJntions, 1908; 

J furthi!r report that 

(i) lhe Board of DirecLors of the Company is duly constituted wiU1 proper balance of Executive 
Directors, Non-Executive Dirccwri; u.nd Jndept:nde1H Directors. 

(ii) There was no change in the composition of the Bourd of Directors during th~ p~riod under 
review. 

(ill) Adequate notice is given to uJI direcLors to schedul1.-: the Board Me1.-:tfogs, ageodn and detailed 
notes on agenda were sent in adv~ncc as stipulated in l11c Companies Act, 2013, und a sy~Lem 
exists fo r seeking and obtaining furlhc::r information and olllrifieo.tions on tJic; agenda items 
before the meeting a..nd for meaningful participation nt the meeting. 

(iv) As per the minutes of the meetings duly recorded and confirrtted by Lhi.. Directors, l11e 
decisions of the Board were carried through by mtijority while there were no dissenting views 
rccorded as part of the rninules. 

(v) The ompliance by the ornpany of the applicable financia l laws like direct and indirect tux 
laws and m~intenance of finunciaJ records and books of accounls has nol been reviewed in 
thi!i audit since the same have been subject to review by statutory ruull'Jeinl audilors. ta.'-: 

auditors and other designated professionals. 

J further report that based on thi: infomHllion received, explanations given. process ex.plained, records 
muJnt.ained. swti..Hory compliance and statutory irH~maJ audit reports submitted lo the Dourd on 
quarterly basis, and taken on record by the Board of Directors o( the Compnny, in my opinion there ru·e 
adequiiLI: systems ~nd processes in Lhe Company commcnsurntc with the .size und opi;rutions of the 
Company w munitor and ensure compliruwc wilh applicable laws. rules. n:gulations und guidelines. 

23 Luke Area, )"1 Cross Slrf!l!I, N1mg11111h11kka111, Chemmi 600034 
Mobile: 984090HJ9J E-111t11/: )n..vashree25llS _J.:111t1i/.com 44



JAYASHREE S IYER 
COMPANY SECRETARY & INSOLVENCY PROFESSIONAL 

C.P.No,21403/ IBBJIJPA-002/JP-N00741/2018-19/12211 

I further report Uuu duri1\~ the uudit period: 

i) Articles of Associuiion of the Company was aJne,,ded pursuant to Amended and ResLa1ecl 
Shareholders' Agreement dated AprH 12, 202 1, exccu1ed by the company. 

ii) lhe Company has acquired Kamatan Farm Tech Private Limited, as 11 wholly owned subsidiary 
with effect frorn April 16. 2021 by way of ucquisillon of 3.44,848 equity shares constituting the 
entire paid-up share capital of KamntM 's existing shareholders. 

iii) The ompany has issued and allotted 67,624 series D1 compulsorily convertible Clunulativc 
preference shares to certain existing and incoming investors through preferential allotment on 
private placement basis~ 

iv) SamllrtflUIJ Finance Private Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary was incorporated on September 
22. 2021. 

v) The Board of Directors of the ompany had, nt che Meecin!& held on October 28, 2021. approved 
1he Composite Scheme of ArranBcmcnt ("Scheme") for: 
a) the slump sale (i.e., transter 1111d vc~ting) of the Busini:ss Undertaking of Samwttuiti 

Financial lniennediu1io11 & Services Private Li1ni1ed us u going concern into Samunnati 
Finance Private Lim.ited. pursuunt to the provisions of Section 230 to ;,cction 232 of the 
Companies Act. 2013. and 

b) Post giving effect 10 (a) above, the amaJgamation of Sumunnu.ti Agro Solutiot'ls Privute 
Lirni1ed irllo SamlJrulati FimrnciaJ Lntem1ediution & Services Private Limited, pursuant to the 
provisions of Section 230 to Section 232 orlhe Companies Act, 20I J. 

Further Lo I.his, the abovesaid Companies had filed n joint upplkatlon before the National 
Company Law Tribunal, CJ1ennai ("NCLT") on December 04, 2021. seeking its directions for 
convening of the Meetings of the Equity Shareholders, Preference Shareholders, Debenture 
holder and Creditors and for dispensation of Meetings wherever approvals of the particular 
class of swkeholders had already been tiled with the NCLT. 
In Utls connecHon. NCLT hud passed an order dated MaFch 29, 2022 
( Al( AA)/l I 8(CH£)2021) ("NCLT Order") directing thr.: Con1puny to convene the Meetings 
of the concerned slakcholdi;rs seeking U1eil' upproval for implernentation of the Scheme. 
Accordingly, Lhe meeting of ull s1akcholders i.e. Equity ShurchoJdcrs, Compulsorily 'onve::rtible 
Preference Shares, Debenture I folders and other creditors of the CompMy were convened on 
May 4, 2022 and approvals with requisite:: majority wr.:re obtained. The Company has fi l..;d 
petition before NCLT and awui1ing hearing. 

vi) ·n1e Company has made equity i,westmcnl of Rs 84.00 Lakhs in So.mun11ati Foundation, a 
Section 8 ompany, incorporated by the Company. 

vii) The shareholders of the Company have approved Employee Stock Option Plan 2022. 
viii) Samunnati Investment Management Services Private Limited was incorporated as u whol ly 

owned subsidiary of Samunnati Agro Solutions Private Limited on March 8, 2022. 

2J Lake Are,,, 3rd Crmis Stre'11, N1111gumhllkkum, Clw1111ai 6000J 
M()bile: 984090839.1 E-111ail: jt1yt1shree2505 ,mail.com 45



JAYASHREE S IYER 
COMPANYSECRETARY&JNSOLVENCYPROFESSJONAL 

C. P.No.214031 IBBl/JPA~002/JP~N00i4J/2018;19/l 2211 

ix) Th~ Company has issued secured redeemable non-convertible debentures for Rs 195.30 crorc, 
x) The Company has redeemed secured redeemable non-convertible debentures for Rs 86.83 crorc. 

Place: Chcnnui 
Dute : J0,05.2022 

!11 l'iew o/!hc cov/ci pandemic all the Jocunwms wen· l!xamined digltal/)1, 

t 

Ja ushrcc S Tyer 
Company Secretary 

t S 10394 
CP 2 1403 

UOTN: FO I 03040000425622 

.\ 'ote: This report Is robe read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Anni:.ture A and farms 
,111 /,uegral part qf this Repnrt, 

23 lake Area, 3'11 Crmis Street, Nm,,:umhukkam, Clum11ai 6000.14 
Mobile: 98409()8393 E-mail: j ,~yasltree2.'iOS(aJg111ail.co111 
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JAYASHREE S IYER 
COMPANY SECRETARY & INSOLVENCY PROFESSIONAL 

C.P.No.2 I 403/ /BBi/i PA-002/JP-N00741/2018-19/J 221 J 

1ANNEXURE - A' 
To, 
The Board of Directors 
M/ . Samunoatl Financial huermediution & Services Priv11tc Limited 
CIN No.: U65990TN2014PT 096252 
Baid Mi Tech Park, 8th Floor Nol29 B. 
Ea.'ll 'oasl Road. Thiruvan.miyur 
Chenm.11•600041 

Dear Sir 

My report of even date is to be read ulong with this letter. 

I. Maintcmmee of Secretarial records is the responsibility of the munugcmcnt of the Mis .Samunnati 
Financial lntcnncdiation & Servicei; Private I~imitcd (the •company'), My responsibility is to 
express M opinion on these sccrcta_riaJ records bused on our audit. 

2. I haVI.! followed lhc audit practices und process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assuronce 
3bout the correctness of the contents of U1c Secretarial records. The review was done to ensure lhat 
correct facts are reflected in Secretarial records. We believe that the process and practices, we 
followed provide a rcasom1ble basis for our opinion. 

3. I have not verified the correc1ncss and appropriateness of fina.nciul records and Books of Accounts 
of lhe Company. 

4. Wherever required, l have obtni.ned the Management r~prese11tation ubout the Complhu1ce of laws, 
rules and regulu1ions and happening of events, ecc. 

5. The compliance of provisions of all laws. rules, regulations, s1andurd~ applicable is the 
responsibility of U1c mum1gcrncnt of the Company. My exumination was limited 10 thi; verification 
of records and procedures on test check basis for the purpose of issue of the Secretariul Audit 
Report. 

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is n~ither an assurance as to the future viability of the Compuny nor 
Lhe efficacy or effectiveness with which the milfiiilJcment has conducted the affairs of 1hc 
'ompany. 

Place: 'hennai 
Dute: 30.05.2022 

~~ Joy~:. S Tyer 
Company Secretary 

r, 'S I 0394 
P 21403 

UDTN: F010394D000425622 

~\\HL' s I 
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"::i ' 
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Annexure IV 

 

Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibilities (CSR) Activities 

 

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company 

 

Samunnati goes beyond business to make a sustainable, positive social, economic and 

environmental impact on the lives of the people. The Company envisions sustainable and 

inclusive development of small holder farmers and the agriculture ecosystem as a whole. 

With the endeavour of equal prosperity to all, Samunnati as an agriculture ecosystem enabler 

strives for inclusive and sustainable development of small holder farmers with positive 

environmental, social and economic impact. 

 

The primary purpose of the Company’s CSR philosophy is to contribute to the development 

of socially and economically challenged communities of the country with specific focus on 

creating sustainable livelihoods, supporting rural development projects, promoting education 

and skill development, promoting environmental sustainability, and supporting innovations 

that largely benefit the agriculture ecosystem. 

 

The CSR activities of the Company are wheeled through various CSR entities including 

Samunnati Foundation. 

 

In line with the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has 

constituted the CSR Committee. The Company has put in place a Board approved Corporate 

Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy which governs the CSR activities of the Company. 

 

2. Composition of the CSR Committee:  

 

S. No. Name of the Member Designation 

Number of 

meetings of CSR 

Committee held 

during the year 

Number of 

meetings of CSR 

Committee 

attended during 

the year 

1 Dr. Venkatesh Tagat Chairman  

 

2 

2 

2 Ms. Jyotsna Krishnan Member 2 

3 Mr. Anil Kumar S G Member 2 

4 Mr. Gurunath N Member 2 

 

a) Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the Board are 

disclosed on the website of the Company and can be accessed at the following link: 

https://site.samunnati.com/csr/  

 

b) Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-

rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if 

applicable (attach the report): Not applicable  

 

c) Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the 

Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for 

set off for the financial year, if any: Nil 
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d) Average net profit (PBT) of the Company as per Section 135(5): 

a) Net profit (PBT) for the year 2018-19   : INR 12,41,74,107/- 

b) Net profit (PBT) for the year 2019-20   : INR 15,10,000/- 

c) Net profit (PBT) for the year 2020-21   : INR 53,90,000/- 

 

Average net profit for last three financial years  : INR 4,36,91,369/- 

  

e) (a) Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5): INR 

8,73,827/- 

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous 

financial years: Nil 

                 (c)  Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: Nil 

          (d)   Total CSR obligation for the financial year: INR 8,73,827/- 

 

f) (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year: 

 

 

Total Amount 

Spent for the 

Financial Year 

(in INR) 

Amount Unspent (in INR) 

Total Amount transferred to 

Unspent CSR Account as per 

Section 135(6) 

Amount transferred to any fund specified 

under Schedule VII as per second proviso 

to Section 135(5) 

 
Amount Date of 

transfer 

Name of the 

Fund 

Amount Date of 

transfer 

7,00,000 N.A. N.A. Prime 

Minister’s 

Citizen 

Assistance 

and Relief in 

Emergency 

Situation 

Fund (PM 

CARES FUND) 

1,74,000 August 10, 

2022 

As per the computation carried out by the Company for FY 2021-22, the required CSR spend was 

INR 678,075/- basis which the Company had spent an amount of INR 700,000/-. However, the 

Statutory Auditors have opined that the required CSR spend for FY 2021-22 should be INR 

873,827/-  

 

       (b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11) 

Sl. 

No. 

Name 

of the 

Project 

Item from 

the list of 

activities in 

Schedule VII 

to the Act 

Local 

area 

(Yes/No) 

Location of 

the project. 

Project 

duration 

Amount 

allocated 

for the 

project 

(in INR) 

Amount 

spent in 

the 

current 

financial 

Year (in 

INR) 

Amount 

transferred 

to Unspent 

CSR 

Account 

for the 

project as 

per Section 

135(6) (in 

INR) 

Mode of 

Implementation 

- Direct 

(Yes/No) 

Mode of Implementation 

- Through Implementing 

Agency 

State District Name CSR 

Registration 

number 
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1 SEEDS (x) rural 

development 

projects 

Yes Tamil Nadu/ 

Virudhunagar 

 
2,00,000 2,00,000 - No Social 

Education 

Economical 

Development 

Society 

CSR00005762 

2 CSA (ii) 

Livelihood 

enhancement 

projects 

Yes Andhra 

Pradesh/ 

Tarnaka, 

Hyderabad 

- 5,00,000 5,00,000 - No Centre for 

Sustainable 

Agriculture 

CSR00011351 

Total  7,00,000 

 

(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year: Not 

applicable  

(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads – Not Applicable 

(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable – Not Applicable 

(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year - INR 700,000/- 

(g) Excess amount for set off, if any: Nil 

 

g) a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: Nil 

 

b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding 

financial year(s): Nil 

 

h) In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so 

created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year: Nil 

  

 

For Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited 

 

 

 

Sd/-      Sd/- 

Anil Kumar S G     Venkatesh Tagat 

Director & CEO     Chairman of CSR Committee 

DIN: 01189011     DIN: 02728441     

 

Place: Chennai 

Date: August 12, 2022 
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PKF SRI DHAR & SANTHANAM lLP 
Chartered Accountants 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Members of Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Samunnat, Financial 
Intermediation & Services Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as the 'Holding Company") and ,ts 
subsidiaries (Holding Company and ,ts subsidiaries together referred lo as ' the Group' ), which 
comprise the consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022, and lhe consolidated statement of 
Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the consolidated statement of changes ,n 
equ ity and the consolidated cash flows statement for the year then ended and notes to the 
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as ' the consolidated financial statements' ) 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 
(the 'Act") ,n the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group, as at 31 March 
2022, and their consolidated loss, consolidated total comprehensive income, their consolidated 
statement of changes in equity and consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit m accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 
143(10) of the Companies act, 2013 Our responsibilities under those Standards are further descnbed 
,n the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our 
report. We are independent of the Group In accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by ICAI, and 
we have fulfilled our other ethical respons1b1hl1es in accordance with the provIsIons of the Companies 
Act, 2013 We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropnate to provide 
a basis for our opinion on the consohdated financial statements 

Emphasis of matter 

We draw attention to Nole 49 to the consolidated financial statements, about the uncertainties 
prevailing on the balance sheet date on the recoverability of the Group's loans and advances on 
account of the COVID-19 impact. The estimates and assumptions made by management In 
determining the impairment provision required for these loans are subJect to matters that are outside 
the control of the Group and hence actual results may vary from these estimates 

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matter. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that. In our profess1onat judgment, were of most significance m 
our audit of the consohdated financial statements of the current period These matters were addressed 
,n the context of our audit of the holding companies financial statements, and in forming our opinion 
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matter 
described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated m our report 
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Key Audit Matter 
Provision for expected credit loss (ECL) on loans 
(Refer Note 6 and Note 25 to the Consolidated Ind AS 
Financial Statements) 

Financial instruments, which include loans to 
customers, represent a significant portion of the total 
assets of the Holding Company. The Holding 
Company has loans aggregating Rs. 11,414.21 
million as at March 31 , 2022. The Holding Company 
has made a provision for impairment loss aggregating 
Rs. 352.53 million against the loans outstanding to 
Customers as at the balance sheet date Due to the 
significance of the judgments used in both 
classification of loans into various stages as well as 
the computation of expected credit losses on such 
financial assets as per Ind AS 109, this has been 
considered as a key audit matter 

Management estimates impairment provision using 
Expected Credit Loss model for the loan exposure 
using criteria in accordance with Ind AS 109 which 
also include considering the impact of recent RBl's 
regulatory circulars. Measurement of toan impairment 
involves application of significant judgement by the 
management. These include: 

(a) Segmentation of the loan portfolio into 
homogenous pool of borrowers; 

(b) Identification or exposures where there is a 
significant increase in credit rlsk ('SICR') and those 
that are credit impaired; 

(c) Determination of the probability of default for each 
of the segments identified; and 

(d) Loss given default for various exposures based on 
past trends / experience, management estimates etc., 

Additionally, the economic and business 
consequences of the COVID 19 pandemic as 
described in Note 49 to the consolidated Ind AS 
financial statements, slowdown of economic activity. 
moratoriums granted to borrowers, the related 
regulatory directives and also the applicable 
accounting directions, further affect provisioning 
under the ECL approach. 

Note 2.5 to the consolidated Ind AS financial 
statements explains the various matters that the 
management has considered for developing this 
exoected credit loss model. 

How the matter was addressed 
Read and assessed the Holding Company's 
accounting policy for impairment of financial 
assets and its compliance with Ind AS 109, the 
governance framework approved by the Board of 
Directors and moratorium pursuant to the RBI 
circular and tested the implementation of such 
policy on a sample basis. 

Assessed the criteria for staging of loans based 
on their past-due status to check compliance with 
requirement of Ind AS 109. Tested a sample of 
performing loans (stage 1) to assess whether any 
SICR or loss indicators were present requiring 
them to be classified under stage 2 or 3 or vice 
versa along with additional considerations applied 
by the Management for staging of loans as SICR 
or default categories in view of Holding 
Company's policy on moratorium. 

Tested the input data used for grouping and 
staging of loan portfolio into various categories 
and default buckets for determining the 
Probability of Default (PD) and Loss Given 
Default (LGD) rates. Also, tallied the input data 
with the underlying books of accounts and 
records. 

Tested assumptions used by the management In 
determining the overlay for macro-economic 
factors (including COVID-19 pandemic). 

Assessed and tested the inputs used in the 
impairment computation (including the data 
integrity of information extracted from the Group's 
IT systems). 

Tested the arithmetical accuracy of computation 
of ECL provision performed by the Holding 
Company in spreadsheets. 

Assessed disclosures included in the 
consolidated Ind AS financial statements In 
respect of expected credit losses including the 
specific disclosures made with regard to the 
management's evaluation of the uncertainties 
arising from COVID-19 and Its impact on ECL 
estimation. 

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditors' Report Thereon 

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. 
The other information comprises the information Included in the Directors report but does not include 
the consolidated financial statements and our auditors' report thereon. These reports ar 
be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report. 
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Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do 
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon 

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility Is to read the 
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit 
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. When we read the reports containing the other 
information, ii we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to 
communicate the matter to those charged with governance. 

Responsibilities o f the Management and Those Charged w ith Governance for the Consolidated 
Financial Statements 

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these 
consolidated financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 that give 
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance, 
consolidated changes In equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under 
section 133 of the Act, The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are 
responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the 
Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial 
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements 
by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid. 

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies 
included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going 
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis 
of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has 
no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Tlie respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for 
overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group. 

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit o f t he Consolidated Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue 
an auditors' report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but 
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will alWays detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material 
if, Individually or in the aggregate. they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement or the consolidated financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk 
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override or internal control. 
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• Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are 
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the the Holding Company, its subsidiary 
companies, which are companies Incorporated in India have adequate internal financial controls 
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events 
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our 
auditors' report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors' report. However, future events or conditions may 
cause the Group and to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or 
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial 
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the 
financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we 
are the independent auditors. 

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropnate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding , among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we Identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and 
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, 

related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters 
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period 
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors' report unless law 
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, 
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse 
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of 
such communication. 

Other Matters 

The audited consolidated financial statements of the Group, for the corresponding year ended 31 
March 2021 prepared in accordance with Ind AS included In these consolidated financial statements, 
have been audited by the predecessor auditor whose audit report dated 29 July 2021 expressed an 
unmodified opinion on those audited consolidated financial statements 

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1 As required by the Companies (Auditors' Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the ' Annexure 
A' a statement on the matter specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report, to the extent applicable, that 
a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge 

and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial 
statements. 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid 
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those 
books. 

c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other 
Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated 
Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account 
maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements. 

d) In our opinion. the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting 
Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. 

e) The matter described in the Basis for Emphasis of matters, in our opinion, may have an adverse effect 
on the functioning of the Group. 

f) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on 
31 March 2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of 
the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies incorporated In India, none of the directors of the 
Group companies incorporated in India is disqualified as on 31 March 2022 from being appointed as 
a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. 

g) With respect to adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial statements of the Holding 
Company. its subsidiary companies incorporated in India and the operating effectiveness of such 
controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure B'. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on 
the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial control over financial reporting of 
those companies, for reasons stated therein. 

h) Wilh respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors' Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules. 2014, In our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us: 

i. The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the 
consolidated financial position of the Group - Refer Note 37 to the consolidated financial 
statements. 

ii. Provision has been made in the consolidated financial statements, as required under the 
applicable law or accounting standards. for material foreseeable losses, if any. on long-term 
contracts including derivative contracts. 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Holding Company, and Its subsidiary companies, associate companies 
and jointly controlled companies incorporated In India. 

iv (a) The management of Holding Company. its subsidiary companies incorporated In India has 
represented that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds have been advanced or 
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind 
of funds) by the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies incorporated in India to or in any 
other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Intermediaries"), with the 
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether. 
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies, incorporated 
in India ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of 
the Ultimate Beneficiaries ~,. ~J: 

~~~ 't- :.:~ 
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(b) The management of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies, companies 
incorporated in India has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, other than 
as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the Group from any 
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding , 
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies 
incorporated in India shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or Invest in other persons or 
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate 
Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficia ries. 

(c) Based on such audit procedures that we have considered reasonable and appropnate in 
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the 
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material mis-statement. 

v. The Group has not paid or declared d ividend during the year and until the date of this report. 

3. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors' Report under section 197(16): 

Since the Holding Company and its subsidiaries are a private limited company, the provisions 
of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 a re not applicable to It. Accordingly, reporting on 
the compliance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act is not applicable . 

For PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP 

Chartered Accountants 
Firm's Registration No.003990S/S200018 

I~ 
V Kothandaraman 
Partner 
Membership No. 025973 
UDIN : 22025973AJRIAH421 7 

Place of Signature: Chennai 
Date: May 26, 2022 
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Annexure A 

Referred to In paragraph 1 on 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' of our report 
of oven date to the members of Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited ("the 
Holding Company") on the consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended 31 March 
2022. 

(i) As required by Paragraph (xxi) of Companies (Auditor's Report) Order (CARO), there have been 
no qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the CARO reports of the 
companies included in the consolidated financial statements except: 

Clause number of 
Sr. Name CIN Holding Company the CARO report 
No. I Subsidiary which is qualified 

or adverse 
1 Samunnati Financial U65990TN2014PTC096252 Holding Company Clause 3(iii)(c), 

Intermediation & 3(iii)(d), 3(vii)(a) 
Services Private 
Limited 

2 Samunnati Agro U74999TN2016PTC112925 Subsidiary Clause 3(vii)(a) 
Solutions Private 
Limited 

3 Kamatan Farm Tech U74999TN2017PTC149059 Subsidiary Clause 3(iii), 
Private Limited 3/vllllal 

As referred to in Note 1 of the consolidated financial statements, above responses in 
respect of clause 3(xxi) do not include comments in respect of Samunnati Foundation 
which is not in scope and hence not included in consolidated financial statements. 

For PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm's Registration No.003990S/S200018 

/~~ 
V Kothandaraman 
Partner 
Membership No. 025973 
UDIN : 22025973AJRIAH4217 

Place of Signature: Chennai 
Date: May 26, 2022 
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Annexure B 

Referred to in paragraph 2(g) on 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' of our report 
of even date on the consolidated financial statements of Samunnati Financial Intermediation & 
Services Private Limited ' 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 
3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of Samunnati Financial Intermediation 
& Services Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as ' the Holding Company") as of and for the year ended 
31 March 2022, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Holding 
Company· and i ts 3 subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated In India, as of that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Board or Directors or the Holding company , its subsidiary companies, which are companies 
incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining Internal financial controls based on 
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the respective companies considering the 
essential components or internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
Over Financial Reporting Issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('the ICAI'). These 
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls 
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct or its business, including 
adherence to the respective company's policies, lhe safeguarding o f its assets, the prevention and detection 
of frauds and errors. the accuracy and compleleness or the accounling records. and the timely preparation 
of reliable financial information, as required under the Act. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting based 
on our audit of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated m 
India. We conducted our audit in accordance with lhe Guidance Note on Audit or Internal Financial Controls 
Over Financial Reporting (the 'Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed 
to be prescribed under section 143(10) or the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of 
internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate 
internal financial controls over financial reporting were established and maintained and if such controls 
operated effectively in all matenal respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls 
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the 
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditors' judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We beheve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the Holding Company. its 
subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for 
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles A company's internal 
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that ( 1) pertain to the 
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 
dispositions of the assets of the Company, (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded 
as necessary to permil preparation of financial statements in accordance with ~ ei!i!!ll accepted 

!.>-\'- r. s.o1..,,.1: 
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accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable 
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the 
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error 
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls 
over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial 
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with 
the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion and to the best of our Information and according to the explanations given to us, the Holding 
Company, its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India, have maintained, in all 
material respects, adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal 
financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March 2022, based on the 
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the respective companies considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

For PKF Sridhar & Sant hanam LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm's Registration No.003990S/S200018 ,~ 
V Kothandaraman 
Partner 
Membership No. 025973 
UDIN : 22025973AJRIAH4217 

Place or Signature: Chennai 
Date: May 26. 2022 
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• 

Samunnatf Ffnanclal lntennedlation & Services Private Limited 
ConS-Olidated Balance Sheela. at 31 March 2022 
(All amounts are In m,/hons of /nt.ian Rup<lOS tr), unless o<ho(Wise stated/ 
Particulars 

ASSETS 
Financial assets 
a) Cash and cash equi\faJents 
b) Bank balances Olher lhan (a) above 
c) Trade receivables 
d) l oans 
e) lnveslmems 
I) Other financial assets 

Non.financial .tssel$ 
a) Inventories 
b) Current tax assels (nel) 
c) Deferred tax assets (nel) 
d ) PrOl)erty, plan! end equipment 
eJ Righi of use assets 
f) Other 1ntanglbfe asse1s 
g) 1n1ang1ble assets undeJ development 
hY Other non--ftnancial assets 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 
UabiliUes 
Financial llabllltles 
a) Trade payables 

Note Asat 
31 March 2022 

3 1,167.65 
4 512.15 
5 3,477.40 
6 11 ,061.68 
7 192.37 
8 152.09 

16,563.34 

9 849.16 
10 189.33 
11 396.54 
12 108.77 
12 31.23 
12 800.48 
12 71.50 
13 243.94 

2 690.95 
19 254.29 

14 
0.67 Total outstanding dues of micro efllerpnses and small enterpnses 

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterpnses 

bl Borrowings 

697.42 

15 5,294.84 Debt securities 
Borrow,ngs (olher ll>an dl!bl securities) 

c) Othe< financial babrlities 

Non•financla:1 liabllltlos 
a) Prov,stons 
b) Other non•finanelal hab1l1tJes 

Equity 
a) Equ,ty share cap'~al 
b) Other equity 

Total Ll abilltles and Equity 

The accompanying notes ronn an mtegral pa.n of the financial statements 
As per our rep,ort of even date attached 

For PKF Sridhar & Sanlhanam LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

rJ::::!5~900$~200018 

V Kothandaraman 
Panner 
Membership No.: 025973 

16 8,043.12 
17 150.35 

14186.40 

18 44.46 
19 216.69 

261.15 

20 20.45 
21 4,786.29 

4,806.74 
19 254.29 

For and on behaff of the Board of D,reetors ol 
Samunnati Financial lntem,ediation & 

~ 
Director and CED 
D · 01189011 

As at 
31 March 2021 

1.352.37 
651.74 

2,719.66 
9,220.76 

455.95 
167.31 

14,567.79 

22.68 
62.51 

145.61 
60.71 
18.41 
25.39 
15.38 
74.59 

425.28 
14 993.07 

77.84 

4,213.92 
5,34-3,40 

131. 17 
9 766.33 

30.95 
181.99 
212.94 

19.76 
4,994.04 
5,013.80 

14 993.07 

limited 

Place: Chennai 
Date May 26, 2022 

>"</t(V"t k'" ..,.,->I 
it 

Group Chief Financial Officer 

Place: Chenna, 
Date· May 26, 2022 

Arunkumar Sridharan 
Company Sec,etary 
Membership No.: F7112 

Place Chennai 
Dale: May 26, 2022 
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Samunnati Financial lntermed1auon & Services Pnvate L,mded 
Consolidated Statement of profit and loss for the period ended 31 March 2022 
(All amounts are in mi1lions of Indian Rupees (f J. unless othemise stared) 

Revenue from operations 
(Q Interest Income 
(ii) Sale of traded goods 
(,if) Other ooecatinp revenue 

II Other mcome 
111 Total income (1+11) 

Expenses 

Particulars 

(1) Finance costs 
(,i) Impairment on financial instruments & Allowance for expected credit loss 
(111) Purchase of stoek-il\-t.rade 
(iv) Changes In inventones of st0Ck-1n-trade 
M Employee benefit expenses 
(V1) Depreciation and amortization 
(vfi Other expenses 

IV Total expenses 

V Loss before tax (Ill-IV) 
Vl Tax expense 

(i) Current tax 
(Ii) oererred tax 

VII Loss for the year (V-VI) 

VIII Other comprehensive Income (OCI) 
() Items that WYII no1 be reclassified to profit or loss 

- Remeasurement gain I (loss) on define.cl benefit plans 
() Income tax Impact thereon 
Other comptehensive income (i)•(ii) 

IX Total comprehensive lncome/(loss) for the year (Vll•VIII) 

X Earnings s,or eQuirv share {face value f 10/- par equity share) 

Basic (f ) 
Diluted(') 

The accompanymg notes form an Integral pan of the financial statements 

Note 

22 
22 
22 

23 

24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 

31 

31 

32 

Yeatended 
31 March 2022 

1,599.57 
21.155.79 

107.57 
22 862.93 

58.08 
22 921.01 

1,215.52 
936.00 

21 ,590.20 
(845. t 1) 
878.33 
64,79 

408.39 

24 248.11 

11,327.10) 

(260.71) 

{1,066.391 

12.28) 
0.34 

(1.94) 

{1,064,451 

(2,955.14) 
12,955.14) 

Year ended 
31 March 2021 

1,574.20 
7,567.48 

80.27 
9 221.95 

43.88 
9 265.83 

793.39 
396.45 

7,370.26 
(15.45) 
525.96 
33.68 

247.93 

9 352.22 

(86.39} 

120, tO) 

(66.29) 

6.39 
(t.64) 
4.75 

(61.54) 

(183.97) 
1183.97) 

As per our ,epon of even date an·ached 
For PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP 
Char1ered Accountants 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

ICAI Firm Regist~on No.: 08990S/S200018 

/ ·,;i£1~"'--& 
V Kothandaraman 
Pan.nee 
Membership No.: 025973 

Place Chennal 
Date· May 26, 2022 

Samunnatl Flnancic1I Intermediation & Servi""'•"'~,. ,._te lmited 

~~ 
OIN Ot 189011 

~ \ 
Group Chief F1nancfal Officer 

Place Chennai 
oa,e: May 26. 2022 

~:ctamani 
Whole-time Ditector 
DIN : 02799586 

Arunkumar Sridharan 
Company Secretary 
Membership No.· F7 112 

Place: Chennai 
Date· May 26, 2022 
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Samunnatl Financill lntormed~ion & SeMces Pnvate llmitec:I 
Conaolklated Sta1emtnt Of c.uh tlo'NI for th• year ended l1 March 202:2 
(Al amounts .re in miaQM 01 tncbn Rupees ff}, ulQU o:~,se s.:art'd) 

A. Operating ac.tMtln 
LOH bero, .. lU 
A4)ustrnents fe)t'! 
Oep,eaatlon..,..............,. 
EtnploYff stodc ~Ion e,:ponaes 

Pan.lculars 

LOU Of\ Nie Cl property, ~ arno equipment 
lnoome frQffl mutual tunds 
Income trom det>l turMh 
lmp,lrment on llrlandll lnsvvmenu 
lmpetmeiit on !Tadt re,oeevlOles 
Bad debt.s wnnen off 
PrOYisloo Or'I lnvemo,y 
AmonlsatJon Cl ongndon C:OSI.I OI boffl:JMngs 
tfl«et:l expensu toNlt'ds ffnancit,g ac:tiwiiea 
Gain on fair v..-:ion on ~s 
Cash gener,ted from opt,ra!.lons belo,-e working capital ch.Inge• 

Chainges tn working c,apful: 
L01n$ 
~~asset• 
T racSe recolvablea 
OCl'tW l't0t'l4'11'1eneial assas 
Ne'! m~onl n pn)VlliOnl 
~ finencial BOO non-Mancia li,C>ililles 
ttvenlorlet 
Ttade payablas 
Cuh us,e,d In ope,atlons 
h:orne 1,1:res paid (net d rl!l\ms) 
He, cash us.Ht In QPtfl,tlng • ~lvttl•• (A) 

8. lnvestlng a<tlvltltt 
Purchase 01' property. pYnt IOd equlpn,ent and Wang!ble as1et1 
~ eels Jrom ulc OI prop,etty, plw1 and equlpmffll 
Movement In cal)llal ~• 
Movement In~-~_,.,, and fintnO,ll instltl.f.JOns 

PutttlaselSM d WIV""'1enll 
lnterOIC lnQome received on irr-,Htments tne.:IW'cd et amo,tlseci COit. FVTPL 
Net ush (used In) invH tJng activfUH (Bl 

C. Fln.1nclng actlvfUH 
Proceed, from luuo of ahates indudng st.are premium (net OI stt.e ,u~e expenses) 
Bu)'baQ. ot Iha-el 
Pf'oeee6s/Ropeymen1 rrom ~ secvw:l,u 
Lease Rlllfll Paid 
Ptoee~slRepa)lffl~I tfcrn Olhor than oetJl seodies 
lnt«l!S1 cxpcn,,1es 
Net cuh gon,rat•d trom financing acUvltfe-s (C} 

Net inctUJe In cash Ind cash equivalents (A+B+C) 
Cash and i;uh oqufv•tecnu ll tt1• be91nnlng or ow ynr 
Cuh and cash equtv.S.nts at tht •nd or th• ynr 

COl'l'l~ls cc cash and cash equrvalom, 
Ca'Sl'I and caah equ!valct'IIS ai lhe Md ol lhe year fal&o, refei note 3) 
- Cash on hwl<I 
- In del>O$il ~s t-flh c:w,glnal metwityof3 months Of leSSl 
• 8alances ~ b:lr'll(I 'n CUTefll ~ 
Totll 

The acoom~ not.e:t tonn an integral p.art of the fl'\lt'IOtl •1.e1t~s 
As per our ,eport d even date aaeched 
For PKF Sr1dher & Sanlhanam LLP 
Chltti!t'td ACCCIUtllanlS T;i;;;::n~ -~200018 

V Kothandanman ~ p...,.,. 
Men'lberstup No.· 025973 

/ ·" 
Place c­
Oat.e. May 2'&. 2022 

Psac;e cnennai 
Date May 26. 1022 

Year end.cl 
l1 March 2022 

(1,327.10) 

6479 
5703 
0 .08 

, , • .OJ 
(16.51) 
200.2' 
220.sa 
515.20 

20,15 

UM.82 

(2.$56 36) 
3.99 

(911130) 
(169.92) 

,s.02 
53.37 

(8'6153) 
620,25 

(3.913,10) 
p t7 52) 

(173 32) 
8.22 
O.S7 

139.-59 
2153.51 
3098 

211.62 

069 

1,087.41 
(16.02) 

2,699.n 
(HM.82} 

3,571.11 

(114.72) 
1,362.37 
1,167,U 

1117.15 

Y.ar-•nded 
31 Mardl 2021 

(86.3') 

33.68 

'°"" 0.1, 
(C.06) 
(9,65) 

(•5.(8) 
739' 

:166.85 

336' ,..,, 
0.51 ...... 

(2,540.ClJ 
(31 9$) 

(1,188.78) 
2.68 
C 28 

&5.59 
(1393) 
56.( 9 

(l ,155,761 
(38.S<) 

p.114.30) 

(27.1)6) 
111 
1 98 

tl20.92} 
(3CV5) 

13.M 
(S7S.50) 

2,568.37 

StS5.33 

1,352.)7 

1.66 
56.9' 

1m.n 
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Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Service5 Private l .Jmi1ed 
Consolidated Statement ol Ch.angos In Equity for the year ended 31 March 202.2 
(AN amounts ore ,n mllNons ot lnd,.an R.upHs (tJ. unlttu octi•,w,so Mated) 

A.. Eauitv share canital 

Equity share c,apital 
Part>Cu lart 

Balance at the beglMlng of the )'OM 

Changes In acx:ounling policy or poor perwxt errOfS 
Restated 881&nce et the beglnn.ng of the ye31 
lssu-ed dunno the year 
Buvback of shares 
Sub~totel 

Eou1tv shares M:ld under trust for emokl-s under ESOP scheme 
Balance at the end of tho year 

8 . Other eaultv 

Particulars 

Balance 8S at 01 April 2020 
Changes 1n 9CCOUnting policy or poor penod errors 

Re,ieted Sat.nee as. et 01 Apnl 2020 
Comp,ehens,v,c inCOITle tot 1he yoat 
Issue expenses tot debt seconbes 
Emptoyee 51odl; optiOns e~nse 
Transfer 10 statu1-· r&S.CtVe 

Balance as at 31 March 2021 
Changes ,n eccounl!ng pohcy or prior PeflOd errors (Refer Note 21) 

Restated Balance es ,t 31$1 Me,rch 2021 afte, above 8d,ustmen1.s 
Comp,ehens,ve- SlCOme lor the year 
Transfer to 1tatu1ory reserve 
Pte-mium on tS.soe of shares 
Equiry Component of Debt Secur11ie, 1s,ued dunng the )'Nt 

l.ss~ expenses '°' dcb1 SeoJflbM 
Enri.. ...... s lock ontions --.....nse 

Balance as at 31 March 2022 

As pe, ou, re:p0ft or even date auached 
For PKF Sridhar & Sanlhanam LLP 

Charle~ Accoun1ana 
ICAI Flm, Reg,a1r,11,on ~ .: 003990SIS200018 

V Kothandaraman 
Partne, 
Membe<$h<p No : 025973 

Pltce Chenna1 
-llote M&y26, 2022 

As at As at 
'.11 M 2 r- .. ,.,.,.,. •4 u .. r-i.. 2n"1 

S.74 5.74 . . 
S.74 5.741 
. . 
. . 

5.74 5.74 
12. 141 12. 14) 
3.60 3.60 

Statutory Securilie-s 
Rourve Premium 

39,84 4.953.68 
. 

39.84 4.9S3.68 

(22.58) 
. . 

0.75 
40.59 4,931 .10 

-
40,59 4,931 10 

. . 
. 

812.96 . 
- 11 39 . 

40.59 5 755.45 

Computsorily convertible 
Total 

prefertnce shares f"CCPS") 
As at AH i As., Asal 

'.11 Marrh 202' 11 M•r ........... "~- ...... 1.1 M t,rl"h 2n, 1 
16 16 16.16 21.90 21.90 

. . . 
16,US 16 16 21.90 2190 
0 .68 . 0,68 . 
. . . . 

16.85 16.16 22.59 21.90 
. . 12. 141 12.141 

16.85 16.16 20.45 19.76 

Equity 

Stock Options 
Capital component of Other 

Rotelnod 
Outstanding 

Redemption compound comprehensive 
Earnings 

Total 
Rosorvo financial income 

lnsirumants 
164.3 1 0.07 . (1.02) ( 119.70) 5,037. 18 

- . . . . 
164.3 1 O.o7 . ( 1.02) ( 119.70) S.037. 18 

. . 4.75 (66 29) (6 1.54) 
. . . . (22 58) 

AQ.98 . . . . 40 .91 
. (0 75) . 

205.29 0.07 - 3.73 1186,74} 4,994.04 
. - - ( 1 )3) ( 1. 13) 

205 29 007 . 3.73 (187.87) 4,992.91 
. - - '94 ( 1,066 39) (1,06445) 
- . . . . . . . - . . 812,96 
. - (23.55) . . (23.55) . . . . - 11.39 

57.03 . . . - 57.03 
262.32 0 .07 123.551 5.67 11254.261 4 786.29 

FOf and on beh$lf of the Board of Ottec1ors of 
Samunnatl Financ lal Intermediation & Servic.n r 

\~~ 
~ 

Group Chief Fwianaat Off10e1 

Place Chema, 
Ooie Ma; 26, 2022 

urunith Nccl•manl 
Director 

OIN•#~~ 
~ ~uma, S,idhuan 

Company Secretary 
Membef$hfp No.~ F7112 

P1oce CheMal 
Dato M3'f 26, 2022 63



Samunnatl Financial Intermedi ation & Services Private Limited 
Summary of signrficant accounting policies and other explanatory lnfonnation for the year ended 31 March 2022 
(AU amounts are in ml/lions of Indian Rupees (f) , unless ot/Jerwise stated/ 

Corporate lnfonnation 
Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited ('The Holding Company') Is a No-n~Banking Financial Institution (NBFI) 
tncorpo,ated on June 23, 2014. The Hoktrng Company has received certrfiea1e of registrauon dated February 25. 2016 from the Reserve 
Sank of India to carry on the bus1ness of Non-Banking Finanaal lnslltutlon without acce.pbng deposits. The Holding Company provides 
secured and unsecured k>ans to farmers, farmer producer organizations, community based organlzations and Agn .. enterprises. The 
Hokj]ng Company commenced active NBFI operations from the month of July 2016. The Hol<ling Company Is an NBFC • Systemically 
Important Non-Deposit taking Company f NBFC-NO-SI') per regulations of Reserve Bank of India ( RBI'). 

The Holding Company ha$ four wholly owned subsidiaoes as at the year end 31 March 2022. 
The following are the details of the subsidienes 
1 Samunnati Agro Sotution.s Private L•mlted ( Agro') which was incorporated on 14 October 2016, and undertakes wholesale trading 
ae1:iV1ties related to agncultural inputs and commodities. 

2. Kama1an Farm Tech Private Limited. The Company has acquired 100% stake in Kama1an Farm Tech Pnvate Limited r KFTPt.') through 
a share swap on 16 April 2021. Pursuant to the agreement the Company has fssued 67,624 Compulsory Coovert1ble Preference Shares 

('CCPS') lo the equf1y shareholders of KFTPL. 

3. Samunnati Flnance Pnvate L,m,ted ('SFPL'l was incorporated on 22 September 2021 and os registered under lhe Companies Act 2013 
as a company lun1ted by shares, 
4. Samunnau Foundation ('the Foundauon') was incorporated on 09 Mard'I 2020 -and is registered under sectlon 8 of the Companies Act 
2013 as a companywrth l1m1ted l1abllity. The ma,n obJects of the Company are to undertake soaal onented programs, activities as deemed 
appropriate, referred to u, sctledule VII to the Companies Act 2013, read with section 135 of Lhe Act . 
The Holding Company along with rts Subsidiaries, shall hereinafter. be coneetively referred to as 'the Group',· 

·samunnati Foundation was consolidated to the gr0t1p financial statements In the previous year. However the same has nol been 
consolidated In the current year as the Intent of the investment is not considered to be commercial In nau.tre so as to get any retum on the 
Investments. 

2 Basis of preparatron of financial s tatements 

2.1 a) S1a1amcnt of compliance and basis for preparation and presentation of the e:onsolldated financial statements 

These consoUdated finanttal statements of the Group have been prepared In accordance with lhe tndtan Accoun~ng Standards as per the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 as amended and notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("!he Act"), 
In conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India and other relevanL provisions of the Act. Any application gukfence/ 
clanficaUonst direct1ons 1ssued by RBI or other regulators are implemented as and when they are Issued/ apphc.able. 

These consohdaIed financlal statements were approved by 1he Holding Company Board of Ouectors and authorised for issue on 26 May 
2022 

b) Principles of consolidation 

Subsid1arres are all entities over which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to. or has rights to, 
vanable returns from its Involvement with the entity and can affect those returns through its power to direct the relevant activrties of lhe. 
entity. Subsidiaries are fulty consoUdated from the date on which convol 1s transferred to the Group. They are deconsolldated from the date 
that control ceases, 

The Group combuies the financial statements of the Company and ,ts substdiaues line by line add1ng together like rtems of assets. 
liabdibes, equity, Income and expenses. lntercompany transactions, balances and unreahsed gains on transactions within Group 
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also elimlnated unless the transaction provides evidence of an inpairmenl of the 

transferred asseL 

Samunnati Foundation {'the Foundation') Is not for profit company hence the same has not been consotldated, 

2.2 Functlonal and presentation currency 
These consolidated financial statements are presented 1n Indian Rupees ('INR' or 'Rs." or .. , .. ) which as also the Group functional currency. 
Amounts less that the rounding off norms adopted by the Company are dlsclose<I as 0. All amounts are rounded~tf to the nearest mi11tons. 
unless otherw~se indicated 

2,3 Historical cost convention 
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on 1he historical cost basis except for certain financial mstruments which are 
measured at fair values. 

2.4 Measurement of fair value changes 
A number of the Group's accountmg pol1Ctes and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-financial 
assets and habllittes. The Group has establiShed pohoes and procedures with respect to the mea.surement of fair values. Fau values are 
categoosed tnto differe.nt tevels In a fair value Merarcf'ly based on the ,nputs used m the vaIua1ton techniques as follows· 
• Level 1: Quoted prices (unadJusted) in aebve markets for ldenucal assets and liab11ttIes. 
• Level 2 inputS other than quoted prices Included In Level 1 thal are observable for the asset or liability, e1the1,direcdy or mdirec:tly. 
• Level 3 inputs for the asset or liabiliLy that are not based on observable market data (unobsetvable inputs). 
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SamunnaU Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited 
Summary of signlrieant accounting policle.s and other explanatory Information for the year ended 31 March 2022 
(All amounts ere In milfions of fndian Rupees (f}, unless otherwise stated) 

2 .S Critical accountJng estimates and judgements 
tn preparing these consolidated financial statements, management of the Group has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that 
affect the application of the Group's accoun11ng pohc1es and the reported amounts of assets. ltabil1ties. Income. expenses and the 
d1sdosures of contingent assets and l1ab1l1bes. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Esbmates and underlying assumptions are 
reviewed on an ongoing bas1S. Revisions to estimates are recogmze<t prospeetlvely. 

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant 
nsk of causing a matenal adJustmenl l0 the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities wilhin lhe next financial year, are described below. 
The Group based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were issued. Existing 
circumstances and assumptions about fu1ure developments. howeve,. may change due to market changes or circum$tances arising that 
are beyond the control of the Group. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur. 
Followmg are areas that Involved a higher degree of estimation and judgement or comptexity 1n determtn,ng the carrying amount of SOrTM!: 
assets and llabltieies. 

Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) 

Management rev.ews its estimate of the useful lives of deprec1ablelam01U2able assets at each reporung date, based on the expected utihty 
of the assets. Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technical end eeonotnic obsolescence that may change the utility of assets. 

Income tax 
Stgmficant estlmates ate involved in determ1mng the provision to, ,ncome taxes, Including amount expected to be paid / recovered ro, 
uncertam tax positions. 

Deferred tax assets 
Sl,gnrficant management judgement is exe.rcised by reviewing the deferred tax assets at each reportt.ng date to determine the amount of 
deferred tax- asselS that ean be retained/ recognized. based upon the likely liming and the level of future taxable profits together with future 
ta)[ plannlng strategies. 

Fair value 

Management uses valuatlon techniques In measunng the talr vah.re of financ:sal instruments where act,ve market quotes are not avallebkt. 
In applying the valuation techniques, management makes maximum use of market inputs and uses estimates and assumptions that are. as 
ta, as possible, consisrent with observable data that market participants wouki use In pricing the instrument Where appltcable data ls not 
observable, management uses its best estimate abou1 the assumptions that market participants would make. These estimates may vary 
from the actual prices that wouki be achieved In an arm's length transaction at the reporting date. 

Effective Interest Rate (EIR} Mothod 
The Holding Company recogn1Zes interest income I e>tpense 1.1s1ng a rate of return thal represents the best esumate or a conscant rate of 
return over the expected life of the loans given f 1aken. This estJmauon, by nature, requires an etemen1 of judgement regarding the 
ex.pacted behaviour and life.cycle of the mstruments, as well as e>cpec1ed changes to other fee mcome/e,cpense thal are .ntegral parts of 
the lnstrument. 

Impairment of financlal assets for Loans 
In accordance w,u, Ind AS 109, the Company uses ·expected Cred~ loss' model (ECL), lor evaluating Impairment of financial assets other 
than those measured at Fair value through ptofil and loss. 

Overview ol the Expec ted Credit Loss (ECL} model 
Expected Credit Loss, at each rePort-lng date, ls m easured through a toss allowance ror a financial asset: 
At an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses if the credn risk on that financial instrument has increased sigmfantly since 1nltlal 
re-cognition. At an amount equal to 12•month expected credrt tosses, If the c,edit nsk on a financial instrument has not increased 
s,gnificantly since k\itial recognition. 

The Group performs an assessment, at the end or each reporting period, of whether a financial assets credn risk has increased 
signifteantly since inihal recognition. When making lhe assessment. the change m the risk of a default oecumng over the expected life of 
the financial Instrument 1s used instead of the chenge in the amount of e~ec1ed credit losses 

For non•lrnpaired financial assets (Stage 1 and Stag~ 2): 
• Stage 1 is comprised ot all non•impa1red financial assets whdl have not experienced a significant mcrease in credit nsk (SICR) s1.nce 
Initial recognition. A 12-month ECL provision is made tor stage 1 tinanclal assets. In assessing whether credit risk has Increased 
significantly. the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset as at the reporting date wrth the risk of a default 
occumng on the financial asset as at the date of Initial recogmt,on. 

• S'lage 2 ts comprised of an non-impaired fir11ncial assets which have experienced a s.lgnifieant Increase tn credit risk since lmtial 
recognition. The Group recognizes lrfetlme ECL for stage 2 financial assets In subsequent reporttng periods, rf the Ct'edit flSk of rhe 
financial Instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase 1n credit nsk S1nce initial recognition, then enuues shall 
revert to recognizmg 12 months ECL provision. 
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For impaired financial assets (Stage 3): 
Flnanc:ial assets are ciassified as stage 3 when there is objective evidence of Impairment as a result or one or more loss events that have 
occurred after initial recognition with a negative impact on the est1ma1ed future cash nows of a loan or a portfotlo of loans and receivobles 
from trading acUv1ties. The Group recognizes lifetime ECL tor •mpa1red financial assets. 
The loan assets In the t>ooks of the Holding Company are segmented Into homogenous product eategories to determine the h1stoneal 
PO/lGO as per similar risk profiles, this segmentaUon Is subject to regular review. The loan portfolio are segmented lnto two broad 
categories i.e., loans to Communrty.sased Organizations 01' Farmer Producer Organizations 'CBO/FPO and Others• and Agri enterprises. 
The Group has rebumtd the presumption prescribed under Ind AS 109 thal the Cfedit nsk increases slgnifica.nUy since midal recognition 
when contractual payments are more than 30 days (Stage 2) and that defaull occurs when a financial asset is 90 days past due (Stage 3). 
The nsk profiling rs determined for each business vertical 1nd1cated below based on historical and ma(ket trends and direcdons from RBI 
includmg guidance for tdent1fieation of NPA 1n agrlcuttu,al adva.nces. 

Loans slaglng 

Name ol lhe I of loan HHt.5 St,go Loans Days past dut (OPO) 

CBOIFPO and others 
S~Ol Upt060d1y1, 

Sage2 61days.102.0 dart 
Stage 3 More than 240 da'f' 

Agrl e nterprises s_, Upto60day5 s_, 61 days tc 360 da)"'S 

s-• More than 360 d,iys 

Estimation of Expected Credit Loss: 
The mechanics or the ECL calculotions ere outline-d be!ow and the key elements are, as follows: 
Probability of Oefauh (PO) • The Probability of Oefauh is an eslimate of the hl<el,hood ol default over a given time horizon. The Group uses 
historical informatlon to determine PD. Constdenng the different categories of customers, the Holding Company has bifurcated its loan 
ponfolio Into two pools (CBOIFPO and other,;), For each pool of loan assets. the PO 1s calculated using Incremental 30 OPO approach 
considering fresh sbppage using historical lnformabon For receivables from trading actiV1ttes. Agro·s management had eabllated the PD 
using lnetemental 30 OPO approach constdenng fresh s1¢>page using h1stoncal information. 

Exposure at Default (EAD). The Exposure at Default rs an estimate of the exposure at a future default date, considering expected changes 
in the exposure after the reporting date. including repayments or principal and Interest. whether scheduled by contract or otherwise. 
expected drawdowns on committed fac1htles, and accrued interest from missed payments. Management had assumed that the outstanding 
balance as at each reponing date (tncludmg interest and other components) as the exposure at defaurt for purpose of computing the ECL. 

Loss Grven Oefautt (LGO) - The Loss Given Default 1s an estimate of the k>ss anslng In the ease where a default occurs at a grven tlme. It 
ls based on the d1ffe,ence between the contractual cash nows due and those that the lender would expect to receive, mcludmg from the 
realtzation of any collateral. 

To mitigate its credit risks on financial assets, lhe Holding Company seeks to use collateral, where possible. The collateral comes in 
vanolJs fOffl'IS , su-ch as land, building. books debts, ,eeuntle$, letters of credit/guarantees, etc. However, the fal1 value of collateral affects 
the calculation of ECL The fair value of the same ss based on management judgements. Further the management of the s.ubsidiary Agro 
had considered the insured portion of receivable consists rtll exposure at default 

Forward looking information • Whfle esllmating the expected credit losses. the Group reviews macro-economic developments occurring m 
the economy and market it operates in On a periodic basls, the Group analyses it there ,s any ,e1auonshlp between key economic trends 
like GOP, benchmark rates set by the Reserve Bank of India, inOat.ion etc. with the esumate of PD, LGD determined by the Group based on 
its 1.nternal data. While the internal estimates of PO, LGO rates by the Group may not be always refl&etlve of such relalionsh1ps, temporary 
overlays. If any, are embedded m the methodology to reRect such macroeconomic lTends reasonabty. 

Impairment of financial instruments for trade rec.olvablcs from trading and allied activiti es 

The Group applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impaimlent loss on financial assets measured at amortised cost. trade 
recervables and other contractual rights to receive ca!ih or other financial asset. 

The Group measures the loss allowance for a financial Instrument at an amount equal to the l1fet1me expected credit losses 1f the etedlt risk 
on that financial instrument has lncreased significantly smee initial recognition, If the credit nsk on a financtal instrument has not Increased 
s1gnifiean1ty since Initial recognition. the Group measures the loss allowance for lhat financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month 
expected credit sos.ses. 

For trade receivables or any contrac.-uat nght to receive cash or another financial asset that results from transacetons that are within the 
scope ot Ind AS 115. the Group follows simptifled approach' and measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected 
credit losses. This lll't"lpalfment allowance 1s computed based on h1stoneal credit loss experience and management assessment.,. ___ _ 
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Impai rment of Non•financlal assets (PPE, 
The 1mpalnnent asses.sment of non-financial assets is determined based on estimation of recovetable amount of such assets. 
The assumptions used In computlng the reco"'erable amount are based on management 1udgement considering the liming of future 
cash flows. discount cates and the risks specific to the asset. 

Defined benefit p lans and other long tenn employee benefits 
The cost of the defined benefit plan and other long term employee benefits, and the present "'alue of such obhgation are determined by the 
independent actuarial valuer. An actuarial vaJuatron Involves making various assumptions that may differ from aecuat de'lelopments In 
future. Management believes that the assumptions used by the actuary in determination of the discount rate. future salary increases, 
mortality rates and iJttntion rates are reasonable. Oue to the complexrties involved in the valuation and 1ts long term nature, this 
obhgation ~s highly sens,uve to changes 1n these assumphons. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting dale 

Provisions and other contingent liabltltlos 
The rebable measure of the estimates and judgements penaining to l1hgations and lhe regulatory proceedings in the ordinary course of the 

Group's business are disclosed as contingent liabU1ties. 

Estimates and judgements a.re continually evaluated and are based on h1stontal expenence and other factors, 1ncfuding e.xpectatlons ot 
f"Uture events that may have a fi.nancial Impact on the Group and that are believed 10 be reasonabk, under the circumstances. 

2 .6 Revenue recognition 

a) Recognition of Interest Income on loans 
Interest income is recogniz.ed in Statement of profit and loss using the eHeet,ve interest melhod for all financaal Instruments measured al 
amortr.$ed cos1. debt instruments measured at FVTOCI and debt instruments designated at FVTPL The --effective intere.st rate• Is the rate 
that exactly discounts estimated f1.1 ture cash paymeots or receipts through the expected ltfe of the financial lnstrumenL 

The calculatlon of the effective mteresl rate includes transaction costs and fees that are an integral part of the contract. T ransaction costs 
include mcremental eosts that are directly attnbutabte to the acquisition of financial asset 

If e~ectations regarding the cash flows on lt'le fu,anaal asset ere revised for reasons other than credit risk, the ad1ustment ,s recorded as 
a positive or negative adjustment to the carrying amount of the as.set In the balance sheet with an mcrease or reduction 1n mte,est income. 
The adjustment is subsequently amortised through Interest Jneome 1n the Statement of prorrt and loss. 

a) Recognition of Interest Income on loans 
The Hokfing Company calculates Interest income by applying the EIR to the gross carrymg amount of financial asse1s 01her than credit-

unpaired assets. 

When a financial asset becomes cred1t•impaired. the Holding Company calculates interest income by applymg the etfecti'le interest rate to 
the net amortised cost of the financial as.set If the financial asset cures and is no longer Cfectll tmpa1ted, the Holding Company reverts to 

calculating interest mcome on a gross basis. 

Additional interest and 1n1erest on trade advances, are recognized when they become measurable and when il I.$ not unreasonable to 

expea then ultimate c0Uect1on. 

b l Sale of good$ 
To determine whether to recoonise revenue from contracts with customers. Agro follows a 5-step proee.ss 

1 ldentifymg the contract with customer 
2 Identifying the performance obligations 
3 Determining lhe transaebOn price 
4 AUoeatJMg the transaebon price to the performance obllgations 
5 Recognis,ng revenue when/as pelformance obfjgation(s) are satisfied. 

Revenue from sale of produces or services is recognized upon transfer of control of promised products or services to customers in an 
amount 1hat reflects the consideration expected to be received in exchange for those products or services. 

Revenue is measured based on the transacilon price, which ,s the cons1deratJon, adJuSted for votume discounts, prfce concesstOns and 
incentives, if any, as specifted in the conllact with the aistomer. Revenue also excludes taxes collected trom customers. 
Revenue is measured a1 the fair value of the consideration recetved or recervable. taking into account eontractual y defined terms of 
payment and excludll\g taxes and duty. Agro has assessed its revenue arrangements based on lhe sub-stance of the transawon and 
business model against specific criteria to determine if It 1s acting as pnnc1pal or agent. 

c) Dividend and Interest income on Investments 
Dividends are recogntzed in Statement of profit and loss onty when the right to receive payment is established. it is probable that the 
economic bene.fns associated wnh 1he dMdend wlll now 10 the Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured rebabty. 

Interest income from investments is recognized when 1t Is certain that the economic benefits w1U now 10 the Group and the amount of 
income can be measured reliably. Interest ,ncome 1s accrued on a ume bas~s. by reference to the pnncipat outstanding and at the effective 

interest rate applicable. 
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2.7 Property, Plant and Equipment (PPEI 
PPE ate stated at cost of acquisition (Including mcidental expenses), Jess accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if an 
Assets held for sale or disposals are stated at the lower of their net book value and net reara.able value 

Advances paid 1owards the acquisition of PPE ovts1anding at each balance sheet date are d1sdosed separatety under other non•f1nanoal 
assets. Capital work 1n progress compnse.s the cost of PPE that are not ready for its intended use at the reporting date. 

Depreciation Ofl PPE Is provided on straight-line basis in accordance with lhe useful lives specified in Schedule II to the Companies Act. 
2013 on a pro-,ata basis. Assets costing less than Rs.5,000 are fully depreciated in the period of purchase. 

Asset Classification 
Useful Life 
'in Yearsl 

Furniture and fitti:nas 10 
Office eou1oment 5 
Comouters & accessories 3 
Vehicles 4-8 
Leasehold i"""'rovements 5 

PPE is derecognlzed on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use . Any gam or loss afiS1ng on derecogniuon 
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the net ca,ry•ng amount of the asset) ,s reeognlzed in 
other income I netted off from any loss on disposal ,n the Statement or prorrt and loss in the year the asset is derecognized. 

Intangible assets. 
Other intangible assecs are lnitialty measured at cost. Such in1angible assets are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated 
amortisation and impairment losses. if any 

The intangible assets, that are not yet ready for their intended use are carried at cost and are reflected under intangible assets under 
deve1opmenl D irect costs associated In developing the ,niang1ble asset are cap1tat1z.ed when the follow1.ng criteria are met 
- It 1s technically feasible to complete the Intangible asset so that 11 will be available for use, 
- Management intends to complete the mtangtble asset and put ft to use • 
• There is ability to use the intangible asset 
- There is an ldentifia.ble asset that wtll generate expected future economte benefits and 
• There ts an ab1trty to measure reliably the expenditure atttlbutable to the lntangible asset dunng its develepmenl 

OthetwJse, it Is recognized in profit and loss as incurred 

Intangible assets comprises or computer software which 1s amort12ed over the esbmated useful lrfe. The amort,zauon penod 1s lower of 
license period or 36 months which is based on management's esbma1es of useful ltfe. Amortisation ,s calculated using the straight line 
method to write down the cost of intangible assets over their estimated useful bves. 

An lfltangible asset is de-recognized on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use. Gains or losses arising 
from de-recognition of an lntangible asset, measured as the difference between the net dtsposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the 
asset are recogntled in the St-atement of Profit and loss when the as.set is de•recogmzed. 

2.8 Foreign exchange transact ions and translations 
a) Initial recognition 
T,ansacUons in foreign cuHenc1es are ,ecognlzed at the prevailing exchange rates between the reporting currency and a foretgn corrency 

on the transaction date. 

b) Conversion 

Transacuons m foreign currencies are translated Into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of 1he transactions. 
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and 
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange ra1es are generally recognized in Statement of proflt and loss. 

Foreign exchange differences regarded as an adJust~ni to borrowing costs are presented rn the statement of profrt and SOss, w'nhln 
finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented 1n the Statement of profit and loss on a net bastS. 

Non-monetary Items that are measured at fair value ln a foreign cur,ency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair 
value was determined. Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fafr value gain or 
loss. Thus, translation differences on non .. monetary assets and liabilities such as equlfy Instruments held a't fair value through profit or toss 
are recognized ,n profit or loss as pan of the fair value gain or loss and translation differences on non~onetary asuts such as equity 
mvestments elassifted as FVTOCI are iecogntZ&d [n other comprehensive income. Non-monetary rtems that are measured at historical cost 
i.n foreign currency are not retranslated at repot1ing date. 
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2.9 Financial Instruments 
a) Recognition and initial measurements 
Financiaf assets and financiaJ liabilities are recogni::ed when the Group becomes a party 10 the contractual prov1SJons of the insttumen1s. 

Fmanclal assets and financial liabilities are tniually measured at fair value. Transact>On costs that are directly atrnbutable 10 the acquisition 
or ~ssue of financial assets and financial Habifities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to or deducted 
from the fair value of the flnanciaf assets or financial liabihties, as appropriate. on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attn'butable 
to the aequtsitlon of financial assets or financial Uabilities at FVTPL are recognized Immediately In Statement of profit and loss. 

b) CtasslflcatJons and subsequent measurement of financlal assets 
On inrtial recognrtion. a finanetal asset is ciass1fied as measured at 
- Amortised cost, 
- Fair value Through Other Comprehenswe Income (FVTOCI) - debt ,nstruments; 
- Fair value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI) - equity instruments: and 
- Fair Value Through Profrt or Loss (FVTPL) 

Amortised cost 
The Group's bus,ness model ,snot assessed on an instrument-by-instrument basis, bu1 at a hlgher level of aggregated portfolios being the 
leve.l at which they are managed. The financial asset is held wnh the obJeetive to hokf finanClal asset in order to eoltect contractual cash 
nows as per the contractual terms that give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payment of principal and interest (SPPI) on 
the principal amount outstanding. Accordingly, lhe Group measures Bank balances. Loans, Trade receivables and other financlal 
mstrumenls at amortised cosl 

FVTOCI • debt instruments 
The Group measures its debt insttuments at FVTOCI when the lnstrument Is held within a business model, the objective of whtch ls 
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets: and the contractual terms of the financial assel meet the 
SPPI test. 

FVTOCI - equity Instruments 
The Group subsequently measures all equity mvestments at fair value through profit or loss. unie:ss the Group's management has eteeted 
to classify lrrevo~bly some of its equrty insll\Jments at FVTOCI, when suc:11 insll\Jments meet the defin~,on of Equny under Ind AS 32 
Financial Instruments and are not held for trading. 

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to theif initial recognition, except if and in the period lhe Group changes its business 
model for managing financial assets. 

FVTPL 
All financial assets not dassified as measure-d at amortised cost or FVTOCI are mea-sured at FVTPL 

Subsequent measurement of financial assets 

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective mterest method. The amortised cos! Is 
reduced by impalnnent losses. Interest income, foreign exchange ga1ns and losses and il'llpa1nnent are recognized in Statement of profit 
and Soss. Any gain and loss on derecognitlon 1s recognized in Statement of profrt and Joss. Debt investment at FVfOCI are subsequently 
measured at fair value. Interest Income under e·tfective interest method. foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized 
10 Statement of profit and loss. Other net gams and losses are re1:09nized tn OCL On derecogmtion, gai.ns and losses accumulated In OCI 
are reclasslfied to Statement of profit and loss. For equity Investments, the Group makes an election on an lns1rument•by•instrumen1 basis 
to de.signate equrty investments as measured at FVTOCI. These elected investments are measured at fair value with gams and losses 
ansing from changes ln fair value recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated In the reserves. The et1mulative gain or 
loss is not reclassified 10 Statement of profit and loss on cfisposal of the investments. These tnvesltnents in equity are not held for trading. 
Instead, they are he~ for suategic purpose. Dividend Income received on such equily mvestments are recognized in Statement of profit 

and loss. 

Equity investments that are not designated as measured at FVTOCI are desrgnated as measured al FVTPL and subsequenl changes in 
fair value are recognaed m Statement of profit and loss. 

Fmanelal assets at FVTPL are subsequendy measured at fair vaJue. Net gams and losses, ,ncludmg any interest or dividend Income, are re( 

c) Financial llabilllles and equity instruments 

Classification of debt and equity 
Debt and equity instruments Issued by rhe Group are classified as Mher finanetal liabilities or as equity ,n accordance with the substance 
of the conttactual arrangement$ and the defin1tJOns of a financial hab,~ty and an equity mstrument. 

Equity Instruments 
An equity ins1rument Is any contract that evidences a residual interest 1n the assets of an entity after deducting all of its iabdrties. Equity 
lnstruments Issued by Group ar •~~~~• e proceeds received. Transaction costs of an equity transacuon are ed as a 

deductron from equity, •✓---· ◄11111 .,.,, 
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Financial liabilities 

financial liabilities are classified as measured at amorhsed cos! or FVTPt A financial liabtf1ty Is classified 8$ al FVTPL 1f rt is ela$$1fied as 
held~for trading or 1t is a derivalive or rt es designated as s.uch on mrt1al recognruon. Other financial liab1btles are subsequentJy measured at 
amortised cost using the effectwe interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and tosses are recognized in Sta1ement 
of profrt and loss. My gain or toss on derecogmhon 1s al$O recognized in Statement of profit and loss. 

d) Financial guarantee contracts 
A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to re.imburse the holder ror a '°S$ 11 incurs 
because a specified debtor falls to make payments when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. 

fmancial guarantee conuacts Issued by a Group are initialty measured at their fai, va1ues and, if not designated as at FVrPL. are 
sub:sequenUy measured at the higher of. 

- the amount of loss allowance determined in accordance with impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 .. Financial Instruments·: and 
• the amount initially recognized less. when appropriate. the cumulative amount of income recognized In accordance with the principle$ of 
Ind AS l t5 .. Revenue from contracts with customers· . 

e) Oerecognitlon 
Flnanclal assets 
The Group derecognlZe$ a financial a$Set when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the finanoal asset exp.ire. or ,t tran$fers 1he 
right$ 10 recelVe O'le contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of owner$hip or the financial 
asset are transferred or ,n which the Group neither transfers nor retains substanUally all of the nsks and rewards of ownership and does 
not retain control of the financial a$$et. 

If the Group enters into transactions whereby f1 ttansfefS assets recognized on its balanoe $he.et, btJt retains either atl or substantiaJly all of 
the ri'Sks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not de recognized. 

Financial liabilities 
A finanClal liability 1s derecogmied when the obl,gatton in respect of the IJabtlity 1s discharged. cancelled or expires. The difference between 
the carrying value of the financial IJab,llty and the constderauon patd Is recognized m Statement of profit and loss, 

f) Offsenlng 
Flnancial assets and financial Uab1Hties are offset and the net amount presented In the balance sheet when. and only when. lhe Group 
currently has a legally enforceabte right to set off the amounts and rt intends either to setlle them on a net basis or 10 realize the asset and 
settle the fiabitity simuttane-ously. 

g) Write offs 

Financial assets are written off (either paruatly or in full) when there 1s no realrsbc prospect of recovery This 1$ generally the ease when the 
Gtoup determines that the borrower/customer does not have assets or sources of mcome that could generate surtioient C3$h Row$ 10 

repay the amounts subjec1ed to write-offs. Any subsequent recoveries against such loans are credited to the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

2. 1 O Employee benefits 

a) Short- term employee benefits 
Short•term employee benefits are expensed as the ,elated serv1ee 1s provided. A llab,hty i$ reeogn,zed for the amount expected to be paid jf 
the Group has a present legal or constructhte obJ1gat1on to pay th15 amount as a result of past serv.ce provided by the employee and the 
obhgatJon can be estimated reliably. 

b) Contribution to PF and other funds 
Group'$ contributfcn paid/payable dunng the year to provident fund and employees state msuranee f5 recognized in the Statement of profit 
and IO$$. The Gtoup has no further obbgation other than the contnbutions made. 

c) Gratuity 

The Group's babdity towards gratuity scheme Is determined by Independent actuanes. using the pr01ected unit credit methOd. The present 
value of the defined benefit obligation Is determined by discounting the estima1ed future cash outOows by reference 10 market yields at the 
end of the reporung penod on government bonds that have terms approXJmaling to the terms of the related obhgation. PHt sarv,ces are 
recognized a1 the earlter of the plan amendment I cun.ailment and reoogmnon of related re.svu~urin_g cost$/ terrrunatlon benefits. 

The ne1 interest cost 1s calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of 
plan assets. This cost is included In employee benefit expense in the Statement of profit and loss. 

Remeasurement gains and losses 
Remeasurement of defined benefit p lans comprising of actuanal gains / losses, return on plan assets excluding 1n1erest income are 
recognized imme<fistety In u,e balance sheet with corresponding debit or cr~,t to Other Comprehensive Income {OCIJ~ Remeasuremanls 
are not reclassified to Statement of profit and loss In the subsequent period . 
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d) Leave encashmentl compensated absences 
The Group provkfes for the enc&shment / availment of leave with pay subject to certain rules. The emph>yees are entlUed 10 accumulate 
leave subject to certain limits for fu1ure encashment / ava1lment. The llability 1s provided based on the number of days of unutilized leave at 
each balance sheet dale on the basis of an mdependent acu.1arial vatuauon. 

e) Employee stock options 
The fatr value of options granted under Employee Stock Option Plan Js recognized as an employee benefits expense with a corresponding 
Increase in equity The 1otal amount to be expensed is detemiined by reference to the fair value of the options. The total expense is 
recognized over the vesting period, which is the period over which all of the speafied vesting cond1bons are to be satisfl&d. At the end of 
each penod, the entity revi.ses tts estimates of the number of optt0ns that are expected to vest based on the non-markel vesting and 
seMce conditions. It reeogni%es the impact of the reviseon to onglnal estimates. if any, in protn or los.s. wnh a corcespondlng adjustment to 
equity. Upon exercise or share options. the proceeds received are allocated 10 share capital up 10 the par value of lhe shares fssued with 

any excess being recorded as share premium. 

2.11 Finance cost 
Fmance costs include mterest expense computed by applying the effective interest rate on respectwe financial instruments measured at 
Amortised cosL Financial mstruments include term loans. fixed deposits mobilized. debt instruments, convnercial papers and subordinated 
debts. Finanee costs are charged to the Statement of proftt and loss. 

2.12 Taxation • current tax and deferred tax 
Income tax expense comprises of cunent tax and deferred tax. It is recogmzed In Statement of prorn and loss except to the extent that it 
relates to an rtem recognized directly in equity or in olher comprehensive Income. 

a) Current tax 
Current tax comprises amount of tax payab~ 1n respect of the taxabfe Income or loss for the year deterrmned in accordance with Income 
Tax Act 1961 and any adjustment to the tax p-ayab~ or receivable in respect of previous years The Group's current tax is calculated using 
tax rates that have been enacted or substantJVefy enacted by the end of the reporting period. 
Minimum alternate tax ('MA T'J credit entitlement is recognized as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that 
normal income tax w~I be paid during the specified period In the ye.ar in which MAT credit becomes eligibte 10 be recognized as an asset, 
the said asset is aeated by way of a credit to the Statement of Profit and Loss and shown as MAT credit entlUement. This is reviewed at 
each balance sheet date and the carrying amount of MAT credrt enutlement ls written down to the extent tt 1s not reasonably cettatn that 
normal income tax will be pakf dunng the specdied period. 

bt Deferred tax 
Deferred tax assets and habHlties are recognized fOf lhe future tax consequences of temporary differences between the canylng values of 
assets and l!abllrties and their respective cax bases Deferred tax liabihties and assets a.re measured at the tax rates thal are expected to 
apply ln the period m whieh the l1abllrty ls settled or the asset reabzed, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or 
substantively enacled by the end of the reponmg penod. The measurement of deferred tax bab16t1es and assets reftec1s the ta)( 
consequence tha1 would follow from lhe manner 1n which the Group eltpee1s. at the end of the reportmg peliod. to recover or senle the 
carry,:ng amount of 1ts assets and liabilities. 

Oefefted ta>t assets are recogmzed to the extenl that it is probable that tv1ure taxable Income will be available against which the deductible 
temporary drfference could be utilized. Such deferred tax assets and liablhties are not recognized 1f the temporary ddference arises from 
the initial recognition or assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. The carrying 
amount of deferred tax assets 1s reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that 
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. 

2.13 Impairment of assets other than financial assets 
The Group reviews the canying amounts of its tangible and 1ntang1ble assets at the end ot each reporting period, to determlne whether 
there 1s any Indication that those assets have impaired. If any such 1ndlcalton exists. the recoverabte amount of the asset Is estimated in 
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (,t any). Recoverable amount Is determined foe an Individual asset, unless the asset 
does not generate cash nows that are largely Independent of those rrom other assets or group of assets. 

Recover"able amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value muse. In assessing value muse. the estimated future cash 
flows are discounted to them present value using a pre4ax discount rate thal ,effects current market assessments of the time value of 
money and the risks speafic to the asset tor wh1eh the esuma1es of future cash nows have not been adjusted If the recoverable amount of 
an asset (or ca:&h.generatlng umt) IS estimated to be less than its carrying amoun1, the carry,og amount of the asset (or caShiiJenerating 

umt) is reduced to Its recoverable amount 

When an ltnpalrment loss subsequently reverses, 1he carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is inc,eased to the revised 
estimate of Its recoverabie amount sueh lhat the Increased carrying amount does not exceed 1he carrying amount that would have been 
determined if no impairment loss had been recognized for the asse1 (or cash-generattng unit) '" prior years. The reversal of an 1mpatrment 
toss ,s recognr.zed 1n Statement of profit and loss 
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2,14 Provisions, contingent llabllltles and contingent assets 
Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present legal or constructrve obbgalion as a result of a past event. it is probable that an 
outflow of economte resouroes will be required from the Group and amounts can be estimated reliably. nming or amount of the outnow 
may still be uncertain. Provisions are measured at the esllrnated expendrture required to settle the present obligatk>n, base-d on the most 
rel.able- evidence ava,labfe at the reporung date. including the nsks and unun.atntie:$ as.sociated with the p,esent obhgauon P1ov1sions are 
discounted to their present values, where the time value of money is material. 

Contingent liability is disclosed ror. 
• Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly wrthln the control of the Group: or 
• Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outnow of resources wtl be required to settle the obhgation or 
a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made. 

In those cases, where the outflow of econcmuc resources as a resufl of present obhgauons Is consldered lmprobabkt or remote. no l&Sbll•ty 
Is recognized 01 disdosure is made. 

Any ,eimburs~ment that the Group can be v1rtuatly certain to coUeet from a third party with respect to the obligation {such as from Insurance) 

Contingent assets are not recognized. Howeve,, when mtlow of eeonomw: benefi1.s is probable. the related asset is disclosed. 

2. 15 L.eases 
The Group's lease asset class.es primarily consist of leases for office premlSes. The Group a$Sesses whether a contract contains a leas-e. 
at inception of a contract. A contract 1s, or contains.. a lease if t.he contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset tor a 
penod of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the righl to control the use of an kfentJfH?d asset. the 
G,oup ass.esses whether-
(i) the con1ract mvotves the use of an ldentifted asset 
(11) the Group has substantially all of the economJc benefits from use of the asset through the period of lhe lease and 
(10) the Group has the right to direct the use or the asset. 

Al the date of commencement of the lease, the Group reeogn1z,es a ught-or-use asset \ ROU") and a corresponding 6ease liability for all 
lease arrangements In which It Is a lessee. except for leases with a term of twefve months or less (shorMerm teases) and low value leases. 
For these short-term and low value leases, the Group recogntzes the ~ese paymen1s as an operating ex;pe.nse on a $1taight-line baslS over 
the term of the lease. 

Certam lease arrangements Includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU assets and ~ase 
liabdrtles includes these options when rt ls reasonably certain that they will be exercised. 
The right-or-use assets are inltlalty recognized at cost. which comprises the initial amount or the &ease liability adjusted for any tease 
payments made at or prior to the oommencement date of the lease plus any mitlat d,red easts less any lease mcentrves. They are 
subsequentfy me-sured at eost less acc-umulated depreciation and impairment losses. 
Right-of-use. assets are depreciated from the commencemenl date on a suatght-tine basis eve, the shoner of the 5ease term and useful life 
of tho unde~ying asset. 

The $ease ftabllity ,s lnihaUy measured at amoctaed cost at lhe present value of !he fut\Jre lease payments. The lease payments are 
discounted using the interest rate impliclt In the lease o,, if not readlty determinable, using the incremental borrowing ,ates 1n the country of 
domicile of the51! k!ases. Lease liabil1bes are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related nght of use a$$et d the Group 
Changes its assessment if whether it will exercsse an extension 01 a terminauo.n option. 

2.16 Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents In the balance sheet comprise cash on hand. cheques and drafts on hand, balance wrth banks ,n current 
accounts and short-term deposits with an original matunty of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant nsk of change in 
value. 

2.1 7 Earnings par share 

Basic earnings per share 1s calculated by d,v1dmg the net profit or loss for the perfod attnbutab1e to equity shareholders by the weighted 
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period, Earnings considered In ascertaining the Group's earnings per share i1 the 
nel profit for the period after deducting preference dwidends and any attributable I.ax thereto for the pedod. The weighted average number 
of equity shares outstanding during the period and for all periods pres.en1ed Is adjusted for events. such as bonus shares. sub-division of 
shares etc. that have changed the number of equlty shares outstanding, wtthout a corresponding change In resources For the purpose of 
calculcitlng diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss tor the penod artnbutable to equity shareholders is dMcted by the wetghled 
average number of equity shares outstanding dunng the period, considered for denvlng basic earnings per share and wejghted average 
number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of an d1fut1ve potential equity shares. 

2.18 lnventorits 
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and the net realizable value. Costs 1ncl1.1des cost of purchase and other costs fncurred m 
bnngmg the inventories to the present locauon and condrt,on. net of discounts and rebates and Is determined on weighted average basis. 
Cost is determmed on FIFO basis Net realrzable value represents the estimated selling price of inventories in the ordinary course of 
busmess. less lhe esomated cos1s necessary to make the sale. 
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2.19 Operating segments 
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent wi'lh the internal reporting prov1de-d to the Chief Operating Decision Maker 
(CODM). The Chief Executive Officer ('CEO') of !he Group has been identified as the CODM as defined by Ind-AS 108 Operoting 
Segments, who assesses the financial performance and position of the Group and makes slrateg1c decisions. 

Operating segments tdentifled by the Group comprises as under 
1. Financing• Prov,chng loans to borrowers and securibsatlon of such loans 
2. Trading and allied aeuv,tles • Trading of agricu1tu,al ptoducts and allled .ictiv1ties 

The accounting poheies consistently used In the preparation of the financial statements are also applied to items of revenue and 
expendrture ln indivtdual segments. Revenue and expenses have been identified to a segment 011 the basis of ,elationshrp co operating 
aCtJvibes of the segment. Revenue and etJ)enses which relate to enterprise-s as a whole and are- not allocable to a segment on a 
,easonable basis have been disclosed as ·unallocated', lf any. Segment assets and segment lfabihttes represent assets and lmbfhties In 
respective segments.. Tax related assets and other assets and l1abihues that cannot be allocated to a segment on reasonable basis have 

been disclosed as 'Unallocated', d any. 

2.20 Recent accounting pronouncements 

a. Changes In Accounting Standards that were applicable and adopted from tho current financlal year: 

The following Accounting Standards hav·e been modified on miscellaneous Issues with effect rrom June 18. 2021. Such changes include 

clanfication/guidance on· 

1) Ind AS 107 Flnaneaal lnslf'Uments· Oisdosures - Add1tt0nal disclosures ,elating to interest rate benchmark reform (180R ,eform including 
nature and extent of risks to which the entity ;s e•posed due to ftnanc,al instruments subject to interest rate benchmark reform and how the 
Group manages those nsks; the Group's ptogress m completing the transition to alternative benchmark rates and how the Group is 

managmg the 1ransitlon. 

ii) Ind AS 109 Financial lns1ruments - Guidance provided on accounting for modifications of contracts resulting from changes 1n the baSJS 
for determlnmg the conttaclual casti nows as a result of the IBOR ,eform. vanous exceptions and ,elaxations have been provided in 

,etation to the hedge accounting 

iii) Ind AS 116 Leases - Extension of optional practlcal expedient In case of rent concessions as a direct consequence of COVI0•19 
pandemic till June 30, 2022 and guidance on accounting for modification of tease contracts resulting from the IBOR reform. 

rv) Ind AS t 02 Share based payments - Ahgnment of l1abil1t1es definition with the Concep1uat Framework for Flnanoal Reporting under 
Indian Aocounung Standards (Conceptual Framework) Issued by the Institute of Chanered Accountants of India. 

v) Ind AS 103 Business Combination -Alignment of assets and habllities definition with the Framework for Pteparat,on and Presentation of 

Financial Statements with Indian Accounting Standards 

v,1 Amendmenl of definn1on of term ·recoverable amount' In Ind AS 105, Ind AS 16 and Ind AS 36 from 'fair value less cost to sell' to ' fair 

value less cost of disposal'. 

None of these amendments has any material Impact on the financial statements for the cur,ent year. 

b) Changes in Schedule Ill Dfvlsion Ill of Companies Act, 2013 notified ~nd adopted by the Group: 

On March 24. 2021 , the M,mstry of Corporale Affa,rs r MCA") through a noloficatlon, amended Schedule Ill or !he Companies Act, 2013 to 
be effective from April 01 . 2021. Key amendments re.latlng to Orvlslon Ill which relate to companies Whose financial statements are 
required to comply with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 are· 

/n Balance Sheet: 

1) Certain addibonal disclosures in the statement of changes 1n equity 
11) Spec,fied format for disclosure of sharehold1ng of promoters. 
111) SpeCified format for ageing schedule of tra<fe receivables, trade payables. capital work-,n-ptogress and rntangibte asset unde1 

development. 
1v) If the Group has not used funds for the speafie purpose for which it was borrowed from bank.$ and financial institutions. then disclosure 

of details of where rt has been used. 
v) Specific disclosure under regulatory such as compliance with approved schemes of arrangements. compliance with number of layers of 
companies, title deeds of immovable property not held in name of group, loans and Advances to Promoters, Olreetors, Key Managenat 
Personnel (KMP) and related parties, details of benaml property held, relatlonship with struck-off companies, financial ratios, etc. 

tn Statement of Profit and Loss: 
i) Additional disclosures 1elat1ng to -"= = espons1bihty (CSR), undt.sclosed income and crypto or virtual 
under the head '"additional fnfonna ng part of financial statements. 
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The amendments are extensive. and the Group has given effect to them as required by law in the current year financial statements to the 
extent applicable. 

c) New accounting standards/amendments notified but not yet effective 

The following Accounting Standards have been modified on miscellaneous issues with effect from Apnl 01. 2022. Such changes include 
cJarification/guldanee on: 

1) Ind AS 103 Business Combination - Identified assets acquired and liabilities assumed (including contingent assets and contingent 
liebditles) must meet the defiMions of assets and l1ab1l1ties in the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting under Ind AS (Conceptual 
Framework) issued by lhe Institute or Chartered Accountants ot India (ICAt) 

Ii) Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments - Guidance provided on ldentifyrng substantial modification of the terms of an existing financial liability 
bas~s difference in discounted present value of the cash nows between old and new terms (the ·10 percent' test), 

Ju) Ind AS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) - Clarification provided on acx:ountmg for excess of net sale proceeds of Rems 
produced over the cost of testlng as deduction from the directly attnbutable costs considered as part of cost of an item of PPE. 

Iv) Ind AS 37 Provislons, Contingent Ltabtl,lies and Contingent Assets - mustrative guidance provided on the cost of fulfilling a contract • 
incremental costs of tulfilfing the contract and aHocauon of other costs that relate directly to fuffiHmg contracts. and clarification provided on 
recognising Impairment loss that has occurred on assets used in fulfitting the contract before a separate provision for onerous conuact 
established. 

None of these amendments 1s expected to have any material impact on lhe financial statements of the Group. 

2.21 Events after reporting date 
Where events occtJrnng after 1he balance sheet date provide evidence of cond1uons that existed al the end o'f lhe reporting period, the 
impact of such events ls adJusted within the financial statements. Olherwi$e, events after the balance sheet date of mater1a1 size or nature 
are only disclosed. 

<< This ,pace has been ritentJOnally Mn blaM>> 
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As at As at 
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

3 Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash-on-hand 0.29 
Balances with banks 
(1) In current account 
(oi) in deposit account (wilh original maturity up to 3 months) 

4 Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 

Deposit account with banks -
- Balances wilh banks to lhe extent held as margin money or sewnty against the 
borrowings, guarantees. other commitments (Refer note below) 
- wolh original matunty of more than 3 months but less than 12 months 

759,42 
408.23 

1167.65 

221.45 

290,70 
512.15 

1,295.14 
56.94 

1 352.37 

523.55 

128.19 
651.74 

Detads of balances with banks to lhe extent held as margin money or security against the borrOWJngs. guarantees. other 
commitments 

Maturity period of less than 12 months 
(I) Held as collateral against borrowings and secunusabon transacoons 

Maturity period of more than 12 months 
(•) Held as collateral against borrowings and secuntisation transacuons 

Total 

5 Trade receivables 
Unsecured 
Considered good 
Less: Allowance for expected credo! loss 

Having s1gnifican1 increase ,n credil risk 
Less. Allowance for expected credrl loss 

Credil impaired 
less: Allowance for expected cred~ loss 

(Refer Note 47 for agemg schedule of trade receivables) 

6 loans 
(A) Tenn Loans atamortised cost 

Todients 
Total• Gross 
Less : lmpairmeni loss allowance 
Total- Net 

(8) Secured/ Unsecured break up 

(1) Secured against tangible assets: 
Gross 
less· Impairment loss allowances 
Not 

(io) Secured against receivables: 
Gross 
less: Impairment loss allowances 
Net 

160.21 
160.21 

61.24 
61 .24 

221 .45 

3.288.03 
(31.42) 

3 256.61 

252.97 
(42.91) 
210.06 

328.52 
(317.79) 

10.73 

3,477.40 

11,414.21 
11,414.21 

(352.53) 
11.061 .68 

1,081.22 

1 081 .22 

467.68 
467.68 

55.87 
55.87 

523.55 

2,567.44 
(15.79) 

2,551.65 

76.95 
(44.00) 
32.95 

233.89 
(98.83) 
135.06 

2,719.66 

9.374,20 
9,374.20 
(153.44) 

9,220.76 

374.53 

374.53 
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(iit) Unsecured 
Gross 
Less: lmpalnnent loss allowances 
Net 

Total (BJ = (I) + (ii) + (iii) 

(C) Loans In/ outside India 
(I) Loans In India 

(a) Public sector 
(b) Others 

Less . Impairment loss allowance 
Total (I) 

(ii ) Loans outside India 

Total (CJ= (I) + (II) 

Note: There 1s no loan asset measured at FVTOCI or FVTPL 

Summary of loans by stage distribution 

As at 31 March 2022 
Stage 1 - Considered good 
Stage 2 - Significant increase In credit risk 
Stage 3 - Credit impaired 

As at 31 March 2021 
Stage 1 - Cons,dered good 
Stage 2 - Significant increase in eredit nsk 
Stage 3 - Credit impaired 

7 Investments 
(A) At amortised cost 

(1) In Pass Through Certificates ("PTC") 
(ii) In non eonvertJble debentures ("NCD"J 
(ni) Samunnati Foundauon 

850.000 (preVious year 10,000) equity shares of t10 each 
(1v) Kama1an Farm Tech Private Limited (unquoted) 

(31 March 2021 : 300,000) Compulsonly convertible debentures ("CCDs") ol Rs. 100 each 

(B) At fair value through profit or loss 
(1) In Mutual Funds 

Tata liquid Fund Regular Plan - Growth 
SBI Mutual Fund - Savings Fund 

Note: No impainnent loss has been provided on the above Investments. 

Out of above 
In India 
Outside India 

As at As at 
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

10,332.99 
(352.53) 

9 980.46 

11 061 .68 

11 ,414.21 
11,414.21 

(352.53) 
111061 .68 

11 ,061 .68 

Gross Car,ying 
Amount 

(A) 

10,312.28 
767.04 
334.89 

11 414.21 

8,101.17 
1,109.75 

163.28 
9 374.20 

183.87 

8.50 

192.37 

192.37 

192.37 

3.024.39 
(31 .76) 

2 992.63 

9 220.76 

9,374.20 
9,374.20 
(153.44) 

91220.76 

9,220.76 

Impairment 
Loss Allowance 

(Bl 

29.48 
43.03 

280.02 
352.53 

27.46 
26.54 
99.44 

153.44 

222.25 
53.69 

30.00 

50.01 
100.00 
455.95 

455.95 

455.9 
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As at As at 
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

8 Other financial assets 
Unsecured, considered good 
SectJrity depostts 
Employee advances 
Deposits with financial institutions 
Interest aocrued but not due on deposits with financial ins11tutions 
lnlerest strip asset 
Payments receivables on secu.rrtfsation 
Other receivables 

9 Inventories 
Al iower or cost or net realisabfe value 
Stock 1n trade 
Less PrOV1slon for invento,y 

10 Current tax assets (net) 
Advance Income tax (nel of provisions fO< tax) 

11 Deferred tax assets (net) 

Tax effect of Items con.stJtutlng deferred tax a.ssets I 
(liabilities) : 

Fixed assets 
Provisions ror employee benefits 
Impairment IO$S alloWance 
Carried fOfWard losses 
Employee stock Op(ion expenses 
Others 
Total 

Tax effect of Items consti tu1lng deferred tax assel$ / 
(liabilities) : 

Fixed assets 
Provisions for emptoyee benefits 
lmpalnnent IO$S allowance 
Carried forward losses 
Employee stock option expenses 
Others 
Total 

Balance as at 
April 01, 2021 

2.17 
8.02 

74.68 
18.06 
36.77 

5.91 
145.61 

Balance a.s at 
April 01 . 2020 

4.07 
7.46 

67.67 

36.77 
11 .18 

127.15 

{Charge) I credit 
to statement of 
profit and loss 

(8.82) 
5.28 

102.17 
24.97 

139.09 
(1 ,98) 

260.71 

{Charge) I credit 
to statemont of 

roflt and loss 
(1 .90) 
2.20 
7.01 

18.06 

!5,27) 
20.10 

<<This space ,s lnr6nrionally left blsnk>> 

18.06 14,93 
5.22 4.64 

111 .50 128.00 
13.17 1.94 

13.40 
414 4.40 

152 09 167,31 

869.31 24.20 
(3!!.15) {1.52) 
~ Sl~ i2 §D 
189.33 62.51 
189,3·3 §2 51 

(Charge) / Others 
Balance as at 

March 31 , 
credit to OCI Adjustments 

2022 
(6.65) 

(0.34) 12.96 
(0.14) 176.71 
(9.30) 33.73 

175.86 
3.93 

(0.34) (9.44) 396.54 

(Charge) I Others 
Balance as at 

March 31. 
credit to OCI Adjustments 

2021 
2.17 

(1.64) 8.02 
74.68 
18.06 
36.77 

5.91 
(1.64) 145.61 
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12 Property, plant and equ1Pffienl, ttgtu ot uu u.etl, lnunglbla ns.ts and Intangible as.nts under de,,.elopmenl 

Pro~n.y, plant and eq-ulpmtnt 

Particula,_ Frff hOld Furn.,tute aoo <»rice 
h11nd fitting.s .,quJpment 

Gross btod: 
Balilnc• as al 01 April 2020 2,31 10,24 11. 18 
..... ,on, . 0,13 0,36 
Ql__,__,,l:sf ~ . , 1.22 m .37 
Balance u at 31 Mti.rc:h 2021 2,31 9.1 5 11.17 
Add,bons 27,76 2.58 3.29 
N.e ...... sabf dedudlon~ . l0.63l t0.451 
Balance u al 31 March 2022 30.07 11.10 , ... 00 

Accumulattd de~l•Uon •nd 1m0f'liution 
Balance u 1t 01 April 2020 . 0.93 1 ... 
Cha:fVokMlheyur . 0,11 1 65 
N•-••· . 10.351 10.131 
8ai.nc.e as at 31 March 20.21 , ... 5 UI 
Charge tor the VC,¥ us 2., 0 o, .. -... .. ,s 10, tSl 10.2n 
Balance as tt31 M,a.rch 202.2 . 2.76 5,1 1 

Net blocll: 
Asal 311.-bich 202.1 2.31 71 8.19 
As ,at 31 Ma~h 2022 30,07 1.35 1.90 

tnt.nglbloe Assets under 0e ..... 1opme-n1 ageing Seheduilt u on M1rch 31, 2022 

lnt1.nglble Assets ur\der Development 

Pto 1.$ il'I Pt ess .... ... 
AtnoMnt In lntan Jbk AsHIS IOI'. e 

Leu than 1 

" 
1·2Y .. " 

12.,$3 

2--3 )'C'l f$ 

2.39 

C()ffiputers & 
KGtt:S.SOries 

17-92 
7.24 

25.16 
21.03 
ro. 14, 
46.05 

S,62 , .. 
13.58 
10.9 1 
10121 
2,.31 

1158 
lt .U 

Of 

more 111.inJ .,. 

Vetlicln 

20,71 
2.30 . 

23.01 
18.69 
14,49\ 
37.21 

2.57 
5.32 

7,lt 
7.05 

,.,, 28\ 

13.26 

15 .12 
23.95 

TOUII 

71.50 

Tota.I 5'.58 11.s, 2.39 11..so 

Blologk.11 
aueu 

0,,48 

. .... 
0.17 
. 

0.65 

. . 
. 

0.01 . 
0.01 

o•• 
0.64 

LHHl'IOld 
lmp:ov.ment 

• 
24. 18 
0,09 

m.oo 
23.37 

11'.02' 
23.lS 

3.31 
4 .89 

10. 111 
1 .04 
$ .04 

10.02\ 
13.06 

15.33 
10.lt 

TI,ere ,, no pro,ec.1 whil;fl Q)l-1 oxON<S-ed ll'le bud9el c, bffle over tun. There were no proje,,ca, wnld\ IS tempora,W suspended M ai Mardi 31. 2022. 

Intangible Auol:I undn ()evwloprnent ageing S<heClule non M~.rctl 31, 2021 

lni.ngiblt Assets under oe ... elopmen1 

PIO 
PIO ""' ... 

Amounl In lnla ibilt Aasets for a 
L• n than 1 

"' 12.99 

do1 

Total 

1~.38 

Tot~I 12.H 2.31 15.31 
There i:s no projed wtuctl C0$1 exoeedeCI 11'1e t>uctget « lime over run. There WCf'9 no PfQjoc;l:s wlllCh 1$ lempor,rlly sus:pcooo<S as •1 Marth 31. 2021. 

Right 
otu•• 

Pi.nt& 
Total HHli Machinery 

. 87.02 33.29 . 10.12 0.10 

. 12.•si· . 
U .65 ).J.lt ... TS.68 31.53 

. 1s.13· io,.tS• 
5. 16 167.60 14 • .U 

13 89 6 31 
. 

~·~ 
8.81 

. 084 . 
33.t .. 1".ta 

026 ~7,72 18.98 
2.84 . .... 51.12 "· .. 
60.71 18,41 

4 901 101.77 J(UI 

Other lntangiblt HHts 

Good'Wlll 
on Computu 

Cons.olkt• s.nw. .. 
don 

. 2.26 . 24.17 

. j0. 11\ 

. 30.32 
n5.G7 20,28 

. . 
n5,67 ..... 

. o.so 

. •.38 . •O.CM' 
4.11.J 

20.8A 
. 

. 25 .11 

25.39 
775.67 2., .11 

Tot,;I 

2.28 
28.17 
j0. 11\ 
)0,32 

795,93 
. 

826.25 

0,59 
•.36 

•O.IM' 
4.93 

20~• 
. 

25.77 

25.39 
aoo.4-3 

- _______,, 

lnt,ngib .. 
••a.ta und-et 
dt-vtlopm.ent 

26 ,7◄ 
1',1l 

f25471 
15.H 
65,18 
19.061 
71.SO 

. . 

. 

. 

71.50 
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Samunnatl Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited 
Summary of significant accountJng policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2022 
(All amounts are in miflions of Indian Rupees (f), unless OlheNlise stated) 

As at As at 
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

13 Other non.financial assets 
Capital advance 
Prepaid expenses 
Advance paid to vendors 
Balances with government authorities 
Advances to employees 
Prepaid rent 

14 Trade payables 
i) Total outstanding dues of mk:,o and small enterpnses 
h) Total outstanding due,.$ of creditors other than micro 
and small enterprise-s 

/Also refer note 48 for ageing of the trocfe payabhls) 
Disclosures required by the Micro. Small and Medium Enterprises Development 
(MSMED) Act, 2006 are as under 

(a) The principal amount remalmng unpaid at lhe end of the year• 
(b) The delayed payments of p<incipal amount paid beyond the appointed date during the year 
(c) Interest actually paid under Section 16 of MSMEO ACI 
(d) Normal Interest due and payable during the yea,, as per the agreed terms 
{e) Tocal interest ace1ued during lhe year and remainmg unpaid 

61.83 
128.25 
53.86 

243.94 

0.67 
697.42 

698.09 
698.09 

0.67 

0.57 
26.72 
20.92 
24.99 
1.00 
0.39 

74.59 

77.84 

77.84 

77.84 

"There are no micro, small and medium enIerprises to whom the Group owes dues which are outstanding for more then 45 days at the Balance 

Sheet date, computed on unit wise basis. 
The above information has been determined to the e:inenl such parties have bee.n Identified on the basis of infonnalion avadabte with the Group, 

1 S Debt securities 
At amortised cost 
NorKonvertib'8 redeemable debentures 

Note: There are no debt securities measured at FVTPL or designated as FVTPL 

Debt securities in India 
Debt securities outside India 
Total 

(also, refer note 44) 

16 Borrowings (other than debt securities) 
At amortised cost 
Term lo-ans: 

from banks 
from other parties 

Commercial paper 
Working capital loan 
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 
Liabihtles against secunasation {also. refer note (i) below) 

Note: There are no Borrowings measured at FVTPl or designated as FVTPL 

Borrowings in India 
Borrowings ouIside India 

5,294.84 4,213.92 

5,294.84 4,213.92 

777.85 448.07 
4,516.99 3,765.85 
5,294.84 4,213.92 

2,201 .06 1,729.69 
4,472.64 3,005.09 

250.00 147.97 
1,092.88 394.93 

26.54 
65.72 

8,043.12 5,343.40 

7.678.10 5,343.40 
365.02 

s to43.1 2 5t34J.40 
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Samunnatl Financial Intermediation & Servlee-s Private Limited 
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2022 
(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees (t), unless otherwise stated) 

As at As at 
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

17 Other financial liabilities 
Credrtors tor caprtal goQds 
Unamortised Interest income 
Lease liability 
Employee related payables 
Provision for e)q)e(lses 
Other payables 

18 Provisions 
Provision for employee benefits 

Gratuity 
Compensated absences 

19 Other non-financial llabllltle• 
Advance received from customers 
Slatutory dues payable 
Others 

«nus $()/JCe Is Jritentlon,_,,.,, /el! blank>> 

23.02 
36.35 
72.57 

18.41 
150.35 

20.39 
24,08 
44.46 

178.54 
37.81 

0.34 
216.69 

0.05 

24,65 
9.60 

19.90 
76,97 

131.17 

16.85 
14.10 
30.95 

156.28 
24,82 

0,89 
181.99 
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Samunnati Financial lntennediation & Services Private Limited 
Summary of significant accounting policies a.nd other eKplanatory lnfonnatlon for the year ended 31 March 2022 
(All amounts are In millions of Indian Rupees (f ), unless otherwise stated/ 

20 Equity share capital 
Authorised share capital 

As at 31 March 2022 
No. of shares Amount 

As at 31 March 2021 
No. of shares Amount 

Equity shares off 10 each 7,50,000 7 .50 7.50,000 7.50 
Compulsorily convertible preference shares of f 1 O each ---'-17:..:•;;.so"'.;;.o.::.oo=---___ ...:.1-'-7:.::.5.::0 __ ...:1c:.7-".5"'0"',0"'0"'0'-_....:.17:.:·.:c5=-0 
Total 2s1001000 2s.oo 2s100,ooo 2s.oo 

Issued 
Equity shares of t 1 o each 
Compulsonly convertible preference shares of t 1 O each 

Subscribed and paid-up: 
Equity shares of f 10 each 
Less: Equity shares held under trust for employees under 
ESOP scheme (also, refer note h) below 
Compulsorily convertible preference shares of f 10 each 
Total 

a) Reconciliation of number of equity shares and 
amount outstanding 
Issued, subscribed and paid-up 
Balance at the beginning of the year 
Shares issued during the year 
Shares bought back during the year 

Less: Equity shares held under trust for employees under 
ESOP scheme 
Balance at the end of the year 

bl Reconciliation of number of preference shares and 
amount outstanding 
Issued, subscribed and paid-up: 
Balance at the beginning of the year 
Shares issued during the year 
Balance at the end of the year 

c) Shareholders holding more than 5 percent 

5,73.861 
16.83.819 

5.73.861 
(2.13,523) 

16,83.819 
20,44,157 

5,73,861 

5,73,861 

(2, 13 ,523) 

3,60,338 

16, 16 ,195 
67,624 

16,83,819 

5 .74 
16.84 

5 .74 
(2.14) 

16.84 
20.45 

5.74 

5.74 

(2.14) 

3.60 

16.16 
0.68 

16.84 

5.73.861 
16.16,195 

5,73,861 
(2,13.523) 

16,16,195 
19,76,533 

5,73,861 

5,73,861 

(2.13.523) 

3,60,338 

16,16,195 

16,16,195 

5.74 
16.16 

5.74 
(2.1 4) 

16.16 
19.76 

5.74 

5.74 

(2.14) 

3.60 

16.16 

16.16 

No. of shares ¾ of holding No. of shares ¾ of 

Equity shares off 10 each 
S G Anil Kumar 
Samunnati ESOP Welfare Trust 
Accel India V (Mauritius) Ltd 

Compulsorily convertible preforenco shares off 10 each 
Elevar M-111 
Accel India V (Maurttius) ltd 
ResponsAbility Agriculture I, SLP 
Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association of America 
Accel Growth Fund V L.P 
Elevar I-IV AIF represented by its Trustee Vistra ITCL 

2.38,257 
2,13,523 

75.733 

4.21 ,522 
3.74 ,949 
3,66,594 
2.26,730 
1.10,075 
1, 18.957 

42% 
37% 
13% 

25% 
22% 
22% 
13% 
7% 
7% 

2,38,257 
2 ,13.523 

75.733 

3,78.074 
3,74,949 
3,66,594 
2.26,730 
1,10.075 

99,340 

holdin 

42% 
37% 
13% 

23% 
23% 
23% 
14% 

7% 
6% 
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Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited 
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory Information for the year ended 31 March 2022 
{All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees m, unless otherwise stated) 

d) Equity shares held by promoters at the end of the year 
March 31 , 2022 

Number of Percentage of 
Percentage 

Promoter Name shares total shares 
change during 

the year 

Mr. Anil Kumar S G 2,38,257 42.00% . 

March 31 , 2021 

Number of Percentage of 
Percentage 

Promoter Name 
shares total shares 

change during 
the year 

Mr. Anil Kumar S G 2,38,257 42.00% . 
e) There were no shares issued pursuant to contract without payment being received on cash, allotted as fully paid up by 

way of bonus issues since incorporation of the Holding Company. 

f) Terms and rights attached to equity shares 
The Holding Company has only one class of equity shares having a face value of f 10 per share. Each holder of equity 
shares is entitled to one vote per share. The Holding Company shall declare and pay dividends in Indian rupees. The 
dividend proposed by the Board of Directors shall be subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual 
General Meeting, except interim dividend which can be approved by the Board of Directors. In the event of liquidation of 
the Holding Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Holding Company, 
after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution wdl be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by 
the shareholders. 

g) Terms and rights attached to preference shares 
The holding Company has issued Series A 1, A2, A3. B, C, D and D1 compulsorily convertible preference shares having a 
face value of f 1 O per share. At the option of the holders. these shares, either in Whole or in part. may be converted into 
equity shares in the ratto of 1 :1 before the expiry of 19 years from the issuance of such compulsorily convertible 
preference shares. Each holder of the compulsorily convertible preference shares is entitled to one vote per share. 
Dividend on each compulsorily convertible preference shares Is 0.01% per annum, subject to cash flow solvency, and 
such dividend shall be a preferred dividend. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of compulsorily 
convertible preference shares shall have a preference over other share holders of the holding Company. 

Terms of conversion 
Series Date Amount 

Series A1 25 Feb 2034 0.99 
Series A2 25 Jul 2034 1.26 
Series A3 31 Mar 2035 0.61 
Series B 25 Feb 2036 2.76 
Series C 27 Dec2036 5.60 
Series D 23May 2038 4.94 
Series 0 1 15 Aor 2040 0.68 

16.84 

h) The Holding Company has given an fnterest and collateral free loan to ESOP Trust lo provide financial assistance for 
purchase of equity shares of the Holding Company under Employee Stock Option Scheme. The Holding Company has 
established the ESOP Trust to which the stock options issuable have been transferred. The Holding Company treats 
ESOP trust as its extension and shares held by ESOP trust are treated as treasury shares. Own equity instruments that 
are re-acquired (treasury shares) are recognised at cost and deducted from Equity share capital (to the ex\ e 
value) and from · the extent of premium on shares). Also, refer note 33. <i---"' .,. ~ ~ 
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Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited 
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2022 
(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees((), unless otherwise slared) 

21 Other e ui 

Statutory Reserve 
Securities Premium 
Employee stock options outstanding 
Capital Redemption Reserve 
Equity component of compound financial instruments 
Other comprehensive income 
Retained earnin s· Refer Note below 

As at 
31 March 2022 

40.59 
5,755.45 

262.32 
0.07 

(23.55) 
5.67 

1.254.26 
4,786.29 

As at 
31 March 2021 

40.59 
4,931.10 

205.29 
0.07 

3.73 
186.74 

4,994.04 

• Note: Samunnati Foundation was consolidated in the previous year. However the same has not been consolidated in 
the current year as the intent of the investment is not commercial in nature so as to get any return on the investments. 
ConsequenUy the retained earnings impact of the PY 20-21 amounting Rs. 1.13 million has been eliminated in the current 
year consolidation. 

Description of the nature and purpose of other equity 

Statutory reserve 
Reserve fund is created as per the terms of section 45-IC(1) of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 as a statutory 
reserve. An amount equal to 20% of the Holding Company's profits after tax is transferred to this reserve every year. This 
is a restricted reserve and anv appropriation from this reserve can onlv be made after prior approval from RBI. 

Securities premium 
Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. This amount can be utilised in accordance with the 

Employee stock options outstanding 
The employee stock options outstanding represents amount of reserve created by recognition of compensation cost at 
grant date fair value on stock options vested but not exercised by employees and unvested stock options in the 
Statement of profit and loss in respect of equity-settled share options granted to the eligible employees of the Holding 
Company and its subsidiaries in pursuance of the Employee Stock Option Plan. 

Capital redemption reserve 
Capital Redemption Reserve is created as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 In respect of the shares bought 
back by the Holding Company. 

Equity component of compound financial instruments 
Equtty component of compound financial instruments represents the Equity portion of Debi Securities. 

Other comprehensive income 
Represents remeasurement of defined benefit liability which comprises of actuarial gains and losses excluding amounts 
included in net interest on lhe nel defined benefit liabilities and income tax impact thereon. 

Retained earnings 
Retained earnings or accumulated surplus/ (loss) represents total of all profits/ (losses) retained since Group's inception. 
Retained earnings are credited with current year profits, reduced by losses, if any, dividend pay-outs, transfers lo General 
reserve or any such other appropriations to specific reserves. 
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Samunnati Financ1al lntennedlation & Services Private Limited 
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2022 
(All amounts sre fn mil/Jons of Indian Rupees((). unless otherwise stared) Year ended 

22 Revenue from operations 
a) Interest income on financial instrumen1s measured at amortised cost 
loans 
Investment in Pass Through Certrficates 
Security deposits held with ,enders 
Fixed deposits 
Investment in CCOs 

b) Sale of traded goods 
Agricultural products 

cl Other operatinA revenue 

Tota l (a•b•c) 

23 Other Income 
Interest income on delayed paymen1 of dues by customers 
Income from mutual fund investments 
Recovery of defaults in toan serviced 
Transaction tax recovered 
Gain on fair valuation 
Income from debt fund 
Other Income 

24 Finance costs 
On financial liabilities measured at amorti sed cost 
Interest expense on: 
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 
Debt securities 
Lea$e l1abtl1ty 
Other borrowmg costs 

2S lmpalrmont on financtal instruments 
At amortised cost 
Impairment of loans 
Impairment of trade receivables 
Bad debts written off 

26 Purchases of stock-in-trade 
Purchase of sloek-in-trade 

27 Changes ln Inventories of stock in trade 
Opening stock 
Ck>sing stock 

28 Employee benefit expenses 
Salanes and wages (also. refer note 45) 
Gratuity and leave encashment expenses {Also refer no1e 34) 
Contnbu1lon to provident and other funds 
Employee stock option expenses (also, refer note 33) 
Staff wetfare expenses 
Employee insurance 

31 March 2022 

1.552.04 
24.42 
18.56 
4.55 

1,599.57 

21 155.79 
21 155.79 

107.57 
107.57 

22.862.93 

14.46 
14.40 
0.92 

16.58 
9.13 

58.08 

596.19 
532.06 

4.37 
82.90 

1 215.52 

200.24 
220.56 
515.20 
936.00 

21 .590.20 
21 ,590.20 

24.20 
869.31 

(845.11) 

735.93 
26.95 
30.82 
57.03 
27,60 

878.33 

Year ended 
31 March 2021 

1.488.38 
6.06 

37.90 
38.86 

3.00 
1,574.20 

7,567.48 
7.567.48 

80.27 
80.27 

9,221.95 

21 .87 
4.06 
4.72 

0.51 
9.65 
3.07 

43.88 

404.94 
345.57 

2.55 
40.33 

793.39 

(45.48) 
73.94 

367.99 
396.45 

7.370.26 
7,370.26 

8.75 
24.20 

(15.451 

439.21 
9.29 

15.00 
40.98 
14.79 
6.69 

525.96 
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2022 
(AH amounts are in m1ll10ns of fndian Rupees (f ) . unless otherwise srated) Yea.r ended Year ended 

31 March 2021 
29 

30 

31 

Depreciation & amortization 
(Al••• refer note 12) 
Depreciation on property. plant and equipment 
Amortisation of intangible assets 
Amorusatlon charge on right of use assets 

Other expenses 
Legal and professional charges 
Consultancy charges 
SeMee fee expenses 
Technology and communieation expenses 
Membership and subscnption charges 
Travelling and conveyance 
Insurance 
Payments to auditors (also. refer note below) 
Repairs and marntenance - others 
Rates and taxes 
Ren1 
Pnntlng and stationery 
Power and fuel 
Stttmg fees 
loss on sale of property. plant and equipment 
Marketing expenses 
Proviston for Inventory 
Bank charges 
Bad debts written off 
Miscellaneous expenses (also, refer note 38) 

1} Payments to auditors! 
Statutory audit {Balance for FY 2020-21 for previous auditors)' 
Statutory audit 
Lamrted review· 
Tax audit· 
Certffieation • 
Others· 
Out of pocket expenses· 

•tncludes GST of 9% for the current year 

Tax expenses 

a} Income rax recogn;zed in statement of pronr and loss 

Current tax : 
In respect of current year 

Deferred tax: 
In respect of current year ong1nalion and reversal of temporary drfferences 
Total Income tax recognized In statement of profit and loss 

b} Income tax recognized in other comprehensive Income 
Oefarred tax related to items recognlxed fn Other Comprehensive Income during the year: 
Remeasurement of defined employee beneftts 
Total Income tax recognized in other comprehensive Income 

31 March 2022 

25.88 
19.92 
18.98 
64.79 

144.45 
4.95 

(2.71) 
31 ,48 
17.58 
42.33 
45.39 

9.83 
11.73 

2.15 
16.02 
4.14 
3.32 
3.37 
008 

10.49 
20. 15 

43,64 
408.39 

2.82 
4,63 
2.12 
0.10 
0.11 
0.04 
0.01 
9.83 

(260.71) 
(260.71) 

0.34 
0.34 

20.69 
4.38 
8.61 

33.68 

99.64 
4.95 
9.36 

22.36 
10.88 
15.10 
17.96 
4.00 
7 .11 
0.38 

15.33 
3.36 
3.35 
2.59 
0.74 
5.41 

0.86 
24.55 

247,93 

2.70 
0.85 
0.25 
0.10 

0.10 
4.00 

(20.10) 
(20.10) 

(1 .&4) 
(1.64) 

32 Earnings Per Share (EPS) 
Net (loss) attribuiable to equity shareholders ~ m millions (Ba•lc and Diluted) (1,066.39) (66,29) 
Weighted average number of equity shares used 1.n computing basic EPS (in numbers) 3,60,338 3.60,338 
Effec1 of potenlial d1lutJVe equ11y shares (1n numbers) 19, 10,320 19, 10,320 
Weighted averaAe number of equity shares used In computing d1lu1ed eamtngs per share (in numbers) 22.70.658 22, 70.658 
Basic EPS ({ ) . face value of share t 1 O each (2.955.14) (183.971 
O,luied EPS (t ). face value of share , 10 each · 2 955.14 (183.97) 

·cue 10 the loss 1ncur ·'l!dl>F'i"'~• d 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 , the po1entlal equity shares anti-dtlutive. 
<'.l' ~ 
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Samunnali Financial Intermediation & Sorv1cos Private LlmhM 
Summary of significant accountJng pollcl&s and other exptanatory information for the ye,r ended 31 March 2022 
(All amounts ate 1rt lnJ/bOns of Indian Rupees (!). unless olhel'Nt$e sJ8tedJ 

33 Employee share based payments 

ESOP 2015 Scheme 
a} On September 08, 2015 , lhe Board of OtrectOrS approved and the Holdmg Comp,1.ny edopte<I the 'Employees Stoc:k Option Ptan 201s· (the ·Pian") under 

which not mOf'e than 62,500 share$ QC the holding Company's equity sha(es was resef\•Cd for issuance to ~s. In the Board meet>ng dated January 28 
2017, December 20. 2017 3n-d N>,11 29. 2019 8dd1uonal Shate-s of 6,794 (nos). 70.368 (ll05) and 1 tS.000 (nos} respecelvel)' wete added 10 the Plan, ls.sued 
andallo<led toESOP Trust 

The options are 10 be grant&<S to lhe ellgrble employees 85 pet the elfglbll1ty cntena as determ,n&d by ltw! Soard ot Dvec;:tOfs-. The lh¥e opuons vest in a 
graded manner O\ler a per10d of 1. 4 years and are ex~ds.able within 2 month$ of exerase evenl, fs1hng which the opt,ons shall lapse. 

On June 21, 2018, the 8oara ol Olrecto<s aJ)C)(OVe(f ana the HOl<kng Company a<!Oj)ted the · Amend"""11 to the Employees Stoel< Opllon Plan 2015" ("TM 
Planj. The amendment peruuns to Vesting period, exercise and grant ot options lO new j01ners. The oPt,on.s to be g,antl!d to the el,g,bfe employee.$ as per the 
ell91bi.llty artena as detemuned by the Board ot Oirec:tors.. The Share opbOOs vest 111 a graded manner over a penod ot 1..4 years and are exetcisable IMtht'I 2 
months of exerose e~ fa1Ung whlc.h the employees shatl have to hold on tiU the neXl event an.ses On May 24 2019, the Bo~d of Dwect0f'5 app,cwed and 
the holding Company adopted the "Employees Stadt OptiCW'I Plan 2019'". The Jmendment pertains 10 ves-'bng penod Vesnng of Options may now take place 
be.tween three and four years 1n the manner, as may be decided by the Nom1na1.1on and Reniunerauon Committee. 

O\lnng the cu«enl year boa1"d of directors app«oved ,.swe of 43,380 apt.Ions to employee5 end the same was fully granted ,n I.he CO(rent year. 

No. ot No, ot 

PartJculars: opUons as at Weighted options as at Weighted 
March 31, Average Rate March 31, Average Rate 

2022 2021 

Option$ outstanding at me t,eg1nnmg of the year 57,565 2,156 48,635 2 170 
Granted donng the year 43 380 5,022 11 413 7,500 
E.xl!fClsed during lhe yea, . . . 
Expued/ lapsed dUM9 lhe year (15,2J2) . (2,483) 3 403 
Opoons outstanding a1 lhe end of u,e year 85,713 3,473 57,565 3 173 
..... _. ___ s exerasable as at the end of the ..... nod 10,930 739 15,880 690 

The weighted average remaining convactual life fQr the ir.ock optiOfls outstanduig a1 the end of the year was 393 days (previous year 318 days) 

b) The falf vmue ot lhe options gmmed •~ determined on the date of ttie g1a.n1 uS1ng the ·s,adc.•Schotes option pno.ng moder W'lth the followlng as.sumpoons. as 
certrf1ed by an 1ndepeOOen1 valuer 

Par1Jculars FY 2015•16 FY 2016•17 FY 2017-18 FY 2018-19 FY 2019-20 FY 2020-21 FY 2021 -22 
Fa.r market value of option on the date of grant 582.86 806.84 1,030.40 1,726.61 2.970.◄4 3,318.07 5,022.43 
Exer05e price range (weighted average) 10.00 319.00 618.00 1,484.45 3,203.50 7.500.00 13,059.77 
e~ vola•lrtr (%) 60.29% 60.29% 60.29% 6029% 60.29% 60.29% 56.98% 
E,cpected forfeiture percentage on each vesting date . . 
E)(J)OCled °""°" life (weighted a....-age 1n years) 3.87 3 57 3 22 3 10 2.47 300 3.00 
Exl)OCled dJVldenas yield . 
RJsk free inte,est rate ~ • 7.SSo/o 6.85% 6.66% 762% 6.81% 5.86% 5.80% 

Management Stock OptJon Scheme 2017 
On December 20, 2017, the Soard of Directors approved and 1ne hOfdin,g Company adopted the ~Management Stoek Option Sc:neme 201 r hereinafter 
referred ai lNI "Sch~e· Under Che Scheme. 28,529 oplloni were gri'Oted 10 the promoter (Ami Kumar S G • Oirector ancf CEO), ves.tJng over 1 year trom the 
dale of lhe grant On Apnl 29, 2019, tne HOiding Coo>pany's Board of 0,,0CIO(s aPl)(oved and me HOiding Coo>pany adopced tne "Management S1oe1< Opuon 
Sdleme 2019" Under lhe revtled Sc:heme. 45,000 opuons were granted 10 the prOfflOler, veSbng over 1 year from the date of the grant On the h.appen,ng of 
any tlqUtdlty event as defined 1:n lhe Sd1erne. the Nom1na1JOn and remuntratlon commsnee has the diSClebon to pr(M,de c;a$hless exerose 

The we,gtited average remaining cootractual hte fO< the stoek op;1ons outstand11\Q at the end of the year was O days( prevtous yeat' 2t 2 daY$J 

No. of option$ as a1 We-ighted No. ot options n a·t Woighlld 
Particulars March 31. 2022 Average Rate March 31. 2021 

Avorago 
Rate 

Options out$tsndlng at the be91'M11·19 of the year 45,000 2,902 45,000 2.902 
Granted dunng lhe year . . . 
Exeteised dunng lhe year . . 
ExPtred/ laP'$"00 during lhe year . . . 
Opuons oul5tancfing at lho end of the year 45000 2 902 45,000 2,902 
l,..:.bOns e,:ercisable as at lhe encf of the --n'Od 45,000 2902 15,000 2,902 

The fair value ot the opbons granted is de-term.ned on the date of grant using the Stack $,;holes option pnc,ng model With the folk)l.vlog a$$ump1>ons &$ 
ce,vfied by an independent valuer 
Fairmarl(et vallfeof op(ionon the date or grant 2,938.71 
Numbef of opc1oos granted 45,000 
Exe<ose pnoe mnge twel9hted ave<age) 3.752.55 Ex- volabhly (%1 60. 29% 
Expec;led forfellUfe perce,lClge on OKh vesong date 0.00% 
Expected optlon life (weighted average 1n years) 1 
Expectel;f dMtlends yield 0.00% 
Risk tree •n1~est rate'%' 7 4 t% 

Note Since the MSOP $h.arn issued on Oecembef 20, 2017 were vested befc:,,-e the date of uans.iion to INO•AS, Che holding Company has not fair valued 
such orants. Hence above d, ~ l,e:!!!!!,g~ ted ,or the same 
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34 Employee benefits 

General description of defined benefit plans 
a) Gratuity 

In accordance With applicable Indian laws, the Group provides for gratulty, a defined benefit retirement pJan ("'The Gratuity Plan .. ) covering 
eligible employees. The gratuity plan provide for a lump sum payment to vested employees on retirement (subject to complebon of five years 
of continuous empfoyment), death, Incapacitation o, termination of empk>yment that are based on last drawn salary and tenure of 
employment The Group doec1 not maintain any plan assets to fund its obligation Iowards gratuity liabifity. 

Through its defined benefit plans the Group 1$ exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of whlCh are detailed below 

Inflati on risk 
The present value of some of the defined benefit plan obh9at1ons are calculated w11h referel'lce to the future salanes of plan partJcipants. As 
such, an Increase In the salary of the plan participants wm increase lhe plan's hab1lrty. 

Life expectancy 
The present va1ue of defined benefit plan obfigatfon ts calculated by reference 10 the best estunate of the mon.alrry or plan partleipanIs, both 
during and after the employment An inaease in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan's liabillty. 

Discount rate 
Reduction In discount rate In subsequent valuatlons can increase the plan's liability. 

Details of defined benefit plans as per actuarial valuation are as follows 

Amount recognized in the statement of Profit and Loss 
Current service cost 
Net Interest cost 

Total expenses included In employee benefit expenses 

Amounl recognized In Other Comprehensive Income 
Remeasurement (gains)/ losses: 

Actuarial (gain)/ losses arising from changes In 
- Experience adjustments 

Total amount recognized In other comprehensive income 

Changes In the defined benefit obligation 
Opening denned benefit obUgation 
OoeninQ addition from acauisltion of Kamatan Farm Tech Private Limited 
Current service cos:t 
Interest expense 
Remeasurement (gams)Jlosses arising from changes in -

- Experience adjusunents 
Benefrts paid 

Closing defined benef4 obligation 

Net defined benefit obligation 
Defined benefit obligation 
Currem portion of the above 
Non current portion of the above 

V. Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation (undiscounted} 

WfthIn 1 year 
1 to 5 years 
More than 5 years 

Year ended 
March 31, 2022 

6.12 
1.25 
7.37 

(2.28) 
12,28) 

As., 
March 31, 2022 

16.86 
1.35 
6.12 
1.25 

(2.28) 
(2.91) 
20.39 

As at 
March 31 , 2022 

20.39 
2.46 

F -~~ 

As at 
March 31 1 2022 

2.46 
9.79 

20.71 

Year ended 
March 311 2021 

6.86 
1.32 
8.18 

(6.39) 
{6.39) 

As al 
March 31, 2021 

15.06 

6.86 
1.32 

(6.39) 

16.85 

As at 
March 31 1 2021 

16.85 
2.08 

14,77 

As at 
March 311 2021 

2.08 
t0.42 
39.48 
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Particulars 

I. Actuarial assumptions and sensitivity 
Discount rate (p.a.) 
Attrition rate 
Rate of salary increase 
In- service Morallty rate 

IL Quantitative sensitivity analysis for Input of significant assumptions on 
defined benefit obligations are as follows 

One percentage po,nt increase in discount rate 
One percentage point decrease in discount rate 
One percentage point increase In salary growth rale 
One percentage point decrease in salary growth rate 

b) Compen5'll'ed abs ences 

As at 
March 31, 2022 

6.7% -6.9% 
15.00% 
7.00% 

IAL2012•14Ull 

Year ended 
March 31, 2022 

(1.08) 
1.20 
1.21 

(1.11) 

As at 
Marc h 311 2021 

6.50% 
15.00% 
7.00% 

IAL2012-14Ult 

Year ended 
March 31, 2021 

(2.03) 
2.26 
2.27 

(2.07) 

The Group permits encashment of compen$aled absences accumulated by their employees on retirement separauon and dunng the course 
of service. The liabit1ty in respect of the Group, for ouls1andlng balance of pnvdege leave at the balance sheet date is deteffruned and 
provided on the basis of actuarlal valuation provided by an independent actuary. The Group does nol mafntain any plan assets to fund its 
obbgation towards compensaled absences, 

Actuarial assumptions for compensated absences 
PartJc.ulars 

I. Actuarial assumptio ns and sensitivity 
Discount rate (p.a.) 
Rate of salary increase 
Attrition rate over different age brackets 

Year ended 
March 31, 2022 

6.7% • 6.9% 
7.00% 

15.00% 

Year ended 
March 31, 2021 

6.50% 
1.00•4 

15.00% 

The esIima1e of future salary Increases. considered in actuarial valuauon. considers mflauon, seniority. promotion and other relevant factors. 
such as supply and demand in the employment market. 

II. Expenses recognized in Statement of pro fit and loss 
Included under gratuity and leave encashment expenses 

Ill. Net defined benefit obligation 
Defined benefit obligation 
Current portion of the above 
Non current portion of the above 

3S Capital management 

Year ended 
March 31 1 2022 

19.58 

As at 
March 31, 2922 

24.08 
8.20 

15.88 

Year ended 
March 31 1 2021 

1.11 

As at 
March 31, 2021 

14.1 
3.8 

10.3 

The Group's capital management strategy is to effectively determine, raise and deploy capital so as to create value for it$ sharehokfer. The 
same is done through a mix of either equity and/or converbble and/or combination of shon Ierrn/long term debt as may be appropriate. 

The Group dete1mines the .amount or capital requ1t&d on the basis of operauons. capital ex:pend•ture and stra1egic. inve$tment plans. The capital 
structure is momtored on the basts of net debt to equity and maturity profile of overaU debt portfolio. 

Net debt to equity ratio 

Debt 
Less: Cash and bank balances 
Net debt 

Total ~QUJIY 

Net debt to ~qu,ty ratio (%) 

As at 
31 March 2022 

13,337.96 
11,679 80) 
11658.16 

4,806.74 
242.54% 

As at 
31 March 2021 

9,557.32 
12004.111 
7,553.21 

5,013.80 
150.65% 
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36 Ltasos 
As a lessee 
al Addi tions to riaht of use asset 
Particulars 
Prooenv Diane and eou1pn\Mt 

b• Carrvlnq value of riaht of u, e asset 
PartiCUl&rS 
Right of use asset as on the openinQ date 
Aefdl1lon1 dunnQ l:he yea, 
Disposals/ dedue1100$ 
~ed.abOn chatQe for u,~ vear 
8eiance M a1 the vear end 

c, Maturity ana1V$ls of lease UabUltv 
Co ntractual Undlscounted C ash Flows 
less than 1 year 
One to five veal'I 
Totel undi$00Ullte<S Je.&,e bebditv 

Lease ttabdiues 1nQ.Jded an U'le statemen1 of financial oolftlon 

di AmounlS recoanlz:ed fn Statement of oroht or loss 

lntettM on lease liabitt11.tt 
Oeoreoa.non Ch&rpe to, the vcar 
Exi,ense, r&latlOQ to shOn-tenn lea-$eS 

37 Contingent llebilltles and commitments (to the e xtent not provided for) 
Contlngent liabllllies 
Claim s against the Group not acknowledged as debts : 

Year ended Year onded 
31-Mar-22 31 -Mar-21 

31.53 0,10 

Al I t ..... 
31-r.ta,-22 31-Mpr-21 

18 ... 1 28.92 
31.53 010 
(0.•8) 

(18 98) (8,61) 

30-18 18,41 

20.09 9.08 
20.02 17,25 
,4Q.11 2§.l3 

36r35 24,§S 

Year ended Year endt d 
lt •Mar•.22 3t -Maar-21 

'37 2.55 
1898 861 
16.t>l 15.33 

The HOiding Company had recewed orde-.rs from tnoome Tax Assessing Officer (AO) perlalnlng to AV 2011M7, AY 2017-18 and AY 18•1'1 "-"e<eln eet1aln 
additfons were m.cle under 5eelion 56, section 68 and seaion 143(3) of lnoome Tax Aa.. 1981 The HOld"1g Company has obtained a stay on IXllection or the 
demand prcMded belOw. The Holding Company con-Mers !.he dalm1 10 be erroneous anc:t as oot payable under the provcslon$ or lnc:ome Tax Act. 1961, 

As at 31 M arch 2022 
Amounl ot oemtlld 
Amount -....1 aaa.nst Stall 

at 31 Maren 21 

Amount ot demand 
Am ... ·nt n;ilrl ...... in1,t • •-· 

Others 
AJnouots prov1d0d as MRA: , galnst seeurlt lutron trJn.$aetlons 

PM01pal sub-ord1oauon 
Cash ccllatel'81 

38 Corporate Social ResoonsibiUfV 

AY 20 18•17 
10 18 

2.10 

AY 2n11:.. 
10.18 

2.10 

AV 2017•18 
357 
080 

• Y .. 
3.57 
0.80 

AY 20 18•19I 

o:29 I 

o:29 I 
As at As at 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

52.59 
32.88 

The Holding ComPilny has incurred an expenditure or f 0.87 m11Uons (P Y.f 1.88 m•lons) 1owards CSR actsviues wnlch includes con1noution / donatk>ns made 
to tn-e tounelation whtcl"I ere eogaged In actiwues presc:nbed under SeclK>n 13S of the Companies Act. 2013 fead with Schedule VII to the said Act 

Oetalls of am ount t oent towards CSR aetMtJH : 
al Gros.s amoon1 required to be spent by lhe Hoklu'lg Company durino the year iS f o 87 mll.ons (P'ev'IOU:S year I 1 •o Millon, ) 

bl 

Particulars ' h 1 2 22 

tn cash 
Yet to be 

aid inc-ash 
In con,trucllonl acquisition or any aue1 
C>'lother es 0.7 0 7 

39 ReconclUatlon or m ovement In borrowings t o cash nows from financing ac tivities 

Pardculars 

DeC>t &eeul'ltlies 
Borrov,,inqs (other than debt secun'!IH) 
Total 

Particulars 

Debt secun'lles 
Borrowl I other than debt secunues 

ot• 
if relates to finanang and operat 
• intere,t paymen1s In tt,e na 

31 March 2021 

, .2'3.92 
5,343.40 
9+557,32 

31 March 20 20 

Interest 
ei penses• 

532 06 
596.18 

t.128,26 

Interest 
expenses-# 

Fo, • ear en ded 

' 
Tocal In cash 

Yet tobe 
aid ln c a.&h 

. 7 1.88 

lnterost Amortisation of 
Ca,h flows (net) payments· loan 

ori lnatlon 
1087 4 l (5'4.00) 5 45 
2699.72 (849 02) 52 83 

3,787 13 11 ,193 .02) 5§,28 

Interest 
Amortisation of 

Cash flows (net) payments· toan 
o,I ination 

2,568.37 (404 .9,4) 22 58 
l ,366 98 245.40 33.62 

•• 

Total 

1.88 

31 March 2022 

5.29• 84 
8,043.12 

13+S37 9§ 

31 March 2021 

4.213.92 
5.343,40 
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40 F1nanclal Ri.sk Management Framework 
The Holding Company's board ot directors has overall responslbil1ry for the e11abb-Shment and oversight or ine Gtoup·s nsk man.agemem tramewor1c. The Group 
manages tinandal risk relallflg 10 lhe operations through Internal nSk repo1's whk:h anatyse exposure by degrH and magnitude ot nllt, These nsks Include , 
aeon 11.-sk. liQul(f,ty risk and market nsk (induding mterest rate ris.k ond other pnoe ri5k) Compltanc:e with Poftdes and exposu,e ilmk, is reviewed bV the 
managemeru on a conlJnuoos basis 

(a} Credi t risk 
Cfedit nsk ,s the risk that 1M Group >MIi ,nour a lou because its cu.Jtomers o, counterpafties fall to Cl.scha.rge llleir contraetual Obl.ga~s. The Group·s exposure 
to a-edit nsk Is 1nnuenoed mainly by cash aod c:a&h eqUtVllent.s, other bank ~ance.s. mvestments, lo.an aue1.s ano other r.na,~ a.nets The Group 
continuously mQflilO<S 00-faults of OJstomers and otMf oount:etparues and 1nootp0rates this Information intO its aed1t risk controls. 

{bl Credit r1sk managem ent 

Based on bUVle" environment in whk:h the Group opetates, a default on a f1nan0&1 anet Is conttdered when the counter party falls to make paymems wlthtn 
tne agreed 1lrne penOd as per conlrad 'The Group assesses and manage& etedrt nsk based on ln1emal crecM rating system. Intern.al a-Mt ra11ng is Pf:rlonned 
tOt each dau ot f1nancill 1ns11Ufflen11 with d:tfere-n1 cha.raaensucs The Group has esi.ablt&hed a credrt qualliy reVlew proceS,$ 10 l)fo-.iide ear1y KJenllflcation OI 
possible ct,ar,ges in the creottwon.h1neu o, ooun1erparoes. 1nclvd1ng ,egutar collateral revis10f'\.s. The o,oup as.signs I.he lolow\ng crec111 ratings to each da&& of 
flnc1noal assets based on the a.ssumpuons. Inputs and !actors specific to the class of fillandal assets. 

The Grouo ---.Mes tor e--...i ---... · ' --n lhe folov.ln ... 
usets covered Nature 
Cnh and c;a1,h equr,alents (exdudlng cash on hand). OO'tef bank balances. lnves.un-ents. Trade teceiVabl!s • Low eted1t risk 
COflSldeceo good anc1 olher tirlandil a5se1, . 
Loar,s. .,.., LOW O"ed1I rlsJc 
LOins & Tratv> recelvatie'S • hawin n1t1can1 inetease an c,M1t nl)t t.toderate credit 

Loan:, & Trade rf:Oervablff. crecM llnpaltecl High crec11 nSI< 

Financial assets that HN"l"'e th• tntltv to credit risk 

Particulars Nature As al 
1'14 M ..... a. .,n_.,., 

cash and eesh equiva$ent.5 (exdudlng cash 01"1 hand) Low erect.rt nsk 1. 167 B5 
Bank balance olhe.r than abOVe • LOW CJ8<JJl rfslc 512.15 

Trade recewables-- coosidered good" Lowcre<111 n$k 3.288 03 
Ttade reoe1VabH!s- h.a:Wlg S1QruOcan1 ll'lcrease In crea,t n:sk • Moderate c:red-t n~ 252 97 
Trade reeelvallle,, creda •tnDalred • H.lgtl cred,1 n,Je. 328 52 
LoaM • conslclered good· Low c,ec:fit nsk 10,312.28 
l(),j,u • ha\ilnQ s1g:n1ficant ,ncrease w, credil ri$k· Moderate CtedK nsk 787.04 
Loans • credtt 1mpatte0• H..gh crecfet ns.k 334,89 

lnvestmems Low credit nsk 192.37 

Other linanoal assets Low ere<111 tl$k 152.09 

("t These represent gross carrying values or trade recetvublu & loans, Wflhout 11et11t1g on Impairment ms 1lowance 

Cash and cash equlvolents and bank deposhs 

Ba.sls of e•D~ted c redit lou 

Life 11m.e expeaec, c:reo11 Jon 

12rnot1tn e cred11 less 
Life ome e cred1110n 
u1e bm6 expec:I.OCl crecit lo$s 01 
fully p(O\'ided to, 

As at 
'lt •• _ __ ..._ ........ 1 

1,352.37 
&51.74 

2567.,U 
76.115 

233.89 
a. 101.11 
1.109.75 

163.28 
•SS.115 
167.31 

Cted!t nSlt related to cash and cash equ1vatents ( t)tdlJOll'IQ cash on htnd) and bank dep,oSlts ,a mMa-ge<I by only uwest:1n9 1n hlghly ra1ed deposits of ban.ks 
acroM the coun1ry 

Trade re,celvables 
Trade ~vables Is typlc:ally un.seo.ued anCI are denved from rt'-lenue eamed from aJ5'omets. To manage the aed11 nsk. the Group penocUc:atty assesses the 
financial rellabillty of u customers. taking lnlo ao;o1.W1t th-e fina.t1oal oondi.tion.. eoonom-c: trend:s and hi~Ofleaf payment pattern The Group estabhshos an 
eUowance t0< doubtful debts that reptesents It• est/ffla!e of incurrec;t loues In re$p6Cl or Irle Group'-s trade receivables. Exposures to customers outstanchn,g at 
the end or each reporbng penod are revietNed by the GtOuo to deienn.ne incurred and expected credit &os,es 

ovomanl In the allowance for Jmoalrment in re&IWICl o l lrade recelvabJes M 

Panlculars 
Yeor ende-d Ye.trMded 

Marc.h 31 , 2022 Marth 31 , 2021 

Balance at the w,runn at lhe .,. 158.62 8AJS8 

Balance taken ovef' from Kamatan Farm Tech Pnvate Limited 12.94 . 
Ado Allowance 10, u,e ., 220.56 7◄.79 

Less· Wntten off dun lhe veat 10851 
1:J1.11nce 01 the end of the v ear 392.12 158.62 

The CCf'lc&ntraoon o, credit ns.k is Jimrled oue 10 tM customer base a»ng large aoel un,&ted In aoe1,ison to tf\e tmtoncal panem of ereo,, 'c>ss. ltle Group has 
conSJdered the l1ke'6hood oC ,nc,ealed c:,edit n$k and cons.equential de'-1.dt considenr,g emerging srtuauon1 d!Je to COVl~t9, Tho Group dOsefy man.tors rts 
0.1stomers and aueues conditions WCh a, cha.ng:e w, payment terms 1naot11ty of the c:usiomer to pay me. dec,endlng on sevet'lty ot e3Ch case. 8aw this 
assessm-ent. the allowance lo, impelnne-n1 ol trade receNables as at Marc:tl 3 t 2022 tS consloered adequate. 

loans 
The Group dosely m001t0f'S th-6 cred1t<WOfth1nes, of lhe bofT'ower"s thl'ougn intem.al sy-Mems and appra/Sclf proeff.S to asse5S the credt1 " ·"' MCI define cteo11 
litMI of bon'ower. lh-ereby l1mibng the credd tiSk by sen.rig limits on the amount o( nsk a Js wiling ,o accept tOf tne counterpa.nies. The$E! processes 1ndude e 
detaited al)1)1"8ltel metn,odolog-y, Identification or riakt and &ul1able $1/Ue1unng a.nd ered11,,sk mrugation mea~res The Group as.seues inc:ruse in aedl111.sk on 
an oogOing baS4a tor 1moun1s loin receivables that t>eeome past due and Gel&ult 1s c:on.skler!'d to have occorreo wt1en amounts ,ec:etvable become 60 days. 
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nts are ,n millions of Indian RupOIJs (l ), un~ss Olh~se stated) (ANamou 

Th e major guidelines for select.Ion o f the c lient include&: 
1 The client's income and indebtedness levels mus. be wi11')1n tne p,escribed guldeWles ot Reserve Bank ot lnclla, 

he client mus.I posse:s.s the required KYC docume.nts 2. T 
J. T he client mus1 be engaged In $Ollle rorm of economic ac:tMty which en$UrM regular 1noome, 

ClteM must &gree to f~low lhe rute, and regula1,ons or the organisalion and •• 
5. 
C 

Cledlt bureau Check - In orde, to deal with the ptOb4em of over extension of creel.I and widebtednen oC the dlent. the oc-g.anisatlon undftttlkes credit bureau 
hecks compulsority fOf •very d1ent l'he credit bureau Cheek helps !he organ.1seuon 1n idenljfying clients with poor repayment histones and mutbple loans, 

Cr edit risk exposure 
(I) Expected credl1 losses for financial assets other than loans and trade rocolvablo.s 
Th e Group have noL made expected credit losses for financial a55els other lha.n loans and trade receJvables 

II. 

Particulars 

As at 31 March 2022 
Gf0$$ carrying amount 
ess; E cred11 losses L 

Ne-t c a n amount 
As at 31 M arch 202 1 
Gross carrying amOlJnl 
L ess· ded credit tosses 
Net ca ln am ount 

Cash and cash 
e,qulvaJents 

1. 167.65 

1 167.65 

1,352.37 

1 352.37 

Movem ent or carrying amount and expected credll lOH for loans 
finltlon of dofau1t: Ot 

Other bank 
00,er 

bahmc.e 
Investments fln.anclal 

HHl.t 

512.15 19237 152.09 

512. 15 192. 37 152.09 

651.74 455.9-5 167.31 

651 .74 455.95 167.31 

The 
oon 
del .... 

HOldd'lg Company has rebutted the presumption presc:nbed under Ind AS 109 Iha'! the credit risk 11'\C!'ease:s signil'icantly $Ince initiJJI reoog:nilfon when 
tracrua1 paymen1.1 are ,no,e than 30 days (Stage 2) and that defovk oocurs when a finanaal asset is 90 days pMt due (S1ago 3), The nSk p<olilaog 1.$ 
ermined tor each segmented loan pcrttotto inchea:e-d below based on hi$t.Otlcal and men<et !rends and directions tron"I RBI indudin,g guidance tor 
t1fiaulon of N ?A ,n a9nciJ1u.1rel a.dvt1noe,. 

Seo mentation fOf" ECL risk rofilin 

CB OIFPO and olhers 

Ao ri enterprises 

--
Pa rtlculars 

Sta 
Sia 
SlJII 

ge I 
ge 2 
e3 

T•< al 

Asat 
31 March 2022 

10 312.28 
767.04 

St 

StaQe t 
Slage 2 
Stage 3 

Stage 1 
Stage2 
Sta e3 

As at 
31 March 2021 

8,101 . 17 
1109,15 

.2 

Loans Da aatdue 

Upto 50 Cl8'/S 
61 days lO 240 dll'/$ 
More than 2.40 davs 

Upto 60 d.tvs 
61 days to 360 days 
Mo,; han 

An analysts of changes In the gross carrying amount and tho corresPoridlng ECL allowances is, as fol lows: 

.. 
Pa 
Gr 
Ne 

olf r 
Tra 

oss car,yinq value of oPM inq balances 
w assets ong,nated dunng the year, nened 
ep;tymen1, and d8'ecognlsed pof'lfol10 
n~er to staQe 1 

Tra n,.fe, to stage 2 
Tra nster to staqe 3 
Am 

A• 
Pa 

a 1 Mar h 2 
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160.06 
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(873,71) 
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955.56 (1.10) 
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Samunnati Ananclal Intermediation & Services Prfvato Llm1tod 
Summary of afgnlncanl •ccoundng poflcle-1 and olhtr e•plane·tory Information for the year ended 31 M arch 2022 
(All amount.s ate 1n m..t.rions Of lnthan RvpH.s (0, unless Olhe/'Wiu star.cl) 

Movement In expected credit toH of loans: 
a,•t'lt. • • ·-~ '"',.,._ 

Particulars • ., ... ' ECL aflowanu • ooonlna baloncu 27.46 265' 99 ◄.4 

New asselS originated during the year. nened 11 .29 . . 
off repayments and derec.ogn,sed pottfobo 

Ttan,re, to ,tage 1 085 (085) . 
Tf'80Jfer lO siege 2 (8.33) 833 
Trans.fer 10 &tage 3 (60,621 !260.23) 320.85 
Impact of ECL on e"XpOsures transferred 218.89 28925 214.88 
Am~ n1c wn·•-- _., ' 160 06' 

, __ 1' 
,.., "' 

Et''L11II n • ,., ...... 1 .. •• 2 1,02 

.... , '.\1 -..~--.......... , 

Particulars • ~a----;:;--e 2 S tane 3 
ECL alle>wanco . ooenlnq balance, 9919 24 57 75 16 
New assets ong1nated doriog the year. netted !•3.31) (9 81) 0. t7 
off repayments and derecogni.sed pottfolio 
Ttan,1er to s:i.aae 1 (6.6A) 10.58 (A.Cl•l 
Transt'er to sta~e 2 0.99 (0,99) 

Trensfer to st.a~e 3 (0.29) (16 1S) 1&.◄4 

lmpaca Of ECL on e~sures transferred 121 .,9) 23.08 •S.09 
•--•t'lfS . '68" ....... 

l l .. .. . . . . .. 
1) If the ptt)babildy or dt"fauh arid loss given default w:,eues or decrease by 100 baSIS po.nt the expea,ed 0-ed,1 k>t.s WIii ,nc:rease 01 decrease, 60.72 m1lh0n& 
and t (18.21) milllons ,espea,vely (As al Mll'd'l 31 , 2021 f 90 AS millions) 

"As:setl ong.nated dum; the year has been prese-nte-d on net b.a!.1$ t e. the COllecbOM 1owa-n:t1 tre.sh lolins has been netted off. 

Other finenclaf nsets 
Other l\nendal Hsets mei\sured at amon1zect cosc lnciueles secunty des>OS4S, emp6oyee advances, depost1s wt1h ficna,ncsal Institutions.. payment receivable on 
secumisD1fon, intere-M 1tnp esse4s end <>'her receivables. Credit f'ISk related 10 these other fin.onc:ial assets is managed by monitoring m.e recoverab1li.1y of such 
amool'IIS oo,umuou:sly. 

(bl Llquldlly Risk Man,gement : 
L~1Y mk refers to the 11sk lhat the Group cannot mee1 fll tlnanoal obltgauons as they beeotne due. The GtOl.,O manages 11$ liquidity nsk by MsuMg H rar 
a, po$11ble. u,ai 1t wil aM'11ys helve sufficient IIQutddy to meet its 1tabil11ies when due. under both ncwma! and stressed co,w:i,oons, without 1ncumng unacceptable 
ioues or t'lsk 10 !he Group repuuu,on. The Group ma1malns adequa!e resef'Vts and bank,ng fecilmes, enCI ccntinuousfy m0C'llt0f$ the forecast ano e<:Cuel ce.$h 
l\oY.'s. by matching matunng proNH 01 t,nancial a.nets and f"'8ffci~ I~~ 1n accordance with the approved nsk managemenl policy oC the Gcoup pe,lod1cally 
The Group bel;evet ~ the working capital (inducing banking llmltS not ullhed) and •ts ca$h and cash equtva1en1 are suffidenl to meet 11$ shon and medium 
term requwements. 

Refer Noce .u which detais ine Group's remaining c:ontreCNal matunty ,0( Its l\rlano.al 11ai:k111ies with egreed repayment periods.. TM OOtltraetual m1tunry Is 
based on lhe eartiest da1e on which lhe G,oup may be reqwe4 to PBV, 

(c) Market Risk 
Marke-t Risk i& the nlk that lhe t111r value or lhe MlUe cas.n nows of a fil'\ll/lOat inswment will nuctuate becaug;e Of Changes in market tador. Sueh ct,ai,ges in 
lhe values of tlnanoal instruments may result trom changes rn lhe inter"' rates, etedrl. liquidny. and oUie< mar1<e1 changes. The Group 1$ exposed to two fypes 
of market nsk es follows 

lnterHt Rate A.ls.k 
Interest rate f'is:k i& the Mk 11'\at the tutute ca.sh nows ot a financial m1tn.tmen1 WII fl\.lctuaie because or changes in mat1Cet ,nte,est r,tes 
T"8 Group 11 svbjecl to Interest ra1e Rik, pnnopal)' because the Group lend to customers at theed interest ra1es ena for penods that may differ from the Group·s 
tund:ing sources. wt.le lhe bon'owlngs ere at bo\h lbced and vanable .nteresi ,ateJ for d,.fferent penoo.s. Tne G«Jup as.sen and manage &he 1nterest rate MIi. by 
marl.81g1ng lhe assets and Uabllitiet. The A5,e1 uabihty Managemen1 Comm,uee ensures that al "gnlfica.111 tn1sma1cties._ ,, any, are being managed 
aQpropnately. The Groop ha"S Soard approv,ed Aase-1 Ua;oi14y M,1t1agement (ALM) polcy for mana9,n,g m.1eres1 filte nsk and J)Oliey IOI de1erm.n,ng the lnteres1 

rate 10 be chatgeci on the loans given 

Sensitivity 
The ~:Sltivrty or the statement of profit and loss Is lhe effect of lhe Change, 1n markel interest rates on bank and other bonowmgs. Below ~s the sensdw1ty ot 
profit and los.s In Interest rates 

Tear enaeo uar cnoeo 
Part.lcular$ 31 March 2022 31 Ma,ch 2021 

lntefesl senltlMly-
tnter~ ra1e5- U'ICfease by o,so,. 15 08 32 16 

lnter!"st rates - decrease bv O 50'4 •15 oa 132 ,e 

Price Risk 
The Gn>up expo11.1re to pnce Mk 1, nol ma!eriaJ and rt 1s pnmarlly on 8CCOVnl of Investment of temporary treasury sutl)fuse.s In the hl"1f)' liquid debt funds to, 
very short dvrabOo&. The Group has a t>oard 3,pp(QVed pokcy or !nvest,ng 11s surolus funds in highly ra1ed dcbl mu1t..aal 1vnds and omer 111stnMT1et1ts halllng 

io51gmficerit price ri~. not being equity fundll nalc. beanng tns.Wments 
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Samunnali Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limit ed 
Summ1ry ot significant accountlng p0llclet and other explanatory Information for t_he year ended 31 March 2022 
(Alf amounts are III m~n$ of Indian fwp,HS (t). unht.$$ odH,,w1·se stated) 

Foreign currency risk 
Foreign turrency nsk Is the nsk lhat the falr value or future caSh nows ot a t'inanclat ln&1rument will fklctuate because of changes In toreign exchange rate. The 
Group ls exposed to cunency risk to the extent tt\at lhere is a mlsmateh between the eurtendes in ""''Ch revenues and pur<nases are denominated, and the 
tunc:ucmal currency of uie Group. The function.&! cvrrency or the Group t.s the Indian Rupee (f }. The currency in whleh these trdl'lsaetfons are primanly 
denonun~ted ore In Indian Aupee (t ), Cena1n expo,1 sale mtnsections ot the Group are denominated in US dolars (USO) 

Particulars 

41 Fair vaJue measurement$ 
a) FlnanclaJ instruments mtasured at omortl:Ud C.OSI 

Financial assets 
Cash and caSh equivaJerus 
Ol.her Sa.nk 8alence1 
Trade receivables 
Loans 
lnvestmenls 
Other financial assets 

Finan cial llilbllitle$ 
T,a,de payables 
Oebc secunlies 
Bctr0wings (othet thifl debt secuntle-5) 
Othet f'inandaf t.ablbti~ 

As 1t 31 March 2022 
ount n 

As at 
31 March 2022 
Carry(ng value 

1.167 65 
512.15 

3,477.• 0 
11,061.63 

192.37 
162.09 

16 563.34 

698.09 
5,294.64 
8,l)A3 12 

150.35 
14186.40 

As at 31 arch 20 
Amount In US 

As at 
31 ,.,,rch 2021 
Carrying value 

l ,352.37 
651,74 

2,719.66 
9.221>,76 

305.94 
167,31 

14 417.78 

77.8◄ 

4,213 92 
6.343.-40 

131. 17 
9 766,33 

0.56 

The m anagement ass.essed that fair value of abOve rln.andal ln5:truments measured at amOf"!ised cost approximate 10 their cerryrng amount5 la,gety due to 
the $hort-tenn mat.unties of these instruments. 

Financial lnsttuments measured at fair value through profit or loss 
Pa.rtJc.ulars Carrying value Fair value 

Financial assots 
Investments 

A.sat 31 Match 202:2 
As al 31 Match 2021 

42 Operating 1-egmentJ 

150.01 150.01 

F Ir v I 
Level 1 Lovol2 Level 3 

150.01 

a) c1,1er Operating Decision Mak er 
()petaUng segmen1s are repc,rted ma manner c:oog1stent with 1he 1ntema.t reporting to !he Chief Opm11ng OeC111on Maker (COOM), The Chief Ext'!c:utive omcer 
('CEO') 04 the Group has been 1oent1tled as the COOM as dehned by IM AS 108 Opera11ng Segments., who assesses lhe finanoa1 J)erlo,msnce ctnd P0$ition of 
the Group and mates stta1eg,c deosioos. 

b) Oporatlng Segment 
Primary Segment {Bu1iness Segment) 
The Group Is Of9Snised primarily Into two operating segments 1.e a) Financing - PrOY1cfing Joans to Aga, emerpnses, communi1y based orga.r'llsauons and tarme, 
J)(Oducet oro,an,satlons and ,ecuritlsat.on Qf such loans b) Ttadlng and allied aetivrties • Tred.ng ot ctgrfwltural produa.s and alied aalvitfes. 

Secondary Se,gm ont (G,ographlc.at Segment) 
S1nce the bus.1n~ss operattons of I.he Group are primanty concentrated.,, India. the Group •S cons1oered to operate only in the domesttc segmeot and therefore 

there 1$ no reportable geographic segment. 

c) Segment Revenue end Expenses 
Revenue and ex:penseJ have been klent1fied to a segment on tile be:sls ol relationship to operating adlvities d the segment 

d) Segment Assots and Llabllllle.s 
Segment assets and t,egmenl hablllties represent as.sets and Oal:lll1ties In respective segmen1s. 

e) Accounting Policies 
The aQOOUntlng polaoes constStenUy use<! in the preparation ot the finanoal statem~ts arc a.Isa appbed to 11ems ol revenut'! and expen0tl\lre in inclMdual 
&egments. 

Total tnoome 
Pur~ase o, Stock in Trade 
Fmanc& Costs 
Oeptedatt011 and Amorb:Utlon 
Employee Benefit Expen~s 
Pror,ll(Los.s) Set0te Tax 
Tax Expense 
Pror,11 Lo5s after Tax 

Financing 

1,599.57 

977.17 
'47.61 

627.70 
(9'!8.921 
(149,81) 
819.1 1 

For the Year ended 31 March 2022 

T rading and 
allied activities 

21,263,36 
2 1,590.20 

238.35 
17.18 

250.63 
(358 16) 
(11090} 
247.28 

Others Total 

22,862.93 
2 1,590,21) 

1,215.52 
6" 79 

878.33 
( 1,327 10) 

(:WO 71) 
1 066.39 
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Samunnalf Flnanclal Intermediation & Services Private Limited 
Summary ol signlfioant accounting polici es and other explanatory Information for the year ended 31 March 2022 
(AJI amounts are in millons ol lndJin Rupees (fJ unJes.s OlhfNWl.se $lated) I 

orrne Ttarond 31 March 21 

Particulars Financing 
Trading and 

Others Total 
1llled activities 

nevenue 1rom operauons , .~,◄.20 7,~, .,~ 9,,:.c1.9:'> 
Purchase ot Stoctc in Trad~ . 7,370.2e 7,370.26 
finence Coils 6,8-1 10 109 29 793.39 
Otpteaatlon and Amortiz.aoon 28.09 5.59 . 33.68 
Employee Benefit E)(J)enses 446,65 79 31 525.98 
PtoC1t/(loss) Before Tax 2.77 (90.29) 1 13 (86.39) 
Tax E.xs>enH (0.98) (19.14) (20.10) 
ProllVlloss)atterTax 3,73 (71.15) 1. 13 {66.29) 

For the Year e-nded 31 March 2022 

Partlculars Financ.lng 
Trading and 

Others TotaJ .111 .......... , .. 1o1 ..... 

-gmen1 I\SSets ,~.1-.46 6, 131.&4 1.,#,_,_ 

Seament Llablliues 10814.04 3633.52 14.447.56 

FOi lht Yurended 31 March 2021 

P·arilcuJ1rs Flnancing 
Trading and Otho,. Total 

allled ac tfvftles 
5egmenlAl&ets 11.065,4$ 3,324.71 2.91 1',993.07 
c-menl liablltie:s 7 782.27 2 19$.32 1.68 9 979.27 

«'Thi$ space has boon lntent,onalty Ntn blank>> 

94



SamunnatJ Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited 
Summary of significant accounting policies and othor explanatory infonnation for the year ended 31 March 2022 
(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees m. unless otheiwise staled) 

43 Maturity analysis of asset and liabilities 
The table below shows the maturity analysis of assets and liabilities according to when they are expected to be recovered or settled. 

As at 31 March 2022 A a• 11 March 2021 
Particulars Within After 

Total 
Within After 

Total 
12 months 12 months 12 months 12 months 

ASSETS 
Financial assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 1,167.65 . 1,167.65 1,352.37 . 1,352.37 
Other bank balances 450.91 61.24 512.15 595.87 55.87 651.74 
Trade receivables 3,477.40 . 3,477.40 2.719.66 . 2,719.66 
Loans 8,026.50 3,035.18 11 ,061.68 7,488.62 1,732.14 9,220.76 
Investments 178.90 13.47 192.37 421 .66 34.29 455.95 
Other financial assets 134.52 17.57 152.09 138.98 28.33 167.31 

13,435.88 3,127.46 16,563.34 12,717.16 1,850.63 14,567.79 

Non- financial assets 
Inventories 849.16 . 849.16 22.68 . 22.68 
Current tax assets (net) 189.33 189.33 . 62.51 62.51 
Defe11ed 1ax assels (net) . 396.54 396.54 . 145.61 145.61 
Properly. plant and equipment . 108.77 108.77 . 60.71 60.71 
Right of use assets . 31.23 31 .23 . 18.41 18.41 
Other intangible assets . 800.48 800.48 . 25.39 25.39 
Intangible assets under development . 71 .50 71 .50 . 15.38 15.38 
Other non-financial assets 243.94 . 243.94 74.02 0.57 74.59 

1,093.10 1,597.85 2,690.95 96.70 328.58 425.28 

LIABILITIES 
Financial l iabilities 
Trade payables 698.09 698.09 77.84 77.84 
Debt securities 914.70 4,380.14 5,294.84 1,440.82 2.773.10 4,213.92 
Borrowrngs (other than debt securities) 6,445.22 1.597.90 8,043.12 4,438.41 904.99 5,343.40 
Other financial liabilities 134.09 16.26 150.35 115.55 15.62 131.17 

8,192.10 5,994.30 14,186.40 6,072.62 3,693.71 9,768.33 

Non- financial liabilities 
Provisions 10.66 33.80 44.46 5.88 25.07 30.95 
Other non-financial liabilities 216.35 0.34 216.69 24.82 157.17 181.99 

227.01 34.14 261 .1 5 30.70 182.24 212.94 

<<This space has been jntenUonally left blank>> 
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SamunnaU Fl1u,nc1al Intermediation & Servtce.s Private Limited 
Summary ot s1gni11c.ant accounting pollcles and other o,cpfanatory lntormation for the year ended 31 March 2022 
(Ah amounts are ,n mllt,ons of Indian Rupees (f"), unless othermse staled) 

44 Borrowing details a.sat March 31 , 2022 

I. Debtsec urilies 

Date ot Rate of 
Balanc,e oul$tandlng 

Orlglnal Maturity of Loin Face Value 
Allotmonl Maturity Date 

Interest Due within Duo beyond 
ono wear one year 

Non Convonlblo Redeemable Debentures 
72 Month$ 10,00.000 2••Sep.18 2 .. S.,p.24 12.71% 0.40 150.00 
72 Monlh.s 10.00,000 24-Sep.18 2 .. S.,p.24 12.94% 0.79 300.00 
48 Monll\S 50,000 12-Dev18 12,0eo-22 12.30% 366.19 . 
36 Months 5,00,000 17-Jun-20 17-Jun-23 12.75% 50.39 25.00 
36 Monll\s 10,00.000 19✓un--20 19.Jun-23 13.00% 0.20 50.00 
33 months 8.75.000 25-Sep.20 25-Jun-23 12.40% 41.90 247.50 
36 Months 10.00.000 17-Jul-20 17-Jul,23 12.00% 21.21 250.00 
36 Months 10,00,000 15-0ev20 15-0eo-23 12.06% 127.84 336.00 
36 Months 10.00,000 15-0ee-20 15-0eo-23 12.06% 126.84 338.00 
36 Months 10,00.000 31~ar-21 01-Apr-24 12.30% 0.23 354.00 
60 months 5,000 20•/Wg·20 20-Aug-25 12.39% 7.64 506.25 
36 monlhs 10.00.000 05-Apr,21 05--Apr-2-" 11.64% 21.46 400.00 
60 monlhs 1,00,000 26-Ju~21 15-Jul-26 10,70% 7.27 345.00 
36 months 10.00,000 06-Sep,21 06-Sep-24 10.85% 1.78 244.00 
36 months 1,00,000 28·Cle<·21 27•Cle<•24 11.60% 134.39 246.67 
48 Months 10 00.000 15-Fet>-22 15-Fel>-26 12.16% 8.<1 594.00 

916.91 4 384.42 

II. Borrowings (other than debt securities) 
A.Lona Term 

Rate of Bal nee outstandina 
Orlglnal Maturity ot Loan lntcroat Duo within on .. "Oar Duo b""'..,nd ono vear 

No. of A....,.unt No. of A""'" "OI 
Monthly repayment of principal 
36 monlhs 0.125 12.00 70.71 6 .00 38.72 
36 months 11 .80% 12.00 52.26 7.00 33.40 
24 mon1hs 8.00 94.71 . . 

0.1175 
39 months 9.45% 12.00 134.40 16,00 170,40 
18 monlhs 11 .50% 12.00 478.77 1,00 43.82 
18 monlh.s 12.25% 12.00 102.68 1.00 9.07 
24 months 12.00 143.63 9.00 107.20 

0.1 125 
24 months 10.60% 12.00 150.00 12.00 150.00 

37 Months 9.50% 12.00 44,59 25.00 92.9t 
19 Months 12.25% 12.00 11.34 7.00 6.62 
36 Months 14.50% 12.00 25.04 24.00 50.08 

Quartorty repa,yment of principal 
36 months 12.00% 4,00 250.00 . . 
35 months 11.75% 4.00 50.00 2.00 25.00 
38 monlhs 11.50'/o 4.00 51.21 7,00 87.50 

"' 
30 months 11.60% 4.00 300.00 6.00 450.00 

.i Annual repayment of principal 
8 months 10.69% . 4 .65 3.00 365.02 

1 964.00 1 629.74 II ;c ,-

'b 
* 

Total 
Security Details 

150.40 
300.79 
366.19 

75.39 
50.20 

289,40 
271.21 
463.84 Book Debts 
462.84 
354.23 
513.89 
421.◄6 

352.27 
245.78 
381.05 
602.41 

5,301.33 

,01a, Security Details 

109.<3 Book Oebls 
85.67 Book Oebls 
94.71 Book Debts. Posl dated cheques and Cash 

Collateral 
30• .80 
522.60 Book Oebls 
111.75 Book Oeb1s 
250.83 Book Oeb1s, PoSI doled cheques and C.sh 

Collateral 
300.00 

-
137.50 '4-v-¥E01Affo, 17,96 

C ~ 75,12 -~ ~ ~ 
"' Prom,ss.ory Note and Book [;: 

250.00 Promi$sory Note <1nd Book ( o/ 75.00 7,1~rs * ~ 
138.71 
750.00 8ook Debts and Post dated cheques 

369.67 Book Oebis 
3 593.74 
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Samunnati Flnanelal lntormodlation & Services Private LJmitod 
Summary of significant account ing pollciets and othor e xp lanatory information for tha year ended 31 March 2.022 
(All amounts &1'81t1 '"'1IIOIIS ol lnctran Rupees((). unrau orh8'W1!6 SlatOdJ 

B Short Torm 

Original maturity o f loan Rate of interes1 
No of 

Amount Security detalts 
Instalments 

Bullet Reoa1; ment of ririncinal 
&months 8.75% 1 199.00 

Book debts and Cash 
12 months 10.90% 1 95.00 Collateral 
12 months 10.75% 1 155.00 
Monthtv Re11awment of Prlnclrial 
9 months 11 .50% 9 167.28 

Sook deb!S and Cash 
9 months 11.35% 9 288.31 Collateral 
6 months 11.35% 6 250.70 
12 months 10.75% 12 25.67 
12 months 11.25% 12 503.33 Book Debts 
12 months 12.00% 9 245 .44 
12 months 12.50% 12 100.07 Book debts a..i Cash 
3 Months 7 .75% 2 64.47 
2 MonthS 7.95% I 94.74 
2 Month$ 8.15% 1 300.00 
2 Months 8.50% I 50.00 
7 Months 8.50% 3 5.64 
3 Month& 8.75% 2 100.59 
1 Months 11 .15% 1 300.00 
12 Months 11 .25% 10 135.00 
6 Months 11 .00% 6 188.66 
6 Months 11 .70% 6 100.00 
9 Months 11 .80% 9 362.37 
12 Months 12.00% 9 180.00 
Quartertv Roriavment of Prlnclnal 
3 months 7.75% I 90.19 
4 months 11.75% I 250.00 
3 monIhs 7.50% 1 14.55 
3 months 7.80% 1 6 .43 
3 months 8 .40% I 17.99 
3 months 8 .50% I 17.76 
3 months 9 .10% 1 81.58 
Half Yoanv Rooavmont of PrfnclDal 

7 months 8 .50% 1 87.69 Bool< debts a..i Cash 
Coll.lteraJ 

Ill.OD becked bv FD Not Ant11icable 23.77 
4,.C81 .22 
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Samunnati Flnanclal Intermediation & Service$ PrivjtO L1mltod 
Summary of .significant accounting poflclcs and other oxplanatory Information tor lho year ended 31 March 20·22 
(AH omounts are m m4l,ons ol lndran Rupees (f}, unless otherw,se Slaled} 

Borrowing Details a.s Jil 31 March 2021 
I. Debt secur10es 

Oate of Rate of 
Balance outstandina 

Original Maturity of Loan Face VaJue 
Allotment 

Maturity Date 
ln·torest 

Due within Duo beyond 
one voar ono vear 

30 Monll>$ 1.00.000 Oct 09, 2018 Apr 09. 2021 12.60% 214.19 -
37 Months 1.00.000 Moy 13. W18 Jt1n 07. 2021 12.10% 351.95 -
33 months 10.00,000 Nov 30, 2018 Aug 31 , 2021 t2.60% 249.35 -
72 Monll>$ 10,00,000 5ep 2•. 2018 Sep 21 , 2021 12.60% 455.85 -
48 Months 1,00,000 De<: 12. 2018 Oec 12, 2022 12.30% 13.10 353.10 
36 Months 8,33,333 Jun 17, 2020 Jtin 17, 2023 12.80% 52.16 75.00 
36 Months 10,00,000 Jun 19. 2020 Jun 19. 2023 13.00% 0.24 SO.DO 
33 months 10,00,000 5ep 25, 2020 Jun 25. 2023 11.70% 41.85 288.75 
36 Months 10,00,000 Jut 17,2020 Jul 17, 2023 12.00% 21.43 250.00 
36 Montl\s 10,00,000 De<: 15, 2020 Oec 15, 2023 12.10% 16.01 448 .00 
36 Months 10,00.000 Dec 15, 2020 Oec 15. 2023 12.10% 16.01 448 .00 
36 Mon1h, 10.00.000 Mor 31. 2021 Apr 01, 2024 12,30% 0.12 354.00 
60 monlhs 5000 Aua 20 2020 A•~ 20. 2025 12.40% 8.56 506.25 

1,440.82 2 nJ.10 

II, Borrowings (Othor than Debt Securities) 
A.Lono Term 

Bo1lance outstandlno 
Rate o·f . w I , """ vear Duo ,......,,. nd ono vear Original M&turlty ot Loan 
lntorost No. of Amount No. of Amount 

Instalments Instalments 
Monthly repayment ot prlnclpal 
36 months 12.75% 12 62.56 18.00 109.30 
36 months 13.50% 8 22.27 - -
24 months 12.50% 8 16.71 - . 
24 months 12.50% 8 16.71 - . 
36 months 9.45% 9 50.◄5 27.00 149.60 
24 Months 10.00% 12 82.57 - -
24 Months 11 .75% 12 125.00 12.00 93.75 
36 months 11 .80% 12 ◄6.◄7 19.00 85.44 
18 Months 14.00% 5 51 .12 - -
36 months 14.00% 12 66.61 12.00 75.12 
18months 12.98% 12 61.92 3 .00 23.20 

Quarterty repayment of prlnelpal 
36 months 12.00% 4.00 250.00 4 .00 250.00 
35 Months 11.75% 4.00 50.00 6.00 75.00 

902.39 861 .41 

Tolal 
Security Oetalls 

214.19 
351.95 
249.35 
455.85 
366.20 
127.16 
50.24 Book Oebts 

330.60 
271.43 
464.01 
464.01 
354.12 
514.81 

4 213.92 

Total 
Security Details 

171.86 
22.27 Book deb1s and Post Daled Cheques 
16.71 
16.71 

200.05 
82.57 

218.75 
131,91 Book debts and Cash Collateral 
51.12 

14 1.73 
Book debts 

85.12 

500.00 Book debts and Cash CollateraJ 
125.00 Book debts 

1 763.80 
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Samunnatl Flnanclal lnlormediatlon & Services Privalc Limited 
Summary of slgnHJcant accounting policies and other explanatory lnlorma1lon for tho year ended 31 Morch 2.022 
(All amounts 8/e ,n mH,oos of Indian Rupees (t}, un.lt!s.s OlhlHWlse stated) 

B Short..t.erm 

Orlglnal mat"urlty of loan Rate of lntere:st 
No of 

Amount SOcurtty details 
Instalments 

Quarterfy repayment of princlpal 
12 months I 11,00% 3 143.00 Book debls and Cash 
12 mon1M 8.00% 3 8.00 Collateral 
Monthty Repaymen·t ol Principal 
12 Months 9.00% 12 200.00 
12 months 11 % 1012% 12 629. 17 

Book debts and Cash 
6 mon1hs 11 ,00% , 150.00 Colfaleral and letter o f comfort 
6moo1hS 9.00% 1 201.00 from holding company 
6 m<>nlhS 9.80% 6 601.01 
6 months 8.00% 1 7.00 
9 months 13.00% 3 167.00 

Sook debts .ind Post Dated 
9 months 12.00% 6 336.00 Cheques 
9 months 12.00% 9 500.00 
12 months 12.00% 5 22.00 Book debts and letter or 
8monthS 7.00% 1 29.00 comlon from -1ng 
2 Months 9.75'4 1 90.37 Company 
c.oo backed by FD Nol Apphcable 127,00 Cash Collateral 
C.8111 Discounting 8.85% 10 12% 1 177.50 Book Debts 
Facility 
C.Commerclal P·aoer 12.30% 1 147.97 Unsecured 

3,536.02 
Nole The balance oulstand1ng as on 31 March 2022 & 31 March 2021 does no1 include amon1sed bonowing cosL 

« T111s spa,c,o has been rnu.mtk>nally leh blank» 
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Samunnati Flnanclal lntennediatlon & Services Private Limited 
Summarv of siqnificant aceountlnQ potic1es and other explanatorv Information for the vear ended 31 March 2022 
{AR amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees (f), unless Olhetwise slated) 
45 Rolated partv disclosure 

a) Names of related arties and relatlonshl 
eat ons 1p 

Enttt in wh'ich directors has si nificant inOuence 

b ) Related partv transactions 

Nature of transactions 

Anil Kumar s G 
Remuneration • 

Gurunath N 
Remuneration • 

Nitin Chaudhary 
Remuneration • 
Loans given 
Loans repaid 

Ptavesh Sharma 
Remuneration paid 
Salary deduction of Director (Loan re<:overy) 

Ashok Ohamankar 
Remuneration • 

Niranjan Chandra:Sekaran 
Ramuneration • 

Ashwlnl Venkataraman 
Remuneration • 

Arunkumar Sridharan 
Remuneration • 

Sitting fees paid 
Sun~ Satyapal Gulati 
Narasimhan Srinivasan 
Venkatesh Tagal 
Hemendra Mathur 

Anil Kumar S G • Director and CEO 
Gunmalh N • Director 
Pravesh Sharma• Dlre<:tor of Subsidlary Company (w.e.l Ap,1I27, 2021)) 
Hemendra Mathur. D~e<:tor of Subsidiary Company 
Anuj \/,jay Kumar Narang, Director of Subsidiary Company (w.e.l November 16. 2021 ) 
Nltin Chaudhary- Head. Strategy (Director till October 30, 2021) 
Ashok Dhamankar • Group Chier Financial Officer 
N1ranjan Chandrasekaran - Company Se<:..,tary (upto 29 May 2020) 
Ashwlnl Venkataraman • Company Sectetary (from 06 November 2020) 
Mr. Arunkumar Sridharan Company Sectetary (w.e.f. March 11. 2022) 
Independent directors: 
Sunll Satyapal Gulati 
Narasimhan Srinivasan 
Venkatesh Tagat 
Nominee directors: 
Mahendran Salaehandran 
Jyot$na Knshnan 
AAshay Dua 
Rekha Natra an Unnllhan 
RMera Investors Pnvate limited 

Year ended 
31 March 2022 

21 .75 

11.86 

9.12 
. 

0. 15 

1.43 
1.10 

16.94 

. 

0 .28 

0. 10 

1.26 
1.11 
0.98 
0.02 

Year ended 
31 March 2021 

18.12 

8.28 

8.86 
1.00 
0.85 

. 

. 

12.74 

0.17 

0.28 

. 

0.83 
0.70 
0.88 . 

• The provision for gratuity and compensated absences is made on 1he ba$~S of acluanal valuation for all the employees of the Group, 
tnclud,ng the managersal personnel. Proportionate amounl of gratuity and compensated absences is not included in the above disclosure. 
smce the exact amount Is no1 aseertamable. 

c) Balances at the end of the car 

Particulars 
As at 

31 March 2022 
As at 

31 March 2021 

2.32 0 
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Samunnatl Finc1nc-ial lntormodiation & Services Private Limited 
Summary ot significant accounting pollclos and other explanatory Information for tho yoar ended 31 M3rch 2022 
{All amounts are ,n mil1'ons of Indian Rupees (fJ. unJes.s otherwise. stated) 

4$ Addltlonat Information on tho entities Included in the consolidated financial s·tatoments 
As at 31 March 202:2 As at 31 March 2021 

Name of tho ontiry In tho Group 

Parent / The Holding Company 
SubsldJarlos(lndlan): 
Samunnati A{Jro SolUtiOns Privale llmhed 
Kamaran Farm Tech Private Um.ted 
5arrw.,nnati ~lnanoe Private Umited 
Samurmati F oundatlOfl 

Year ondod 31 March 2022 

Namo of tho cnt.lty Int.ho Group 

Parenv The Holding Company 
Subsldlorlos(lndlan): 
Samunnati Agro Solu,,o,ns Privale Limlted 
Kamatan Farm Tech Private Limited 
Sarnunnati Finance Pnvate Limited 
Samunnat1 Fotl'ldatlon 

Year ended 31 March 2021 

Name of tho on1lry In tho Group 

Parenv The Holding Company 
Subsldlarlos(lndlan): 
Sam..1nnatl Agro SohJIJons Private Limited 
Samunnatl Foundation 

Net Assets t o total 
assets minus total 

liabllltles 
3,083.85 

1,703.47 
19.39 
0.03 
. 

4 ,806.74 

Shore In profit or loss 

(815.56) 

(209.55) 
(41,31) 

0 .03 

(1,066.39) 

Sh.aro ln profll or loss 

(109.82) 

4 2.40 
1.13 

(66. 29) 

As a percentage of Net Assets l.e total As a percentage of 
consoUdatod net assol$ minus total consoUdated not 

assets liabilities assets 
64.16% 3,883.18 77.45% 

35.44% 1,129.39 22.53% 
0.40% . 0.00% 
0 .00% - 0.00% 
0.00% 1.23 0,02% 

5,013.80 

As a porcontago of As a percentage of 
Share In other consolldatOd other 

consolidated profit or 
comprehensive Income comprehensive 

(loss) 
income 

76.48% 2.07 106.70% 

19,65% 0.13 6 .70% 
3.87% (0.26} • 13.•0% 
0.00% . 0 .00% 
0.00% - 0.00% 

1.94 

As a percentage o·I 
As a percentage of 

Share In other consolidated other consolidated p,oflt or 
comprehensive Income comprehenslvo (lOH) 

Income 
165,67% 4 11 86.53% 

-63.96% 0 .6• 13.47% 
•1.70% 0.00% 

4.75 

<<This ${)8Ce has been ,ntendonally left blank>> 

--, 

As a poroentago of 
Share In total 

comprohonslvc income 
total comprehensive 

Income 

(813.49) 76.42% 
. 

(209.42) 19.67% 
(41.57) 3.91% 

0.03 0 .00% . 0 .00% 

As a perccntago of 
Share In total 

comprehensive incomo 
total comprehonstvo 

income 

(105.71) 171.77% 

43,04 -69.94% 
1,13 -1 .84% 

(61.54) 
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SamunnatJ Financial fntermedlatfon & Services Private L,lmlted 
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year endod 31 March 2022 
(All amounts are m mitllons of Indian Rupees (t) , unless otherw1se stated) 

47 Trade receivables aoelno schedule 

C1Jrrent but 
Outitandlnci for following oeriod from duo date of oavment 

not due Loss than 6 months. 
1 • 2 year,; 2. 3 years 

More than 

6 months 1 vear 3 vears 

As at March 31 , 2022 
Undisouted Trade Rec::efVables considered aood 2,817.03 471 00 . . . . 
Undlspuled Trade Rece1,ables -which have . 133.00 119.97 . . 
sianifieant increase in credit risk 
Undisouted Trade recelvab~ - credit imnaired . . 4.60 96.80 125.16 101.96 
Disouted Trade recefvab1es • conside,ed nood . . . . . . 
Di$puted Trade receivables-which have . . . . . . 
sianificant increase in credrt risk 
Disputed Trade receivables - credit imnaired . . . . . . 
10••· 2,817.03 604.00 124.57 96.80 125.16 101.96 

less. Alk>wence 7or expected credit loss 
Net I0lal 

As at March 31 2021 

Current but 
Outstandln 1 for following period from due date of oavment 

not due 
Less than 6 months • 1 • 2 years 2 • 3 year,; 

More than 

6 months 1 vear 3 vears 

Undisouted Trade Recervables - considered aood 2 433 09 134.34 . . . . 
Und1sputed Trade Recervabfes - which have . 15.30 61.65 . . . 
s,onificant increase in aed1t nsk 
Undisouted Trade receivable credit imoalred . . 150.21 62.81 20.87 
Oisouted Trade receivables• considered oood . . . . . . 
Disputed Trade rece,vebles -wh,eh have 
sianificant Increase In credit risk 

. . . . . 

Oiscuted Trade receivables - credit imna1red . . . . . . 
lolal 2,433.09 149.64 61.65 150.21 62.81 20.87 

Less. Allowance for expected credn loss 
r,Ot IOtal 

◄8 Trade payables ageing schedule 
As at March 31, 2022 

Particulars Not Due 
Less than 

1·2 years 2·3 years 
More than 

ToIal 
1 vear 3 vears 

••IMSME 0.67 . . . . 0.67 

,n Others 32.52 643.19 17.51 1.38 2.82 697.42 

11il Olsouled dues • MSME . . . . . . 
rv) Disputed dues• Others . . . . . . 
Total 33.1 9 643.19 17.51 1.38 2.82 698.09 

As at March 31 , 2021 

Paniculars Not Due 
Less than 1-2 years 2-3 years 

More than 
Total 

1 vear 3 vears 

1 MSME . . . . . . 
I Others . 76.33 1.42 0.09 . 77.84 

111 Oisou1ed dues • MSME . . . . . . 
Iv) D1souted dues • Olhers . . . . . -

Total 76.33 1 .42 0.09 . 77.84 

<<Th,s space hos been 1ntenttonofly left blonk>> 

Total 

3288.03 

252.97 

328.52 
. 
. 

. 
3,869.52 
1392.121 

3,477.40 

Total 

2,567.44 

76.95 

233.89 
. 
. 
. 

2,878.28 

1158.621 
2,71 9.66 
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Samunnati Financial lntennedlallon & Services Private Limited 
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory lnfonnation for the year ended 31 March 2022 
(All amounts are rn millions of Indian Rupees (( ). unless otherwise stared) 

49 Covid-19 impact 

The Outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic across the globe and in India has contributed to a significant decline and volatility in the 
global and Indian financial markets and corresponding slowdown in the economic activities. The Group has developed 
estimates and applied management overlays for the purpose or detennination or the provision for impainnent of financial 
assets and provisions held by the Group are in excess of the RBI prescribed norms (wherever applicable). As the pandemic 
situation is dynamic and still evolving, the extent lo which it will continue lo impact the Group's results is dependent on ongoing 
as well as future developments. which are highly uncertain. The Group will continue to monitor future economic conditions and 
update its assessment. 

Considenng the unique and wide spread impact of COVID-19, the Group has estimated credit loss ('ECL') allowance towards 
its loan assets and managed portfolio of Rs. 352.53 mfllion and Rs. 392.12 million towards trade receivables, based on the 
information available at this point in time including economic forecasts. The Group believes that it has considered all the 
possible impact of the known events arising out or COVID-19 pandemic in the preparation of these financial statements. 

The underlying forecasts and assumptions applied by the Group in determination of ECL allowance are subject to uncertainties 
which are often outside the control of the Group and accordingly, actual results may differ from these estimates. Any potential 
excess/shortfall based on actual experience will be adjusted In the relevant period in Mure. The Group will continue to closely 
monitor the Impact and any material changes in both the internal and external environments. The Group has been duly 
servicing its debt obligations. The Group's Management believes that Capital Adequacy and Liquidity position remains strong 
and shall continue to be an area of focus. 

50 Additional regulatory disclosures 

a. The Group owns freehold land and the title deeds or the freehold land is held in the name of the Group. 

b. The Group does not hold any Investment property and hence the disdosure on fair valuation of investment property is 
not applicable to the Group. 

c. The Group has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (Including right-of-use assets) and intangible assets and 
hence the disclosure on revaluation of property. plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) and Intangible 
assets is not applicable to the Group. 

d. Prior to acquisition, Kamatan Farm Tech Private Limtted had granted loan of Rs 4.30 million in FY 2017-18 to a 
promoter/ director. As per the sanction terms the loan is to be repaid within 2 years from the date or sanction that is OS. 
11-2020. However the amount has been partially repaid and the balance o/s as on March 31, 2022 is Rs 2.32 million. 

e. The Group has borrowings from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of book debts and cash 
collaterals. The book debts are separately assigned to each borrower I financial institution and end use certificates are 
being filed with the borrower / financial institutions. 

I. No benami property are held by the Group and or no proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Group 
for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made 
thereunder. 

g. The Group has not been declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or any other lender. 

«this space has been intentionally /ell blank» 
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Samunnatl Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited 
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory Information for the year ended 31 March 2022 
(Alf amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees (t), unless otherwise stated) 

h, The Group has reviewed transaclions to identify if there are any transactions with struck off companies. To the extent 
Information Is available on struck off companies, the following are the transactions with struck off Companies: 

Nature of 
Balance Balance 

Name of the struck off company' 
transactions w ith outstanding as at outstanding as at 

struck off 
comoanv 

March 31 , 2022 March 31, 2021 

Aamrapalli Agro Producer Company Receivables 
Limited" 

. 1.12 

Greentech Paper Boards Private Limited Advance to 
. . 

ltarsi Oils & Flours Private Limited 
Suppliers 

0.38 0.17 

• The balances was com letel written off m the current ear. p y y 
'The Group does not hold any relationship with the struck off Companies. 

I. There Is no charges or satisfaction in relation to any debt / borrowings yet to be registered with ROC beyond the 
statutory period. 

j. The Group has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with 
Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017. 

k. The Group has not entered into any scheme(s) of arrangements and hence the disclosure on compliance with 
approved scheme(s) of arrangements is not applicable to the Group. 

I. Other than the transactions that are carried out as part of Group's normal lending business: 

A) The Group has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or share premium or any other 
sources or kind of funds) to any other person(s) or entity(ies), Including foreign entitles (Intermediaries) with the 
understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Intermediary shall • 
(a) direcUy or indirectly lend or invest mother persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of 
the Group (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries: 

B) The Group has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), Including foreign entities (Funding Party) 
with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Group shall • 
(a) direcUy or indirecUy lend or Invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of 
the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficianes. 

m. There are no transactions which have not been recorded in the books of accounts and has been surrendered or 
disclosed as Income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961. Also, there are no 
previously unrecorded income and related assets. 

n. The Group has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year. 

51 The Code on Social Security, 2020 ('Code') relating to employee benefits during employment and post-employment benefits 
received Presidential assent in September 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the date on 
which the Code will come into effect has not been notified. The Group will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into 
effect and will record any related impact in the period the Code becomes effective. ~o:-<Jl!!DW10-I'_. 

~ ~ 
~ ,; 
.:;. ~ 
::. '.I, 
~. .~ jJ ...... 
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52 Previous year figures have been regrouped / rearranged. wherever considered necessary, to conform to the ciassification / 

disclosure adopted in the current year. 

As per our report or even date attached 
For PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP 
Chartered Accountants l;;;:;;:>:::;f ;:_: 003990S/S200018 

Kothandaraman V 
PaMer 
Membership No.: 025973 

Place: Chennai 
Date: May 26, 2022 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Samunl atl Financial lntennediation & S~ t~ Limited 

S~i~ ~ ~eelamani 
Director and CEO hole-time Director 
DIN . 01189011 DIN . 02799586 

~ 
Group Chief Financial Officer 

Place: Chennal 
Date: May 26, 2022 

Arunkumar Sridharan 
Company Secretary 
Membership No.: F7112 
Place: Chennai 
Date: May 26, 2022 
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PKF SRI DHAR & SANTHANAM LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Members of Samunnatl Financial Intermediation & Services Private Llmited 

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the standalone financial statements of Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services 
Private Limited ("the Company'), which comprise the standalone balance sheet as at 31 March 2022, 
and the standalone statement of Profit and Loss including o ther comprehensive income, standalone 
statement of changes in equity and standalone statement or cash flows for the year then ended, and 
notes to the standalone financial statements, Including a summary o f signi ficant accounting policies and 
other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as ·standalone financial slalemenls"), 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 
('the Act') in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2022, and 
loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and Its cash flows for the year ended on that 
date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing ($As) specified under section 
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilit ies under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Acoountants o f India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit o f the 
staMalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have 
fulfilled our 0U1er ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion. 

Emphasis of matter 

We draw attention to Note 44 to the financial statements, about the uncertainties prevailing on the 
balance sheet date on the recoverability of the company's loans and advances on account of the 
COVID-19 impact. The estimates and assumptions made by management in determining the 
impairment provision required for these loans are subject to matters that are outside the control of the 
Company and hence actual results may vary from these estimates. 

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matter. 

Key Audi t Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our 
audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in u,e 
context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion 
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matter 
described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report. 

Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed 
Provision for expected credit loss (ECL) on loans Read and assessed the Company's accounting 
(Refer Note 5 and Note 23 to the Standalone Ind AS policy for impairment of financial assets and its 
Financial Statements) compliance with Ind AS 109, the governance 

framework approved by the Board o f Directors 
Financial instruments, which include loans to and moratorium pursuant to the RBI circular and 
customers, represent a significant portion of the total tested the implementation of such policy on a 
assets of the Comnan". The Comoanv has loans samr le basis. 

Page 1 of 12 -
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aggregating Rs. 12,833.79 million as at March 31 , 
2022. The Company has made a provision for 
Impairment loss aggregating Rs. 352.53 million 
against the loans outstanding to Customers as at the 
balance sheet date. Due to the significance of the 
judgments used in both classification of loans Into 
various stages as well as the computation of expected 
credit losses on such financial assets as per Ind AS 
109, this has been considered as a key audit mailer. 

Management estimates impairment provision using 
Expected Credit Loss model for the loan exposure 
using criteria In accordance with Ind AS 109 which 
also include considering the impact of recent RBl's 
regulatory circulars. Measurement of loan Impairment 
Involves application of significant judgement by the 
management. These include: 

(a) Segmentation of the loan portfolio into 
homogenous pool of borrowers; 

(b) Identification of exposures where there is a 
significant Increase in credit risk ('SICR') and those 
that are credit impaired; 

(c) Determination of the probability of default for each 
of the segments identified; and 

(d) Loss given defautt for various exposures based on 
past trends/ experience, management eslimates etc., 

Additionally, the economic and business 
consequences of the COVID 19 pandemic as 
described in Nole 44 to the standalone Ind AS 
financial statements, slowdown of economic activity, 
moratoriums granted to borrowers, the related 
regulatory directives and also the applicable 
accounting directions, further affect provisioning 
under the ECL approach. 
Nole 2.5 to the standalone Ind AS financial 
statements explains the various matters that the 
management has considered for developing !his 
exoected credit loss model. 

Assessed the criteria for staging of loans based 
on their past-due status to check compliance with 
requirement of Ind AS 109. T esled a sample of 
performing loans (stage 1) to assess whether any 
SICR or loss indicators were present requiring 
them to be classified under stage 2 or 3 or vice 
versa along with additional considerations applied 
by the Management for staging of loans as SICR 
or default categories in view of Company's policy 
on moratorium. 

Tested the input data used for grouping and 
staging of loan portfolio into various categories 
and derault buckets for dete1111inin9 the 
Prooabil~y of Derault (PD) and Loss Given 
Default (LGDJ rates. Also, tallied the input data 
with the underlying books of accounts and 
records. 

Tested assumptions used by the management In 
determining the overlay for macro-economic 
factors (including COVID-19 pandemic). 

Assessed and tested the inputs used in the 
impairment computation (including the data 
integrity of information extracted from the 
Company's IT systems). 

Tested the arithmetical accuracy of computation 
of ECL provision performed by lhe Company in 
spreadsheets. 

Assessed disclosures included in the standalone 
Ind AS financial statements in respect of 
expected credit losses including the specific 
disclosures made with regard to the 
management's evaluation of the uncertainties 
arising from COVID-19 and Its Impact on ECL 
estimation. 

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditors' Report Thereon 

The Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation of the other 
inrormation. The other information comprises t11e information included in the Directors report but does 
not include the standalone financial statements and our auditors· report thereon. These reports are 
expected to be made available to us after the date of !his audlto(s report. 

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other Information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion !hereon. 

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially Inconsistent with lhe 
standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated. When we read the reports containing the other information, if we conclude that 
there is a material misstatement therein. we are required to communicate lhe matter to those charged 
with governance. 
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Responsibilities of the Management and Those Charged with Governance for Standalone 
Financial Statements 

The Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters slated in section 
134(5) of the Act wtth respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a 
true and fair view of the state of affairs, loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and 
c.ish flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, 
including the Indian accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Act. This 
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance wtth lhe 
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting 
frauds and olher irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of 
the standalone financial statements lhat give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management and Board of Directors are responsible 
for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters 
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either 
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process .. 

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements 
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material missJatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually 
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users 
taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial slalements. 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk 
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of Internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(Q of the Act, we are 
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate Internal financlal 
controJs with reference to the standalone financial statements in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounling policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events 
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue, as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our 
auditors' report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence 
obtained up to the date of our auditors' report. However, future events or conditions may cause the 
Company to cease to continue as a going concern; and 
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• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and liming of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that 
were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and 
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors' report unless law or 
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we 
determine that a matter should not be communicated In our report because the adverse consequences 
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such 
communication, 

Other Matters 

The audited Standalone financial statements of the Company for the corresponding year ended 31 

March 2021 prepared in accordance with Ind AS included in these standalone financial statements, 

have been audited by the predecessor auditors whose audit report dated 29 July 2021 expressed an 
unmodified opinion on those audited Standalone financial statements. 

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 

Report on Other Legat and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditors' Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), issued by the 

Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in 

the "Annexure A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to 
the extent applicable. 

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so 
far as tt appears from our examination of those books. 

(c) The standalone Balance Sheet, the standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including other 
comprehensive income), the standalone s1ateme111 of Changes in Equity and the standalone 
statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are In agreement with the books of account. 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting 
Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act. 

(e) The matter described in the Emphasis of matter paragraph above, in our opinion, may have an 
adverse effect on the functioning of the Company. 

(f) On lhe basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2022 
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 
2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

(g) Wrth respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to the e 
financial s1atements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such co • 
our separate Report in "Annexure B". r~ ~ ,.j ....... ,£\\ 
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(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors' Report in accordance with Rule 
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to us: 

I. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as al 31 March 2022 on 
its financial position in its standalone financial statements - Refer Note 38 to the 
standalone financial statements: 

ii. The Company has long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which material 
foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2022 has been provided. 

iii. There were no amounts which were required lo be transferred to the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2022; and 

iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no 
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share 
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other 
persons or entities, including foreign entities ('lntennediaries"), with the understanding, 
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly 
or indirecUy lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any 
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no 
funds have been received by the company from any persons or entities. including 
foreign entities ('Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing 
or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest In 
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 
Funding Party ("Uttimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like 
on behalf or the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

(c) Based on such audit procedures that we have considered reasonable and 
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to 
believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material mis­
statement. 

v. The Company has not paid or declared dividend during the year and until the date of 
this report. 

3. Wrth respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors' Report under section 197(16): 

Since the Company is a private limtted company, the provisions of Section 197 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to it. Accordingly, reporting on the compliance with the 
provisions of Section 197 of the Act Is not applicable. 

For PKF Srldhar & Santhanam LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Finn's Regis~ No.~990S/S200018 

/,_') //,ft.q,~~ ... ~ -=-==:::: .... 
Kothandaraman V 
Partner 
Membership No. 025973 
UDIN: 22025973AJRHGQ6239 

Place of Signature: 
Date: May 26, 2022 
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Annexure A 

Referred to in paragraph 1 on 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requi rements' of our report 
of even date to the members of Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited 
("the Company" ) on the standalone financial statements as of and for the year ended 31 March 
2022. 

(i) (a) 

(fi) 

(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including 
quantitalive details and sihJation of Property, Plant and Equipment. 

(8) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible 
assets. 

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its Property, Plant 
and Equipment by which all Property, Plant and Equipment are verified in a phased 
manner over a period of three years. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical 
verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of 
its assets. Pursuant to the programme, certain Property, Plant and Equipment were 
physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion, and according 
to the. information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were 
noticed on such verification. 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, the records examined by 
us and based on the examination of the conveyance deeds ptovided to us, we 1eport 
that, the title deeds, comprising all the immovable properties (other than properties 
whete the company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in 
favour of the lessee) disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the 
Company as at Balance Sheet date. 

In respect of immovable properties of land and building that have been taken on lease 
and disclosed as leasehold lands/ buildings under property, plant & equipment/ right 
of use assets in the standalone financial statements, the lease agreements are in the 
name of the Company. 

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of 
Use assets) or intangible assets during the year and hence this clause is not 
applicable to the Company. 

(e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding 
any benami property under lhe Benami Transactions (Prohibitions) Act, 1988 (45 of 
1988) and rules made thereunder. 

a) The Company does not have any inventory. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ii) of the 
Order are not applicable to the Company. 

b) Based on our audit procedures & according to the information and explanation given to us, the 
Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees from 
banks or financial institution on the basis of security of current assets and hence the question 
of filing quarterly returns or statements by the company with such banks or financial institutions 
does not arise. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iQ(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(i1ij Based on our audit procedures & according lo the information and explanation given to us, the 
Company has made investments in and granted loans or advances in the nature of Joans, 
secured or unsecured, to companies, fim1s, Limited Liability Partnerships or any 0U1er parties 
in respect of which: 

(a) The Company's principal business is to give loans, and hence reporting under clause 
3(1il)(a) of the Order is not applicable. 
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(b) The investments made and the terms and conditions of the grant of all the above­
mentioned loans and advances in the nature of loans provided, during the year are, in our 
opinion, prima facfe, not prejudicial to the Company's interest. 

(c) In respect of loans granted or advances in the nature of loans provided by the Company, 
the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated, Note 
2,5 to the Standalone Financial Statements explains the Company's accounting policy 
relating to Impairment of financial assets which include loan assets. In accordance with 
that policy, loan assets with balances as at March 31 , 2022, aggregating Rs. 334.89 million 
were categorised as credit impaired ("Stage 3' ) and Rs. 767.04 million were categorised 
as those where the credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition ("Stage 
2'). Disclosures in respect of such loans have been provided in Note 5 to the Standalone 
Financial Statements. Additionally, out of loans and advances in the nature of loans with 
balances as at the year-end aggregating Rs. 11,731.86 million, where credit risk has not 
slgnificanUy Increased since Initial recognition (categorised as "Stage 1"), delay in the 
repayment of Interest and/or principal in respect of loans aggregating to Rs. 1,167.27 
million were also identified. In all other cases, the repayment of principal and interest Is 
regular. Having regard to the nature of the Company's business and the volume of 
information involved, it is not practicable to provide an itemised list of loan assets where 
delinquencies in the repayment of principal and inlerest have been identified. 

(d) The total amount overdue for more than ninety days, in respect of loans and advances in 
the nature of loans, as at the year-end is Rs. 477.21 million. Reasonable steps are being 
taken by the Company for recovery of the principal and interest as stated in the applicable 
Regulations and Loan agreements. 

(e) The Company's principal business Is to give loans, and hence reporting under clause 
3(111)(e) of the Order is not applicable. 

(f) Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanation given to 
us, the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either 
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment and hence 
the question of agg1egate amount, perce11tage thereof to the total loans granted, 
aggregate amount of loans granted to Promoters, related parties as defined in clause 76 
of section 2 of the Companies Act 2013 does not arise. Accordingly, paragraph 3(11i)(f) of 
the Order is not applicable. 

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us. the Company 
has not granted any loans or provided any guarantee or security to any director of the 
Company and hence the provisions of Section 185 of the Act is not applicable to the 
Company. The Company has complied with the provisions of Section 186 as applicable 

(v) Based on our audit procedures & according to the information and explanation given to us, 
the Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits 
within the meaning of the Act and the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India a11d 
the provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules 
framed thereunder. Accordingly, paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company. 

(vQ The Compa,iy is not required to maintain cost records specified by the Central Government 
under sub section (1) of section 148 of the Act Accordingly, paragraph 3(vi) of the Order is 
not applicable to the Company. 

(vii) 

(a) Accordlng to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the 
Company examined by us, except for a few delays, the Company has generally been 
regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Service Tax, 
provident fund, employees' state Insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duly of 
customs. duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other sta 
applicable with the appropriate authorities. 

Page 7 of 12 

112



Name of 
Statute 

According to the information and explanation given to us and the records of the 
Company examined by us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and 
Service Tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service 
tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues 
were in arrears, as al 31 March 2022 for a period of more than six months from the dale 
they became payable. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our 
examination of the re<:ords of the Company, there are no statutory dues referred to in 
sub-clause (a) as at 31 March 2022, which have not been deposited with the 
appropriate authorities on account of any dispute, except as stated below: 

the Nature of the Amount Amount Period to Forum where disputes is 
dues demanded not paid which pending 

deposited (Rs.in (Rs.in amounts 
millions\ millions) relates 

Income Tax Income tax 10.18 2.10 AY 2016-17 Commissioner of 

Act 1961 and Interest Income Tax /Anneals\ 

Income Tax Income tax 3.57 0.80 AY 2017-18 Commissioner of 
Act, 1961 and Interest Income Tax /Anneals) 

Income Tax Income tax 0.29 Nil AY 2018-19 Assessing Officer 
Act 1961 and Interest 

(viii) Based on our audit procedures and as per the information and explanations given by the 
management. no amount has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in 
the tax assessments under the Income Tax Ad. 1961 . Accordingly, paragraph 3(viii) of the 
order is not applicable to the Company. 

(ix) 

(x) 

(a) Based on our audit proc.edures and as per the information and explanations given by the 
management, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or 
in payment of interest thereon to any lender. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given lo us, the Company is not a declared 
wil~ul defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender. Accordingly, paragraph 
3(ix)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company 
examined by us. term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained. 

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company 
examined by us, no funds raised on short term basis have been utilized for long term 
purposes. 

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company 
examined by us, the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on acr.,ount 
of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix)(e) of the Order 
is not applical.\ie to the Company. 

(() According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company 
examined by us, the Company has not raised any loans during the year on pledge of 
securities held in its subsidiaries. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company. 

(a) Acr.,ording to the information and explanalio11s given to us, the Company did not raise 
money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) during 
the year and hene,e the question of whether money raised were applied for U1e purposes 
for which those are raised does not arise. Accordingly, paragraph 3(x) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company. 
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(xi) 

(b) The Company had acquired 100% stake in Kamatan Farm Tech Private Limited ('KFTPL') 
through a share swap on April 16, 2021. Pursuant to the agreement the Company has 
issued 67,624 Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares t'CCPS1 to the equity 
shareholders of KFTPL through a private placement. According to the information and 
explanations given lo us, the Company has complied with the requirements of section 42 
and section 62 of the Companies Act, 2013 to the extend applicable. Since no monies have 
been received, the question of whether the funds raised have been used for the purposes 
for which the funds were raised does not arise. 

(a) To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company has 
been noticed or reported during the year. 

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by us 
in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 
with the Central Government 

(c) To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and 
explanations given lo us, we report that no whistle blower complaints were received during 
the year by the Company. 

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhl company in accordance with Nidhi Rules 2014. Accordingly, 
paragraph 3(x0)(a) to (c) of the Order is not applicable. 

(xiii) Based on our audll procedures and according lo the information and explanations given to us, 
all the transactions entered into with the related parties during the year are in compliance with 
Section 177 and Section 188 of the Act where applicable and the details have been disclosed 
in the standalone financial statements as required by the Indian accounting standard Related 
Party Disclosures (Ind AS 24) 

(xiv) 
(a) To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and 

explanations given to us, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with 
the size and nature of its business. 

(b) We have considered the reports of the Internal Auditors for the period under audit. 

(xv) On the basis of the information and explanations given lo us, in our opinion, during the year the 
Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons 
connected with its directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act. 2013 
are not applicable to the Company. 

(xvi) 

(a) Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given to 
us, the Company Is required to be registered under Section 45-IA of Reserve Bank of India 
Act, 1934 (2 of 1934). 

(b) Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given to 
us, the Company has conducted Non-Banking Financial activities with a valid Certificate of 
Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 
1934. 

(c) Based on our audit procedures and according to the Information and explanations given to 
us, the Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations 
made by the Reserve Bank of India and hence the questions of fulfilling criteria of a CIC, 
and in case the Company is an exempted or unregistered CIC, whether ii continues to fulfill 
such criteria, do not arise. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to 
the Company. 

(d} Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given to 
us, none of the group companies are Core Investment Company (CIC) and hen 
question of number of CICs which are part of the Group does not arise. Accor 
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(xvii) 

(xviii) 

(xix) 

(XX) 

paragraph 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

The company has incurred cash losses of Rs. 768.39 million in the financial year and Rs. Nil in 
the Immediately preceding financial year. 

There has been a resignation by stalulory auditor pursuant to lhe Guidelines for Appointment 
of Statutory Central Auditors (SCAs)/Stalutory Auditors (SAs) of Commercial Banks (excluding 
RRBs), UCBs and NBFCs (including HF Cs) Issued by Reserve Bank of India on April 27, 2021 
(the "RBI Guidelines") as they have <X>mpleted the maximum eligible tenure of 3 years. We 
have requested for a no objection certificate from the outgoing auditors to which they have 
replied to us there is no objection in our taking up the statutory audit. 

On the basis of financial ratios, ageing and expected dales of realisation of financial assets and 
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our 
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans, we are of the opinion that no 
material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report of the Company's capability of 
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a 
period of one year rrom the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is nol an assurance 
as to the future viability of the <X>mpany. We further state that our reporting Is based on the facts 
up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all 
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet dale, will gel discharged 
by lhe company as and when they fall due. 

(a) In respect of olher than ongoing projects, the Company has nol transferred unspent amount 
to a Fund specified In Schedule VII to the Companies Act,2013 within a period of six months 
of the expiry of the financial year in compliance wilh second proviso lo sub-section (5) of 
section 135 of the said Act, except in respect of the following cases: 

Amount Amounl Amounl 
unspent on Transferred to Transferred after 

CSR activities Fund specified in the due date 
Date o f 

Financial year other than On Sch VII within 6 (specify the date 
deposit going Projects months from the of deposit) 

end of the 
(Rs. In Financial Year (Rs. in millions) 

millions) <Rs. in millions\ 
2021-22 0.17 . . . 

However, the lime peliod for such transfer as permitted under lhe second proviso to sub 
section (5) of section 135 of the Act. has not elapsed till the date of our audit report. 

(b) Based on our audit.procedures and according to the information and explanations given to 
us, lhe Company is not required to transfer unspent amount under sub-section (5) of seclion 
135 of the Companies Act, pursuant to ongoing project to special account in compliance 
wilh provision of sub-sectJon (6) of section 135. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xx)(b) ofthe Order 
is not applicable to the Company. 

For PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm's Regislrfi'ln No.~990S/S200018 

I ?.).£11,.,;,v~ 
Kothandaraman V 
Partner 
Membership No. 025973 
UDIN: 22025973AJRHGQ6239 , 

Place of Signature: Chennai 
Date: May 26, 2022 
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Annexure B 

Referred to in paragraph 2(g) on 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' of our report 
of even date 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to the aforesaid standalone financial 
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's managemenl and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining 
internal financial controls based on the internal control with reference to financial statemenls criteria 
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance 
Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, 
including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of Its assets, the prevention and detection of 
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of 
reliable financial Information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as · the 
Acr). 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and 
the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit 
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note 
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were 
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financlal 
controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial 
controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and 
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on 
the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone financial statements 

A Company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's 
internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that 
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of lhe Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles, and thal receipts and expenditures of the Company are being 
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and direclors of the Company; and (3) provide 
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or 
disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone financial statements 

Because of the inherent !imitations of Internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, 
including the possibility of collusion or Improper management override of controls, material misstatements 
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the · ~ A4-
financial controls with reference to financial statements lo future periods are subject lo the ri !i,&-iiiiRl,.,, 

Si ' 
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internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes 
in conditions, or that the degree of compfianca with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

We have audited the internal financial conltols with reference to standalone financial statements of 
Samunnali Financial Intermediation & Servic,,..s Private Limited ("the Company') as of 31 March 2022 in 
conjunctlon with our audil of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on thal 
date. 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls wilh 
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31 
March 2022, based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by lhe 
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Nole on Audit of 
lnlernal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the lnstilute of Chartered Accounlants of India 
(the "Guidance Note"). 

For PKF Sridhar & Sanlhanam LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm's Registration No.003990S/S200018 

(,~~£ 
Kothandaraman V 
Partner 
Membership No. 025973 
UDIN: 22025973AJRHGQ6239 

Place of Signature: Chennai 
Date: May 26, 2022 
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3amunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Prfvate Limited 
Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022 
'All ,.mounts are In millions of /net/an Rupees({), unless othe!Wise stated) 

O.Ssets 
=1nanclal assets 
:'.:ash and cash equivalents 
Jther bank balances 
-oans 
nvestments 
:>!her financial assels 

~on-financial assets 
; urrenl tax assets {net) 
)eferred tax assets {net) 
>roperty, plant and equipment 
, ight of use assets 

Particulars 

ntangible assa.ts under development 
)ther intangible assets 
:>lher non-financial assels 

fatal assets 

. labllltles and Equity 

. !abilities 
'lnanclal liabilities 

Note 

3 
4 
5 
6 
7 

8 
9 

10 
10 
10 
10 
11 

'ayablas 12 
Trade Payables 

(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 
Qi) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 
small enterprises 

)ebtsecurities 13 
lorrowings (other than debt securities) 14 
)ther financial liabilities 15 

~on-financial liabilities 
>revisions 
) ther non-financial liabilities 

:qul ty 
lhare capilal 
)!her equity 

·otal Llablllt.ies and Equity 

"he accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statemenls 

IS per our report of even date attached 

16 
17 

18 
19 

As at 
March 31, 2022 

990.48 
221.45 

12,481 .26 
1,811.11 

81.74 
15 586.04 

175.89 
245.22 

59.97 
12.37 
27.68 
24.76 
37.63 

583.52 

16169.56 

0.67 

45.45 
5,301.33 
5,326.48 

90 .93 
10 764.86 

34.43 
26.73 
61 .16 

20.45 
5,323.09 
5 343.54 

16,169.56 

As at 
March 31, 2021 

1,157.74 
523.55 

9,676.19 
1,156.14 

111.33 
12 624.95 

58.42 
105.09 
54.38 
11.22 
0.46 

25.23 
28.02 

282.82 

12 907.77 

0.13 

15.96 
4 ,213.92 
3,479.32 

28.80 
7 738.13 

27.30 
16.75 
44.05 

19.76 
5.105.83 
5125.59 

12 907.77 

'or PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
:hartered Accountants 

::Al ~irm Regist~ No. : 003;~ 6209018 

I id:~~ ~ 
:.othandaraman V 
'artner ' 
4embership No.: 025973 ~ ~ 

'lace: ChaMai 
late: May 26, 2022 

~~-. 

Samunnatl Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited 

·~& 
Director and CEO .• ,_~UfOIAf1~, 

DIN :0118901 1 :o· ✓,., 
D n ~ ~ ~ti "\ ~ ';§ 

Lallt Malik .,, ,t * ·~\• 
Group Chief Financial Officer 

Place: Chennai 
Date: May 26, 2022 

Gurunath Neelamani 
Whole-time Director 
DIN : 02799586 

Arunkumar Sridharan 
Company Secretary 
Membership No.: F7112 
Place: Chennai 
Date: May 26, 2022 
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Samunnatl Financial Intermediation & Services Private limited 
Standalone Statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2022 
(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees (f'), unless o/herwlse stated) 

Revenue from operations 
i Interest income 

II Other income 
Ill Total Income (1+11) 

Expenses 
Finance costs 

Particulars 

ii Impairment on financial instruments 
Iii Employee benefit expenses 
iv Depreciation and amortizalion 
v Other expenses 

IV Total expenses 

V Profit I (loss) before tax (Ill-IV) 
VI Tax expense 

i Current tax 
Ii Deferred tax 

VII Profit I (loss) for the year (V-VI) 

VIII Other comprehensive Income (OCI) 
Items that will not be reclassified to profrt or loss 
a) Remeasurement (gains) and losses on defined benefrt plans 

ii Income lax Impact thereon 
Other comprehensive income (i)+(li) 

IX Total comprehensive Income for the year (Vll+VIII) 

X Eamlngs per equity share (face value Rs. 101- per equity share) 
Basic(') 
Diluted (t) 

fhe accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements 
~s per our report of even date attached 
=or PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP 
:hartered Accountants 
CAI Firm Regislration No.: 003990$1S200018 

Note 

20 

21 

22 
23 
24 
25 
26 

26 

26 

29 

FY ended 

March 31, 2022 

1,692.46 
1,692.46 

82.46 
1 774.92 

977.17 
715.44 
627.70 
47.61 

223.00 
2 590.92 

(816.00) 

(149.81) 
(149.81) 

(666.19) 

(2.45) 
0.38 
(2.07) 

(664.12) 

(1,846.11) 
(1 ,846.11) 

For and on behalf of lhe Board of Directors of 
Samunnall Financial lntermedlatl 

FY ended 

March 31 , 2021 

1,603.8E 
1,603.8£ 

72.97 
1 676.83 

684.1C 
322.51 
465.76 

28.09 
173.60 

1 674.06 

2.77 

(0.96 
(0.96 

3.73 

(5.49 
1.38 

(4.11 

7.84 

10.35 
1.64 

/~-~ ..... ~ 
<othandaraman V 
)artner 
.1embership No.: 025973 

- ~v~ Gurunath Neelamanl 
Whole-time Direclor 
DIN : 02799586 

'lace: Chennai 
)ate: May 26, 2022 

Director and CEO 
DIN :01189011 

Place: Chennal 
Date: May 26, 2022 

Arunkumar Srldharan 
Company Secretary 
Membership No.: F7112 
Place: Chennai 
Date: May 26, 2022 
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Samunnatl Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited 

Standalone Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31 , 2022 
(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees (f), unless otherwise stated) 

A. Operating activities 

Profit/ (loss) before tax 

Adjustmenls for: 
Depreciation and amortization 
Employee stock option expenses 

Particulars 

(Profit) / loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 
Income from mutual funds 
Income from debt funds 
lmpainnent on financial instruments 
Bad debts written off 
Amortisation of origination costs of borrowings 

Cash generated from operations before working capital changes 
Changes In working capital : 
loans 
Other financial assets 
Other non-financial assets 
Net movement in provisions 
Trade Payables 
Other financial and non-financial liabilities 
Cash used in operations 
Income taxes paid (net of refunds) 

Net cash (used In) operating acti vities (A) 

B. Investing activities 
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets 
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 
Movement in capital advances 
Movement in deposits with banks and financial institutions 
Purchase of investments 
Proceeds from sale of investments 
Interest income received on investments measured at amortised 
Net cash generated from I (used in) investing activities (B) 

C. Financing activities 
Utifisation of securities premium 
Issue of Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares 
Proceeds from debt sewrities 
Repayment of debt securities 
lease rental paid 
Proceeds from other than debt securities 
Repayment of other than debt securities 
Net cash generated from financing activities (C) 

Net decrease In cash and cash equivalen ts (A+B+C) 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of 

Year ended 
March 31 2022 

(816.00) 

47.61 
57.03 
(0.27) 

(13.84) 
(16.58) 
200.24 
515.20 

43.74 
833.13 

17.13 

(3,520.51) 
29.02 
(9.61) 
9.58 

30.03 
72.11 

(3,372.25) 
(108.17) 

(3,480.42) 

(74.07) 
2.59 
0.57 

302.10 
(217.27) 
375.94 

30.42 

420.28 

10.72 
0.68 

2,078.23 
(990.82) 

(9.35) 
6,478.44 

(4,675.02) 
2,892.88 

(167.26) 
1,157.74 

990.48 

Year ended 
March 31 2021 

2.77 

28.09 
40.98 

0.74 
(4.00) 
(9.65) 
23.59 

298.92 
22.59 

401.26 

404.03 

(2.570.43) 
(4.91) 
2.88 
3.51 

(0.68) 

(39.89) 
(2,205.49) 

(43.53) 

(2,249.02) 

(12.21) 
1.02 
1.98 

(259.51) 
(376,04) 

13.65 

(631.11) 

3,143.37 
(575.00) 

3,756.50 
(3,471.02) 
2,853.85 

(26.28) 
1,184.02 
1,157.74 
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Samunnatl Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited 

Standalone Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2022 
(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees (~). unless otherwise stated) 

Particulars 

Components of cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 
- Cash on hand 
- Balances with banks in current accounts 
- Balance in deposit account (with original maturity up to 3 months) 

Total 

The accompanying notes form an Integral part of the financial statements 

As per our report of even date attached 

Year ended 
March 31 2022 

582.44 
408.04 

990.48 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

Year ended 
March 31 2021 

0.08 
1,157.66 

1,157.74 

For PKF Srldhar & Santhanam LLP 
Chartered Accountants Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited 
ICAI Firm Registration No., 003990S/S200018 

(~~ -Kothandaraman V ___./ ..._ 
Partner 
Membership No.: 025973 

Place: Chennai 
Date: May 26, 2022 

Director and CEO 
DIN : 01189011 

~ JJi_ 
~allk 

Group Chief Financial Officer 

Place: Chennai 
Date: May 26, 2022 

Gurunath Neelamanl 
Whole-time Director 
DIN : 02799586 

Arunkumar Srldharan 
Company Secretary 
Membership No.: F7112 
Place: Chennai 
Dale: May 26, 2022 
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Samunnatl Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited 
Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2022 
{All amounts are In millions of lnclian Rupees(!), unless olherwlse stated) 

·- ---··· -··-·- ---· 
Equity share c,,pltal 

Particulars 
Asal 

March 31, 2022 
Balance at the beginning of the year 5.74 
Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period errors . 
Issued durino the ""•r . 
Sub-total 5.74 
Equity shares held under trust for employees under ESOP 

(2.14) scheme 
Balance at the end of the vear 3.60 

B. Other equity 

Statutory 
Particulars 

Reserve 

Balance as al April 01 , 2020 39.84 
Ctu>nges ln aecounling policy or prior period errors . 
Comprehensive income for the year . 
Transfer to statutory reserve 0.75 
Issue expenses for debt sect.1rities . 
Emnlovee stock ontions exercised . 

Balance as at March 31, 2021 40.59 
Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors . 
Comprehensive inoome for the year . 
Trans fer to statutory reserve . 
Premium on issue of shares . 
Issue expenses for debt securities . 
Emolovrua stock options exnense . 

Balance as at March 31, 2022 40.59 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements 
As per our report of even date attached 
For PKF Srldhar & Sanlhanam LLP 
Chartered Accountants ,,_ , , !°'i 1~ ~ 

As at 
March 31. 2021 

5,74 
. 
. 

5.74 

(2.14) 

3.60 

Securities 
Premium 

4,953.68 
. 
. 
. 

(22.58) 
. 

4,931.10 
. 
. 
. 

812.96 
11.39 

. 
5,755.45 

Compulsorily convertible 
Total preference shares ("CCPS") 

As at Asal As al 
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31 , 2022 

16.16 16.16 21.90 
. . . 

0.68 . 0.68 
16.84 16.16 22.58 

. . (2.14) 

16.84 16.16 20.45 

Stock Options 
Capital Other 

Redemption comprehensive 
Outstanding 

Reserve Income 
164.31 0.07 (1.11) . . . 

. . 4.11 

. . . 

. . . 
40.98 . . 

205.29 0.07 3.00 
. . . 
. . 2.07 
. . . 
. . . 
. . . 

57.03 . . 
262.32 0.07 5.07 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Samunnatl Financial Intermediation & Servicos Pri~ 

As al 
March 31, 2021 

21 .90 
. 
. 

21.90 

(2.14) 

19.76 

Retained 
Earnings 

(77.20) 
. 

3.73 
(0.75) 

. 

. 
174.22 

. 
(666.19) 

. 

. 

. 

. 
1740.411 

Total 

5,079.59 
. 

7.84 
. 

(22.58) 
40.98 

5,105.83 
. 

(664.12) 
. 

812.96 
11.39 
57.03 

5,323.09 

ICAI Firm Registc· ,_tloi:,003990S/S2. 00018 

I r..)~ i#>i,'We.«,1/,i. I ro>, o~-1 " , mo.,,, , 
Kothandaraman V I\ · · ® ;:-,lj '~~ 

~" ~,. 
_
0
,,:-'~ow,.,+. 

~

. 

runath Neelamanl 
Whole-time Director 
DIN : 02799586 

Partner . ' 1/ .. . . . ~ ... _ 
Membership No.: 025973 

Place: Chennai 
Date: May 26, 2022 

Director and CEO 
DIN : 01189011 

LM 
Lalit Malik 
Group Chief Financial Officer 

Place: Chennai 

~ ~ 
~ t; 
.;;. ~ . .... , -~~. 

·~?rs * ·()\.' ·. >"~""'k~ 
Arunkumar Sridharan 
Company Secretary 
Membership No.: F7112 
Place: Chennal 
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Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited 
Summary of signmcaot aceounling policies aod other explanatory infonnalioo for the year ended Marcl1 31 , 2022 
(All amounts are in m111ions of Indian Rupees(<), unless olheiwise stated) 

1. Corporate information: 

Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited f The Company') is a Non-Banking Financial 
Institution (NBFI) incorporated on June 23, 201 4. The Company has received certificate of registration 
dated February 25, 2016 from the Reserve Bank of India to carry on the business of Non-Banking Financial 
Institution without accepting deposits. The Company provides secured and unsecured loans to farmers, 
farmer producer organizations, community based organizations and Agri-enterprises. The company 
commenced active NBFI operations from the month of July 2016. The Company is an NBFC - Systemically 
Important Non-Deposit taking Company ('NBFC-ND-SI') per regulations of Reserve Bank of India ('RBI'). 

2. Basis of preparation of financial statements 

2.1. Statement of compliance with Ind AS and basis for preparation and presentation of financial 
statements 

These standalone financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian 
Accounting Standards as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 as amended and 
notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act"), in conformity with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India and other relevant provisions of the Act. Any application guidance/ 
clarifications/ directions issued by RBI or other regulators are implemented as and when they are issued/ 
applicable. 

The company has adopted Ind AS from April 01 , 2020, AcC<:1unting policies have been consistently applied 
except where a newly-issued Accounllng Standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing 
Accounting Standard requires a change in the Accounting Policy hitherto adopted. 

These standalone financial statements were approved by the Company's Board of Directors and authorized 
for issue on May 26, 2022. 

2.2. Functional and presentation currency 

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees ('INR' or 'Rs.') which is also the Company's 
functional currency. Amounts less that lhe rounding off norms adopted by the Company are disclosed as 
0. All amounts are rounded-off to lhe nearest millions, unless otherwise indicated. 

2.3. Historical cost convention 

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial 
instruments which are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period as explained in the 
Accounting Policies set out below. 

The financial statements are prepared on a 'going concern' basis using accrual concept except for the cash 
flow information. 

2.4. Measurement of fair value changes 

A number of the Company's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, 
for bolh financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. The Company has established policies and 
procedures with respect to the measurement of fair values. Fair values are categorized into different levels 
in a fair value hi~rarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows: 

• Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets and liabilities. 
• Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, 

either directly or indirectly. 
- Level 3· inputs for lhe as ri,,, P~ thal are not based on observable market data (unobservable 

inputs) g~·-~, 
~ ~ 

,,,;;;:. ~- ., 
::::--- --:~ ~ ~ 

~
{% ----t.: 7)1))! .": "I! * '\\:,:· 
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Samunnatl Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited 
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory infonnation for the year ended March 31 . 2022 
(All amounts are In millions of Indian Rupees m, unless ollterwise staled) 

2.5. Critical accounting estimates and judgements 

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions 
that affect the application of the Company's accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, 
liabilities, income, expenses and the disclosures or contingent assets and liabilities. Actual results may 
differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. 
Revisions to estimates are recognized prospectively. 

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting 
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and 
estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were issued. Existing circumstances and 
assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to mall<et changes or circumstances 
arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when 
they occur. 

Following are areas that involved a higher degree of estimation and judgement or complexity in determining 
the carrying amount of some assets and liabilities. 

Estimation of uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic from COVID-19 

The Company has made detailed assessment of its liquidity position for the next year and the recoverability 
and carrying value of its assets comprising property, plant and equipment, investments, financial and non 
financial assets. Based on current indicators of future economic conditions, the Company expects to 
recover the carrying amount of these assets. The Company continues to evaluate them as highly probable 
considering the present business trends. The situation is changing rapidly giving rise to inherent uncertainty 
around the extent and timing of the potential future impact of the COVID-19 which may be different from 
that estimated as at the date of approval of the financial statements. The Company will continue to closely 
monitor any material changes arising of future economic conditions and impact on its business. 

Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) 

Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of depreciable/amortizable assets at each reporting 
date, based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technical and 
economic obsolescence that may change the utility of assets. 

Income tax 

Significant estimates are involved in determining the provision for income taxes, including amount expected 
to be paid I recovered for uncertain tax positions. 

Deferred tax assets 

Significant management judgement is exercised by reviewing the deferred tax assets at each reporting 
date to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be retained/ recognized. based upon the 
likely liming and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. 

Fair value 

Management uses valuation techniques in measuring the fair value of financial instruments where active 
market quotes are not available. In applying U1e valuation techniques, management makes maximum use 
of market inputs and uses estimates and assumptions that are, as far as possible, consistent with 
observable data that market participants.WQ,\J_ld use in pricing the instrument. Where applicable data Is not 
observable. management uses it~jj~ -~fin'!~e about the assumptions that market participants would 
make These estimates may va~ r om th '~~ ual prices that would be achieved in an a, m's length 
transaction at the reporting date(~ ~ 

~ :.:: 
. \ ?~::-,.y 
........ ~ 
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Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited 
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for lhe year ended March 31, 2022 
(All amounts are in m illions of Indian Rupeos ((), unless otherwise staled) 

Effective Interest (EIR) Method 

The Company recognizes interest income/ expense using a rate of return that represents lhe best estimate 
of a constant rate of return over the expected life of the loans given / taken. This estimation. by nature, 
requires an element of judgement regarding the expected behaviour and life-cycle of the instruments, as 
well as expected changes to other fee income/expense that are integral parts of the instrument. 

Impairment of financial assets 

In accordance with Ind AS 109, lhe Company uses 'Expected Credit Loss' model (ECL), for evaluating 
impairment of financial assets other than those measured at Fair value through profit and loss. 

Overview of the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model 

Expected Credit Loss. at each reporting date. is measured through a loss allowance tor a financial asset 

At an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has 
increased significantly since initial recognition. At an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses, if 
the c,edit risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since Initial recognition. 

Lifetime expected credit losses means expected credit losses that result from all possible default events 
over the expected life of a financial asset. 

12-monlh expected credit losses means the portion of lifetime ECL that represent the ECLs tl1at result 
from default events on financial assets that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date. 

The Company performs an assessment, at the end of each reporting period, of whether a financial assets 
credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition. When making lhe assessment, the change 
in the risk of a default occurring over the expected life of U1e financial instrument is used instead of the 
change in the amount of expected credit losses. 

For non-impaired financial assets (Stage 1 and Stage 2): 

• Stage 1 is comprised of all non-impaired financial assets which have not e~perienced a significant 
increase in credit risk (SICR) since initial recognition. A 12-month ECL provision is made for stage 1 
financial assets. In assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly, the Company compares 
the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset as at the reporting date with the risk of a default 
occurring on the financial asset as at the date of initial recognition. 

• Stage 2 is comprised of all non-impaired financial assets which have experienced a significant increase 
in credit risk since initial recognition. The Company recognizes lifetime ECL for stage 2 financial assets. 
In subsequent reporting periods, if the credit risk of the financial instrument improves such that there is 
no longer a significant increase in credit risk since Initial recognition, then entities shall revert lo 
recognizing 12 months ECL provision. 

For impaired financial assets (Stage 3): 

Financial assets are classified as stage 3 when there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one 
or more loss events that have occurred after initial recognition with a negative impact on the estimated 
future cash flows of a loan or a portfolio of loans. The Company recognizes lifetime ECL for impaired 
financial assets. 

The loans are segmented into homogenous product categories to determine the historical PD/LGD as per 
similar risk profiles, this segmentation is s ct to regular review. The loan portfolio are segmented inlo 
two broad categories i.e., loans to Cf[),., _tiiil! sed Organizations or Farmer Producer Organizations 
'CBO/FPO and Others' and Agri ent ' s. •-:,, 

i i 
::-;. ~ ~- ~ 
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Samunnatl Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited 
Summary of significant aCGOUnting policies and other explanatory infonnation for the year ended March 31 , 2022 
(All amoonts Ste in mil/Ions of Indian Rupees((), unless otherwise staled) 

The Company has rebutted the presumption prescribed under Ind AS 109 that the credit risk increases 
significantly since initial recognition when contractual payments are more than 30 days (Stage 2) and that 
default occurs when a financial asset is 90 days past due (Stage 3). The risk profiling is determined for 
each business vertical indicated below based on historical and market lfends and directions from RBI 
including guidance for identification of NPA in agricultural advances. 

Name of the pool of loan assets Stage Loans Days past due 
IOPDI 

CBOIFPO and Others 
Slaoe 1 Uoto 60davs 
Stane 2 61 davs to 240 davs 
Slane 3 More than 240 davs 

Anri enternrises 
Slane 1 Unto60 davs 
Staoe 2 61 davs lo 360 davs 
Stane 3 More lhan 360 davs 

Estimation of Expected Credit Loss: 

The mechanics of the ECL calculations are outlined below and the key elements are, as follows: 

Probability of Default (PO) - The Probability of Default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given 
time horizon. The Company uses historical information to determine PO. Considering the different 
categories of customers, the Company has bifurcated its loan portfolio into two pools (CBOIFPO and 
others). For each pool of loan assets, the PD is calculated using Incremental 30 DPD approach considering 
fresh slippage using historical information. 

Exposure al Default (EAD) - The Exposure al Default is an estimate of the exposure at a future default 
date, considering expected changes in the exposure after the reporting dale, including repayments of 
principal and interest, whether scheduled by contract or otherwise, expected drawdowns on committed 
facilities, and accrued interest from missed payments. Management had assumed that the outstanding 
balance as at each reporting date (including interest and other components) as the exposure at default for 
purpose of computing the ECL. 

Loss Given Default (LGD) - The Loss Given Default is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a 
default occurs al a given time. It is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due and 
those that the lender would expect to receive, including from the realization of any collateral. 

To mitigate its credit risks on financial assets, the Company seeks to use collateral, where possible. The 
collateral comes in various forms, such as land, building, books debts, securities, letters of 
credit/guarantees, etc. However, the fair value of collateral affects the calculation of ECL. The fair value of 
the same is based on management judgements. 

Forward looking information - While estimating the expected credit losses, the Company reviews macro­
economic developments occurring In the economy and market it operates in. On a periodic basis, the 
Company analyses if there is any relationship between key economic trends like GDP, benchmark rates 
set by the Reserve Bank of India, inflation etc. with the estimate of PD, LGD detennined by the Company 
based on its internal data. While the internal estimates of PO, LGD rates by the Company may not be 
always reflective of such relationships, temporary overlays, if any, are embedded in the methodology to 
reflect such macroeconomic trends reasonably. 

Impairment of non-financial assets (PPE) 

The impairment assessment of non- •~~sets is determined based on estimation of recoverable 
amount of such assets. The ass nrn· 4~~in computing the recoverable amount are based on 
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management judgement considering the timing of future cash flows, discount rates and the risks specific 
to the asset. 

Defined benefit plans and other long tenm employee benefits 

The cost of the defined benefit plan and other long term employee benefits, and lhe present value of such 
obligation are determined by the independent actuarial valuer. An actuarial valuation involves making 
various assumptions Iha! may differ from actual developments in future. Management believes that the 
assumptions used by the actuary in determination of the discount rate, future salary increases, mortality 
rates and attrition rales are reasonable. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long term 
nature, lhis obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed 
at each reporting date. 

Provisions and other contingent l iabili ties 

The reliable measure of the estimates and judgements pertaining to litigations and the regulalory 
proceedings in the ordinary course of the Company's business are disclosed as contingent liabilities. 

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other 
factors, including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the Company and U1at 
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. 

2.6. Revenue recognition 

a) Recognition of interest Income on loans 

Interest income is recognized in Statement of profit and loss using the effective interest method for all 
financial instruments measured at amortised cost, debt instruments measured at FVTOCI and debt 
lnslruments designated at FVTPL. The 'effective interest method' is the rate that exactly discounts estimated 
future cash payments or receipts through the expected life or the financial instrument. 

The calculation of the effective interest rate includes transaction costs and fees that are an integral part of 
the contract. Transaction costs include incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of 
financial asset. 

If expectations regarding lhe cash flows on the financial asset are revised for reasons other than credit risk, 
the adjustment is recorded as a positive or negative adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset in the 
balance sheet with an inC(ease or reduction in interest income. The adjustment is subsequently amortised 
through Interest Income in the Statement of profit and loss. 

The Company calculates interest income by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of financial 
assets other than credit-impaired assets. 

When a financial asset becomes credit-impaired, the Company calculates interest income by applying the 
effective interest rate to the net amortised cost of the financial asset. If the financial asset cures and is no 
longer credit impaired, the Company reverts to calculating interest income on a gross basis. 

Additional interest and interest on trade advances. are recognized when they become measurable and 
when it is not unreasonable to expect their ultimate collection. 

b) Div idend and interest income on investments 

Dividends are recognized in Statement of profi t and loss only when the right to receive payment is 
established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Company 
and the amount of the dividend can be me s~ a ly. . .,, . 
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Interest income from investments is recognized when it is certain that the economic benefits will flow to the 
company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is acc,ued on a time basis, 
by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable. 

2.7. Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) 

PPE are stated at cost of acquisition (including incidental expenses), less accumulated depreciation and 
accumulated impairment loss, if any. 

Assets held for sale or disposals are stated at the lower of their net book value and net realizable value. 

Advances paid towards the acquisition of PPE outstanding at each balance sheet date are disclosed 
separately under other non-financial assets. Capital work in progress comprises the cost of PPE that are 
not ready for its intended use at the reporting date. 

Depreciation on PPE is provided on straight-line basis in accordance with the useful lives specified in 
Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 on a pro-rata basis. Assets costing less than Rs.5.000 are fully 
depreciated in the period of purchase. 

Asset Classification Life in Years 
Furniture and fittinas 10 
Office eouiomenl 5 
Comouters and accessories 3 
Vehicles 4-8 
Leasehold imorovements 5 

PPE is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from ils use. Any gain 
or loss arising on derecognition of the ass el (calculated as lhe difference belween the net disposal proceeds 
and the net carrying amount of the asset) is recognized in other income / netted off from any loss on disposal 
in the Statement of profit and loss in the year the asset is derecognized 

2.8. Intangible assets 

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment loss. if any. 

Intangible assets comprises of computer software which is amortized over the estimated useful life. The 
amortization period is lower of license period or 36 monlhs which is based on management's estimates of 
useful life. Amortisation is calculated using the straight line melhod to write down the cost of intangible 
assets over their estimated useful lives. 

The Intangible assets are amortised with in three years. 

2.9. lnvestmentin subsidiaries 

lnvestme11ts in subsidiaries are measured at cost less accumulated impairment. if any. 

2.10. Foreign exchange transactions and t ranslations 

a) Init ial recognit ion 

Transactions in foreign currencies are recognized at the prevailing exchange rates between the reporting 
currency and a foreign currency on the tlllnsaction date. 

b) Conversion 

Transactions in foreign currencies are tr !~l•iMP~ the functional currency using the exchange rates al 
lhe dates of the transactions. Foreign j~~~J~ and losses resulting from the settlement of such 
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transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies 
at year end exchange rates are generally recognized in Statement of profit and loss. 

Foreign exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs are presented in the statement 
of profit and loss, within finance costs. All other roreign exchange gains and losses are presented In the 
Statement of profit and loss on a net basis. 

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange 
rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried 
at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. Thus, translation differences on non-monetary 
assets and liabilities such as equity instruments held at fair value through profit or loss are recognized In 
profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss and translation differences on non-monetary assets such 
as equity investments dasslfied as FVTOCI are recognized in other comprehensive income. Non-monetary 
items that are measured at historical cost in roreign currency are not retranslated at reporting date. 

2.11 . Financial Instruments 

a} Recognition and initial measurements 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the instruments. 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaelion costs that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets 
and financial liabilities at FVTPL} are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or 
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on Initial recognition. Transaelion costs direelly aitributable to the 
acquisition or financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognized immediately in Statement of 
profit and loss. 

b) Classifications and subsequent measurement of financial assets 

On inifial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at 
• Amortised cost; 
• Fair value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI) • debt instruments: 
• Fair value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI} • equity Instruments; and 
• Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL) 

Amortised cost 

The Company's business model is not assessed on an instrument-by-instrument basis. but at a higher level 
of aggregated portfolios being the level at which they are managed. The financial asset is held with the 
objective to hold financial asset in order to collect contractual cash flows as per the contractual terms that 
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payment of principal and interest (SPPI} on the 
principal amount outstanding. Accordingly, the Company measures Bank balances. Loans, Trade 
receivables and other financial instruments at amortised cost. 

FvrOCI. debt instruments 

The Company measures its debt instruments at FVTOCI when the insl/l.lment is held within a business 
model, the objective of which is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial 
assets; and the contractual terms of the financial asset meet the SPPI test. 

Fvroc I . equity instruments 

The Compa11y subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value through profit or loss, unless the 
Company's management has elected t ~•.ly,~ bly some or its equity instruments at FVTOCI, when 
such Instruments meet the definition d AS 32 Financial Instruments and are not held for 
trading. 
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Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the 
Company changes its business model for managing financial assets. 

FVTPL 

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL. This 
includes all derivative financial assets. 

Subsequent measurement of financial assets 

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured al amortised cost using effective interest 
method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and 
losses and impairment are recognized in Statement of profit and loss. Any gain and loss on derecognltion 
is recognized in Statement of profit and loss. Debi investment at FVTOCI are subsequently measured at 
fair value. Interest Income under effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and 
impairment are recognized in Statement of profit and loss. Other net gains and losses are recognized in 
OCI. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated In OCI are reclassified to Statement of profit and 
loss. For equity investments, the Company makes an election on an instrument-by-instrument basis to 
designate equity investments as measured at FVTOCI. These elected investments are measured at fair 
value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recognized in other comprehensive income 
and accumulated in the reserves. The cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified to Statement of profit and 
loss on disposal of lhe investments. These investments in equity are not held for trading. Instead, they are 
held for strategic purpose. Dividend income received on such equity investments are recognized In 
Statement of profit and loss. 

Equity investments that are not designated as measured at FVTOCI are designated as measured at FVTPL 
and subsequent changes in fair value are recognized In Statement of profit and loss. 

Financial assets at FVTPL are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any 
interest or dividend income. are recognized in Statement of profit and loss. 

c) Financial liabilities and equity instruments 

Classification of debt and equity 

Debi and equity instruments Issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity 
in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definilions of a financial liability 
and an equity instrument. 

Equity instruments 

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after 
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by Company are recognized at the proceeds 
received. Transaction costs of an equity transaclion are recognized as a deduclion from equity. 

Financial liabilities 
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d) Financial guarantee contracts 

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse 
lhe holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due in accordance 
with the terms of a debt instrument. 

Financial guarantee contracts issued by a Company are initially measured at their fair values and, if not 
designated as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at the higher of: 

- the amount of loss allowance determined in accordance with impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 
"Financial Instruments"; and 

- the amount initially recognized less, when appropliate, the cumulative amount of income recognized In 
accordance with the principles of Ind AS 115 "Revenue from contracts with customers". 

e) Derecognition 

Financial assets 

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the conttactual rights to the cash flows from lhe financial 
assel expire, or II transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a lransaction in which 
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the 
Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not 
retain control of the financial asset. 

If the Company enters info transacllons whereby it transfers assets recognized on its balanoe sheet, but 
retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets 
are not derecognized. 

Financial liabilities 

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation in respect of the liability is discharged, cancelled or 
expires. The difference between the carrying value of the financial liability and the consideration paid is 
recognized In Statement of profit and loss. 

f) Offsetting 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and lhe net amount presented in the balance sheet when, 
and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends 
either to settle them on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

g) Write offs 

Loans are written off (either partially or In full) when there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is 
generally the case when the Company determines that the borrower does not have assets or sources of 
income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subjected to write-offs. Any 
subsequent recoveries against such loans are credited to the Slatement of Profit and Loss. 

2.12. Employee benefits 

a) Short- term employee benefits 

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognized for 
the amount expected to be paid if the Com pan has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this 

~ am:unt as a result of past service provide{~- !ill. "*.-\ee and the obligation can be estimated reliably. 
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b) Contribution to provident fund and other funds 

Company's contribution paid/payable during the year to provident fund and employees state insurance is 
recognized in the Statement of profit and loss. The Company has no further obligation other than lhe 
contributions made. 

c) Gratuity 

The Company's liability towards gratuity scheme is determined by independent actuaries, using the 
projected unit c,edit method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by 
discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to marl\el yields at the end of the reporting 
period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Past 
services are recognized at the earlier of the plan amendment I curtailment and recognition of related 
restructuring costs/ termination benefits. 

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit 
obligation and the lair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the 
Statement or profit and loss. 

Remeasurement gains and losses 

Remeasurement or defined benefit plans, comprising of actuarial gains / losses, return on plan assets 
excluding Interest income are recognized immediately In the balance sheet with corresponding debit or 
credit lo Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). Remeasurements are not reclassified to Statement of profit 
and loss in the subsequent period. 

d) Leave encashment/ compensated absences/ sick leave. 

The Company provides for the encashment / availmenl of leave with pay subject to certain rules. The 
employees are entitled to accumulate leave subject to certain limits for future encashment / availment. The 
liability is provided based on the number of days of unutilized leave at each balance sheet date on the basis 
or an independent actuarial valuation. 

e) Employee stock options 

The rair value of options granted under Employee Stock Option Plan is recognized as an employee benefits 
expense with a corresponding increase in equity. The total amount to be expensed is determined by 
reference 10 the fair value of the options. The total expense is recognized over the vesting period, which is 
the period over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of each period, 
the entity revises its estimates or the number of options that are expected to vest based on the non-market 
vesting and service conditions. It recognizes the impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in profit 
or loss. with a corresponding adjustment to equity. Upon exercise of share options, the proceeds received 
are allocated to share capital up to the par value of the shares issued with any excess being recorded as 
share premium. 

2.13, Finance cost 

Finance costs include interest expense computed by applying the effective interest rate on respective 
financial instruments measured at Amortised cost. Financial instruments Include term loans, fixed deposits 
mobilized, debt instrumenls, commercial papers and subordinated debts. Finance costs are charged to the 
Statement of profit and loss. 

2.14. Taxation • current tax and deferred tax 

Income tax expense comprises of current lax and deferred tax. fl is recognized in Statement or profit and 
loss except to the extent that it relates to an :\~.,, , rnzed directly in equity or in other comprehensive 
income. (!)' (,. 
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a) Current tax 

Current tax comprises amount of tax payable in respect of the taxable income or loss for lhe year determined 
in accordance with Income Tax Act, 1961 and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of 
previous years. The Company's current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

Minimum alternate tax ('MA T'J credit entitlement is recognized as an asset only when and to the extent 
there is convincing evidence that norn,al income tax will be paid during the specified period. In the year in 
which MAT credit becomes eligible to be recognized as an asset, the said asset is created by way of a credit 
to lhe Statement of Profit and Loss and shown as MAT credit enti tlement. This is reviewed al each balance 
sheet date and the carrying amount of MAT credit entitlement is written down lo the extent It is not 
reasonably certain that normal income tax will be paid during lhe specified period. 

b) Deferred tax 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences of temporary differences 
between lhe carrying values of assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax liabilities 
and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is 
settled or the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted by the end of the reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects 
the tax consequence that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the 
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. 

Deferred tax assets are recognized lo the extent that it is probable thal future taxable income will be 
available against which the deductible temporary difference could be utilized. Such deferred tax assets and 
liabilities are not recognized if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of assets and 
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit The carrying 
amount of deferred tax assets Is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent 
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits 1•~11 be available to allow all or part of the asset to 
be recovered 

2.15. Impairment of assets other than financial assets 

The Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets at the end of each 
reporting period, to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have impaired. If any such 
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order 10 determine the extent of lhe 
impairment loss (if any). Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does 
not generate cash flows that are largely Independent of those from other assets or group of assets. 

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in 
use. the estimated future cash flows are discounted 10 their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that 
reflects current market assessments of the lime value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which 
the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted. If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash­
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash­
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. 

When an impairment loss subsequenlly reverses, lhe carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating 
unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount such that the increased carrying amount 
does nol exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined if no impairment loss had been 
recognized for the asset (or cash-generating unil) in prior years. The reversal of an impairment loss is 
recognized in Statement of profit and loss. 

2.16. Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets 

Provisions are recognized when the C,o!l)p.3ny as a present legal or constructive obligalion as a result of 
a pas: event, it is probable that an :imo.w-· 'f;o.,.,_°mic resources will be required from the Company and 
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amounts can be estimated reliably, Timing or amount of the outflow may still be uncertain. Provisions are 
measured at lhe eslimated expenditure required to settle the present obligation, based on lhe most reliable 
evidence available al the reporting date, including the risks and uncertainties associated with lhe present 
obligation. Provisions are discounted lo their present values, where the time value of money is material. 

Contingent liability is disclosed for: 

• Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the 
Company; or 

• Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will 
be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be 
made. 

In U1ose cases, where the outflow of economic resources as a result of present obligations is considered 
improbable or remote, no liability is recognized or disclosure is made. 

Any reimbursement that the Company can be virtually certain to collect from a third party with respect lo 
lhe obligation (such as from insurance) is recognized as a separate asset. However, this asset may not 
exceed the amount of the related provision. 

Contingent assets are not recognized. However, when inflow of economic benefits is probable, the related 
asset is disclosed. 

2.17. Leases 

The Company's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for office premises. The Company assesses 
whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease i f the 
contract conveys the right lo control the use of an identified asset for a period of lime in exchange for 
consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right lo control the use of an identified asset, the 
Company assesses whether: 
(f) the contract involves the use of an identified asset 
(ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of 
the lease and 
(orl) the Company has the right lo direct the use of the asset 

At the dale of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset C'ROU") and a 
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which It is a lessee, except for leases with a term 
of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value 
leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over 
the term of the lease. 

Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the 
lease term, ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they 
will be exercised. 

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized al cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease 
liability adjusted for any lease payments made al or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any 
initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and impairment losses. 

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter 
of lhe lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. 

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments, 
The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily 
determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the counlly of domicile of these leases. Lease 
liabilities are remeasured with a corr ~on,i/ie9,,_3djustme11t to the related right of use asset if the Company 
changes its assessment If whethe \w,ilf:exe ;i;J an extension or a terminal/on option. 
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2.18. Cash and cash equ ivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash on hand, cheques and drafts on hand, 
balance with banks in current accounts and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months 
or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. 

2.19. Earnings per share 

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity 
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Earnings 
considered in ascertaining the Company's earnings per share is the net profit for the period after deducting 
preference dividends and any attributable tax thereto for the period. The weighted average number of 
equity shares outstanding during the period and for all periods presented is adjusted for events, such as 
bonus shares. SUD-division of shares etc. that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, 
without a corresponding change in resources. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, 
the net profit or Joss for the period attributable to equity shareholders is divided by the weighted average 
number of equity shares outstanding during the period, considered for deriving basic earnings per share 
and weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive 
potential equity shares. 

2.20. Segment reporting 

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the Internal reporting provided to the chief 
operating decision maker. The Company is primarily engaged in financing agribusinesses. The Company's 
activity falls within a single primary business segment. The Company operates primarily in India and there 
is no other geographical segment. 

2.21. Recent accounting pronouncements 

a) Changes in Accounting Standards that were applicable and adopted from the current financial 
year: 

The following Accounting Standards have been modified on misceflaneous issues with effect from June 
18, 2021. Such changes include clarification/guidance on: 

i) Ind AS 107 Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Additional disclosures relating to interest rate 
benchmark reform (IBOR reform) including nature and extent of risks to which the entity is exposed 
due lo financial instn,ments subject to interest rate benchmark reform and how the Company 
manages those risks; the Company's progress in completing the transition to alternative benchmark 
rates and how the Company is managing the transition. 

ii) Ind AS 109 Financial lnstn,ments - Guidance provided on accounting for modifications of contracts 
resulting rrom changes in the basis for determining the contractual cash nows as a result of the 
IBOR reform: various exceptions and relaxations have been provided in relation to the hedge 
accounting. 

iii) Ind AS 116 Leases - Extension of optional practical expedient in case of rent concessions as a 
direct consequence or COVID-19 pandemic tifl June 30, 2022 and guidance on accounting for 
modification of lease contracls resulting from the IBOR reform. 

iv) fnd AS 102 Share based payments - Alignment of liabilities definition with the Conceptual 
Framework for Financial Reporting under fndian Accounting Standards (Conceptual Framework) 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 
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vi) Amendment of definition of term 'recoverable amount' in Ind AS 105, Ind AS 16 and Ind AS 36 from 
' fair value less cost to sell' to 'fair value less cost of disposal', 

None of these amendments has any material impact on the financial statements for the current year. 

b) Changes in Schedule Ill Division Ill of Companies Act, 2013 notified and adopted by the Company: 

On March 24, 2021, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs f 'MCA") through a notification, amended Schedule Ill 
of the Companies Act, 2013 to be effective from April 01, 2021 . Key amendments relating to Division Ill 
which relate to companies whose financial statements are required lo comply with Companies (Indian 
Accounling Standards) Rules 201 S are: 

In Balance Sheet: 

i) Certain addilional disclosures in the statemenl of changes in equity. 

ii) Specified format for disclosure of shareholding of promoters. 

iii) Specified format for ageing schedule of trade receivables, trade payables, capital work-in-progress 
and intangible asset under development. 

iv) If a company has not used funds for the specific purpose for which ii was borrowed from banks and 
financial institutions, then disclosure of details of where it has been used. 

v) Specific disclosure under regulatory such as compliance with approved schemes of arrangements, 
compliance with number of layers of companies, tiUe deeds of immovable property not held in name 
of company, loans and Advances to Promoters, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and 
related parties, details of benami property held, relationship with struck-off companies, financial 
ratios, etc. 

In Statement of Profit and Loss: 

i) Additional disclosures relating to Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR), undisclosed income and 
crypto or virtual currency specified under the head "additional Information• in the notes forming part 
or financial statements. 

The amendments are extensive, and the Company has given effect to them as required by law in the 
current year financial statements to the extent applicable. 

c) New accounting standards/amendments notified but not yet effective 

The following Accounting Standards have been modified on miscellaneous issues with effect from 
April 01 , 2022. Such changes inciude clarification/guidance on: 

I) Ind AS 103 Business Combination - Identified assets acquired and liabilities assumed (including 
contingent assets and contingent liabilities) must meet the definitions of assets and liabilities in the 
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting under Ind AS (Conceptual Framework) issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). 

ii) Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments - Guidance provided on identifying substantial modification of 
the terms of an existing financial liability basis difference in discounted present value of the cash 
flows belween old and new terms (the '10 percent' test), 

iii) fnd AS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)- Clarification provided on accounting for excess 
of net sale proceeds of items produced over the cost of testing as deduction from the directly 
attributable costs considered as part of cost of an item of PPE. 

iv) Ind AS 37 Provisions, Contingen iabi · ies and Contingent Assets - Illustrative guidance provided 
on lhe cost of fulfilling a contr _ I costs of fulfilling the contract and allocation of other 

~sis that relate direcUy to f ;,"'_r...~;;~"-'/ and clarification provided on recognising impairment 

:f 
, ' 
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loss that has occurred on assets used in fulfilling the conlract before a separate provision for 
onerous contract established. 

None of these amendments is expected to have any material impact on the financial statements of the 
Company. 

2.22. Events after reporting date 

Where events occurring after the balance sheet date provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end 
of the reporting period . the impact of such events is adjusted within the financial statements. Otherwise, 
events after the balance sheet date of ma ~,- r nature are only d1sciosed. 

~

._.,~. '\·.,, 
~ ~ ·; 

i ! ~ 
~' - ~ .; ~~ . "' .... ,,,/~ 11' ·~\: 

-:.-
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Note Particulars As at 
March 31 , 2022 

As at 
March 31, 2021 

3 

4 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash-on-hand 
Balances with banks 
( i) In current account 

(Ii) in deposit account (with original maturity up to 3 months) 
Total 

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 
Deposit account w i th banks 

Balances with banks to the extent held as margin money (Refer note 
below) 
Total 

582.44 
408.04 
990.48 

221.45 

221,45 

0.08 

1,157.66 

1,157.74 

523.55 

523,55 

Details of balances with banks to the extent held as margin money or security against the borrowings and 
securitization transactions 
Maturity period of loss than 12 months 

(i) Held as collateral against borrowings and securitization transactions 160.21 467,68 

Maturity period of more than 12 months 
160.21 467,68 

(ii) Held as collateral against borrowings and securitizatlon transactions 61.24 55.87 
61.24 55.87 

Total 221.45 523.55 

5 Loans 
(A) Term Loans at amortised cost 

To clients 
To subsidiary (also, refer note 42) 
Total Gross 

Less : Impairment loss allowance 
Total 

(B) Secured / Unsecured Break-up 
(i) Secured against tangible assets 

Gross 
Less: Impairment allowance 

(ii) Secured against receivables 
Gross 
Less: lmpainnent allowance 

(iii ) Unsecured 
Gross 
Less: lmpaim1ent allowance 

Total (B) • (i) +(II)+ (i ii) 

11,41 4.21 
1,419.58 

12,833.79 
(352.53) 

12,481.26 

1,081.22 

1,081.22 

11,752.57 
(352.53) 

11 ,400.04 

12,481.26 

9 ,374.20 
455.43 

9,829.63 
(153.44) 

9,676.19 

374. 53 

374.53 

5,975.28 
(121.68) 

5,853.60 

3,479.82 
(31 ,76) 

3,448.06 

9,676.19 
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Note Particulars 

(C) Loans in/ outside India 
(I) Loans in India 

(a) Public secior 
(b) Others 

less : Impairment loss allowance 
Total (I) 

(Ii) Loans outside India 
less : Impairment loss allowance 
Total (ii) 

Total (C) = (i) + (ii) 

Note: There is no loan asset measured at FVTOCI or FVTPL. 

Summary of loans by stage distribution 

As at March 31 , 2022 
Stage 1 • Considered good 
Stage 2. Significant Increase in credit risk 
Stage 3 . Credit impaired 

As at March 31, 2021 
Stage 1 • Considered good 
Stage 2 • Significant increase in credit risk 
Stage 3 • Credit impaired 

Gross 
Carrying 
Amount 

(A) 

11,731.86 
767.04 
334.89 

12,833.79 

8,556.60 
1,109.75 

163.28 
9,829.63 

<<Thfs space ha left blank>> 

;:::' "'· ~ ~ 
;::, ,a; 
;:;:. 
~~. 

~~,.;*·~ 

As at 
March 31, 2022 

12,833.79 
12,833.79 

(352.53) 
12,481.26 

12,481.26 

Impairment Loss 
Allowance 

(Bl 

29.48 
43.03 

280.02 
352.53 

27.46 
26.54 
99.44 

153.44 

As at 
March 31, 2021 

9,829.63 
9,829.63 
(153.44) 

9 676.19 

9 676.19 

Net Carrying 
Amount 

(A-8) 

11,702.38 
724.01 

54.87 
12,481.26 

8,529.14 
1,083.21 

63.84 
9,676.19 
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Note Particulars 

6 lnves~nents 

(A) Investments in subsidiaries carried at cost 
(i) In equity shares or subsidiaries (Unquoted): 

Samunnat, Agro Solutions Private Limited 
632.484 (previous year: 632,484; ) equity shares of ,10 each 

Samunnati Foundation 
850,000 (previous year: 10,000) equity shares of t 10 each 

Investments in Kamatan Farm Tech Private Limited 
344,848 (previous year. Nil) equity shares of t 10 each 

Investments in Samunnati Finance Private Limited 
2.500,000 (previous year. Nil) equity shares oft 10 each 

(BJ Investments carried at amortised cost 
(i) In Pass Through Certificates ("PTC") 
(ii) In non convertible debentures ("NCD") 

(C) Investments at fair value through profit or loss 
In mutual funds 

(i) SBI Mutual Fund - Savings Fund 
Total 

Note: No impairment loss has been provided on the above investments. 

Out of above 
In India 
Outside India 
Total 

As at As at 
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

780.10 

8.50 

813.64 

25.00 

183.87 

1,811.11 

1,81 1.11 

1,811.11 

780.10 

0.10 

222.25 
53.69 

100.00 
1,156.14 

1,156.14 

1,156.14 
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Note Particulars 

7 Other ffnancial assets 
Unsecured, e<>nsidered good 
Security deposits 
Employee advances 
Deposits with financial inslilutions 

tnlere-st accru!d but not due on deposits with financlaJ instituUons 
Payment reteivable on securitization 
Other recelvables 
Total 

8 Current tax assets {Not) 
Advance tax (net or provisions) 
Total 

9 Deferred tax assets {not) 
Deferred tax 

Tax effect of items const ituting deferred tax 
assets / (liabilities) : 

Ftxed assets 

ProV,slons for employee benefits 
lmpalnnent loss allowanee 
Employee stock option expenses 
Carried forward losses 
Others 
Total 

Tax effect of ftems constitut ing deferred ta.x 
assets / (liabilities) : 

Fixed aSS!tS 
Provisions for employee benefils 
lmpai,rnent loss. allowance 
Employee stock option expenses 
Carried forward losses 
Others 
Total 

Balance as at 
(Charge) I 
credit to 

April 01, 2021 statement of 
profit and loss 

2.01 (1.36) 
7.90 2.91 

34.76 47.92 
36.77 (36.77) 
17,74 139.09 
5.91 (198) 

105.09 149.81 

Balance as at 
(Charge) I 
credit to 

April 01, 2020 statement of 
profit and loss 

3.82 (1,81) 
7.46 1.82 

46,28 (11.52) 
36.77 

17.74 
11.18 (5.27) 

105.51 0.96 

«Tfifs sp&u has j b t ~ tilt blaniP> ,, ' . ~ 

"' ~ 
" ~ ., 
" ~ 

(Charge) / 
c redit to Oct 

(0.38) 

(0.38) 

(Charge) I 
credit to OCI 

(1.38) 

(1.38) 

As at As at 
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

8.03 8.25 
5.22 4.64 

57.50 80.00 
1.26 1.67 

13.40 
9.73 3.37 

81.74 111.33 

175.89 58.42 
175.89 58.42 

245.22 105.09 
245.22 105.09 

Others Balance as at 
Adjustments March 31, 2022 

0.65 
10.43 
82.68 

(9.30) 147.53 
3,93 

(9.30) 245.22 

Others Balance as at 
Adjustments March 31, 2021 

2.01 
7.90 

34,76 
36,77 
17.74 
5.91 

105.09 
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10 Property, plant and equipment, right of use asse1s. intanglbto assets and Intangible assets undor development 

Property, Plant and Equipment 

Computers Freehold Furniture Office Particulars 
& Vehicles land and fittings equipment 

accessories Gross block 
Balance as at April 01, 2020 2.31 8.59 10.64 14.96 19.21 Additions . 0.13 0.30 5.11 2.30 Oi~osals/ deductions . (1.11) (0.3!J . . Balance as at March 31 2021 2.31 7.61 10.57 20.07 21.51 Additions . 0.83 1.64 15.06 11.64 Oisoosals/ deductions . _J0.13) _{0.06_2 _J0. 1<1_) (4.4!1] Balance as at March 31.i, 2022 2.31 8.31 12.15 34.99 28.66 

AccCJmulated depreciation and amortisation 
Balance as at April 01 , 2020 . 0 .82 1.41 4.78 2.40 Charge for lhe year . 0 .70 1.59 6 .26 4,94 DiS_posalS 

(0.33) (0.1:i) . . Balance as at March 31.t 2021 . 1.19 2.87 11.04 7.34 Charge ror the yea, . 0.99 1.71 7.43 6.2s Di.!2_osals . (0.04) (0.041 (0.12) (2.28) Balance as at March 31 2022 . 2.14 4.54 18.35 11.35 
Not block 
Balance as at March 31 2021 2.31 6.42 7.70 9.03 14.17 

B.atanco as at March 31,, 2022 2.31 6.17 7.61 16.64 17.31 

I 
lntanglblo Assets under Development ageln9 SchodlJ_le as lntanglblo Ai - . - - . -...- · ··-·· · -a-•••.,, dcrOi Schodul1 on March 31, 2022 

Amount in lntanglblo Assets for a period of 

lntanglbl& Assets undor Development Less than 1 
1•2years 2.3 years more than 3 

Total vear veacs Pioiects In Prooress 27.68 . . . 27.68 P10Jects temnnGlrilv susoended . . . . Total 

Loasehold 
improvements 

23.20 
0.09 

(0.90) 
22.39 

. 
_JO.~ 
22.37 

3.13 
4 .67 

_J0.16) 
7.64 
4.82 

(0.021 
12.44 

14.75 

9.93 

27.68 . . . 27.68 
There is nD projeci which cost exceeded the budget ot time over run. The<e were no projects which is temporarily suspended as at March 31. 2022 • 

Intangible Assets under Development ageing s.,c __ h~• .. d.cu,cl• __ •--•--o .. nc.,.M..,a __ rc .. h-'-'-31.,;•..,2cao..,2--1 _ ,_,,..... _ _,_,...,. _ _, _ ___ _, 

I Amount in Intangible Assets for a ~ _riod of I I 
Intangible Assets under Development Less than 1 I 1 2 I 2 3 I more than 3 "' ye:ars • years year _ _years Total 

Pr • • 0 .46 

To a 0.46 
There is no project v.titch cosl e>1:C4-eded the budget or Ii ce no projecls which is lemporarlty suspe~ as al March 31, 2021. 

1P'~1 J 
I 11.\ 

Intangible 

Right of assets Intangible 
assets under use assets Computer Total development 

Software 

78.91 20.87 1.94 24.35 
7.93 . 28.17 1.58 

(2.38) . (0.11' (25.47) 
84.46 20.87 30.00 0.46 
29.17 7.77 19.28 36.28 (4.34] . . _J9.0§J 

108.79 28.64 49.28 27.68 

12.54 4 .03 a.so . 
18.16 5.62 4.31 . 
(0.6?) . _(0.04) . 
30.08 9.65 4 .77 . 
21 .24 6.62 19.75 . 
(2.50 . . . 
48.82 16.27 24.52 . 

54.38 11 .22 25.23 0.46 

59.97 12.37 24.76 27.68 
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Note Particulars 

11 Other non-financial assets 
Unsecured, considered good 
Capital advances 
Prepaid expenses 
Advance paid to vendors 
Balances with government authorities 
Total 

12 Payables 
Trade Payables 

a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprise and small enterprise 
b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprise and small enterprise 

As at As at 
March 31, 2022 March 31 , 2021 

26.86 
8.51 
2.26 

37.63 

0.67 
45.45 
46.12 

0.57 
21.38 
4.78 
1.29 

28.02 

0.13 
15.96 
16.09 

(i) The classification of the suppliers under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 Is made on the basis of 
information made available lo the Company. 

(ii) Disclosure requirement as required under seciion 22 of Micro, Small, & Medium Enterprises Development Aci, 2006 is as 
follows· 
i) Principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to each supplier at the end 
of each accountino vear. 
ii) Interest paid by lhe Company in terms of section 16 of Micro, Small and Medium 
Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with the amount of the payment made to the 
supplier bevond the annointed dav durlno each accountinn vear. 
iii) Interest due and payable for the year of delay in maKing payment (which have been paid 
but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under 
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Aci, 2006. 
iv) Interest accrued and remaininn unnaid at the end of each accountina vear: 
v) Interest remaining due and payable even in the SUC(;eedlng years. until such dale when lhe 
interest dues as above are actuallv naid to the small enternrise 

Trade Pavables Aaeina 

Particulars Not Due 

(ii MSME 0.67 
(ii) Others 33.40 

1111 Discuted dues - MSME -
(iv) Discuted dues - Others . 
Total 34.07 

Trade Payables Aaein!I 

Particulars Not Due 

i MSME 0.13 
(ii Others 13.16 

111 Discuted dues - MSME -
(iv Disputed dues - Others -
Total 13.29 

13 Debt securities 
At amortised cost 
Non=nvertible redeemable debentures (secured) 
Total 

Debi securities in India 
Debt securities outside India 
Total ..,... , 
(elso, refer note 32(a))r, , 

- :> 
z 

Less than 1 
vear 

. 
11.81 

-
. 

11.81 

Less than 1 
vear 

-
2.46 
. 
-

2.46 

As at March 31 , 2022 

1-2 years 2-3 years 

- . 
0.24 . 
- -
- -

0.24 -
As at March 31, 2021 

1-2 years 2-3 years 

- -
0.34 . 
. . 
- -

0.34 -

0.67 0.13 

- -

- -

. . 
- . 

More than 3 
Total vears 

- 0.67 
- 45.45 
- -
- . 
. 46.12 

More than 3 
Total vears 

- 0.13 
. 15.96 
- -
- -
- 16.09 

5,301.33 4,213.92 
5,301.33 4,213.92 

777.85 448.07 
4,523.48 3.765.85 
5,301.33 4,213.92 
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Note Particulars 

14 Borrowings (other than debt securities) 

At amortised cost 
Secured: 
Term loans: (also. refer nole 32(b)) 

from banks 
from other parties 

lnteresl accrued but not due on borrowings 
Working capital facilities from banks (also, refer note 32(b)) 
liabilities against securitisation (also, refer note (i) below) 
Total 

Borrowings in India 
Borrowings outside India 

As at As at 
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

2,201.06 1,729.69 
3,106.01 1,556.87 

19.41 5.96 
127.04 
59.76 

5,326.48 3,479.32 

4,961.46 3,479.32 
365.02 

5,326.48 3,479.32 

i) liabilities against securitisation represents amounts received In respect of securitisation lransactions (net of repaymenls & 
lnveslments tlierein) as these transad ions do not meet the de-recognition criteria specified under Ind As 109. These are secured 
by way of hypothecation of designated assets on finance receivables. 

ii) There is no defaull as on March 31 , 2022 and March 31, 2021 in repayment of borrowings and interest in all the above 
calegories of the borrowings 

15 Otherfinanciat liabilities 
At amo,tised cost 
Lease liabilities (also refer nole 36) 
Employee related payables 
Income received In advance 
Payable to subsidiaries (also, refer note 42) 
Other payables (also, refer note 42)' 
Total 

15.62 
49.96 
16.53 

8.82 
90.93 

14.36 
1.55 
3.81 
3.43 
5.65 

28.80 

"Includes u,e amount received of Rs. 6.73 million (March 31, 2021 ; Rs. 6.73 million) by invoking the bank guarantee of the 
borrower in default. 

16 Provisions 
Provision for employee benefits: (also, refer note 31) 

Gratuity 
Compensated absences 

Total 

17 Other non-financial liabilities 
Stalutory dues payable 
Others 
Total 

17.21 15.22 
17.22 12.18 
34.43 27.30 

26.39 15.86 
0.34 0.89 

26.73 16.75 
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18 Share capital 
Authorised share capital 
Equity shares off 10 each 

' 

Compulsorily convertible prelerence shares of f 1 O each 
Total 

Issued, subscribed and paid-up: 
Equity shares off 10 each 
Less: Equity shares held under trust for employees under ESOP 
scheme (also. refer note 18(i)\ 

Compulsor!ly convertible preference shares off 10 each 
Total 

a) Reconciliation of number of equity shares and amount 
outstanding 
Issued, subscribed and paid-up 
Balance al the beginning of the year 

Less: Equity shares held under trust for employees under ESOP 
scheme 
Balance at the end of the year 

b) Reconciliation of number of p reference shares and amount 
outstanding 
Issued, subscribed and paid-up: 
Balance at the bl'9innin9 of the year 
Shares issued during the year 
Balance at the end of the year 

c) Shareholders holding more than 5 percent 

Equity shares off 10 each 
SGAnilKumar 
Samunnati ESOPWelfare Trust 
Accel India V (Mauritius) ltd 

Compulsorily convertible preference shares off 10 each 
Eleva, M•III 
Ace•! India V (Mauritius) lid 
ResponsAbility Agriculture I, SLP 
Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association of America 
Accel Growth Fund V LP 

Elevar I-IV AJF represented by its Trustee Vistra ITCL India lid 

d) Equity shares held by promoters at the end of the year 

Promoter Name 

Mr. Anil Kumar S G 

Promoter Name 

Mr. Anil Kumar S G 

e) There were no shares issued pursuant lo eonttact withou 
since incorporation of the Compa,oy. 

AS at Asat 
March 31 2022 March 31 2021 

No. of shares I Amount No. of shares I 

7,50.000 7.50 7.5D.000 
17,50.000 17.50 17,50,000 
25,00,000 25.00 25,00,000 

5,73,861 5.74 5,73,861 
(2,13,523) (2.14) (2, 13,523) 

16,83,819 16.84 
20,44, 157 20.45 

5,73,861 5.74 
5,73.861 5.74 

(2,13.523) (2.1 4) 

3,60,338 3.60 

16,16,195 16.16 
67,624 0.68 

16.83,819 16.84 

No. of shares % of holding 

2,38.257 42% 
2,13,523 37% 

75,733 13% 

4,21,522 25% 
3,74,949 22% 
3,66,594 22% 
2.26,730 13% 
1.10.07s 7% 
1.18,957 7% 

March 31, 2022 

Number of Percentage of 
sharos total shares 

2,38.257 41.52% 

March 31 2021 

Number of 
shares 

Percentage of 
total shares 

2,38,257 41.52% 

16,16,195 
19,76,533 

5,73,861 
5.73,861 

(2, 13,523) 

3,60,338 

16,16, 195 

16,16,195 

No. of shares 

2,38,257 
2,13.523 

75,733 

3,78,074 
3,74,949 
3,66,594 
2,26,730 
1.10,075 

99,340 

Percentage 
change during 

the vear 
. 

Percentage 
change during 

the ear 

Amount 

7.50 
17.50 
25.00 

5.74 
(2.14) 

16.16 
19.76 

5.74 
5.74 

(2.14) 

3.60 

16.16 

16.16 

¾of holding 

42% 
37% 
13% 

23% 
23% 
23% 
14% 
7% 
6% 

celved in cash. allo11ed as fully paid up by way of bonus issues 
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f) The Company has acquired 100% stake in Kamatan Fann Tech Private limited ('KFTPL') through a share swap on April 16, 2021. 
Pursuant to the agreement the Compan9 has issued 67,624 Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares ('CCPS') to the equity 
shareholders of KFTPL. 

g) Terms and rights attached to equity shares 

The Company has onty one class of equity shares having a face vafue of t 1 O per share. Each hok1er of equity shares is entitted to one 
vote per share. The Company shall declare and pay dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend propos&d by the Board of Directors shall be 
subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except interim dividend which can be approved by the 
Board of Directors. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets or 
the Company, aner disltibution or all pr•ferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion lo the number or equity shares held by the 
shareholders. 

h} Terms and tights attached to preference shares 

The Company has issued Serles A 1, A2, A3, B, C and D compulsorily convertible preference shares having a face value of { 10 per share. 
At the oplion of the holders, these shate.s, either in whole or in part. may be converted into equity shares in the ratio of 1:1 before the expiry 
of 19 years from the issuance of such compulsorily convertible preference shares. Each holder of the compulsorily convertible preference 
shares is entiUed to one vote per share. Dividend on each compulsorily convertible preference shares is 0.01 % per annum, subject to cash 
flow solvency, and such dividend shall be a preferred dividend. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of compulsorily 
convertibfe preference shares shall have a preference over other share holders of the Company. 

Terms of conversion 

Series Date Amount Series Al 
25 Feb 2034 0.99 Series A2 
25 Jul 2034 1.26 Series A3 

31 Mar2035 0.61 Series B 
25 Feb 2036 2.76 Series C 
27 Dec 2036 5.60 Series D 
23May2038 4.94 Series 01 
15 Aor 2040 0.68 

16.84 

l) The Company has given an interest and collateral free loan to Samunnall Employee Stock Option Plan Welfare Trust ("ESDP Trust") lo 
provide financial assistance for purchase of equity shares of Ille Company under Employee Stock Option Scheme. The Company has 
established the ESDP Trust lo which the stock options Issuable have been transferred. The Company treats ESOP trust as its extension 
and shares held by ESOP trust are lteated as treasury shares. Own equity Instruments that are re-acquired (treasury shares) are 
recognised al cost and deducted from Equity share capital (lo tho extent of face value) and from Other equity (lo th• extent of premium on 
shares). (Also refer note 30) 

19 Other eauitv 

As at As at 

Statutory Reserve March 31 2022 March 31 2021 

Opening balance 
40.59 39.84 Add : Transfer tram retained earnings . 0.75 Balance as at the end of the year 
40.59 40.59 

Securities Premium 
Balance as at the beginning of the year 

4,931 .10 4,953.68 Premium on shanss issued during the year 
812.96 . Debenture issue expenses 
11.39 (22.58' Balance as at the end of the year 

5,755.45 4,931.10 
Employee stock options outstanding 
Balance as at the beginning of the year 

205.29 164.31 Add: Employee stock option eJ<penses 
57.03 40.98 Less: Utilised during the year on exercise of options . . Balance as at tho end of the year 

262.32 205.29 
Capital redemption reserve 
Balance as at the beginning of the year 

0.07 0.07 Add : Additions during the year . . Less . Adjustments dur[ng the year 

/4<.•~ l,ll?A. . . Balance as atthe end of the vear 
0.07 0.07 

~ w~ i, ! ~ JI ;;: 
~> ) ~ 

r;, .- •• '-.: 
·lif'S * ,~\ 
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Other comprehensive income 
Balance as at the beginning of the year 
Add : Other comprehensive income for the year 
Less : Transferrad to retained earnings 
Balance as at the end of the year 

Retained earnings 
Balance as at the beginning of the year 
Add : Prorit I (loss) for the year 
Less : Transfers to statutory reserve 
Balance as at the end of the year 

Total other eauirv 

Description of the nature and purpose of other equity 

Statutory reserve 

As at 
March 31 2022 

3.00 
2.07 
. 

5.07 

(74.22) 
(686.19) . 
(740.41 

5,323.09 

As at 
March 31 , 2021 

(1.11) 
4.11 
. 

3.00 

(77.20) 
3.73 

(0.75 
174.22 

5,105.83 

Reserve fund is created as per the terms of section 4S.IC(1) of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 as a Slatutory reserve, An amounl 
equal to 20% of profits after ta)( ls transferre.d to this reserve every year. This is a restricted reserve and any appropriation from this reserve 
can only be made after p rior approval from RBI. 

Securities premium 

Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. This amount can be utilised in accordance with the provisions of the 
Companies Act 2013. 

Employee stock options outstanding 

The employee stoc.k options outstanding represents amount of reserve created by recognition of compensation cost at grant date fair value 
on stock options v&sted but not ex~rci.sed by employees and unvested stock options in the Statement of profit and toss in respect of equity­
settled share options granted to the eligible employees of the Comp.any and its subsidiaries in pursuanee of the Employee Stoc.k Option 
Plan. 

Capital redemption reserve 

Capital Redemplion Reserve is c,eated as p er the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the shares bought back by the 
Company. 

Other comprehensive income 

Represents remeasurement of defined benefit liability which comprises of actuarial gains and losses excluding amounts included in net 
interest on the net defined benefit liabilities and income tax impact thereon. 

Retained earnings 

Retained earnings or accumulaled surplus/ (loss) represenls tolal of all prorits/ (losses) retained since Company's inception. Retained 
earnings are ctedited with current year profits, reduced by losses, If any, dividend pay•outs, transfers to General reserve or any such olhe, 
appropriations to specific reserves. 

:-. 

~ .. ~ .~ .- .. ·-~ ' .- :.:;. 
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Note Parti culars 

20 Interest Income 
March 31 , 2022 March 31, 2021 

On financial Instruments measured at amortised cost 
Loans 
lnveslments in Pass Through Certificates 
Security deposits held with lenders 
Fixed deposits 
Loans to subsidiary (also, re/er note 42(b)) 
Total 

21 Other Income 

Income from subsidiary for shared services ( also, refer note 42(b)) 
Income from debt fund inveslments 
In.come from mutual rund investments 
Recovery of defaults in loan serviced 
Miscellaneoos income 

Total 

22 Finance costs 

On financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 
Interest expense on: 
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 
Debt securities 
Lease liability 
Other borrowing costs 

Total 

23 Impairment on financial instruments 
At amortised cost 
Impairment of loans 
Bad debts written off 

Total 

24 Employee benefit expenses 
Salaries and wages (also, refer note 42) 
Gratuity and leave encashment expenses (also, refer note 31) 
Contribution to provident and other funds 
Employee stock option expenses (also refer note 30) 
Staff welfare exPenses 

Total 

25 Depreciation an d amortization 
(Also, refer note 10) 
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 
Amortisation charge on rigllt of use assets 
Amortization of intangible as.sets 

Total 

• 1,552.04 
24.42 
15.53 
4.55 

95.92 
1,692.46 

44.59 
16.58 
13.84 
0.92 
6.53 

82.46 

401.37 
530,08 

1.98 
43.74 

977.17 

200.24 
515.20 
715.44 

507,25 
17.39 
23.12 
57.03 
22.91 

627.70 

21.24 
6.62 

19.75 
47.61 

1,488.38 
6.06 

27.19 
35.53 
46.70 

1,603.86 

47.73 
9.65 
4.00 
4,72 
6.87 

72.97 

309.04 
345,57 

1.53 
27.96 

684.10 

(45.48) 
367.99 
322,51 

385.25 
7.62 

12.74 
40.98 
19.1 7 

465.76 

18.16 
5.62 
4.31 

28.09 
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Note Particulars 

26 Other expenses 
Legal and professional charges 
Service ree expenses 

Technology and communication expenses 
Membership and subsCliption charges 
Travelling and conveyance 
Insurance 

Payments to auditors (also, rerer note 28) 
Repairs and maintenance - others 
Rates and taxes 
Rent (also, refer note 36) 
Printing and stationery 
Power and ruel 
Sitting fees 

Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 
Mal1<eting expenses 
CSR contribution (also, refer note 39) 
Miscellaneous expenses 
Total 

27 Tax expense 

a) Income tax recognizod in statement of profit and loss 

Current tax: 

In respect or current year 

Deferred tax: 

In respect of current year origination and reversal of temporary d ifferences 
Total Income tax recognized In statement of profit and loss 
Total 

b) Income tax recognized in other comprehensive Income 

Deferred tax related to items recognized in Other Comprehensive Income during the year: 
Remeasurement of defined employee benefits 
Total income tax recognized In other comprehensive income 

28 Payments to auditors 

Statutory audit (Balance for FY 2020-21 for previous auditors}" 
Statutory audit 
Limited revieW'' 
Tax audit' 
Certification' 
Others' 
Out of pocket expenses• 

• Includes GST of 9% for the current ye-ar 

29 Earnings Per Share (EPS} 

Net profiV (loss) attributable to equity shareholders t in millions (Basic and Diluted) 
Weighted average number of equity shares used In computing basic EPS (in numbers) 
Effect of potential dilutive equity shares (in numbers) 

Weighted average number of equity shares used in computing diluted earnings per share (in 
numbers} 

March 31, 2022 

9'3.46 
2.24 

31.35 
17.58 
25.80 
3.23 
7.14 
6.73 
0.72 
9.35 
3.98 
2.27 
3.13 

10.34 
0.87 
4.81 

223.00 

(149.81! 
(149.81) 
(149.81) 

0 .38 
0.38 

2.00 
3.13 
1.85 

0.11 
0.04 
0.01 
7.14 

(ooS.19) 
3,6-0.338 

19,10,320 
22,70,658 

Basic EPS (t} • face value or share t1 O each (1,846.11) 
Diluted EPS (f). face value of share ,10 each • ___ _ (1,846.11} 

·Due to the loss incurred for tne. year ended March 31, [j'1 ' •W ntial equity shares are considered as anti-dilutive. 
~ · ,.cl! 

- ~ i 
~ -' ~t J 

·'-" • S . 1):. 

March 31 , 2021 

81.02 
9.36 

22.36 
10.88 
11,61 
1.51 
2.6-0 
5.59 
0.03 
9.80 
3.36 
2.56 
2.32 
0,74 
5.41 
1.88 
2.57 

173.60 

(0.96) 
(0.96) 
!0,96) 

(1.38) 
(1.38) 

1.70 
0.55 
0.15 
0 .10 

0.10 
2.60 

3.73 
3,60,338 

19, 10,320 
22,70,658 

10.35 
1.64 
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30 En,ptoyee share baud payments 

ESOP 2015 Scheme 

a) On September 08, Z-015. the BNrd or 01(,:iCfOJ's approvt'a an(I tt,e Con;pany- adopted the "Employt~ Stoc-~ Option Plan 2015• (the •Pfan1 under 
'M'lleh no; more than 62.50') $haft& or the Company's equi1y Wr~s Y'3S re1e1ved to, lu.uance IO emj)f(iye~s. In Ille Soard m~eting dated January 
28, 2017, O~ember 20, 2017 and April 29. 201s ac,.j~onaJ shares o! 6,79.; (nos), 70,368 (nos) al')(j 115,000 (l'IOS) respecti'ltly wece added to t1'e 
Plan, luue<I and aDotted to ESOP Tn.ist. 

The options ar._, to be graoled to the ef,giblt- emp,loyi!-t's as per lhe eligibility crilena l'Js de-te<rnfned by tho B~rd Of Dire¢t0<.s. The shar$ optk>ns v&s:t 
in a graded maMer over a piMOd of 1· 4 years and are e,ereisable ~thin 2 m~lhS of ,~e-1c~ event, tailing \\tllch the options $hall l1ps.e. 

On Juoe 21. 2018, the 8ol!Jd of Dlre-ctors approv,:-d and lhe Company adopted lhe • Ame11dment to the Employees S;OCk Cpl.ion Plan 2015" ("The 
PIM1. The a~.ricfment pNtaln$ to Vt-sling ~d. e;ce-<dse and grant of options to new joiners. The option$ 10 be grcm!ed 10 the eGgibf~ emplQYffs 
as pe, the efii;fbility cr♦tf!l1a as de-temune.d by the 80i,fd Of DhciOf.S. The shatc oplions vt~t in a grad~ manner over a piMod ot 1-4 yeari and are 
e-.oe<dsa-We within 2 m0fllhs of l•~rcfM eve.,t, ralllng which the employees shall ha\le to hofd on liU the n~4 e-veflt art.scs.. On May 14. 2019. the 
Bo;atd or ew-~c:lors apptoved and the Company adoP(ed the "'E.mpCoy.ees Stock Oplion Plan 1019". The amtndment penaJns 10 vt-s.l~ period. Vo,li~ 
ot Options. may now ta:l.e place between th.tee an-d tour YHri In the mannet, as may b~ detided by the Nominstion and Remuneration C°"'1ffli1te-e. 

Ot.lling the current year boitd Of dl1e-ctors approved li.s:ue or 43,380 oplktn, 10 employees and the same was fully granted in lhe cunent yur. 

No, of No. of 
options as Weighte-d opUons as Weighte-d Particul1rs 

" Average at Average 
March 31, R1'te March 31, Rate 

2022 2021 
Opt.ions (llJbland;ng at the beglMlr,g or the year 57,S&S 2,156 48,635 2,170 Grante<f during the ytar 43.380 5,012 11,.4 13 7.500 E\etGdi!d durt,g the year . . &:pi,(td/ lapw,d during tile year (15,232) . (2,483) 3,403 Opti<:Wls ovtttand1,ig at the end of !he y.ea, 85,713 3,473 57.565 3,173 Ontions f-J t-fcis.able H at the ef'\d of the oetlOd 10,930 739 15.88-0 690 

b) The fair vatue of the options granted is ~te<mln~d on lhe dale or lhe gra,nt usir,g the "81ac!<.-Scttole-s opt;011 pricing model' v.ith lhe folto,.,.-1~ 
i"U tJ~ions, as cef1ified by an inOE-pe,ndent valuer. 

Particulars FY 2015-16 FY 2016-17 FY 2017•18 FY 2018-19 FY 2019-20 FY 2020,21 FY 2021•22 Fair mat~i!I value of opelon on the di:te or grant S82.86 806.84 1.030..<0 1,726.61 2,970.44 3,318,07 5,02:2.43 E'-erdse price range (weighted avctag.&) 10.00 319.00 618.00 1,<9◄.◄S 3,203'50 7,500.00 1,3,059.77 EYpt-cled VOldtiiity (%} 60,29% 00.29¾ 60.28~'. 60.29% 60.29% 60.29~, 56.98¾ E~~ rofftilure i,e,ccntaoe on each Vtslin:g date . . . . . E:r~c(ed option life (we-ighted ,..,c:,age In ye.ars) 3,87 3.57 3.22 3,10 2.◄7 3.00 3.00 &~t!'d dividends yletd . . . . . . Risk tree inte,e,1,ate ru.\ 
7.SS~~ 6.8S¾ 6.66~~ 7.62% 6.81 % S.86% 6.80% 

Management Stock Opllon ~heme 2017 

On ~mber 20. 2017, lhe Soar.:, ct Diteciors app(oved and the COMpany adopt~ the ''Man.agemMt S•OGI< Opeion Seheme 2017'' he1e1n.ane, 
rete11td as the "Sc~m~·. Under CM Scheme, 28,529 options: were gl'anted to U'!e promoti!'r (Anil Kumar S G • Director a.nd CEO). \lts.:!ing O\iet 1 ye-ar 
from the date or the grant On April 29. 2VJ9. Uie Soard of Otrtetors approved and !he Company adopte-d the ~a.nagemeot Stoc~ Opt;on Scheme 
1019". Under the revisl!d &:%me, 4S,ooo c,pl~s ~re gr.vtted lo ttie prom01er, vo,ting over 1 year t,om the dare or u-.e gront. On Che ho1ppenlng of 
any liqui:1lty even! as d.etine-<1 in lhe StlieMe, the Noml,i.aliM and remune1at1on commiltee has the <ti,cretf0fl to provide c,1,hfeti e"e-!Cise. 

The ~Med a11e1age remaining conuactuel llre f0< the Mock oJ)Cions ovtst.nding at the end of the year ♦...'1:$ o days( pre-v)OIJs y~r! 212 days) 

Particular$ 

Optbis. oulSCond1ng 81 the beglnf!ing or the y~a, 
Grant~ dvl'irt,g the ytar 
Ev..ercised duririg the year 
E'(pired/ lapsed dunng the year 
Op11Qns ouista/'lding a1 lhe enel or lhe year 
O ,tiMs t>:-tciHble as at !he 6nd or the eriod 

V 

No. of 
options es .. 
March 31, 

2022 
45,000 

Weighted 
Avenge 

Rate 

2,902 

No. of 
opUons as 

at 
March 31, 

2021 
45,000 

4$.000 
15,000 

Welghttd 
AVO(age 

Rate 

2,902 

2,902 
2902 
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Tne fair value or the options g,a,,ted Is d~te,ml~ on tne Mte of grant using the Slack Scnol1ts opl,,on pricing n,odel 'Mth Ch6 foll~ng au umpt:OOs 
as Geftir~ by an indeJ)f'ndt-nt va.luer. 
Fair marl(et varue ot Option on the date.or graut 
Number of opCions granted 
E).ercise prioe range (weigf"ed &vdage) 
£~cted vOlalility (o/,) 
Expected forfefltJre ~,c:ent.1g,e on each vesting date 
Expe((d(f option life ('A--eighled aver-,&gc fn years) 
E~~<:.ted dMde,nds yf~kl 
Risk r,~ inteteit rate 1%1 

2,938.71 
45,000 

3,752.55 
60.28% 
0.00% 

0.00% 
7.4'1% 

NW!-: Sinee the MSOP shares lss,.>ecf on 0-!e~f'l;bfr 20, 2017 we-te vested ~fore the date of lfaMilion to INO~AS, !h& Company has n0t fair vajved 
such grants, Hence abo-ve Cfcr.dos'.Ht: J,g not prueuled tor the Hrne, 
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31 Employee benefits 

General description of defined benefit plans 
a) Gratuity 

In accordance with applicable Indian laws. the Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retiremenl plan ("The 
Gratuity Plan") covering eligible employees. The gratuity plan provide for a lump sum payment to vested employees on 
retirement (subject to completion of five years of continuous employment), death, incapacitation or termination of 
employment that are based on last drawn salary and tenure of employment. The Company does not maintain any plan 
assets to fund its obligation towards gratuity liability. 

Through its defined benefit plans the Company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed 
below: 

Inflation risk 

The present value of some of the defined benefit plan obligations are calculated with reference to the future salaries of 
plan participants. As such, an increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan's liability. 

Life expoctancy 

The present value of defined benefit plan obligation is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan 
participants, bolh during and after the employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase 
the plan's liability. 

Discount rate 

Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan's liability. 

Details of defined benefit plans as per actuarial valuation are as follows 

I. Amount recognized in the statement of Profit and Loss 
Current service cost 
Net Interest cost 

Total expenses included in employee benefit expenses 

II. Amount recognized in Other Comprehensive income 
Remeasurement (gains)/ losses: 

Actuarial (gain)/ losses arising from changes in 
- Experience adjustments 

Total amount recognized in other comprehensive income 

Ill. Changes in the defined benefit obligation 
Opening defined benefit obligation 
Current service cost 
Interest expense 

Remeasurement (gains)flosses arising from changes in -
• Experience adjustments 

Benefits paid 
Closing defined benefit obligation 

IV. Net defined benefit obligation 
Defined benefit obligation 
Current portion of the above 
Non current portion of the abov •n<.1:JiEO(l;c/ 

fk:3\ .:=. & 
~ "' 
~ ,A\. ,.•'" .,,-; * -~ 

Year ended 
March 31, 2022 

4.69 
1.10 
S.79 

!2,45) 
(2.45) 

As at 
March 31, 2022 

15.22 
4.69 
1.10 

(2.45) 
(1.35) 
17.21 

As at 
March 31, 2022 

17.21 
2.45 

14.76 

Year ended 
March 31, 2021 

5.73 
1.18 
6.91 

(549) 
(5.49) 

As at 
March 31 2021 

13.80 
5.73 
1.18 

(5.49) 

15.22 

As at 
March 31 2021 

15.22 
2.07 

13.15 
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March 31 , 2022 

V. Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation (undlscounted) 

Within 1 year 
Year2 
Year 3 
Year ◄ 

Year5 
Years 6-10 
Years 11-15 
Years 15+ 

Particulars 

I. Actuarial assumptions and sensitivity 
Discount rate (p.a.) 
Attrition rate 
Rate of salary increase 
In• service Morality rate 

II. Quantitative sensitivity analysis for Input of significant assumptions 
on dofined benefit obligations are as follows 

One percentage point increase in discount rate 
One perce"tage point decrease in discount rate 
One percentage point increase in salary growth rate 
One percentage point dec,ease in salary growth rate 
Ten pe,centage point increase in attr,Uon rate 
Ten percentage point decrease in altrition rate 

b) Compensated absences 

Asat 
March 31 1 2022 

2.45 
1.87 
1.96 
2.09 
2.72 
8.93 
3.24 
3.01 

As at 
March 31 , 2022 

6.90% 
15.00% 
7.00% 

IAL2012-14Ult 

Year ended 

March 31 , 2022 

(0.85) 
0.94 
0.94 

(0.87) 
(0.30) 
0.31 

As at 
March 31 , 2021 

2.08 
1.33 
1.76 
1.83 
1.98 
8.37 
3.17 
2.63 

As at 

March 31 , 2021 

6.50% 
15.00% 
7.00% 

IAL2012-14Ult 

Year ended 

March 31, 2021 
(0.81) 
0.89 
0.85 

(0.78) 
(0.30) 
0.31 

The company permits encashment of compensated absences acrumulated by their employees on retirement, separation 
and during the course of service. The liability in respect of the Company, for outstanding balance of privilege leave at the 
balance sheet date is determined and provided on the basis of actuarial valuation provided by an independent actuary. 
The company does not maintain any plan assets to fund its obligation t01Nards compensated absences. 

Actuarial assumptions for compensated absences 
Particulars 

I. Actuarial assumptions and sensitivity 
Discount rate (p.a.) 
Rate of salary increase 
Attrit>On rate over different age brackets 

Year ended 
March 31 , 2022 

6.70% 
7.00% 

15.00% 

Yearonded 
March 31 1 2021 

6.50% 
7.00% 

15.00% 

The estimate of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, considers inflation, seniority, promotion and other 
relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market. 

II. Expenses recognized in Statement of profit and loss 
Included under gratuity and leave encashment expenses 

Ill. Net defined benefit obligation 
Defined benefit obligation 
Current portion of the above 
Non current portion of the above 

Year ended 
March 31 1 2022 

t t .60 

As at 
March 31 1 2022 

17.22 
6.21 

11.01 

Year ended 
March 31 , 2021 

0.71 

Asat 
March 311 2021 

12.18 
3.34 
8.84 
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32 Details of security, repayment terms and applicable interest rates on debt securities and borrowings 

a) Debt securities 

For balances outstanding as at March 31 2022 
' 

Original maturity Face value Date of Maturity Rate of Amount due Amount due 
within one beyond one of roan (amount) allotment date interest 

year yoar Non Convertible Redeemable Debenturts 
72 Months 10,00,000 24-Sep-18 24-Sep-24 12.71% 0.40 150.00 72 Months 10,00,000 24-Sep-18 24-Sep-24 12.94% 0.79 300.00 48 Months 50,000 12-0ec-18 12-0ec-22 12.30% 366. 19 . 36 Months 5,00,000 17-Jun-20 17-Jun-23 12.75% 50.39 25.00 36 Months 10,00,000 19-Jun-20 19-Jun-23 13.00% 0.20 50.00 33 months 8,75,000 25-Sep-20 25-Jun-23 12.40% 41.90 247,50 36 Months 10,00,000 17-Jul-20 17-Jul-23 12.00% 21.21 250.00 36 Monlhs 10.00,000 15-0ec-20 15-0ec-23 12.06% 127.84 336.00 36 Months 10,00,000 15-Dec-20 15-Dec-23 12.06% 126.84 336.00 36 Months 10.00,000 31-Mar-21 01-Apr-24 12.30% 0.23 354.00 60 months 5,000 20-Aug-20 20-Aug-25 12,39% 7.64 506.25 36 monU,s 10,00.000 05-Apr-21 05-Apr-24 11.64% 21 .46 400.00 60 months 1,00,000 26-Jut-21 15-Ju~26 10.70% 7.27 345.00 36months 10,00.000 06·S• p-21 06-S•p-24 10.85% 1.78 244.00 36 months 1,00,000 28-Dec-21 27-0eo-24 11 .60% 134.39 246.67 48 Months 10.00,000 15-Feb-22 15-Feb-26 12.16% 8.41 594.00 

916.91 4,384 .. 42 

F b I or a anees ou n ing as a arc . t M h 31 2021 

Original maturity Face value Date of Rate of Amount duo Amount due 
of loan (amount) allotment Maturity date 

interest within one beyond one 

Non Convertible Redeemable Oebenture-s 
year year 

30 Monlhs 1,00,000 09-0ct-18 09-Apr-21 12.60% 214.19 -37 Months 1.00.000 13-May-18 07-Jun-21 12.10% 351.95 . 33 monlhs 10,00,000 30-Nov-18 31 -Aug-21 12.60% 249.35 . 72 Months 10,00,000 24-Sep-18 21-Sep-21 12.60% 455.85 48 Monlhs 1,00,000 12-Dec-18 12-Dec-22 12.30% 13.10 353.10 36 Months 8,33,333 17-Jun-20 17-Jun-23 12.80% 52.16 75.00 36 Months 10.00,000 19-Jun-20 19-Jun-23 13.00% 0.24 50.00 33 months 10,00,000 25-Sep-20 25-Jun-23 11.70% 41.85 288.75 36Months 10,00.000 17-.Jul-20 17-Ju~23 12.00% 21.43 250.00 36 Monlhs 10.00,000 15-Dec-20 15-Dec-23 12.1 0% 16.01 448,00 "36Months 10,00,000 15-Dec-20 15-D•c-23 12.10% 16.01 448.00 36 Monlhs 10,00,000 31-Mar-21 01-APr-24 12.30% 0.12 354.00 60 months 5,000 20-Aug-20 20-.Aug-25 12.40% 8.56 506.25 
1,440.82 2,773.10 

<<This space is in,'f1t1 · "'""·"""'' > 

f ~ 
:!:. " 
~ ~ 
~ ? ~ 

;,;s * ·~ ~ . 

Total 

150.40 
300.79 
366.19 
75,39 
50.20 

289.40 
271.21 
463.84 
462.84 
354.23 
513,89 
421.46 
352.27 
245.78 
381 .05 
602.41 

5,301.33 

Total 

214.19 
351.95 
249.35 
455.85 
366.20 
127.16 
50.24 

330.60 
271.43 
464,01 
464.01 
354.12 
514.81 

4,213.92 

Security 
detalls 

Book oebts 

Security details 

Book d•bts 
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32 

b) Bonowings (othor than debt securities) 
For balances outstanding as at March 31, 2022 
I. Long,-term 

Due within one year Duo beyond one year 
Original maturity of loan Rate of interest Noor Nool 

lnstalmonts 
Amount 

instalments 
Amount 

Monthly repayment ol principal 
36 monltls 12.50% 12 70,71 6 38.n 
36 months 11.80% 12 52.26 7 33.40 
24 monltls 11.75% 8 94,71 0 . 
39 montt,s 9.45% 12 134.40 16 170.40 

18 monlhs 11.50% 12 478.TT 1 43,82 
18 monlhs 12.25% 12 102.68 1 9.07 

24 monllls 1125% 12 143.63 9 107.20 
24 monlhs 10.60% 12 150.00 12 150.00 
Quanerfy repayment o1 principal 
36monu,s 12.00% 4 250.00 0 . 
35monlhs 11.75% 4 50.00 2 25.00 
36 months 11.50% 4 51 .21 1 87.50 
30monil1s t1.60% 4 300.00 6 450.00 
Annual repayment of principnt 

48 monltls 10.69% 0 465 3 365.02 
1,883.02 1,480.14 

II. Shon~onn 

Original maturity of loan Rate of interest 
No of 

Amount Security details 
instalments 

Bullet Ropaymont of principal 

6 monltls 8.75% 1 199.00 
12 months 10.90% 1 95.00 Book debts and Cas~ 

Collateral 
12 monlhs 10.75% 1 155.00 

Monthly Repayment ol Principal 
9 months 11.50"4 9 167.28 
9 months 11.35% 9 268.31 Book dcbls and Cash 

Collateral 
6 monlhs 11.35% 6 250.70 

12 monltls 10.75% 12 25.67 
12 months 11.25% 12 503.33 Book Debts 
12 monlhs 12.00% 9 2~5.44 

12 month$ 12.50% / -12 ,f_~!4.t c-,. 100.07 
Book debts nnd Cosh 

Collaleral 
Ill.OD backed by FO Nj/J I\J)'plicoble '-':, . 

- I.·. u ln9.80 

r--.- ~~ 
,~ 

../ ·"' ,.._,/ 
~ ~ 

Total Security details 

109.43 Book debls 
85.67 Book debts 
94.71 Book debts and Cash CoOate<al 

304.80 Book debts and Cash Collateral 
522.60 Bookdebls 
111.75 BookdeblS 
250.83 Book debts 
300.00 Book debts and Cash Collateral 

250.00 Book debts 
75.00 Book debts 

138.71 Book debts 
750.00 Book debts 

369.67 Bookdebls 
3,363.16 
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For balances outstanding as at March 31, 2021 

I. Loni•torm -
Due within one year Due beyond ono year 

Original maturity o f loan Rate of Interest No o l No of 
instaJmcnls 

Amo unt 
instalments 

Amount 

Monthly repavment of principal 
36mon1hs 12.75% 12 62.56 18 109.30 
36 months 13.50% 8 6.68 . . 
36monlhs 13.50% 8 6.68 . . 
36 months 13.50% 8 8.91 . . 
24 Monlhs 12.50% 8 16.71 . . 
24 Months 12.50% 8 16.71 . . 
36monlhs 9.45% 9 50.45 27 149.60 
24 Months 10.00% 12 82.57 . . 
24 Monlhs 11.75% 12 125.00 12 93.75 
36 months 11.80% 12 46.47 19 85.44 
18 months 14.00% 5 51.12 . . 

Quarterly repayment of principal 
36months 12.00% 4 250.00 4 250.00 

35 Monlhs 11.75% 4 so.co 6 75.00 
773.86 763.09 

II. Short-term 

Original maturity of loan Rnte of lnterost 
Noot Amount Socurlty details 

instalments 
Quarterly repayment of principal 

12 months 11.00% 3 143.00 Book debls and C..sh 
12 months 8.00% 3 8.00 Collaleral 

Month ly Repayment of Principal 
12 Months 9.00% 12 200.00 
6monlhs 11.00% 1 150.00 Book debts and Cash 
6months 9.00% 1 201.00 Collateral 

6monlhs 8.00% 1 7.00 

9 months 13.00% 3 167.00 

9monlhs 12.00% 6 336.00 
Book debts and Post Dated 

9 monlhs 12.00% 9 500.00 
Cheques 

12 months ' < 12.00% 5 22.00 
8months 7.00% /.,·-01EJ)~ 29.00 

Book <lebls 

Ill.OD backed by FD - ~ le,. 127.00 CMh Colateral 

/?' ·•·1 ,, 
~ 1 ~ 1,890.00 

V 
~ 

:i\ " ~ 
-~~ ' ,, 

}J),s " ~ • 

Total Security details 

171.88 

6.68 
6.68 Book debts and Post Dated 
8.91 Cheques 

16.71 
16.71 

200.05 
82.57 Book debts end Cash Collateral 

218.75 
131.91 

Book debts 
51.12 

500.00 Book debts ond Cash Collateral 

125.00 Book <lebls 
1,536.95 
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33 Fair value measurement 

33 Financial instruments by category 

a) Financial instruments measured at amortized cost 

As at 
Particulars March 31, 2022 

Carrying value 
Financial assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 990.48 
Other Bank Balances 221.45 
Loans 12,481.26 
Investments 1,8 11.11 
Other financial assets 81.74 

15,586.04 

Financial l iablllties 
Trade Payables 46.12 
Debt securities 5,301.33 
Borrowings (other than debt 5,326.48 
s~urities) 
Other financial liabilities 90.93 

10,764.86 

As at 
March 31 , 2021 
Carrying value 

1,157.74 
523.55 

9,676.19 
1,056.14 

111.33 
12 524.95 

16.09 
4,213.92 
3.479.32 

28.80 
71738.13 

The management assessed !hat fair value of above financial instruments measured at amortised cost approximate lo 
their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of U1ese instruments, 

b) Financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss 
Particulars Carrying value Fair value 

As at March 31 , 2022 
Financial assets 
Investments 

As at March 31, 2021 
Flnanclal assets 

Investments 100.00 100.00 

Fair value 
Level1 Level2 Level 3 

100.00 

33 Fair value measurement hierarchy 

The Company records certain financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value on a recurring basis. The Company 
determines fair values based on the price it would receive to sell an asset or pay 10 transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between marl<et participants at the measurement date and in the principal or most advantageous market for 
that asset or liability. 

The guidance specJRes a hierarchy of valuation 1ech11iques based on whether the Inputs lo each measurement are 
observable or unobservable. Observable inputs reflect market data obtained from independent sources, while 
unobservable inputs reflect the Company's assumptions about current market conditions. The fair value l]ierarchy also 
requires an entity to ma,imize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when 
measuring fair value. 

The Company determines fair values of its financial instruments according to the following hierarchy: 
Level 1 • Valuation based on quoted market price: Financial instruments with quoted prices for identical instruments in 
active marl<ets that the Company can a<;cess at the measurement date. 

Level 2- Valuation using ollservable inputs: Finandal instruments with quoted prices for similar instruments in active 
markets or quoted prices for identical or similar Instruments in inactive mar'~ets and financial instruments valued using 
models where all significant inputs are observable. 

Level 3 - Valuation technique with significant unobservable inputs: F ·a1 instruments valued using valuation 
techniques where one or more significant inputs are unobserva ~ •'it01.4!1q:,,. 

- tL ·i 
~ -~ 4 / '1/,. ,. V ";Ill's ., ·t1'> 
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34 Financial Risk Management Framework 
The Company's board of dorectors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk 
management framework. The Company manages financial risk relating 10 the ope<ations through intemal nsk reports 
"1'1ich analyse exposure by degree and magnitude of risk. These risks include market nsk (including interest rate risk 
and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. Compliance with policies and exposure limits is relliewed by the 
management on a continuous basis. 

(a) Credit risk 
Credit nsk is the risk that the Company will incur a loss because Its customers or counterpart/es fail to discharge their 
cootrae1ual obligations. The Company's exposure to c,edit risk is inftuenced mainly by cash and cash equivalents. other 
bank balances. investments, loan assets and other financial assets. The Company conllnuously monitors defaults of 
customers and other counterpanles and incorporates this lnformalion Into Its credit risk controls. 

(b) Credit risk management 
Based on business environment In which the Company operates, a default on a financial asset Is considered when !he 
counter party fails to make payments Within the agreed time period as per contract. 'The Company assesses and 
manages credit risk based on internal c,edit rating system. Internal credit rating is performed for each class or financial 
instruments with different eharaeteristJcs. The Company has established a eredrt quality review process to prollide eMy 
identification of possible changes in the creditworthiness of counterparties, Including regular collateral revfslons, The 
Company assigns the following c,edit ratings to each class of finaooal assets based on the anumptIons, inputs and 
laCIO<S spee,fic to the class of financial assets, 

The C<Jmoanv orovides tor e..oect&d ctedit loss based on the followino: 

Assets covered Nature 
Basis of expected credit 

loss 
Cash and cash equivalents (excluding cash on hand). 
other bank balances. Investments and other financ,al Low c,edit risk Life 1,me expected credit loss 
assets 

Loans Low credit nsk 
12 month expected c,edIt 

loss 

Loans Moderate c,ed1t nsk Life time expected c,edit loss 

Loans High etedit risk Life bme expected c,ed1t loss 
or fully prollided for 

Financial assets that exoose the entitv to credit risk 

Particulars Nature 
As at As at 

March 31. 2022 March 31. 2021 
Cash and cash equivalents 

Low credit risk 990,48 1,157.66 (excluding cash on hand) 
Bank balance other than above Low credit risk 221.45 523.55 
Loans· Low credit risk 11,731.86 8,556.60 

Loans · Moderate eted1t 767,04 1.109.75 risk 
Loans · High eted,t risk 334.89 163.28 
Investments Low credit risk 1,811.11 1,156.14 
Other financial assets Low c,edit risk 81.74 111.33 
(1 These represent gross carrying values of loans, without netting off Impa1rment loss allowance 

Cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits 
Credit risk related to cash and cash equivalents (~xduding cash on hand) and bank deposits is managed by only 
investing ,n highly rated deposits or banks ac,oss the country. ,.,0,,, 

• -~ ' ""'"t. 
e 
!r ~ t, ... 

~-1)~ .. " .,,,1 . t• 
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Other financial assets 
Other financiel assets measured at amortized cost Includes sl!CUnty deposits, employee advances, deposits with 
f1nanc1al inst,tutions, payment receivable on securitisalion and other receivables. Credit risk related to these other 
financial assets is managed by mooito<ing the recoverabir,ty of sueh amounts continuously. 

Loans 
The Company closely moMors the credit-worthiness of the borrower's through internal systems and appraisal process 
to assess the credit risk and define credit limits ol borrower, thereby, limiting the credit risk by setting hmits on the 
amount ol nsk ~ is v,;mng 10 accept for the counterparties. These processes Include a detailed appraisal methodology, 
identification of risks and suitable structuring and credit risk mitigation measures. The Company assesses inaease in 
credit risk on an ongoing basis for amounts loan reuivables that be,;ome past due and default is considered 10 have 
occurred when amounts receivable become 60 days. 

The maj or guidelines for selection of the client includes: 
1. The client's income and indebtedness levels must be v.;(hin the f)fesetibed guidelines ol Reserve Bank of India, 
2, The dtent must possess the required KYC documents 
3. The client must be engaged in some fonn of economic activity Which ensures regular income; 
4. Client must agree to follow the rules and regulations of the organisation and 
5 Credit bureau check - In order to deal with the f)foblem of over extension of credit and indebtedness of the d 1ent, lhe 
organ,saUon undenakes credit bureau checks compulsorily for every cllenl The credit bureau check helps the 
organisation in idenUlying clients with poor repayment histories and muttiple loans. 

Credit rlsk exposure 

(I) Expected credi t losses for financial assets other than loans 
The Company have not made expected credit losses for financial assets other than loans. 

Cash and cash Other bank 
Partlculars 

equivalents balance 

As at March 31, 2022 
Gr0$s carrying amount 990.48 221.45 
Less: Expected credit losses . . 
Net carrying amount 990.48 221.45 
As at March 31 , 2021 
Gross car,ying amount 1,157.74 523.55 
Less: Expected credit losses . . 
Net carrying amount 1157.74 523.55 

(II) Movement of carrying amount and expected credit loss for loans 

Definition of default: 

Investments 

1,811.11 
. 

1,811.11 

1,156.14 
. 

1 156.14 

Other 
financial 
assets 

81,74 
. 

81.74 

111.33 
. 

111.33 

The company has rebutted the presumption prescribed under Ind AS 109 that the credit risk increases significantly 
since Initial recognition when contractual payments are more than 30 days (Stage 2) and that default oc<:ors when a 
financial asset is 90 days past due (Stage 3), The risk profil ing is determined for each segmented loan portfolio 
Indicated below based on historical and market trends and dire<;Cions from RBI including guidance for identification of 
NPA in agricuhural advances. 

Segmentation for ECL risk 

Agrl enterpri ses 

Stage 

Stage 1 
Stage 2 
Stage 3 

Loans Days past due (CPD) 

Upto 60 days 
61 days to 240 days 
More than 240 days 

Upto60 days 
61 da s to 360 days 

n360das 
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Credit Quality of Loan Assets 

Partlculars As at March As at March 
31. 2022 31 . 2021 

Stage 1 11,731.86 8,556.60 
Stage 2 767 04 1,109.75 
Stage 3 334.89 163.28 
Total 12,833.79 9829.63 

An analysis of changes In the gross carrying amount and the corresponding ECL allowances is, as follows: 

As at March 31 2022 .. 
Particulars StaQe 1 Staae 2 Staae 3 
Gross carrying value of opening balances 8,556.60 1,109.75 163.28 

New assets originated during the year, netted off repayments and 3,519.36 - -
derecognised portfolio 

Trans fer to stage 1 264.01 (263.91) (0.10) 
Transfer to stage 2 (348.51) 348.51 -
Transfer 10 stage 3 (99.54) (427.30) 526.84 
Amounts wr,tten off (160.06) (0.01) (355.13) 
Gross car.vina value of closlna balances 11,731.86 767.04 334.89 

As at March 31 2021 .. 
Particulars StaQe 1 StlQO 2 StaQe 3 
Gross carrying value or opening balances 7,058.98 483.01 85.20 

New assets originated during the year, netted off repayments and 2,246 75 139.75 103.18 
de,ecognlsed ponfolio 
Transfer to stage 1 139.50 (135.29) (4.21) 
Transfer to stage 2 (873,71) 955,56 (1.10) 
T ransrer to stage 3 (14.92) (126.82) 141.74 
Amounts written orr - (206.46 (161.53 
Gross carrvinQ value of closlnQ balances 8,556.60 1109.75 163.28 

As at March 31 2022 ,. 
Particulars Staae 1 Staae 2 Staae 3 
ECL allowonce - opening balances 27.46 26.54 99.44 

New assets originated during the year, netted off repayments and 11.29 - -
dereoognised portfolio 
Transfer to stage 1 0.85 (0.85) -
Transfer to stage 2 (6.33) 6,33 . 
Transfer to stage 3 (60.62) (260.23) 320.85 
Impact of ECL on e~posures transferred between stages during the 21 6,69 269.25 214.86 
Amounts wrrtten off (160 06) (0.01' (355.13 
ECL allowance - closlna balances 29,48 43.03 280.02 

As at March 31 2021 
Particulars Staae 1 Staae 2 Staae 3 
ECL allowance - opening balances 99.19 24,57 75.16 

New assets originated during the year. netted off repayments and (43.31) (9.81) 0.17 
dereoognised ponfolio 
Transfer to stage 1 (6.64) 10.68 (4.04) 
Transfer to stage 2 - 0 .99 (0.99) 
Transfer to stage 3 (0,29) (16.15) 16.44 
Impact ol ECL on e~posures transferred between stages during the (21.49) 23.08 45.09 
Amounts written off - (6.82 (32.39' 
ECL allowance - closina balances 27.46 26.54 99.44 
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"Assets originated during the year has been presented on net basis i.e. the collections towards fresh loans has been 
netted ofl. 

(b) Liquidity Risk Management : 

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company cannot meet its financial obligations as they become due. The 
Company manages its liquidity risk by ensuring as far as possible, that It will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its 
liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, wiihout incurring unacceptable losses or risk to the 
Company's repulation. The Company maintains adequate reser,es and banking facilities, and continuously monitors the 
forecast and actual cash flows by matching maturing profiles of financial assets and financial iiabllities in accordance 
with the approved risk management policy of the Company periodically. The Company believes thal the working capital 
(including banking limits not utilised) and its cash and cash equivalenJ are sufficient to meet its Short and medium term 
requirements. 

Refer Note 32 (a) and 32 (b) which details the Company's remaining contractual maturity fOf its financial liabilities with 
agreed ,epayment periods. The contractual maturity is based on the earliest date on which the Company may be 
required to pay. 

(c) Market Risk 

Market Risk is the risk that the fair value or the future cash flows of a financial inslllJment will Ructuate because of 
changes in matket factor. Such changes in the values of financial instruments may ,esult from changes in the interest 
rales, credit. liquidity. and other market changes. The Company is exposed to two types of market risk as follows: 

Interest Rate Risk 

Interest rate risk is !he ,isk that the future cash flows of a flMncial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 
market interest rates. 

The Company is subject to irllerest rate risk, principally because the Company lend to custome,s at fixed interest rates 
and for periods that may differ from our funding sources, while the borrowings are at both fixed and variable interest 
rates for differe,11 periods. The Company assess and manage the interest ,ate risk by managing the assets and 
liabilities. The Asset liability Management Committee ensures that all significant mismatches, if any, are being 
managed apptoprialely. The Company has Boa,d approved Asset liability Management (ALM) policy for managing 
interest rate risk and policy for determining the interest rate to be chatged on the loans given. 

Sensiti vity 

The sensitivity of the statement of profit and loss is the effect of the changes in mar'~et inte,est rates on bank and other 
borrowings. Below is the sensitivity or profit and loss in interest rates. 

Particulars 

Interest sensitivity• 
Interest rates - increase by 0.50% 
Interest rates - decrease bv 0.50% . . . 

Ho;d,ng ell other vanables constant 

Price Risk 

Year ended Year ended 
March 31,2022 March 31,2021 

14.61 25.66 
(14.61) (25.66\ 

The Company's exposure to price risk is not material and it is primarily on account or investment of temporary treasury 
surpluses in the highly liquid debt funds for very short durations. The Company has a board approved policy of investing 
its surplus funds in highly rated debt mutual funds and other instruments having insignificant price risk, not being equity 
funds/ risk bearing instruments. 

Foreign currency risk 

The Company does not have any unhedged foreign curtency e osure and hence does not have any foreign currency risk. 
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35 Capital management 
The Company's capital management objectives are: 
- to ensure the Company's ability to continue as a going concern 
- to comply with externally Imposed capital requirement and maintain strong credit ratings 
• to provide an adequate return to shareholders 

The Company's capital management strategy is to effectively determine, raise and deploy capital so as to create value for its 
shareholders. The same Is done through a mix of either equity and/or convertible and/or combination of short termnong term 
debt as may be appropriate. 

The Company detennines the amount of capital required on the basis of operations, capital expenditure and strategic 
investment plans. The capital structure is monitored on the basis of net debt to equity and maturity profile of overall debt 
portfolio. 

Net debt to equity ratio 
Debt 
Less: Cash and bank balances & other bank balances 
Net debt 

Total equity 
Net debt to equity ratio(%) 

36 Leases 
As a lessee 
a) Additions to right of use asset 
Particulars 
Property plant and equipment 

b) Carrying value of right of use asset 
Particulars 
Right of use asset as on the opening date 
Additions during the year 
Depreciation charge for the year 
Balance as at the year end 

c) Maturity analysis of lease llabillty 
Contractual Undiscounted Cash Flows 
Less than 1 year 
One to five years 
Total undlscounted lease liability 

Lease liabilities included In lhe statement of financial position 

d) Amounts recognized in Statement of profit or loss 

Interest on lease liabilities 
Depreclalion charge for the year 
Expenses relating to short-term leases 

37 Operating segments 

As at As at 
March 311 2022 March 311 2021 

10.627.81 
(1,211 .93) 
9,415.88 

5,343.54 
176.21% 

Year ended 
March 311 2022 

7.77 

As at 
March 31, 2022 

11.22 
7,77 

(6.62) 
12.37 

8.45 
8.72 

17.17 

15.62 

Year ended 
March 311 2022 

1.98 
6.62 
9.35 

7,693.24 
(1.681.29) 
6,011.95 

5,125.59 
117.29% 

Year ended 
March 311 2021 

As at 
March 31, 2021 

16.84 

(5.62) 
11.22 

5.73 
10.40 
16.13 

14.36 

Year ended 
March 31 1 2021 

1.53 
5.62 
9.80 

The Company has only one business segment and eographlcal segment, since It is only into lhe business of loan financing 
and operates only within India. Therefore. r rnri ~., er Ind AS 108 on 'Operating Segments', is not appncable for i ts 
financial statements. ,::" '-;._ 
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38 Contingent liabilities 

Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts : 
The Company had received orders from Income Tax Assessing Officer (AO) pertaining lO AY 2016-17, AY 2017-18 and AY 
18-19 wherein certain additions were made under section 56, section 68 and section 143(3) of Income Tax Act, 1961 . 

The Company has obtained a stay on collection of the demand provided below. The Company considers the claims to be 
erroneous and is not payable under the provisions of Income Tax Ac~ 1961. 

As at March 31 2022 ' • 
AY 2016-17 AV 2017-18 AV 2018-19 

Amount of demand 10.18 3.57 0.29 
Amount paid aaainst stav 2.10 0.80 . 

As al March 31 2021 .. 
AV 2016-1 7 AV 2017-18 AV 201I1-19 

Amount of demand 10.18 3.57 0.29 
Amount paid against stay 2.10 0.80 . 

Others 
Amounts provided as MRR against securltlzallon transactions 
Principal sub-ordination 

As at 
March 31

1 
2022 

Cash collateral 

39 Corporate Social Responsibility 

As at 
March 31 1 2021 

52.59 
32.66 

The Company has incurred an expenditure of f 0.87 millions (Previous year , 1.88 millions) towards CSR activities which 
Includes contribution / donations made to the foundation which are engaged in activities prescribed under Section 135 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule VII to the said Act. 

Details of amount spent towards CSR activities : 
a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year is , 0.87 millions (previous year: t 1.4 millions) 

b ) For the year ended 

Particulars March 31, 2022 

In cash 
Yet to be 

Total In cash 
oaid in cash 

In construction/ 
acquisition of any asset 

. . . . 

On other purooses 0.70 0.17 0.87 1.88 

40 Reconciliation of movement in borrowings to cash flows from financing activities 
Particulars March 31 , Cash flows Exchange 

Debt securities 
2021 (net) di fference 
4,213.92 1,081.96 

Borrowings (other than debt securities) 3,479.32 1,808.87 -14.54 
Total 7 693.24 2,890.83 -14.54 

Particulars March 31 , Cash flows Exchange 
2020 (net) difference 

Debt securities 1,622.97 2,568.37 
Borrowin s other than debt secunties 285.48 
Total 2,853.85 

March 31. 2021 
Yet to be 

paid in cash 

. 

. 

Amortisation of 
loan origination 

5.45 
52.83 
58.28 

Amortisation of 
loan origination 

22.58 
22.59 
45.17 

Total 

-
1.88 

March 31 , 
2022 

5,301.33 
5,326.48 

10 627.81 

March 31, 
2021 
4,213.92 
3,479.32 
7 693.24 
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41 Maturity analysis o f asset an d liabllltios 
The tal>le below shows the maturity enalysis of anets and llabihlies eccordlng 10 when lhey are expected 10 be recovered or sellled. 

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021 

Wi thin After 
Total 

Within Aftor 
Total 

12 months 12 months 12 months 12 months 
ASSETS 
Financial assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 990.48 - 990.48 1.157.74 - 1,157.74 
Olher bank balances 160.21 61.24 221.45 467.68 65.87 523.56 
Loans 9,446.08 3.035.18 12.481.26 7.944 05 1.732.14 9.676. 19 
lnveslmenls 178.90 1.632.21 1.811.11 371 .65 784.49 1,156.1 4 
Other Financial Assets 73,71 8.03 81 .74 89.68 21.65 111 33 

10,849.38 4,736.66 15 586.04 10,030.80 2,594.15 12.624.95 

Non- Financial auets 
Current lax assets (nel) - 175.89 175.89 . 58.42 58.42 
Deferred lax assets (nel) - 245.22 245.22 - 105.09 105.09 
Prcl)flrty, plant and equlpm&nt - 59.97 59.97 . 54.38 54.38 
Righi of use auets - 12.37 12.37 - 11.22 11.22 
lnlangible usets under development - 27.68 27.68 - 0.46 0.46 
Other Intangible assets - 24.76 24.78 . 25.23 25.23 
Other non4inandal assets 37.63 - 37.63 27.45 0.57 28.02 

37.63 545.89 583.52 27.45 255.37 282.82 

LIABILmEs 
Flnanclal Ll1bifi1ios 

Trade Payables 45,88 0.24 46.12 
Debi Securitles 916.92 4,384.41 5,301.33 1,440.82 2.773.10 ◄,213.92 

80trowi09s (Other lhan Debt ~r,ties) 3,853.32 1,473.16 5,326.48 2,663.86 815.46 3,479.32 
Other financial habilities 25.35 8558 90.93 36.26 8.63 44.89 

◄,841.47 5.923.39 10 764.86 4,140.94 3,597.19 7,738.13 
Non• Financial liabilitios 

Provisions 8.66 25.77 34.43 5.41 21.89 27.30 
Other non•financ,al liabfht1es 26.39 0.34 26.73 15.86 0.89 16.75 

35.05 26.11 61.16 21.27 22.78 44.05 

.. ~-(m·-· i ,~ , . . .., ~ ~-
/ . . s t ·":<' ' , 
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42 Related party disclosures 
a) N f I d I d h' ames o re ate part es an relat ons ,Ip 

Relationship 
Wholly owned subsidiaries 

Key management personnel (KMP) 

Entitv in whi<:n KMP has sionificant intluence 

b) Related partv transactions 

Nature or transactions 

Samunnati Agro Solutions Private Limited 
Loans given 
Loans repaid 
Interest income on loans 
Corporate guarantee provided 
Income from subsidiary f0< shared setviees 
Salaries and wages (deputation charges paid) 

Samunnati Foundatlon 
Donations made 
lnveslmeol in share capital 

Kama tan Farm Tech Private Limited 
Investment in equily shares 
Loan given 
Interest income 

Samunnati Finance Private Limited 
lnveslment ,n equity shares 
Reimbursement of expenses 

Anll KumarS G 
Remuneration • 

Gurunath N 
Remunefation • 

Nitln Chaudhary 
Remuneration • 
Loans given 
Loans repaid ~ : .. 

Name o f tho related oartv 
Samunnati Agro Solutions Pnvate Limited 
SamunnaU Finance Private Llmite<l (w.e.f September 22, 2021) 
Kamatan Farm Tech Private Lunited (w.e.f. Apnl 16, 2021) 
Samunnati Foundation 
Executive Director 
1. Anil Kumar S G - Director and CEO 
2. Guruneth Neelamani - Whole-time Director 
KMP 
1. Mr. Ashok Dhamankar • CFO (unUI April 22, 2022) 
2. Mr. Lalit Malik - CFO (w.e.f April 22, 2022) 
3. Ashwinl Venkataraman - Company Seereta,y (w.e.f. November 06, 2020 
bll September 15, 2021) 
4. Mr. Arunkumar Srldharan Company Seueta,y (w.e.f. March 11, 2022) 
Independent directors 
1. Mr. Narasimhan Srinivasan 
2. Mr. Sunn Satyapal Gulati 
3. Dr. Venkatesh Tagat 
Nominee direc:tors 
4. Ms. Jyotsna Krishnan 
5. Mr. Mahendran Balachandran 
6. Mr. Akshay Dua 
7. Ms. Rekha Natra1an Unnilhan 
Samunnatl ESOP Welfare Trust 

Yearendod 
March 31, 2022 

Year ended 
March 31 2021 

,ow~ ,,, 

3,000.00 
2,050.00 

95.75 
249,77 
44.59 

2.10 

. 
8.40 

813.64 
5.50 
0.17 

25.00 
0.32 

21 .75 

11.86 

9.12 
. 

0.15 

700.00 
670.00 
46.70 

350.00 
47.73 
19.11 

2 .18 
0.10 

. 

. 

. 

. 

. 

18.12 

8.28 

8.86 
1.00 
0.85 

' -~ ·/ ' "'' .. .., 
;t . )~ I 
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Nature of transactions 
Year ended Year ended 

March 31. 2022 March 31 2021 
Ashok Dhamankar 
Remuneration • 16.94 12.74 

Niran)an Chandrasekaran 
Remuneration • . 0.17 

Ashwinl Venkataraman 
Remuneration • 0.28 0.28 

Arunkumar Sridharan 
Remune<atlon • 0.10 . 

Sitting fees paid 
Sunll Satyapal Gulati 1.26 0.83 
Narasimhan Srinivasan 1.11 0.70 
Venkatesh Taaat 0.76 0.53 

• The provision for gratuity and compensated absences is made on the basis of actuarial valuation for all the employees of the 
Company. including lhe managerial personnel. Proportionate amount ol gratuity and compensated absences 1s not included in the 
above disclosure. since the ex.ct amount rs not ascertainable. 

c) B I a ances at t e en o t e yoar h d f h 

Particulars 
As at As at 

March 31, 2022 March 31 2021 
Samunnatl Agro Solutions Private Limited 
Loans and advances (including interest accrued) 1,413.91 455.43 
Corporate guarantee pro111ded 599.77 350.00 
Deputation cost payable 0.61 3.43 

Kamatan Farm Tech Private L imited 
Loans and advances (including interest accrued) 5.67 . 

Samunnati Foundation 
Olher receivables 0.51 . 
Samunnati ESOP Welfare Trust 
Advances oiven . 0.11 

V 
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43 Addltlonal dtsclosure pursuant to tho Master Olrectfon .. Non.Banking Financial Company • Systemlcalty Important Non­
Deposit taking Company 1nd Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016, (as amended) issued by the RBI 

l ' Llabililles side: As al M.irch 31 , 2022 As at March 31, 2022 
1 ) Loans and i.dvances availed by the non-bankfng tlnanclal company lncluslve of Amount outstanding Amount overdue 

inte,est occruod thereon but not paid: 
(a) Debentures 

-secured 5,301.33 
•Unw-cured 

(b))Deferred credns 
(c))Term loans 5,326.48 
(d))lnter--eorporate loans and borrowing 
(e))Commercial paper 
(f) Public doposas 
(g))Ca,h c;redil 

Assets aide: 
2 ) Break up of loans and advances lncludlng bllls receivable (receivable from financing activity) 

(a) Secured 
(b) Unueured - includes loans 10 subsidiary 

3 ) Break up of leased assets and stock on hire and other asset$ counting towards AFC activities 
(i) Lease u selS lnciudlng lease rentals under sundry debtors , 
(1) FtnanCliJI le11e 
(b) Operaling lease 
ti) Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry de-btors : 
(a) A•ulS on hire 
(b) Repoueued Ass•ts 
(111) Other loans counting towards AFC ac11vitJes 
(a) Loans where auels have been repouessed 
(b) Loans other than (a) above 

4 } Broak•up of Investments 
Current lnvestnu!nt1 
Quoted 
(1) Shares 
(1) Equity 
(b) Preference 
Oij D~nruros and Bonds 
(1•) Unils of mulual funds 
(iv) Government S&ourilies 
(v) P.ss through cerur+cates 

Unquoted 
(i) Share1 
<•) Debentures and Bonds 
trn) Units of m1.1tual funds 
(iv) Go•emment Secur~~• 
(v) Pan through certiflc; tes 

Long term investment·s 
Quoled 

(i) Share• 
(a) Equity 
(b) Preference 
(Ii) Debentures ond Bonds 
l•I Unijs or mutual lunds 
(iv) Govemmenl Securities 
(•) Others (please specify) 

As at March 31 , 2022 
Amount outstanding 

1,081 .22 
t 1,400 04 

183 87 
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Unquoted 
(i) Shares 

(a) Equ,1y 
(b) Prcferenee 
(ii) OtbenlUres and Bonds 
l••I Units or mutual funds 
(iv) Government SeC\lrties 
(Y} Investment in ieallitlzed ISHII 

1,627.24 

5 ) Borro.ver group-wise cla11ific1tlon of assets financed as ln'-2"-"(•ae>..:•;;;n..:d_.(=.b):..a;.;b;.;o;.;v..:•..;: _____ ~~=--------
As at March 31, 2022 

Category 
I) Relal<d paf1ies 
(a) Subsid,afies 
(b) Companies In Uie same group 
(c) Other Nllated pon,es 
2) Other than related ponies 
Total 

Socurod 

1 081.22 
1,081.22 

Unsecured 

1,41958 

9,980.46 
11,400.04 

Total 

1,419.53 

11 061 .68 
12,481 .26 

6 ) Investor group.wise ctas1lflcation of all lnvestment·s (current and long tarm) ln shares and securities (both quotod and 
unquoted): 

Category 

I) Relaled Parues 
(a) Subsidlartes 
(b) Con-.ponies in U,e ume group 
(c.) Other related parties 
2) OU1er than relate<! parties 
Total 

7 ) Other lnlonnallon 
(I) Gross Non-Porfonnlng Asset• 

<•> Related parues 
(b) Other than related parties 
(II) Net Non-Performing Auets 
(a) Relat•d parties 
(b) Other than rel&led ponies 
(IIIJ Assea acquired in utislaction of debl 

8 ) Capital to Risk Asset Ratio ('CRAR'): 
Particulars 

CRAR (pe,cent) 
CRAR - Tier I C1pital (percent) 
CRAR - Tier II Capital (percent) 
Amount of 1ubordinated debt raised as Tier-II eap,tal 
Amount raised by issuo of perpetual debt illstruments 

9 ) Investments 
Particulars 

Value of 1nvestments 
(i) Gross value of inve.stments 

(1) In lndta 
(b) Outside India 

(ii) Provratons for rtnpelrment 
(a) In India 
(b) Outside India 

ti•) Net value of lnve.strnents 
(a) In India 
(b) Outside India 

Movement of provision• held towards depreclatk>n on investments 
(Q Opening Balance 
(ii) Add: Pro11lslons mtde during the ye .. ,:.;,V.f{)1.4 

l•l Less. W(ite-off/wt,te-baok of exee • •• visi 
(fv Cfosin Balance $i • 

As at March 31, 2022 

Book Value 
(Net of Provisi ons) 

1 ,627.2◄ 

183.87 
1 811.11 

Market value/ Break 
up or fair value or 

NAV 

Not apptieable 

183.87 
183.87 

A£ at March 31, 2022 

473.92 

172 86 

As at Marc h 31 2022 As at March 31, 2021 
20.43% 39.32% 
20.16% 39.08% 

0.27% 0.24% 

As at March 31, 2022 Al at March 31 , 2021 

1,811.11 1,156 14 

1,811.11 1,156.1' 
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10 ) The Company d= not ha•• de,tvati,e W11fads as at March 3 1, 2021 and Marci, 31, 2022. 

11 ) Olsclosurea relating to Securillz.atlon 

Particulars 

SPVs relating to outstanding 1ocuritlsatlon transactJons 
1. Number or SPV1 sponsored by the NBFC for securitisatlon 1,ansaetlons as on the dat.e of the 
blllanee shtet 
2. Total amount of oewrili .. d auets as per bool<s of the SPVs sponsored as on the date of the 
balance sheat 
3.Trul amount or exposures retained by the NBFC to comply with minimum retention 
roquuement ('MRR') 

Off-balance shtet exposure, 
Flrsl less 
Othera 

Or,-balance shffl el(l)OSures 
First Ion (cash collateral) 
Olhefs (uedit enhancement) 

Amoun1 of t.>.posures to stc.\lritisatJon tranuetions other than MRR 
Off-balance she.et e-xposures 

E•posure to own securitlzatlons 
Fntloss 
Others 

E.--posure to third p1rty secuntisacions 
Fkstlon 
Others 

E'llposuro to third party securltisations 
F'nt loss 
Othfl~ 

Year ended 
March 31 2022 

12 ) Details or financial assets sold to securitisation/reconstrucllon companfes for asset reconst.ruct lon 

Yeuended 
March 31 2021 

2 

155 73 

32.66 
52.59 

The Company has not sofd financial a.nets to s.ecuri1jsatlon/tec.onstruc:Uon comptnie-s f01 1net reconst.ruct-«i WI the current and 
Jl(eviou1 yt.ar. 

13 ) Details of assignment transactions undertaken 
There were no an~ts sold through au!gnmen.t transactions during the wnent and previous year. 

14 ) Dolailt of non-performing financial assets purchased or sold 
The Company has not po:rchas!<S or sold any non perfo,min,g financial IS$tls during the cutrent and p,evious ytar. 

----' I 
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15 ) Asset liability management maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabililles 
As at March 31 2022 ,, 

Maturity pattern Assets Lia bill lies 
Advances Investments Oecoslts Total Borrowlnas 

1 to 7 days 844.42 1.00 474.45 1,319.87 4820 
8 lo 14 days 259.88 . 2.08 261.96 24.68 
14 days to 1 month 1,206.46 17.50 . 1.223.96 240.69 
1 - 2 months 1,329.35 19.06 2.59 1,351.00 399.41 
2-3months 1,519.97 19.00 33.82 1,572.79 729.15 
3- 6months 2,000.42 53.97 39.07 2,093.46 1.340.02 
6 - 12 months 2,638.11 68.37 75.00 2,781.48 2.018.52 
1 - 3 years 2,070.22 4.97 61 .24 2.136.43 5,298.46 
3- 5yeats 699,17 . . 699.17 575.16 
> 5 vears 265.79 1,627.24 . 1,893.03 . 
Total 12,833.79 1.811.11 688.25 15,333.15 10 674.29 

Al at March 31 2021 

Maturity pattern Assets Liabilities 
Advances Investments Oennslts Total Borrowlnas 

1 to 7 days 888,39 153,69 . 1,042.08 139.79 
8 to 14 days 123,79 . . 123.79 287.95 
14 days to 1 monlh 452.89 23.15 . 476.04 235.33 
1 - 2 months 1,020.76 24.05 59,53 1,104.34 297.39 
2 - 3 months 1,748.18 25.66 110.24 1.884.08 811 .43 
3-6 months 1,514.84 TT.37 54.18 1,646.39 1,630.74 
6- 12 monlhs 2.195.20 67.73 325.40 2,588.33 754.19 
1-3years 1,246.30 4.29 55.87 1.306.48 3,167.17 
3 - 5 years 639.28 . . 639.28 369.25 
> 5 vears . 780.20 . 780.20 . 
Total 9,829.63 1,156.14 605.22 11,590.99 7,693.24 

Note: 
i) The Company do not have any foreign currency assets or liabilities as at March 31 , 2022 and March 31, 2021 
ii) AmoonlS overdue against standard assets are considered under 1 to 7 days bvci<et. 
iii) Amounls overdue against non-perfom11ng a,sets are considered under 3 to 5 years buoket. 

16 ) Exposure to real estate sector 
The Company does not have any direct exposures to real es1a1e sector. 

17 ) Exposure to capital market 
The Company does nol have any exposure to capital matl<et as at March 31, 2022 and March 31 , 2021. 

18) Details of ffnanclng or parent company products 
This disclosure is not applicable as the Company does not have any holding f parent company. 

19) Details of Single Borrower Limit (SGL) / Group Borrower Limit (GBL) exceeded 
The Company has not exceeded Single Borrower Limit (SGL) nor has exceeded the Group Borrower Lim~ (GBL). 

20 ) Advances against Intangible securities 
Toe Company has no! given any advances against the righls, licenses, authorisations. etc. 

21 ) Registration obtained from other f inancial regulators 
During the year Company has nol obtained any approvals from other financial regulalors. 

22) Disclosure of penalties imposed by RBI and other regulators 
There were no penalties imposed on the Company by RBI or any other regulator. 

23) Related party transactions 
Refer note 42 for Related party tran 
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24 ) Ratings assigned by credit rating agencies and migration of ratings during the year 

As at March 31 2022 As at March 31 2021 
Instrument 

Name of the 
Amount 

Rating Amount rated Rating rated (In 
rating agency 

millions! 
assigned (In millions) assigned 

Non Converoble Deben1ures end Market ICRA NA NA 1,4TT BBB (stable) 
Un, !<! Debentures 
Non Converoble Debentures CARE 450 BBB (stable) 450 BBB (S18ble) 
Teem loans CARE NA NA 400 BBB (stable) 
Term loans (Long Term rating) CRISIL 3000 BBB+ (stable) 2000 BBB+ (stable} 

(Reaffirmed) 
Commercial Paper CRISIL 400 A2+ 1000 A2+ (Reaffirmed) 

(Reaffirmed) 
Non Convertible Debentures ( Short Term) CRISIL 350 A2+ 350 A2• (Anigned) 

(Reaffirmed) 
Non Convel1ible Debentures ( Long TeI·m) CRISIL 4,285 BBB+ (stable) 3,250 BBB+ (stable) 

(Reaffirmed) (Reamrmed) 
Term loans (Proposed) lnfomeric;s 2,000 BBB+ (stable) 2,000 A- (stable) 

25 ) Provisions and contingencies (shown under the head expenditure In Statement of profit and loss) 

Particulars 

PrOVISion for dep,eaation on investments 
Provision towards NPA 
Prov1s1on made towards income !BX 
Provision for s!Bndard assets 
Provision for depreciation and amortisation on property, plant and equipment, right of use 
assets and other intangible assets 
Provisron for emplayee benefits (Gratuity and compensated absences} 

26 ) Draw down from reserves 

27) 

Refer Statement or Changes In Equity for details relating to draw down from reserves. 

Concentration o f deposits, advances, exposures and NPAs 

Particulars 

I. Concentration of advances 
Total advances to twenty largest borrowers 
Percentage of advances to twenty largest borrowe<S to total advances or the NBFC 

11. Concentration of exposures (undrawn limits not considered) 
Total exposures to twenty largest borrowers/customers 
Percentage of exposures to twenty largest borrowers/customers to total exposure of 
lhe NBFC on borrowers/ customers 

111. Concentration of exposures 
Total exposures 10 top four NPA acoounts 

iv. Sector-wise NPAs 
All of the Company' NPAs are related to agricultural and allied activities. 

~~-:;# ~ 
;; .s 
:;. ::; 

~ -::-~ ~ i;/ , J, . .trs * '<11'-' 

Yearondod Yoorended 
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

194.99 

5.25 
47.61 

17.39 

As at March 
31 2022 

2,945.66 
26.17% 

2,945.66 
26.17% 

63.99 

59.19 

(104.67) 
28 .09 

7 62 

As at March 31, 
2021 

2,935.05 
30.33% 

2,935.05 
30.33% 

162.52 
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v. Movement of NPAs 

Particulars Year ended Year ended 
March 31 , 2022 March 31 , 2021 

A Net NPAs 10 Net Advances(%) 
B Movement of NPAs (Gros,) 

a) Opening balance 
b) Additions during the year 
c) Reduclions during the year 
d) Wnte-off during lhe year 
e) Closing balance 

C Movement of Net NPAs 
a) Opening balance 
b) Addllions during Che year 
c) Reduct,ons during the year 
d) Closing balance 

D Movement of provisions for NPAs (excluding provision on standard assets) 
a) Opening balance 
b) Provisions made during the year 
c) Ut,lisation dunng Che year 
d) Write-back of excess provisions 
e) Closing balance 

vi. Overseas assets 
The Company does not have any overseas assets as at March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021. 

1.38% 3.18% 

424.50 223,77 
563.07 529.29 
42.55 29.64 

471 .10 298.92 
473.92 424.50 

307.60 166.06 
154.23 402.60 
288.97 261.06 
172.86 307.60 

116.90 57.71 
408.84 126.69 
167.88 28.95 
57.00 38.55 

301.06 116.90 

28 ) There are no off-balance sheet SPVs sponsored by the Company as at March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 lhat are required 
to be consolidated. 

29 ) Customer complaints· Year ended Year ended 
March 31, 2022 March 31 , 2021 

O No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year 
ii) No. or complaints received during the year 
iu) No. of complaints redresst'd during the year 
iv) No. of complaints pending at the end of the year 
·Based on the information available with the management and relied upon by the auditors 

30 ) Public Disclosure on Liquidity risk as at March 31, 2022 

(I) Funding Concentration based on s ignificant Counterparty (both deposits and borrowings) 

Number of 
% of Total % of Total 

S.No. Significant Amount 
borrowings llabllltles Counteroanles 

1 22 10,162.72 95.62% 93.87% 

(II) Top 20 large deposits (amount In millions and% of Total Deposits) Nil 

(Ill) To 10 borrowin s amount In millions and % of Total Borrowings) 

Amount o/, of Total 

7,345.74 

10 
10 

11 
11 
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(iv) Fundlnn concentration based on sfonlficant lnstrument/D-,oduct 

M 

S.No. Name of the Instrument Amount 
% of Total 
llabilltles 

1 Cash credit . 0.00% 
2 Commercial paper . 0.00% 
3 Non convertible debentures 5,301.33 49.88% 
◄ Overdraft faclfities . 0.00% 
5 Short-term Loans 2,002.43 18.84% 
6 L-termloans 3.324.05 31.28% 

Total 10 627.81 100.00¾ 

A ·s,gnific:an1 insll\JmenVproduct· is defined as a single inslrumenVproduct of group of similar instruments/products which in 
aggregate amount to more than 1% of the the Company. Total liabilities has ~n computed as Total Assets less Equity share 
capital less Reserve & Surplus and computed basis extant regulatory ALM guidelines. 

<:to- D3t(--

S.No Particulars 
0/4 of Public % of Total % of Total 

funds liabilities assets 
a Commercial Paper as a % of 101al public funds, total Not Nol Nol 

liabilities and total assets applicable appllc:able appltcable 
b Non-convertJble debentures (Original Maturity less than 

Not Not 1 year) as a % of total public funds, total liabilities and Not 

total assets applicable applicable applicable 

C Short Term Liabilities as a % of total pubkc runds, total 
45.88% 45.04% 30.16% liabilities and total assets 

(vi) Institutional set-up tor Liquidity risk management 

Nature of risk: 
a) Liquidity risk arises from mismatches In the timing of cash flows and loan collection defaults. 
b) Funding risk ari~s from: 
1) Inability to raise Incremental borrowings to fund business requirement or repayment obligations 
Ii) When assets cannot be funded at the e,<pected term resulting m c:ashffow mismatches 
11i) Volatile marl<.et cond1t1ons impacting sourcing of funds from banks and money markets 

Measurement, monitoring and management of risk 
Liquidity and funding risk i s measured by: 
I) lden1,fication of gaps ,n the struCl.ural and dynamic liquidity statements. 
11) Assessment of incremental borrowings required for meebng the repayment obligauon as well as the Compan)l's business 
plan in line with prevaikng marl<et conditions. 

Monitored by: 
1) assessment of the gap between visibility of funds and the near term habillties given current liquidity conditions and evolving 
regulato,y directions for NBFCs. 
1i) a constant caltbrabon of souroes of funds in line With emerging marllet conditions In banking end money markets 
Ill) periodic reviews by Asset Llablllty Committee (ALCO) relating to the liquidity position and stress tests assuming varied 
'Mlat if scenarios and comparing probable gaps with the liquidity buffers maintained by the Company. 

Managed by: 
The Company's treasury learn under the guidance of ALCO through various means like liquidity buffers, sourcing of long term 
funds. positive asset liablllty mismatch, keeping strong pipeline of sancllons and approvals from banks and assignment of 
loans. 

Executive governance s1ructure- Management level Asset Liability Committee (ALCO): The Company's ALCO monitors Asset 
Liability mismatches to ensure that there are no imbalan~s or excessive concentrations on either side ol the Balance $heel 
The Company continuously mooitors liquidity In the market As a part of its Asset-Uab,hty Management (ALM) svategy, the 
Company maintains a hqu1d1ty buffer managed by an active lnvestmeI11 10 reduce this risk. As on March 31 , 2022, the 
Company has liquidity of f 990.48 millions The Company maintains a judicious m,x of borrowings from banks, '"-9" 
Oevelopmenl Institutes, NBFCs and other Impact investors and continues to diversify its sources of borrowings. This slfategy 
or balancing varied sour~s of funds has helped the Company to maintatn a healthy asset liabihty pos,uon and contain interest 
rare movements. Ouring me finan01al year 2021-22, the weighted average cost of borrowings moved down by 11 basis points 
despile volallle market conditions. The Company · evaluate new SOU(ces of borrowing by way of new tO\Jles of 
funding like Commeraal Pape<s, NCOs, Malket Lin fg:P 'Ii , S~ial Liquidity Sehemes of RBI etc. 

- l ' ~ % ~ 
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11 ) 
~ ... ~. ··---··· ··-·· -·- .. -- ··- ·- ··-····-

Asset Classification as per RBI Nonns 

(1 l 
PorformlnQ assets 

SIDndard 

Subtotal 

Non-Performing Assets INPAl 
SObstanda,d 
Subslandard 

Ooublful • uo lo 1 venr 
1 to 3wats 
More than 3 voars 
Subtotal for doubtful 

Loss 
Subtotal for NPA 

Other itoms such as guarantees. loon 
commitments, etc. which are in the scope o 
Ind AS 109 but not covered under current 
Income Recognition, Asset Oassilicalion and 
Provisioning (IRACP) norms 
Subtotal 

Total 

• If '11 1/• 
:::,., 

Assot 
cJassification 

as por 
Ind AS 109 

121 

Slaae 1 
s•-2 

==2 
S1aae 3 

Staoe 3 
~-3 
Staae 3 

s•-3 

Stage 1 

Stage2 

Slage3 

s•-1 
Sl?"'e 2 
~•-3 
Total 

Gross Carrying 
L-oss Allowances 

Amount as per Ind 
(Provis.ions) as 

AS 
roquirod under Ind 

AS109 
/31 14) 

11 731.86 29.48 
628.01 21.9:l 

12,359.87 51.47 

139.03 21.04 
213.:10 177.00 

74.87 62.25 
46.72 40.77 

. . 
121.59 103.02 

. . 
473.92 301.06 

. . 

. . 

. . 

. . 

11,731.86 29.43 
7ti7.04 43.03 
334.89 280.02 

9 352.53 
/ ~\ - ,, .. , 

( ~ 

Oiffcronce betwoen 
NetCa,rying Provisions required Ind AS 109 

Remairks 
Amount as per IRACP norms provisions and 

tRACP nOml$ 
(51• (3}~41 (6) (71~(4)~6) 

11.702.311 63.16 133.68 O • 60da•-
606.02 12.07 9.92 60·90"--

12,308.40 75.23 123.76 

117.00 2G.77 /5.73 90 • 24or.l60 daV< 
36.30 67.24 109.76 More lhBn 240/360 dav< 

12.62 25.87 36.38 More than 2401360 da"' 
5.95 26.64 14.13 More lhBII 24or.l60 da~ 
. . . More than 2401360 davs 

18.57 52.51 50.51 

. . . 
172.86 146.52 154.54 

. . . 

. . . 

. . . 

. . . 
I 

11,702.33 63.16 133.68 I 

724.01 36.84 4.19 
54.87 119.75 160.27 

12,481.26 221.75 130.78 
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44 Covid-19 Impact 

The OU1break of COVI0-19 pandemic across the globe and in India has contributed to a significant decline and volatility in 
the global and Indian financial ma!1<ets and corresponding slowdown in the economic activilies. The Company has 
developed estimates and applied management overlays for the purpose of determination of the provision for impairment 
of financial assets and provisions held by the company are in excess of the RBI prescribed norms. As the pandemic 
situation is dynamic and still evolving, the extent to which it will continue to impact the Company's resul!s is dependent on 
ongoing as well as future developments, which are highly uncertain. The Company will continue to monitor future 
economic conditions and update its assessment. 

Considering the unique and wide spread impact of COVID-19, the Company has estimated credit loss ('ECL 1 allowance 
towards its loan assets and managed portfolio of Rs. 352.53 million, based on the Information available al this point in 
time Including economic forecasts. The Company believes that it has considered all the possible impact of the known 
events ans1ng out of COVID• 19 pandemic in the preparation of these financial statements. 

The underlying forecasts and assumptions applied by the Company in determination of ECL allowance are subject to 
uncertainties vmich are often outside the conlrol of the Company and accordingly, actual results may differ from these 
estimates. Any potential excess/shortfall based on actual experience will be adjusted in the relevant period in future. The 
Company will continue to closely monitor the impact and any material changes in both the internal and external 
environments. The Company has been duly seivicing Hs debt obligations. The Company's Management beheves that 
Capital Adequacy and Liquidity position remains strong and shall continue to be an area of focus. 

45 Additional regulatory disclosures 

a. The Company owns freehold land and the title deeds of the freehold land Is held in the name of the Company. 

b. 

C. 

d. 

e. 

f. 

g. 

The Company does not hold any investment property and hence the disdosure on fair valuation of investment 
property is not applicable to the Company. 

The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) and intangible 
assets and hence the disclosure on revaluation of property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) 
and intangible assets Is not applicable to the Company. 

The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans to promoters, directors, KMPs and the 
related parties (as defined under the Companies Act, 2013), either severally or jointly with any other person that 
are either: 
(a) repayable on demand or 
(b) without specifying any terms or period of repayment 
during the current year. 

The Company has borrowings from banks or financial Institutions on the basis of security of book debts and cash 
collaterals. The book debts are seperately assigned to each borrower I financial institution and end use certificates 
are being filed with the borrower I financial institutions. 

No benami property are held by the Company and or no proceedings have been lnftiateo or are pending against 
the company tor holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) 
and rules made thereunder. 
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h. The Company has reviewed transactions to identify If there are any transactions with struck off companies. To the 
extent information is available on struck off companies, the following are the transactions with struck off 
Companies: 

Nature of Balance Balance 

Name of the struck off company transactions outstanding as outstanding as 
with struck off at March 31, at March 31, 

comoanv 2022 2021 
Aamrapalli Agro Producer Company 

Receivables 1.12 Limited· 
. 

• The balances was completely wntten off in the current year. The Company does not hold any relationship with 
the struck oft Company. 

i. There is no charges or satisfaction in relation to any debt / borrowings yet to be registered with ROC beyond the 
statutory period. 

j . The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read 
with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017. 

k. Ratios 

Particulars 
Year ended Year ended 

March 31 2022 March 31 2021 
Capital to risk-weighted assets ratio (CRAR) 20.43% 39.32% 
CRAR - Tier I Capital (percent) 20.16% 39.08% 
CRAR - Tier It Capital (percent) 0.27% 0.24% 

I. The Company has not entered into any scheme(s) of arrangements and hence the disclosure on compliance with 
approved scheme(s) of arrangements is Mt applicable to the Company. 

m. Other than the transactions that are carried out as part of Company's normal lending business: 

A) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or share premium or any 
other souroes or kind of funds) to any other person(s) or entity(ies), induding foreign entities (Intermediaries) with 
the understanding (whether r~rded in writing or otherwise) that the Intermediary shalt -
(a) dlrecUy or indlrecUy lend or Invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on 
behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries: 

BJ The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding 
Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the company shall -
(a) direcdy or ,ndlrectty lend or invest in other persons or entities identified In any manner whatsoever by or on 
behalf of the Funding Party (Uhlmate Beneficiaries) or 
(b) provide any guarantee. security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

n. There are no transactions which have not been recorded in the books of accounts and has been surrendered or 
disclosed as Income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act. 1961. Also, there are no 
previously unrecorded income and related assets. 

o. The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year. 

46 The Code on Social Security, 2020 ('Code') relating to employee benefits during employment and post-employment 
benefits received Presidential assent in September 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. 
However, the date on which the Code will come into effect ~s not. been notified. The Company will assess the 
impact of the Code when it comes into effect and will re [J,... · · it~ impact in the period the Code becomes 
effective. ?5'" :t l , - ,; - V - -~ ~ ,-. . ~~ 

;i ... ~\ 
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47 Previous year figures have been regrouped I rearranged, wherever considered necessary, to conform to the classification 
I disclosure adopted in the current year. 

As per our report of even date attached 
For PKF Sridhar & Santhana~LP 
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ICAI Firm Registration..,~ o.: 003990S/S200018 

/J!;y~ 111¥{_/ . 
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Membership No.: 025973 

Place: Chennai 
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Place: Chennai 
Date: May 26, 2022 

Whole-time Director 
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